
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
APRIL 18, 2005 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 



TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
 
 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

April 18, 2005 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Father Emanuel Shaleta - St. Joseph 
Chaldean Catholic Church 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1102 Boyd 1 

C-2 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1998 Kirkton 3 

C-3 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 6771 Westaway 4 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 6 

D-1 Best Value Process Award – Audit Services – In a related matter, Item J-7 is a 
letter from Doeren Mayhew to City Council 6 



CONSENT AGENDA: 7 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 7 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 7 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 7 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): 8 

a) Recording for the Blind and Dyslexic Week – April 25-30, 2005........................... 8 
b) Law Day – May 1, 2005........................................................................................ 8 

E-4  Standard Purchasing Resolutions 8 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Roof Replacement 
at Fire Station #4 .................................................................................................. 8 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Option to Renew – Towing and Storage 
Services................................................................................................................ 8 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Contract 05-1 – 
Section 18 Bituminous Overlay, Big Oak Trail SAD and Somerton SAD.............. 9 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Aggregates ............. 9 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – Printing of Troy Today, Quarterly Newsletter.............................. 9 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Sole Bidder – Transit Mixed 

Concrete............................................................................................................... 9 
g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10:  Travel Authorization and Approval to 

Expend Funds for Troy City Council Members’ Travel Expenses – National 
League of Cities (NLC) Congress of Cities and Exposition................................. 10 

E-5  Request for Approval of Relocation Claim, Barbara A. Stimac, 2827 Thames, 
Sidwell #88-20-25-226-004, Project No. 01.105.5 – Big Beaver Road 
Improvements, Rochester to Dequindre 11 

E-6  Request for Acceptance of a Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit for 
the Troy Court Water Main Project #01.502.5 – Section 34 11 

E-7  Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Watermain – Republic of 
San Marino Hall, Incorporated – 1685 E. Big Beaver Road – Project No. 04.929.3 
– Sidwell #88-20-23-401-033 11 

E-8  Private Agreement for San Marino Social Club 12 

E-9  Maria Hunciag v. City of Troy 12 



E-10 Request for Acceptance of Private Road Agreement, Private Sidewalk Agreement, 
Emergency Storm Sewer Easement, Emergency Access Easement, Permanent 
Sanitary Sewer Easement, and Permanent Water Main Easement – Golf John R, 
L.L.C. – The Enclave of Troy – Sidwell #88-20-13-351-025 12 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 13 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 13 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority; b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for 
Senior Citizens, Board of Zoning Appeals, Cable Advisory Committee, Charter 
Revision Committee, Charter Revision Committee, Historic District Commission, 
Library Board, Personnel Board 13 

F-2 Approval of Contract with MDOT for Right-of-Way Acquisition for the 
Reconstruction and Widening of John R, from Square Lake to South Boulevard – 
Project No. 02.204.5 20 

F-3 Approval of Contract with MDOT for Right-of-Way Acquisition for the 
Reconstruction and Widening of John R, from Long Lake to Square Lake – Project 
No. 02.203.5 20 

F-4 Bid Waiver – Purchase of Encoding Hardware and Hard Disk Array for Long-Term 
Archival Storage 20 

F-5 Proposed Amendment to Chapter 20 – Water and Sewer Rates - Update of 
Sanitary Sewer Benefit Fees 21 

F-6 Council Rules of Procedure Amendment to Accommodate SEMCOG and 
SOCRRA Member Appointments 22 

F-7 FOIA (Freedom of Information Act) / Enhanced Access Policy Proposed Revision 22 

F-8 Approval of Subdivision Entrance Sign / Agreement – Cedar Ridge Estates 
Subdivision 23 

F-9 Planning Consultant Services Contract 23 

F-10 Wireless Oakland Pilot Community 24 

F-11 City Manager Employment Contract 24 



F-12 City Attorney Employment Contract 25 

F-13 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Oak Forest South Site Condominium, 
East Side of Willow Grove, South of Square Lake Road, Section 11 – R-1C 25 

F-14 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Oak Forest Site Condominium, South 
Side of Square Lake Road, Between Willow Grove and John R Road, Section 11 – 
R-1C 26 

F-15 Limited Public Forum – Selection Process 26 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 27 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 27 

G-2 Green Memorandums: 27 

a) City Manager’s Letter to Ed Barlow Regarding the Proposal for Recalibration 
of Troy Futures Community Report .................................................................... 27 

b) Charter Revisions – 2005 Proposed Charter Committee Referrals .................... 27 
c) Minutes from the Special/Joint Meeting of the City Council and Planning 

Commission, March 28, 2005............................................................................. 27 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 27 

H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 27 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 28 

I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 28 

REPORTS: 28 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 28 

a) Election Commission/Final – February 23, 2005 ................................................ 28 
b) Troy Youth Council/Final – February 23, 2005 ................................................... 28 
c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – March 2, 2005 ........... 28 
d) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – March 2, 2005 ........... 28 
e) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – March 2, 2005 ..................................... 28 
f) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – March 9, 2005......... 28 
g) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – March 22, 2005............................. 28 
h) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – March 22, 2005............................. 28 



i) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – March 22, 2005 .................................... 28 
j) Troy Youth Council/Draft – March 23, 2005 ....................................................... 28 
k) Election Commission/Draft – April 12, 2005 ....................................................... 28 

J-2 Department Reports: 28 

a) Mayor Louise Schilling’s Travel Expense Report for the NLC Annual 
Congressional City Conference .......................................................................... 28 

b) Councilmember Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report for the MML 
Legislative Conference ....................................................................................... 28 

c) Councilmember Dave Lambert’s Travel Expense Report for the National 
League of Cities Congressional Cities Conference ............................................ 28 

d) Councilmember Dave Lambert’s Travel Expense Report for the Michigan 
Municipal League Legislative Conference .......................................................... 28 

e) Permits Issued During the Month of March 2005................................................ 28 
f) 2005 First Quarter Litigation Report ................................................................... 28 
g) March 31, 2005 Quarterly Financial Report ........................................................ 28 
h) ICMA Survey ...................................................................................................... 28 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  None Submitted. 28 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted. 28 

J-5  Calendar 28 

J-6  Realignment of Coolidge Road/Wattles Intersection Under Full Closure of Coolidge 
Road 28 

J-7  Letter from Doeren Mayhew Regarding Audit Services 28 

J-8  Letter of Transmittal; Proposed Fiscal Year 2005/06 Annual Budget 28 

STUDY ITEMS: 28 

K-1 Study Item – (Time Permitting) Update on Premature Concrete Pavement 
Deterioration from Alkali-Silica Reactivity (ASR) 29 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 29 

CLOSED SESSION: 29 

L-1 Closed Session 29 



RECESSED 29 

RECONVENED 29 

ADJOURNMENT 29 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 30 

Monday, April 25, 2005: 6:30 PM Special/Study/Budget City Council................... 30 
Monday, April 25, 2005 Regular City Council........................................................ 30 
Monday, May 02, 2005: 6:30 PM Special/Study/Budget City Council ................... 30 
Saturday, May 7, 2005: 9:00 AM Special/Study/Budget City Council.................... 30 
Monday, May 9, 2005 Regular City Council .......................................................... 30 
Tuesday, May 10, 2005: 7:30 PM Special/Study City Council............................... 30 
Monday, May 16, 2005 Regular City Council ........................................................ 30 
Monday, May 23, 2005 Regular City Council ........................................................ 30 
Monday, June 6, 2005 Regular City Council ......................................................... 30 
Monday, June 20, 2005 Regular City Council ....................................................... 30 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 18, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Father Emanuel Shaleta - St. Joseph 
Chaldean Catholic Church 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 
 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations 
 
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1102 Boyd 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLUTION A FOR APPROVAL 
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 18, 2005 
 

- 2 - 

B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 
alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 

 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance:   
              
        . 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Irene Ianos, for waiver of 
Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor parking of a 
Dodge dump truck and wood chipper on a trailer in a residential district is hereby APPROVED 
for       (not to exceed two years). 
 
Or RESOLUTION B FOR DENIAL 
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has not found that the petitioner has 
demonstrated the presence of condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance; 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 18, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Irene Ianos, for waiver of 
Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor parking of a 
Dodge dump truck and wood chipper on a trailer in a residential district is hereby DENIED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-2 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1998 Kirkton 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLUTION A FOR APPROVAL 
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance:   
              
        . 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from William Hiner, for waiver of 
Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor parking of a 
Ford dump truck in a residential district is hereby APPROVED for      (not to 
exceed two years). 
 
Or RESOLUTION B FOR DENIAL 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 18, 2005 
 

- 4 - 

WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has not found that the petitioner has 
demonstrated the presence of condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from William Hiner, for waiver of 
Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor parking of a 
Ford dump truck in a residential district is hereby DENIED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-3 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 6771 Westaway 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLUTION A FOR APPROVAL 
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 18, 2005 
 

- 5 - 

B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 
alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 

 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance:   
              
         
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Henry Rowe, for waiver of 
Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor parking of a 
Ford cube van in a residential district is hereby approved for      (not to 
exceed two years). 
 
Or RESOLUTION B FOR DENIAL 
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has not found that the petitioner has 
demonstrated the presence of condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 18, 2005 
 

- 6 - 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Henry Rowe, for waiver of 
Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor parking of a 
Ford cube van in a residential district is hereby DENIED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 Best Value Process Award – Audit Services – In a related matter, Item J-7 is a 
letter from Doeren Mayhew to City Council 

 
Pending Resolution 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy desires to utilize the services of a new auditor 
after fourteen years with Doeren Mayhew. 
 
RESOLVED, That a three (3) year contract to provide audit services for years 2005, 2006 and 
2007 with an option to renew for three (3) additional years is hereby AWARDED to the 
Rehmann Group as a result of the Best Value process at an estimated cost of $63,820.00, as 
outlined in the tabulation opened February 4, 2005; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
proper contract and proposal documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements. 
 
PROPOSED - STANDARD PURCHASING RESOLUTION 8 – Resolution A 
 
RESOLVED, That a three-year contract to provide Audit Services for years 2005, 2006, and 
2007 with an option to renew for three additional years is hereby AWARDED to Doeren 
Mayhew of Troy, Michigan, the lowest bidder with the highest score, as the result of a Best 
Value process at an estimated annual cost of $55,695.00, as outlined in the tabulation opened 
February 4, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
proper contract and proposal documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements.   
 
ALTERNATE  – Resolution B 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council does not wish to retain Doeren Mayhew to provide auditing 
services for another contract period since the firm has been engaged as the City’s auditors 
since 1991; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Rehmann Group is the next most qualified firm as the result of a Best Value 
Process;  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 18, 2005 
 

- 7 - 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That, a three-year contract to provide Audit Services 
for years 2005, 2006, and 2007 with an option to renew for three additional years is hereby 
AWARDED to The Rehmann Group, at an estimated annual cost of $63,820.00, as outlined in 
the tabulation opened February 4, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
proper contract and proposal documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements.   
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
 
The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which shall be considered after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of April 4, 2005 at 7:30 PM be 
APPROVED as submitted. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 18, 2005 
 

- 8 - 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
 
a) Recording for the Blind and Dyslexic Week – April 25-30, 2005 
b) Law Day – May 1, 2005  
 
E-4  Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Roof Replacement at 

Fire Station #4 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to replace the roof at Fire Station #4, located at 2103 E. Maple 
Road, is hereby AWARDED to the low bidder, Bloomfield Construction Company of Bloomfield 
Hills, MI, at an estimated total cost of $31,190.00, which includes twenty (20) additional sheets 
of fire retardant plywood, and insurance; at unit prices contained on the attached bid tabulation 
opened March 29, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements.   
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Option to Renew – Towing and Storage 

Services 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
 
WHEREAS, On August 6, 2001, a three-year contract with two, one-year options to renew to 
provide towing and storage services was AWARDED to the low bidder, Coleman’s Towing and 
Recovery, Inc. (formerly A Roadone Company) (Resolution #2001-08-394-E-3); and  
 
WHEREAS, Coleman’s Towing and Recovery, Inc. agreed to exercise the first of two one-year 
options to renew the contract under the same prices, terms, and conditions (Resolution #2004-
05-268-E-9); and 
 
WHEREAS, Coleman’s Towing and Recovery, Inc. agrees to exercise the second one-year 
option to renew the contract;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the second of two one-year options to renew the 
contract is hereby EXERCISED with Coleman’s Towing and Recovery, Inc. to provide towing 
and storage services under the same contract prices, terms, and conditions expiring on July 31, 
2006. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 18, 2005 
 

- 9 - 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Contract 05-1 – 
Section 18 Bituminous Overlay, Big Oak Trail SAD and Somerton SAD 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
 
RESOLVED, That contract No. 05-1, Section 18 Bituminous Overlay, Big Oak Trail SAD and 
Somerton SAD, be AWARDED to John Carlo, Inc., 4500 River Ridge, Clinton Twp., MI 48038 
at an estimated total cost of $289,956.90. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Aggregates 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
 
RESOLVED, That one-year contracts for Aggregates with an option to renew for one additional 
year are hereby AWARDED to the low bidders, Wolverine Contractors, Inc. of Lathrup Village, 
MI, Richmond Transport of Lenox, MI, United Soils, Inc. of Ray Township, MI, and Edw. C. Levy 
Co. of Detroit, MI, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened March 21, 2005, a copy 
of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with the contracts expiring  
April 30, 2006; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid and proposal documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements. 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – Printing of Troy Today, Quarterly Newsletter 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to provide printing of the quarterly Troy Today newsletter for one 
(1) year with an option to renew for two (2) additional one-year periods is hereby AWARDED to 
the lowest acceptable bidder meeting specifications, Grand River Printing & Imaging, for an 
estimated annual cost of $70,060.72, plus the actual cost of bulk rate postage; and additional 
charges as needed not to exceed 10% of the total contract cost or $7,006.07, at unit prices 
contained in the bid tabulation opened March 30, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting, to expire upon completion of the Spring 2006 issue.   
 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Sole Bidder – Transit Mixed 

Concrete 
 
Suggested Resolution 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 18, 2005 
 

- 10 - 

Resolution #2005-04- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to provide one-year requirements of Transit Mixed Concrete with 
an option to renew for one additional year is hereby AWARDED to the sole bidder, Nagy Ready 
Mix, Inc. of Utica, MI, the primary supplier, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened 
March 14, 2005, a copy of which shall be attached to the original Minutes of this meeting at an 
estimated total cost of $166,554.00. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Clawson & Killins Concrete Co. is hereby named 
secondary supplier, utilizing the informal three-quote process at the following unit prices: 
 
PROPOSAL A – WEEK DAY DELIVERY 

 
ITEM   DESCRIPTION   UNIT PRICE 
1.   6 Sack Mix    $   68.00/cy 
2.   7 Sack Mix (High Early)  $   73.00/cy 
3.   12 HR 300PSI Mix   $   73.00/cy 

Flexural Strength/ 7 sack 
 
4.   Split Load Charges 
      a.   2 Locations    $ 100.00/ea 
      b.      3 locations    $ 100.00/ea 
5.   Below Minimum Load Charge $   80.00/ea 
6.   Cold Weather Protection  $     4.00/cy 
 

PROPOSAL B – SATURDAY DELIVERY 
 

ITEM    DESCRIPTION   UNIT PRICE 
1.      6 Sack Mix    $   73.00/cy 
2.    7 Sack Mix (High Early)  $   78.00/cy 
3.    12 HR 300PSI Mix   $   78.00/cy 
   Flexural Strength/ 7 sack 
 
4.   Split Load Charges 
      a.   2 Locations    $ 100.00/ea 
      b.    3 locations    $ 100.00/ea 
5.   Below Minimum Load Charge $   80.00/ea 
6.   Cold Weather Protection  $     5.00/cy 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements; and the contracts shall expire April 30, 2006. 
 
 
g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10:  Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend 

Funds for Troy City Council Members’ Travel Expenses – National League of Cities 
(NLC) Congress of Cities and Exposition 

 
Suggested Resolution 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 18, 2005 
 

- 11 - 

Resolution #2005-04- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Council Members are AUTHORIZED to attend the 
National League of Cities’ 82nd Congress of Cities and Exposition to be held in Charlotte, North 
Carolina from December 6 – 10, 2005, in accordance with accounting procedures of the City of 
Troy. 
 
E-5  Request for Approval of Relocation Claim, Barbara A. Stimac, 2827 Thames, 

Sidwell #88-20-25-226-004, Project No. 01.105.5 – Big Beaver Road Improvements, 
Rochester to Dequindre 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04-  
 
RESOLVED, That as required by Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, the City Council of 
the City of Troy hereby APPROVES the Relocation Claim from Barbara A. Stimac, pertaining to 
the City of Troy’s acquisition of her property at 2827 Thames, having Sidwell #88-20-25-226-
004, and authorizes payment in the amount of $2,245.00 
 
E-6  Request for Acceptance of a Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit for 

the Troy Court Water Main Project #01.502.5 – Section 34 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit from property owner 
Strained Gator, LLC, having Sidwell #88-20-34-152-023, with a consideration of $1,000.00, is 
hereby ACCEPTED, and payment of the stated consideration is APPROVED, for the 
construction, operation, maintenance and repair of the Troy Court Water Main improvement 
project; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a copy of said document shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
 
E-7  Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Watermain – Republic of 

San Marino Hall, Incorporated – 1685 E. Big Beaver Road – Project No. 04.929.3 – 
Sidwell #88-20-23-401-033 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Watermain Easement from Republic of San Marino Hall, Incorporated, 
owner of property at 1685 East Big Beaver Road, having Sidwell #88-20-23-401-033, is hereby 
ACCEPTED for the operation, maintenance and repair or replacement of watermain; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 18, 2005 
 

- 12 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record said 
document with the Oakland County Register of Deeds Office, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-8  Private Agreement for San Marino Social Club 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and San Marino Social Club, is hereby APPROVED for 
the installation of water main and soil erosion controls on the site and in the adjacent right of 
way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-9  Maria Hunciag v. City of Troy 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04-  
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED to retain Laura S. Amtsbuechler, 
of the law firm of Johnson, Rosati, LaBarge, Aseltyne and Field, P.C., to represent the City of 
Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of Maria Hunciag v. City of Troy, and to 
retain any necessary experts and pay any reasonable expenses incurred in defense of the 
matter. 
 
E-10 Request for Acceptance of Private Road Agreement, Private Sidewalk Agreement, 

Emergency Storm Sewer Easement, Emergency Access Easement, Permanent 
Sanitary Sewer Easement, and Permanent Water Main Easement – Golf John R, 
L.L.C. – The Enclave of Troy – Sidwell #88-20-13-351-025 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Private Road Agreement, Private Sidewalk Agreement, Emergency 
Storm Sewer Easement, Emergency Access Easement, Permanent Sanitary Sewer Easement, 
and Permanent Water Main Easement, all being part of The Enclave of Troy Condominium 
project, are hereby ACCEPTED; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 
the Private Road Agreement and the Private Sidewalk Agreement on behalf of the City; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record said 
documents with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 18, 2005 
 

- 13 - 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority; b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for 
Senior Citizens, Board of Zoning Appeals, Cable Advisory Committee, Charter 
Revision Committee, Charter Revision Committee, Historic District Commission, 
Library Board, Personnel Board 

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a) Mayoral Appointments 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR with 
COUNCIL APPROVAL to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
Mayor, Council Approval (7) – 3 years 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 18, 2005 
 

- 14 - 

 
 Term Expires 04/30/08 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/08 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/08 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Cotsonika, Arthur 04/30/06 
Goss, Laurence R. (Seeks reappointment) 04/30/05 
Lee, Katerine M. 04/30/05 
Lenivov, Victor 04/30/07 
Swartz, Robert D. 04/30/05 
Ullmann, Lon M. 04/30/06 
Wilberding, Bruce J. 04/30/07 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Baptista, Michael 05/21/03-05/2005 06/02/03 
Burke, Matthew 10/20/04-10/2005 11/08/04 
DeBacker, Deborah 05/20/02-05/2004 06/03/02 
Dziurman, Theodore 06/10/03-05/2005 06/16/03 
Hyun, Yul Woong (Jeff) 09/26/03-09/2005 10/06/03 
Joseph, Luke 03/10/03-03/2005 03/17/03 
Keisling, Laurence 04/29/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Shier, Frank 02/18/03-02/2005 03/03/03 

Silver, Neil S. 08/11/00-06/20/01-06/09//03-
05/2005 08/21/00-07/09/01-06/16/03 

Smits, Beatrice G. 12/02/03-12/2005 12/15/03 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(b) City Council Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 18, 2005 
 

- 15 - 

 Term Expires 04/30/08 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/08 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/08 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Berar, James 04/30/07 
Black, Burdette L. Jr. 04/30/07 
Dixon, Merrill W. (Sr Rep for Parks & Rec Board) 04/30/06 
Hoag,Marie 04/30/06 
Noce, Pauline Y. 04/30/07 
Ogg, David S. 04/30/05 
Rhoads, Josephine 04/30/05 
Thompson, JoAnn 04/30/06 
Weisgerber, William (Does not seek reappointment) 04/30/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Buchanan, Cynthia 06/07/00 06/07/00 
Burt, Susan 09/24/01 10/01/01 
Connor, Kathleen Ann 02/25/04-02/2006 03/01/04 
Freliga, Mary E. 11/25/02-11/2004 12/02/02 
Freliga, Victor P. 04/19/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
Lang, Victoria 06/16/03-06/2005 07/07/03 
Pietron, Dorothy A. 12/21/98-07/10/01 07/23/01 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Sastry, Shiva Shakara K. 07/20/04-07/2006 08/23/04 
Schafer, Donald E. 06/08/04-06/2006 06/21/04 
Solarte, Remedios 09/15/04 09/20/04 
Wheeler, Nancy 03/108/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
 
Board of Zoning Appeals  
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires April 30, 2008 
 
 Term Expires April 30, 2008 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Courtney, Kenneth L. April 30, 2007 
Fejes, Christopher April 30, 2006 
Gies, Marcia April 30, 2007 
Maxwell, Mark (Seeks reappointment) April 30, 2005 
Hutson, Michael April 30, 2006 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 18, 2005 
 

- 16 - 

Kovacs, Matthew R. (Seeks reappointment) April 30, 2005 
Wright, Wayne C. (Planning Comm Rep) December 31, 2005 
Drake-Batts, Lynn (Planning Comm Alt. Rep) December 31, 2005 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Almassian, Carolyn 04/22/02-04/2004 05/06/02 
Anderson, David C. 12/06/01-06/16/03-05/2005 12/17/01-07/07/03 
Baptista, Michael 05/21/03-05/2005 06/02/03 
Bordas, Dougla M. 08/19/99  
Dziurmanh, Theodore 06/10/03-05/2005 06/16/01 
Godlewski, W.S. 07/01/03-07/2005 07/07/03 
Hall, Patrick C. 06/16/03-052005 07/07/03 
Hanna, Atef A. 10/28/02-10/2004 11/04/02 
Howe, Peter Thomas 03/12/03-03/2005 03/17/03 
Joseph, Luke 03/10/03-03/2005 03/17/03 
Keisling, Laurence G. 04/29/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
Lakin, David 01/13/04-01/2006 02/02/04 
Minnick, Richard D. II 04/29/02-07/18/03-07/2005 05/06/02-08/04/03 
Noce, Robert Wilson 11/16/00-07/11/03-07/2005 11/20/00-07/21/03 
Ogg, David 02/09/99-06/09/03-05/2005 04/23/01-06/16/03 
Peard, James R. 11/25/03-06/09/03-05/2005 12/02/02-06/16/03 
Powers, Brian M. 10/15/02-10/2004 10/21/02 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Shah, Jayshree 01/12/04-04/23/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
Shier, Frank 02/18/03-02/2005 03/03/03 
Smits, Beatrice G. 12/02/03-12/2005  
Strat, Thomas 02/16/02-09/2004 09/23/02 
Wright, Wayne C. 01/07/99-06/18/03-06/2005  
Yousef, Gary 11/24/03-11/2005 01/05/04 
 
Cable Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years 
 
 Term expires 02-28-2008 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Bixby, Jerry L 02-28-06 
Butt, Shazad 11-30-05 
Hughes, Richard 02-28-06 
Marinos, Penny 02-28-07 
Manzon, Alan 09-30-06 
Lin, Fan (Student) 07-01-05 
Voigt, W Kent 02-28-07 
Wehrung, Bryan H 02-28-05 
  
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 18, 2005 
 

- 17 - 

NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Godlewski, W S 12/28/01-07/01/03- 

07/2005 
01/07/02- 
07/07/03 

Kuschinsky, Dick 10/11/01-06/19/03 
06/2005 

11/05/01 

Payne, Timothy P 02/25/04-02/2006 03/08/04 
Powers, Brian M 10/15/02-10/2004 10/21/02 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Shier, Frank 02/18/03-02/2005 03/03/03 
Solomon, Mark R 01/21/05 02/07/05 
Victor, Robert 06/03/03-06/2005 02/02/04 
Wattles, Brian J 07/10/01 07/23/01 
Weisgerber, William 07/14/03-07/2005 07/21/03 
Wheeler, Nancy 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
 
Charter Revision Committee  
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires April 30, 2008 
 
 Term Expires April 30, 2008 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Barno, Lillian April 30, 2006 
Bliss, Daniel H. April 30, 2006 
Bloom, Jerry E. April 30, 2007 
Kanoza, Shirley April 30, 2007 
Noce, Robert April 30, 2006 
Solomon, Mark R. April 30, 2005 
Wilsher, Cynthia A. April 30, 2005 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Almassian, Carolyn 04/22/02-04/2004 05/06/02 
Baughman, Deborah L. 06/18/01-06/09/03-05/2005 07/09/01-06/16/03 
Courtney, Kenneth 03/12/04-03/2006 03/15/04 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Schepke, Gordon 03/22/05 04/04/05 
Silver, Neil S. 06/09/03-05/2005 06/16/03 

Weisgerber, William 04/23/01-07/14/03-03/07/05-
07/2007 04/23/01-07/21/03 

Wheeler, Nancy 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 

Ziegenfelder, Peter F. 12/07/00-06/11/01-06/11/03-
05/2005 12/18/00-07/09/01-06/16/03 

  
Historic District Commission One member must be an architect. 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years Two members-Historical Society recommendations. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 18, 2005 
 

- 18 - 

 One member – Historical Commission recommendation. 
 
  Term expires 03-01-08 
 

(Historical Society) Term expires 03-01-08 
 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Marjorie A. Biglin 03/01/07 
Wilson Deane Blythe (Does not seek reappointment) 03/01/05 
Barbara Chambers (Historical Commission) 03/01/08 
Robert Hudson 05/15/06 
Paul C. Lin (Architect) 05/15/06 
Ann Partlan (Historical Society) 03/01/05 
Muriel Rounds 05/15/06 
Vilin Zhang (Student) 07/01/05 
 
INTERESTED  APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Kerry S. Krivoshein 08/12/99-06/14/01-05/2003 07/09/01 
Al Petrulis 02/11/03-07/31/03-07/2005 02/17/03-08/18/03 
Nancy Wheeler 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
 
Library Board 
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires April 30, 2008 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Allen, Joanne C. April 30, 2008 
Andreoff, Lauren (Student) July 01, 2005 
Chen, Cheng (Mr) (Student) July 01, 2005 
Griffen, Brian April 30, 2006 
Gregory, Lynne R. April 30, 2007 
Wheeler, Nancy D. April 30, 2007 
Zembrzuski, Audre April 30, 2005 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Blythe, Wilson Deane 03/06/02 03/18/02 
Brady, Michael 04/30/03  
Freliga, Mary E. 11/25/02-11/2004 12/02/02 
Gauri, Kul B. 08/26/99-07/03/03-07/2005  
Hashmi, Amin 08/22/02-08/2004  
Mellen, Dick 05/02/03-05/2005 05/05/03 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 18, 2005 
 

- 19 - 

Nelson, Albert T. Jr. 03/16/99  
O’Brien, Michael 07/28/03-07/2005 08/04/03 
Powers, Brian M. 10/15/02-10/2004 10/21/02 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Sastry, Shiva Shankara K. 07/20/04-07/2006 08/23/04 
Shah, Jayshree 08/28/01-01/12/04-01/2006 09/17/01-02/02/04 
Shah, Oniell 08/07/02 09/23/02 
Shepich, Patricia A. 07/22/04-07/2006 08/23/04 
Shiner, Mary E. 11/28/01 12/09/01 
Smits, Beatrice G. 12/02/03-12/2005 12/15/03 
Solarte, Remedios A. 09/15/04 09/20/04 
Solomon,  Mark R. 02/05/99-06/16/03-05/2005 07/07/03 
Uitto, Renee 12/03/04-12/2006 12/06/04 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on File   
 
Personnel Board 
Appointed by  Council (5) - 3 years 
 
 Term Expires April 30, 2008  
 
 Term Expires April 30, 2008 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Baughman, Deborah L. April 30, 2005 
Nelson, Albert T. Jr. April 30, 2006 
Patrick, Stephen Jr. April 30, 2006 
Tschirhart, Ronald L. (Seeks reappointment) April 30, 2005 
Vanderbrink, James E. April 30, 2006 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Bluthe, Wilson Deane 03/06/02 03/18/02 
Calice,  Mark A. 06/10/03-05/2005 06/16/03 
Freliga, Victor P. 11/28/04-11/2006 12/06/04 
Hall, Patrick C. 06/16/03-05/2005 07/07/03 
Howrylak, Frank J. 06/11/03-05/2005 06/16/03 
Huber, Laurie G. 06/18/01-05/2003 07/09/01 
Pritzloff,  Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Shah, Jayshree 04/23/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
Uitto, Renee 12/03/04-12/2006 12/06/04 
Ziegenfelder, Peter F. 12/07/00-06/11/01-06/11/03-05/2005 12/18/90-07/09/01-06/16/03 
 
Yes: 
No: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 18, 2005 
 

- 20 - 

 
F-2 Approval of Contract with MDOT for Right-of-Way Acquisition for the 

Reconstruction and Widening of John R, from Square Lake to South Boulevard – 
Project No. 02.204.5 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement between the City of Troy and the Michigan Department of 
Transportation for right-of-way acquisition for John R, Square Lake to South Boulevard, Project 
No. 02.204.5, is hereby APPROVED and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to 
execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-3 Approval of Contract with MDOT for Right-of-Way Acquisition for the 

Reconstruction and Widening of John R, from Long Lake to Square Lake – Project 
No. 02.203.5 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement between the City of Troy and the Michigan Department of 
Transportation for right-of-way acquisition for John R, Long Lake to Square Lake, Project No. 
02.203.5, is hereby APPROVED and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute 
the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-4 Bid Waiver – Purchase of Encoding Hardware and Hard Disk Array for Long-Term 

Archival Storage 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, Integrated Media Technologies, Inc. is the provider of DVTel hardware and 
application software used by the Police Department to record interviews and activity in the 
Lockup Section. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 18, 2005 
 

- 21 - 

WHEREAS, Increased camera coverage and long-term storage will enhance Police Department 
Operations. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That, formal bidding procedures are hereby WAIVED 
and the City of Troy is AUTHORIZED to purchase hardware, licensing, and installation services 
from Integrated Media Technologies, Inc. to connect thirteen (13) cameras to the recording 
system, and a 4TB RAID-5 storage unit at an estimated total cost of $36,077.00. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-5 Proposed Amendment to Chapter 20 – Water and Sewer Rates - Update of Sanitary 

Sewer Benefit Fees  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Sewer Benefit fees as provided in Chapter 20 – Water and Sewer Rates, 
Section 8 of the Troy City Code, last amended in 1989, are hereby REVISED as recommended 
in a report by the City Manager dated March 30, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
and made a part of the Minutes of this meeting, as follows: 
 
 

Single Family Residences 
 

Zone Districts Min. Lot Size Existing Fee  Proposed Fee 
R-1E          60       $2,400        $3,000 
R-1D          75       $3,000        $3,750 
R-1C          85       $3,400        $4,250 
R-1B        100       $4,000        $5,000 
R-1A        120       $4,800        $6,000 

 
 All Other Uses and Zones        $50/front foot 
          Minimum $3,000 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Sewer Benefit fee for any sanitary sewer constructed 
by the City of Troy after April 18, 2005 SHALL BE DETERMINED on a project-by-project basis 
based on the total cost of the sewer extension divided by the number of properties benefiting 
from the sewer at the time of construction; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That for sewers constructed after April 18, 2005 by any entity or 
agency other than the City of Troy, the Sewer Benefit fee payable by all properties benefiting 
from the sewer construction SHALL BE BASED on the zoning classification of the property;  
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That for any lot created from splitting property benefiting from a 
sanitary sewer extension constructed after April 18, 2005 by the City of Troy, the lot or lots 
created SHALL PAY either the Benefit Fee applicable to that property’s zoning classification or 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 18, 2005 
 

- 22 - 

the proportionate share of the benefit fee established at the time of sewer construction, 
whichever is greater.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-6 Council Rules of Procedure Amendment to Accommodate SEMCOG and SOCRRA 

Member Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Council Rules of Procedure be AMENDED, as recommended, to incorporate 
Rule 15.1 Appointment of City of Troy Representation to SEMCOG and SOCRRA. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-7 FOIA (Freedom of Information Act) / Enhanced Access Policy Proposed Revision 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy is a public body within the meaning of the Michigan Freedom of 
Information Act (MFOIA, found in MCL 15.231 et seq.) and the Michigan Enhanced Access Act 
(MCL 15.441 et seq.); 
 
WHEREAS, The declared public policy of the State of Michigan, as set forth in the MFOIA, is 
that all persons, except those incarcerated in state or local correctional facilities, are entitled to 
full and complete information regarding governmental decision-making; 
 
WHEREAS, In its capacity as a public body, the City of Troy creates, possesses and maintains 
certain records which fit within the definition of the term “public records” as defined in the 
MFOIA; 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy is required by the provisions of the MFOIA to grant requests by 
persons or corporations desiring to inspect or receive copies of public records when the 
requested documentation or information is described sufficiently to enable the public body to 
find the public record, except as provided in MCL 15.243; 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has the ability to provide some “public records” in a requested 
electronic format, but the cost of producing the requested public records exceeds normal 
MFOIA production costs and, therefore, is entitled to be reimbursed to the City; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 18, 2005 
 

- 23 - 

WHEREAS, The City of Troy desires to establish procedures, guidelines and fees in 
accordance with and pursuant to the provisions of MFOIA and the Michigan Enhanced Access 
Act for application to and for use in connection with requests received by it for the inspection or 
receipt of copies of public records. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DESIGNATED as the 
FOIA / Enhanced Access Act Coordinator for the City of Troy. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the attached FOIA / Enhanced Access policy is hereby 
ADOPTED by the City of Troy. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-8 Approval of Subdivision Entrance Sign / Agreement – Cedar Ridge Estates 

Subdivision 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED; That the sign application submitted by the Cedar Ridge Estates Homeowners 
Association for the placement of a sign on the detention pond parcel adjacent to the intersection 
of Cedar Knoll Drive and Big Beaver Road is hereby APPROVED as to the design and 
materials proposed; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED; That the agreement regarding the maintenance and liability 
coverage for the sign is also APPROVED and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to 
sign the attached agreement on behalf of the City. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-9 Planning Consultant Services Contract 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, An Agreement for Consulting Services was entered into on August 15, 2001 
between the City of Troy and Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., for a period of two (2) years; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, The terms of the Agreement provide for modification of the conditions and 
extension of the terms by mutual agreement for both parties; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 18, 2005 
 

- 24 - 

WHEREAS, The Agreement has been extended by mutual agreement by virtue of the fact that 
the City continues to seek the services of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., and 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. continues to abide by the original terms and conditions of the 
Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. has submitted a revised Agreement for 
Consulting Services, including an increase in the hourly rate schedule; and 
 
WHEREAS, the term of the revised Agreement for Consulting Services shall be for a period of 
five (5) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Management is satisfied with the service provided by Carlisle/Wortman 
Associates, Inc. and considers the proposed hourly rate schedule to be reasonable.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement 
for Consulting Services; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That City Council AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to 
execute the Agreement for Consulting Services. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-10 Wireless Oakland Pilot Community  
 
City Management would like to make a presentation on this issue. 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy supports Oakland County’s initiative to be wireless, and 
requests that Troy be selected as a pilot community, and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City of Troy will permit the placement of wireless 
equipment on City-controlled infrastructure subject to such placement being performed in a 
responsive and responsible manner. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-11 City Manager Employment Contract 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 18, 2005 
 

- 25 - 

RESOLVED, That the Employment Agreement between the City of Troy and City Manager 
John Szerlag, as reviewed and modified by Labor Attorney Craig Lange, is hereby 
APPROVED, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Annual Salary for the City Manager is hereby 
ADJUSTED from $133,786.00  to $_______________, effective January 1, 2005. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-12 City Attorney Employment Contract 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Employment Agreement between the City of Troy and City Attorney Lori 
Grigg Bluhm, as reviewed and modified by Labor Attorney Craig Lange, is hereby APPROVED, 
and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Annual Salary for the City Attorney is hereby 
ADJUSTED from $109,697.00 to $_______________, effective January 1, 2005. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-13 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Oak Forest South Site Condominium, 

East Side of Willow Grove, South of Square Lake Road, Section 11 – R-1C 
 
Also enclosed is a petition from area residents requesting to close Trevino at Willow 
Grove using temporary barricades.  An analysis of this request by Traffic Engineer John 
Abraham is also submitted. 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Preliminary Plan as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning 
Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family Residential Development) for the development of a One-
Family Residential Site Condominium known as Oak Forest South Site Condominium, as 
submitted and as recommended for approval by the Planning Commission and City 
Management, located on the east side of Willow Grove, south of Square Lake Road, including 
23 home sites, within the R-1C zoning district, being 10.03 acres in size, is hereby 
APPROVED. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 18, 2005 
 

- 26 - 

Yes: 
No: 
 
F-14 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Oak Forest Site Condominium, South 

Side of Square Lake Road, Between Willow Grove and John R Road, Section 11 – 
R-1C 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Preliminary Plan as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning 
Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family Residential Development) for the development of a One-
Family Residential Site Condominium known as Oak Forest Site Condominium, as submitted 
and as recommended for approval by the Planning Commission and City Management, located 
on the south side of Square Lake, between Willow Grove and John R Road, including 76 home 
sites, within the R-1C zoning district, being 38.4 acres in size, is hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-15 Limited Public Forum – Selection Process 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
Alternative A: 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council approved the front lawn of City Hall, the parking lot area north of 
the Community Center as recommended by City Management and adjacent to the Reflective 
Head area and the area surrounding the Reflective Head as the designated limited public forum 
area.  
 
RESOLVED, That the application, rules and procedures including selection processes allowing 
for time, place, and manner governing the limited public forum area are hereby APPROVED; 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a lottery will be held per attached (Exhibit A).  Those 
wishing to be considered for dates through May 8, 2005 must complete the designated public 
forum and lottery applications (Exhibit A) and submit to Parks and Recreation no later than 4 
pm April 21, 2005; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That all applications for dates after May 8, 2005 will be 
CONSIDERED on a first-come, first-served basis.   
 
Alternative B:  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 18, 2005 
 

- 27 - 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council approved the front lawn of City Hall, the parking lot area north of 
the Community Center as recommended by City Management and adjacent to the Reflective 
Head area and the area surrounding the Reflective Head as the designated limited public forum 
area. 
 
RESOLVED, That the application, rules and procedures including selection processes allowing 
for time, place, and manner governing the limited public forum area are hereby APPROVED; 
and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That requests will be ACCEPTED and APPROVED on a first 
come, first served basis.  All written requests received after April 4, 2005 will be CONSIDERED 
in the order received.  
 
Alternative C:  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council approved the front lawn of City Hall, the parking lot area north of 
the Community Center as recommended by City Management and adjacent to the Reflective 
Head area and the area surrounding the Reflective Head as the designated limited public forum 
area, 
 
RESOLVED, That the application, rules and procedures including selection processes allowing 
for time, place, and manner governing the limited public forum area are hereby APPROVED; 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That completed applications will be ACCEPTED beginning at 
noon, April 19th on a first-come, first-served basis. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
 
G-2 Green Memorandums:  
a) City Manager’s Letter to Ed Barlow Regarding the Proposal for Recalibration of Troy 

Futures Community Report 
b) Charter Revisions – 2005 Proposed Charter Committee Referrals 
c) Minutes from the Special/Joint Meeting of the City Council and Planning Commission, 

March 28, 2005 
 
COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 
 
H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 18, 2005 
 

- 28 - 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Election Commission/Final – February 23, 2005 
b) Troy Youth Council/Final – February 23, 2005 
c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – March 2, 2005 
d) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – March 2, 2005  
e) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – March 2, 2005 
f) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – March 9, 2005 
g) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – March 22, 2005 
h) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – March 22, 2005 
i) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – March 22, 2005  
j) Troy Youth Council/Draft – March 23, 2005 
k) Election Commission/Draft – April 12, 2005  
 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) Mayor Louise Schilling’s Travel Expense Report for the NLC Annual Congressional City 

Conference 
b) Councilmember Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report for the MML Legislative 

Conference 
c) Councilmember Dave Lambert’s Travel Expense Report for the National League of Cities 

Congressional Cities Conference 
d) Councilmember Dave Lambert’s Travel Expense Report for the Michigan Municipal 

League Legislative Conference  
e) Permits Issued During the Month of March 2005 
f) 2005 First Quarter Litigation Report 
g) March 31, 2005 Quarterly Financial Report 
h) ICMA Survey  
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  None Submitted. 
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted. 
 
J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  Realignment of Coolidge Road/Wattles Intersection Under Full Closure of Coolidge 

Road 
 
J-7  Letter from Doeren Mayhew Regarding Audit Services 
 
J-8  Letter of Transmittal; Proposed Fiscal Year 2005/06 Annual Budget 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 18, 2005 
 

- 29 - 

K-1 Study Item – (Time Permitting) Update on Premature Concrete Pavement 
Deterioration from Alkali-Silica Reactivity (ASR) 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as 
permitted by MCL 15.268 (e), Story v City of Troy and Roy Rathka, Jr. v City of Troy. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
RECESSED 
 
RECONVENED 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 18, 2005 
 

- 30 - 

 
 
 
 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, April 25, 2005: 6:30 PM ........................ Special/Study/Budget City Council 
Monday, April 25, 2005.............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, May 02, 2005: 6:30 PM......................... Special/Study/Budget City Council 
Saturday, May 7, 2005: 9:00 AM ......................... Special/Study/Budget City Council 
Monday, May 9, 2005 ................................................................ Regular City Council 
Tuesday, May 10, 2005: 7:30 PM.....................................Special/Study City Council 
Monday, May 16, 2005 .............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, May 23, 2005 .............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, June 6, 2005 ............................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, June 20, 2005 ............................................................. Regular City Council 

 



 
 
DATE:   April 8, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Public Hearing 
   Commercial Vehicle Appeal 
   1102 Boyd 
 
 
 
 
On March 16, 2005, information was sent to Nicholas Ianos that identified restrictions 
related to a commercial vehicle located on residential property.  As part of that 
information, he was advised that the Dodge dump truck and wood chipper parked on 
the property did not comply with the exceptions found in Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00.  
He was given the option to remove the vehicle or appeal to City Council for relief of the 
Ordinance. 
 
In response to our letters, Ms. Irene Ianos has filed an appeal.  The appeal requests 
that a public hearing date be held in accordance with the ordinance.  A public hearing 
has been scheduled for your meeting of April 18, 2005. 
 
The existing home on the property is 874 square feet.  There is already a 634 square 
foot detached garage on the site.  Per the requirements of Section 40.57.04 of the 
Zoning Ordinance, no additional detached buildings could be constructed.  The parcel of 
this home is 10,800 square feet in area.  Based upon the maximum 30% lot coverage a 
total of 3,240 square feet of buildings could be built on the site. 
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
 
   
Attachments 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

morrellca
Text Box
C-01



 



 



 



 



 









 
 
DATE:   April 8, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Public Hearing 
   Commercial Vehicle Appeal 
   1998 Kirkton 
 
 
 
 
On February14, 2005, information was sent to William Hiner that identified restrictions 
related to a commercial vehicle located on residential property.  As part of that 
information, he was advised that the Ford dump truck parked on the property did not 
comply with the exceptions found in Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00.  He was given the 
option to remove the vehicle or appeal to City Council for relief of the Ordinance. 
 
In response to our letters, Mr. Hiner has filed an appeal.  The appeal requests that a 
public hearing date be held in accordance with the ordinance.  A public hearing has 
been scheduled for your meeting of April 18, 2005. 
 
The property in question has an existing home of 1,503 square feet and an existing 
detached garage of 728 square feet.  Based upon the limitations of Section 40.57.04, 
only 24 additional square feet of detached garage could be constructed.  The property is 
16, 555 square feet in area and the 30% maximum lot coverage would allow buildings 
totaling 4,967 square feet. 
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
 
   
Attachments 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

morrellca
Text Box
C-02



 



 



 



 



 



 



 







 
 
DATE:   April 8, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Public Hearing 
   Commercial Vehicle Appeal 
   6771 Westaway 
 
 
 
 
On February 22, 2005, information was sent to Henry Rowe that identified restrictions 
related to a commercial vehicle located on residential property.  As part of that 
information, he was advised that the Ford cube van parked on the property did not 
comply with the exceptions found in Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00.  He was given the 
option to remove the vehicle or appeal to City Council for relief of the Ordinance. 
 
In response to our letters, Mr. Rowe has filed an appeal.  The appeal requests that a 
public hearing date be held in accordance with the ordinance.  A public hearing has 
been scheduled for your meeting of April 18, 2005. 
 
The existing home on the property is 2, 067 square foot in size.  The existing detached 
garage is 720 square feet.  Per the requirements of Section 40.57.04 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, an additional 314 square feet of accessory building could be constructed.  
The parcel in question is 43,400 square feet in area.  Based upon the 30% maximum lot 
coverage, a total of 13,020 square foot of building could be constructed on the site. 
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
 
   
Attachments 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

morrellca
Text Box
C-03



 



 



 



 



 









 
April 7, 2005 

 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
 
 
SUBJECT: Best Value Process Award – Audit Services 
 
 
 
This memo will focus on the process used in the selection of an auditing firm, Government 
Finance Officers Association (GFOA) Recommended Practice for Audit Procurement, as 
well as the history of auditor selection of the City of Troy. 
 
PROCESS  
 
The Request for Proposal (RFP) included a detailed description of the process that would 
be followed in the selection of an auditor. The “Selection Process” (copy attached) was 
followed and the award recommendation made within the parameters of the stated 
process. The standard deviation method was the stated method for scoring the pricing 
phase.  
 
During the discussion of this item at the January 24, 2005 City Council meeting, City 
Council was informed of the process being used and the short list of auditing firms asked 
to participate in the process, based on their experience in governmental auditing and 
membership and involvement in the Michigan Government Finance Officers Association.  
The list included the firms of Doeren Mayhew, Plante & Moran, Pricewaterhouse Coopers, 
Rehmann Robson, and Wolinsky and Company. Two additional firms that were mentioned 
at the meeting (KPMG and Virchow, Krause & Company) were also sent a notice of RFP 
availability. If elimination of the current auditors from consideration was desired, Doeren 
Mayhew should have been eliminated from the process at that time. 
 
At the City Council meeting of January 24, 2005, Resolution #2005-01-051 was passed 
(copy attached) that directed City Staff to continue the review process for Request for 
Qualifications in the selection of auditing services and submit to City Council the summary 
of their findings and recommendations no less than two weeks before a decision is 
expected. The recommendation appeared on the March 7, 2005 Council agenda as a 
Green Memo. 
 
The March 21, 2005 City Council agenda contained City Management’s recommendation 
to award the contract to Doeren Mayhew, the highest scoring respondent, as a result of a 
best value process. 
 

morrellca
Text Box
D-01



GOVERNMENT FINANCE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION (GFOA) RECOMMENDED 
PRACTICE FOR AUDIT PROCUREMENT 
 
The following bullet points were taken from the GFOA Recommended Practice – Audit 
Procurement: 
 

• “Governmental entities should enter into multiyear agreements of at least five years 
in duration when obtaining the services of independent auditors. Such multiyear 
agreements can take a variety of different forms (e.g., a series of single-year 
contracts), consistent with applicable legal requirements. Such agreements allow 
for greater continuity and help to minimize the potential for disruption in connection 
with the independent audit. Multiyear agreements can also help to reduce audit 
costs by allowing auditors to recover certain “start-up” costs over several years, 
rather than over a single year”. 

 
• “Governmental entities should undertake a full-scale competitive process for the 

selection of independent auditors at the end of the term of each audit contract, 
consistent with applicable legal requirements. Ideally, auditor independence would 
be enhanced by a policy requiring that the independent auditor be replaced at the 
end of the audit contract, as is often the case in the private sector. Unfortunately, 
the frequent lack of competition among audit firms fully qualified to perform 
public-sector audits could make a policy of mandatory auditor rotation 
counterproductive. In such cases, it is recommended that a governmental 
entity actively seek the participation of all qualified firms, including the 
current auditors, assuming that the past performance of the current auditors 
has proven satisfactory”.   

 
These points were taken into consideration when we developed the process to select an 
audit firm.  
 
 
 
HISTORY OF AUDIT SELECTION – CITY OF TROY 
 
 

• 1991 – Following an RFP process City Council awarded Doeren Mayhew a four- 
year contract, as they were the lowest priced acceptable bidder. City Management’s 
recommendation at the time was to remain with Derderian, Kann, Seyferth & 
Salucci.  

 
• 1995 – Five-year extension granted to Doeren Mayhew by City Council, based on 

City Management recommendation.  Reasons given were to provide a smoother 
transition with the upcoming change in financial software and myself being new to 
the job. 

 



• 1999 – City Council granted a five-year extension to Doeren Mayhew, on their own 
volition. City Management was prepared to go out for RFP’s after the 1999 audit as 
evidenced by attached letter to Doeren Mayhew.  City Council requested that City 
Management prepare a contract extension for five years, which was approved by 
City Council. 

 
 
SUMMARY 
 
 
City Management was charged with recommending an audit firm to City Council based 
upon a process that was approved by City Council.  City Council had two weeks to review 
the recommendation before a formal vote would be taken.  City Management did not 
receive any correspondence from City Council until the afternoon of March 21, 2005, the 
date of the meeting.  City Management supplied City Council  with the requested 
information which included a copy of all RFPs and rating sheets the night of the meeting.   
 
Our recommendation is based upon the results of three staff members independently 
rating the two firms under consideration using the process and weighting methods 
approved by City Council. The ultimate selection of auditors, as well as other professional 
service providers, rests with City Council.  It is professional staff’s responsibility to judge, 
evaluate and then make a recommendation of a suitable firm to perform the work to City 
Council. 
 
The City of Troy is not alone in having the same auditing firm for a number of consecutive 
years. The following information has been gathered on the time-span of current auditors 
from comparable cities: 
 
Farmington Hills – 30+ years 
Novi – 26+ years 
Southfield – 24 years 
Sterling Heights – 18 years 
 
Both of the firms that were under consideration have the necessary expertise to perform 
the audit for the City of Troy.  Based on the selection process approved by City Council on 
January 24,2005, Doeren Mayhew is the recommended choice of auditors.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EVALUATION PROCESS:   
 

AUDIT SERVICES 
      SELECTION PROCESS  Page 1 of 2 
 
CRITERIA FOR SELECTION 
The City Committee reviewed the proposals using the following criteria: 
 
A. Compliance with qualifications criteria  
B. Completeness of the proposal 
C. Correlation of the proposals submitted to the needs of the City of Troy 
D. Any other factors which may be deemed to be in the City’s best interest 
E. Evaluation Process 
 
Phase 1:  Qualifications Evaluation. 
 
A designated member of the Committee reviewed all responses and determined if that company met 
the minimum established criteria.  A standardized form was used for all firms.     
(Evaluation Criteria Sheet attached) 
 
Phase 2:  Weighted Evaluation Process. 
 
Those firms that passed the initial pass/ fail phase, were independently rated by each member of 
the Evaluation Committee using a standardized weighted score sheet.  The rating forms were turned 
into Purchasing who then calculated the weighted scores for the final score indicated on the 
Executive Summary.  The scores of the three Committee Members were averaged into one score for 
each bidder for this phase of the process. 
 
Phase 3:  Oral Presentation 
 
Both firms were invited to interview with the Evaluation Committee.  A scripted format was used to 
ensure fairness to both firms.  Each Committee member completed his or her Interview Form 
independently without discussion.  The forms were turned into Purchasing to calculate the scores 
for the final score reported on the Executive Summary.  The scores of the three Committee Members 
were averaged into one score for each bidder for this phase of the process.   
 
Phase 4:  “Other” Points 
 
The Committee decided to eliminate this phase of the process therefore no “Other” points were 
awarded.   
 
Phase 5:  Price   
 
Points for price will be calculated as follows: 
 
CALCULATIONS: 
1.   The proposals shall be arranged from lowest proposal to highest proposal 
2.   High Proposal (-) Low Proposal = Range 
3.   A mean or average will be calculated from the data, as well as the variance and standard 

deviation.  This information will be used to compare and interpret the measures of location and 
variability within the population.  Points will be given based upon the number of standard 
deviations that the bid price is from the mean or average or similar process depending upon the 
population. 

  
 



              AUDIT SERVICES 
      SELECTION PROCESS  Page 2 of 2 
 
 
Phase 6:  Final Scoring and Selection 
 
The highest final weighted score will be the firm recommended to the Troy City Council for Award. 
 
   40% x Price Score (100 pt. Base)  = 
       30% x Evaluation Score (100 pt. Base)  =  
     20% x Oral Presentation Score (100 pt. Base) = 
    10% x Other (100 pt. Base)   = 
                                     100% 90% Final Weighted Score 

 
 
Note:    The City of Troy reserved the right to change the order or eliminate an evaluation phase if 

deemed in the City’s best interest to do so. 













  March 2, 2005 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, ACM / Finance & Administration   

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
James A. Nash, Financial Services Director 

 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Process 

Award – Audit Services 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
On February 4, 2005, three (3) proposals were received to provide audit services 
for the fiscal years ending June 30th 2005, 2006, and 2007, with a three (3) year 
option to renew.  City management recommends that a contract be awarded to 
Doeren Mayhew of Troy, Michigan, the highest scoring respondent, as a result of 
a best value process for an estimated annual cost of $55,695.00. The award is 
contingent upon vendor submission of proper contract and proposal documents, 
including insurance certificates and all specified requirements. 
 
 
SELECTION PROCESS 
 
The best value approach leading to this award recommendation is based upon 
the vendor offering the best combination of a variety of factors.  Three staff 
members independently evaluated proposals of the bidders meeting minimum 
requirements.  The Staff Committee reviewed the firms using pass/ fail criteria, 
weighted criteria, scripted interviews, and pricing.  References were contacted 
and asked scripted questions. These factors are documented in the attached 
Executive Summary. 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
After completing the evaluation process, Doeren Mayhew received the highest 
weighted score from the committee.  Accordingly, it is the recommendation of the 
committee to award the audit services contract to Doeren Mayhew. 
 
 
BUDGET 
 
Funds for the audit are available in the various operating accounts for Finance, 
DDA, Block Grant Administration, and Brownfield Redevelopment. 



 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

AUDIT SERVICES 
 

STATISTICS: 
 7 Request for Proposals or Notices were sent by email or fax 
 3 responses were received 
 Doeren Mayhew was rated the most qualified firm by receiving the highest score 

 
FINAL SCORING: 
The final score for each qualified Short-listed bidder from Phase 2 will be determined as 
follows:   
   40% x Price Score (100 pt. Base)    = 
       30% x Evaluation Score (100 pt. Base)   =  
     20% x Oral Presentation Score (100 pt. Base) = 
    10% x Other (100 pt. Base)      = 
                                 100 90% Final Weighted Score 

 
The following bidders submitted a proposal and received the indicated final scores: 
COMPANY  SCORE 
Doeren Mayhew 66 
The Rehmann Group 51 
 
BIDDER NOT MEETING SPECIFICATIONS: 
Virchow, Krause & Company, LLP was disqualified for the following: 

 
 VK&C did not have Michigan governmental experience listed 
 The only Michigan staff listed did not have municipal experience 
 VK&C made an assumption in their RFP that the City would supply draft financial 

statements.  This assumption was in conflict with a specification requiring preparation, 
editing, and printing of reports 

 
REASONS FOR NO BID RESPONSES: 
PriceWaterhouseCoopers LLP respectfully declined to bid but requested to remain on our bid list. 
Plante Moran, PLLC expressed numerous reasons for not bidding, which include:  1) Troy was not upset 
with the current auditing firm and probably would stay with them; 2) large emphasis on fee; 3) for the 
effort, they probably would not get it; 4) they are a premier firm and could not receive enough points to 
make that apparent; 5) they are very busy at audit time but could do the work if requested. 
Wolinski & Company, CPA, PC, during the process, Ms. Houghton mentioned that they would not be 
submitting a RFP because, since the Enron scandal, regulatory agencies are trying to crack down on 
firms and require them to separate consulting from CPA services.  Wolinski & Co. does more consulting. 
KPMG – did not respond to voicemail – earlier had refused to provide email address. 
 
Attachments: 
Evaluation Process 
Weighted Scoring Summary 
 
G:/Best Value SR8 – RFP – Audit Services – Exec Sum RFP-COT 04-60.doc 



EVALUATION PROCESS:   
 

AUDIT SERVICES 
      SELECTION PROCESS  Page 1 of 2 
 
CRITERIA FOR SELECTION 
The City Committee reviewed the proposals using the following criteria: 
 
A. Compliance with qualifications criteria  
B. Completeness of the proposal 
C. Correlation of the proposals submitted to the needs of the City of Troy 
D. Any other factors which may be deemed to be in the City’s best interest 
E. Evaluation Process 
 
Phase 1:  Qualifications Evaluation. 
 
A designated member of the Committee reviewed all responses and determined if that company met 
the minimum established criteria.  A standardized form was used for all firms.     
(Evaluation Criteria Sheet attached) 
 
Phase 2:  Weighted Evaluation Process. 
 
Those firms that passed the initial pass/ fail phase, were independently rated by each member of 
the Evaluation Committee using a standardized weighted score sheet.  The rating forms were turned 
into Purchasing who then calculated the weighted scores for the final score indicated on the 
Executive Summary.  The scores of the three Committee Members were averaged into one score for 
each bidder for this phase of the process. 
 
Phase 3:  Oral Presentation 
 
Both firms were invited to interview with the Evaluation Committee.  A scripted format was used to 
ensure fairness to both firms.  Each Committee member completed his or her Interview Form 
independently without discussion.  The forms were turned into Purchasing to calculate the scores 
for the final score reported on the Executive Summary.  The scores of the three Committee Members 
were averaged into one score for each bidder for this phase of the process.   
 
Phase 4:  “Other” Points 
 
The Committee decided to eliminate this phase of the process therefore no “Other” points were 
awarded.   
 
Phase 5:  Price   
 
Points for price will be calculated as follows: 
 
CALCULATIONS: 
1.   The proposals shall be arranged from lowest proposal to highest proposal 
2.   High Proposal (-) Low Proposal = Range 
3.   A mean or average will be calculated from the data, as well as the variance and standard 

deviation.  This information will be used to compare and interpret the measures of location and 
variability within the population.  Points will be given based upon the number of standard 
deviations that the bid price is from the mean or average or similar process depending upon the 
population. 

  
 



              AUDIT SERVICES 
      SELECTION PROCESS  Page 2 of 2 
 
 
Phase 6:  Final Scoring and Selection 
 
The highest final weighted score will be the firm recommended to the Troy City Council for Award. 
 
   40% x Price Score (100 pt. Base)  = 
       30% x Evaluation Score (100 pt. Base)  =  
     20% x Oral Presentation Score (100 pt. Base) = 
    10% x Other (100 pt. Base)   = 
                                     100% 90% Final Weighted Score 

 
 
Note:    The City of Troy reserved the right to change the order or eliminate an evaluation phase if 

deemed in the City’s best interest to do so. 



 
WEIGHTED RATING 

     AUDIT SERVICES 
 
 
 
WEIGHTED EVALUATION – Rating Non-Mandatory Requirements: 
 
Raters: 
 

1 2 3 AVERAGE 

Vendors: 
 

    

1.  Doeren Mayhew 
 

82 61 65 69.34 = 69 

2.  The Rehman Group 
 

91 82 64 79.0 

 
INTERVIEW SCORING:  
 
Raters: 
 

1 2 3 AVERAGE 

Vendors: 
 

    

1.   Doeren Mayhew 
 

59 83 79 73.67 = 74 

2.   The Rehman Group 
 

85 93 76 84.67 = 85 

 
 
FINAL SCORING: 
 
 Score 

Price Score 
40% of Total 

Score 
Weighted Score 
30% of Total 

Score  
Interview Score 
20% of Total 

FINAL 
SCORE 
Max. = 90 

 
Categories: 
 

 
Price  

 
Weighted 

 
Interview 

 

1. Doeren Mayhew 
 

75 x .40 = 30 69 x .30 = 20.7= 21 74 x .20 = 14.8 = 15 66 

2. The Rehman Group 
 

25 x .40 = 10 79 x .30 = 23.7= 24 85 x .20 = 17 51 



50,000.0
52,000.0
54,000.0
56,000.0
58,000.0
60,000.0
62,000.0
64,000.0

COSTS

Doeren
Mayhew

The
Rehmann

Group
VENDOR

AUDIT SERVICES

Vendor Cost
Mean



AUDIT SERVICES
ANALYSIS

STANDARD
VENDOR COST MEAN DIFFERENCE D2 VARIANCE DEVIATION POINTS

Doeren Mayhew 55,695.0        59,758         4,062.50         16503906.25 -1 75
0 (Mean) 50

The Rehmann Group 63,820.0        59,758         (4,062.50)        16503906.25 +1 25

119,515.0$    33,007,813 16503906.25 4062.50

G:\EXCEL LIST: StandardDeviationAuditServices02-05.xls



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 04-60
Opening Date -- 2-4-05 REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL Page 1 of 1
Date Prepared -- 2/24/05 AUDIT SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

PROPOSAL: Audit Services for the City of Troy for fiscal years 2005, 2006, 2007 ending June 30th with an Option
to Renew for three additional fiscal years

FIRM QUESTIONNAIRE: Y or N YES YES

PROPOSAL A: City of Troy Audit
All-Inclusive Maximum Price for 2005 Audit 

Annual Cost: 45,840.00$    57,000.00$   

Staff - Hours & Hourly Rates Y or N YES YES

Federal Programs - Annual Cost: 3,585.000$    INCLUDED
Out of Pocket Expenses: None None

PROPOSAL B: Downtown Development
All-Incusive Maximum Price - DDA Audits for 2005

Annual Cost: 2,345.00$      3,070.00$     

Out of Pocket Expenses: None None
Staff - Hours & Hourly Rate Y or N YES YES

PROPOSAL C: Brownfield Redevelopment
All-Incusive Maximum Price - BRA Audits for 2005

Annual Cost: 1,950.00$      1,800.00$     

Staff - Hours & Hourly Rate Y or N YES YES
Out of Pocket Expenses: None None

PROPOSAL D: Local Development Authority
All-Incusive Maximum Price - Smart Zone Audits for 2005

Annual Cost: 1,975.00$      1,950.00$     

Staff - Hours & Hourly Rate Y or N YES YES
Out of Pocket Expenses: None None

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 55,695.00$    63,820.00$   
INSURANCE: Can Meet YES YES

Cannot Meet

TERMS: BLANK BLANK

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N YES YES

DMS:
Virchow, Krause & Company, LLP ($45,000)
  Reasons: No Michigan municipal experience listed; and draft financial statements are not available, but the responsibility of the auditor.
NO BIDS:
PriceWaterhouseCoopers

ATTEST: ____________________________________
 Aileen Bittner Jeanette Bennett
 Laura Fitzpatrick Purchasing Director
 Jeanette Bennett

G:\RFP-COT 04-60 Auditing Services

DOEREN MAYHEW THE REHMANN GROUP



 
       RE: RFP-COT 04-60 
       Audit Services  
     
            February 14, 2005 

 
Mr. John Knepel, CPA 
Virchow, Krause & Company, LLP 
115 S. 84th Street, Suite 400 
Milwaukee, WI  53214 
 
Dear Mr. Knepel, 
 
On behalf of the City of Troy, I would like to thank you for participating in the Request for Proposal for 
Audit Services.  At this time we would like to notify you that during Phase I of the Selection Process 
(Qualifications Evaluation), the Selection Committee eliminated your firm from further consideration for the 
following reasons:   
 
1. Question 3 requests a list of governmental audit clients.  Question 5 requests information on the 

staff assigned to the City of Troy account.  Although your company has municipal references, 
they are all in Wisconsin.  Correspondingly, staff with municipal experience assigned to the City 
account is located in Wisconsin.  The only listed Michigan staff member assigned to the City’s 
account does not have any municipal experience indicated.  The Selection Committee was 
specifically looking for firms with Michigan audit experience for the following reasons: 
 Act 51 Highway Tax receipts, expenditures, reporting requirements 
 DDA, Brownfield Redevelopment, and LDFA (SmartZone) statutes 
 Deficit fund balance reporting issues 
 State Construction Code Act 
 Allowable Investments 

 
2. Question 11 requests information on your firm’s Audit Approach.   In your proposal, you state 

“Our proposal and estimated hours schedule are prepared under the assumption that City’s 
records will be ready to be audited… In addition, draft financial statements will be 
available.”  This assumption does not comply with the intent of the Report Preparation 
specification included in the document on page 4 of 16 of the Request for Qualifications/ 
Proposal, under Section V, Item B. Report Preparation: “Report preparation, editing, and printing 
shall be the responsibility of the auditor”.  

 

 
If you have any questions concerning the Request for Proposal, the process, or would like further 
information, please call the Purchasing Department for assistance at (248) 680-7291.   
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Jeanette Bennett 
Purchasing Director 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 4, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, April 4, 2005, at City Hall, 500 W. 
Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:31 PM. 

Mayor Pro Tem Beltramini gave the invocation and Cub Scout Pack 1705, Den 4 and 5, from 
Martell Elementary School Assisted the Mayor in leading the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: 
Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin E. Beltramini  
Cristina Broomfield  
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak (Absent) 
David A. Lambert  
Jeanne M. Stine  

Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Member Howrylak  
 
Resolution #2005-04-147 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Council Member’s Howrylak’s absence at the Regular City Council meeting 
and Closed Session of April 4, 2005 is EXCUSED due to being out of the county. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Lambert, Stine  
No: Schilling, Beltramini  
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations 
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Rezoning Application - Northeast Corner of Livernois and Maple Road, Section 27 
– B-1 to H-S (Z-700) – April 4, 2005 
 
Resolution #2005-04-148 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini  

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 4, 2005 
 

- 2 - 

RESOLVED, That the B-1 to H-S rezoning request, located on the northeast corner of Livernois 
Road and Maple Road, Section 27, being 15,900 square feet in size, is hereby GRANTED, as 
recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  
 
C-2 Street Vacation Application (SV-182) – A Section of Alley Located South of Chopin 

and North of Maple, Section 27 NOTE:  Item listed incorrectly under Public 
Hearings on Agenda; refer to Item E-20 on the Consent Agenda 

 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 No Postponed Items 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2005-04-149 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Items E-4, E-5, E-6 and E-7 which shall be considered after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2005-04-149-E-2  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of March 21, 2005 at 7:30 PM be 
APPROVED as submitted, the Special Meeting of March 28, 2005 at 7:00 PM be APPROVED 
as corrected, and the Regular Meeting of March 28, 2005 at 7:30 PM be APPROVED as 
submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation:   
 
Resolution #2005-04-149-E-3 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 4, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

a) Cultural Diversity Month – April 9, 2005 – May 7, 2005 
 
E-8  SBC Dedicated Internet Service 
 
Resolution #2005-04-149-E-8  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That a new 3-year contract be EXECUTED with SBC for Dedicated Internet 
Access at an estimated cost of $1,224.00 per month is hereby APPROVED. 
 
E-9  Acceptance of a Permanent Water Main Easement and a Regrading and Temporary 

Construction Permit for the Troy Court Water Main Project #01.502.5 – Section 34 
 
Resolution #2005-04-149-E-9  
 
RESOLVED, That Permanent Watermain Easement and Temporary Regrading and 
Construction Permit, are hereby ACCEPTED, and payment for both documents in the amount 
of $3,500.00, plus recording costs, is APPROVED, for the construction, operation, maintenance 
and repair of the Troy Court Water Main improvement project; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD the 
Permanent Watermain Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, and copy of both 
Easement and Permit shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-10  Final Street Vacation Application (SV-173) – A Portion of Hanover Street, from 

Leetonia Street Extending North Between Lots 85 and 86 of McCormick and 
Lawrence Little Farms Subdivision 5, North of Wattles Road and East of Livernois, 
Section 15 

 
Resolution #2005-04-149-E-10  
 
WHEREAS, A request has been received for the vacation of a portion of the 50-foot-wide platted but 
unopened Hanover Street right-of-way, extending north 217.05 feet from Leetonia Street (platted 
Loraine Avenue), and abutting lots 85 and 86 of McCormick and Lawrence Little Farms Subdivision 
5, Section 15 (Liber 20, page 30 of Oakland County Plats). 
 
WHEREAS, The portion of Hanover Street to be vacated is described as: 
 

A portion of the 50-foot-wide platted but unopened Hanover Street 
right-of-way, extending north 217.05 feet from Leetonia Street 
(platted Loraine Avenue), and abutting lots 85 and 86 of 
McCormick and Lawrence Little Farms Subdivision, Section 15 
(Liber 20, page 30 of Oakland County Plats). 

 
WHEREAS, The 20-foot wide Public Right-of-Way for Public Utilities and Public Walkway to be 
retained from the Hanover Street Vacation, is shown in the attached Street Vacation & Right-
Of-Way Sketch” and is described as: 
 

Part of Vacated Hanover Street as platted in “McCormick and 
Lawrence Little Farms”, Liber 20, Page 30, of Oakland County, 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 4, 2005 
 

- 4 - 

Michigan records.  Commencing at the southwest corner of Lot 86 
of said “McCormick and Lawrence Little Farms”; thence North 89 
degrees 58 minutes 00 seconds West, along the south line of said 
lot extended west, 15.00 feet to the point of beginning; thence 
continuing North 89 degrees 58 minutes 00 seconds West 20.00 
feet; thence North 00 degrees 30 minutes 00 seconds West, 
parallel with the west line of said lot 86, 217.05 feet to the north 
line of said lot extended west; thence South 89 degrees 58 
minutes 00 seconds East 20.00 feet; thence South 00 degrees 30 
minutes 00 seconds East, 217.05 feet to the point of beginning.  
Containing 4,341 square feet or 0.097 acres more or less.  

 
WHEREAS, The properties which shall benefit from this requested vacation include Lot 85 of 
McCormick and Lawrence Little Farms Subdivision 5, Section 15  (City of Troy Tax Parcel 20-
15-352-050 and Lot 86 of McCormick and Lawrence Little Farms Subdivision 5, Section 15 
(City of Troy Tax Parcel 20-15-377-043). 
 
WHEREAS, City Council approved an authorizing resolution on July 22, 2002, which stated that 
final street vacation shall be granted after the following actions: 
 
1. Receipt of the above noted right-of-way and/or easement conveyances from the owners 

of the applicable lots. 
 
2. Determination by the City Engineer of the nature and extent of easements to be retained 

over the subject street right-of-way, based in part on input or responses from the 
applicable utility companies. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That final action is APPROVED expressly saving and 
retaining a 20-foot wide public right of way for public utilities and public walkway as described. 
 
E-11 Application for New SDD and SDM Liquor Licenses for Red Wagon Shoppe 
 
(a) New Licenses
 
Resolution #2005-04-149-E-11a  
 
RESOLVED, That the request from LUV SUN, Inc., for a new SDD license and a new SDM 
license, located at 1613 Livernois Rd., Troy, Michigan 48083, in Oakland County [MLCC REQ 
ID# 276917/276918] be CONSIDERED FOR APPROVAL.  It is the consensus of this legislative 
body that the application be recommended “above all others” for issuance. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 4, 2005 
 

- 5 - 

(b) Agreement 
 
Resolution #2005-04- 149-E-11b 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES an agreement with LUV SUN, Inc., for a new SDD license and a new SDM license, 
located at 1613 Livernois Rd., Troy, Michigan 48083, in Oakland County [MLCC REQ ID# 
276917/276918], and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the 
document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-12  Application to Transfer Ownership of a B-Hotel Liquor License – Marriott 

International, Inc. (Troy Marriott) 
 
(a) License Transfer 
 
Resolution #2005-04-149-E-12a  
 
RESOLVED, That the request from Marriott International, Inc. & WHP Hotel Owner-2A, L.L.C. 
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company), formerly known as Mar-Ty, L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited 
Liability Company), licensees of a 2004 B-Hotel licensed business with Dance-Entertainment 
Permit, 8 Bars and Official Permit (food), located at 200 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, Michigan, 
Oakland County, to transfer all membership interest in WHP Hotel Owner-2A, L.L.C. (A 
Delaware Limited Liability Company), formerly known as Mar-Ty, L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited 
Liability Company), wherein Marty-Mezz, L.L.C. is dropped as sole member through the transfer 
of 100% of the General and Limited Partnership interests in PA Troy Hospitality Investors, L.P. 
to WHP Mezz Borrower 2, L.L.C., and the simultaneous dissolution of PA Troy Hospitality 
Invertors, L.P., and its wholly owner subsidiary Mar-Ty Mezz, L.L.C., thereby resulting in WHP 
Mezz Borrower 2, L.L.C., being the sole member in WHP Hotel Owner-2A, L.L.C., be 
CONSIDERED FOR APPROVAL. It is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application be recommended “above all others” for issuance. 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Resolution #2005-04-149-E-12b 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES an agreement with Marriott International, Inc. & WHP Hotel Owner-2A, L.L.C. (A 
Delaware Limited Liability Company), formerly known as Mar-Ty, L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited 
Liability Company), licensees of a 2004 B-Hotel licensed business with Dance-Entertainment 
Permit, 8 Bars and Official Permit (food), located at 200 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, Michigan, 
Oakland County, to transfer all membership interest in WHP Hotel Owner-2A, L.L.C. (A 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 4, 2005 
 

- 6 - 

Delaware Limited Liability Company), formerly known as Mar-Ty, L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited 
Liability Company), wherein Marty-Mezz, L.L.C. is dropped as sole member through the transfer 
of 100% of the General and Limited Partnership interests in PA Troy Hospitality Investors, L.P. 
to WHP Mezz Borrower 2, L.L.C., and the simultaneous dissolution of PA Troy Hospitality 
Invertors, L.P., and its wholly owner subsidiary Mar-Ty Mezz, L.L.C., thereby resulting in WHP 
Mezz Borrower 2, L.L.C., being the sole member in WHP Hotel Owner-2A, L.L.C., and the 
Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-13  Application to Transfer Ownership of a Class C Liquor License – TENT Restaurant 

Operations, Inc. (Bailey’s Pub and Grille) 
 
(a) License Transfer 
 
Resolution #2005-04-149-E-13a 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from TENT Restaurant Operations, Inc., to transfer ownership of 
a 2004 Class C licensed business, with Official Permit (food), and Sunday Sales, located at 
1965 W. Maple Rd., Troy, Michigan 48084, in Oakland County, from Fox & Hound of Michigan, 
Inc., be CONSIDERED FOR APPROVAL. It is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application be recommended “above all others” for issuance. 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Resolution #2005-04-149-E-13b 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES an agreement with TENT Restaurant Operations, Inc., to transfer ownership of a 
2004 Class C licensed business, with Official Permit (food), and Sunday Sales, located at 1965 
W. Maple Rd., Troy, Michigan 48084, in Oakland County, from Fox & Hound of Michigan, Inc., 
and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-14  Acceptance of Two (2) Temporary Construction Permits for the Troy Court Water 

Main Project #01.502.5 – Section 34 
 
Resolution #2005-04-149-E-14  
 
RESOLVED, That the one (1) Temporary Construction Easement from property owner W & H 
Real Estate, LLC (2/3 interest) &, Robert & Carol Hewitt (1/3 interest), having Sidwell #88-20-
34-152-013, with a consideration of $500.00 and the one (1) Temporary Construction Easement 
from Troy Court, LLC, having Sidwell #88-20-34-152-018, with a consideration of $500.00, are 
hereby ACCEPTED, and payment of the stated consideration is APPROVED, for the 
construction, operation, maintenance and repair of the Troy Court Water Main improvement 
project; and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 4, 2005 
 

- 7 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT, A copy of each shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-15  Application to Transfer Class C Liquor License to Bank of America, N.A. 
 
(a) New License 
 
Resolution #2005-04-149-E-15a  
 
RESOLVED, That the request from Bank Of America, N.A., to transfer ownership of a 2004 12 
Months Resort Class C licensed business, located at 5460 Corporate, Troy, Michigan 48098, in 
Oakland County, from Cooker Restaurant Corporation, issued under MCL 436.1531(2): 
minimum seating: 100  [MLCC REQ ID# 267215], be CONSIDERED FOR APPROVAL. It is the 
consensus of this legislative body that the application be recommended “above all others” for 
issuance. 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Resolution #2005-04-149-E-15b 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES an agreement with Bank Of America, N.A., to transfer ownership of a 2004 12 
Months Resort Class C licensed business, located at 5460 Corporate, Troy, Michigan 48098, in 
Oakland County, from Cooker Restaurant Corporation, issued under MCL 436.1531(2): 
minimum seating: 100  [MLCC REQ ID# 267215], and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-16  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Liquid Calcium 

Chloride 
 
Resolution #2005-04-149-E-16  
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to provide one-year requirements of Liquid Calcium Chloride with 
an option to renew for one additional year is hereby AWARDED to the low total bidder, 
Michigan Chloride Sales, Inc., of St. Louis, MI, at an estimated total cost of $49,120.00, which 
includes $500.00 for the “additional insured endorsement” clause, at unit prices contained in the 
bid tabulation opened March 16, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractors submission 
of properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 4, 2005 
 

- 8 - 

E-17  Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Acceptable Bidder 
Meeting Specifications – Fertilization Services at Sylvan Glen and Sanctuary Lake 
Golf Courses 

 
Resolution #2005-04-149-E-17  
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to furnish all materials, equipment, and labor for one-year 
requirements of Fertilization Services at Sylvan Glen and Sanctuary Lake Golf Courses with an 
option to renew for an additional year is hereby AWARDED to the lowest bidder meeting 
specifications, Turf Grass, Inc. of South Lyon, MI, for an estimated total cost of $34,140.00, at 
unit prices contained in the attached bid tabulation opened March 15, 2005, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor’s submission 
of properly executed bid documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
contract requirements. 
 
E-18  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Four (4) 64,000 GVW 

Tandem Axle Dump Trucks 
 
Resolution #2005-04-149-E-18  
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to purchase four (4) 64,000 GVW Tandem-Axle Dump Trucks is 
hereby AWARDED to the low total bidders, Bi-State Sterling Truck Center of Toledo, OH and 
Monroe Truck Equipment of Flint, MI for an estimated total cost of $327,588.00 and $190,748.00 
respectfully, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened March 1, 2005, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-19  Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Option to Renew – Automobile, Light Truck, 

Farm, and Construction Equipment Replacement Parts 
 
Resolution #2005-04-149-E-19  
 
WHEREAS, On May 6, 2002, three-year contracts with the option to renew for three additional 
years to provide automobile, light truck, farm, and construction equipment replacement parts were 
awarded to the lowest acceptable bidders meeting specifications, Kirk’s Automotive, Terminal 
Supply, Jack Doheny Supply Company, DTS Fluid Power, LLC (previously Rubber Materials), and 
Shults Equipment, Inc. (Resolution #2002-05-288-E10). 
 
WHEREAS, All the above named vendors have agreed to exercise the three-year option to renew 
the contracts under the same price discount structure, terms, and conditions. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the options to renew the contracts are hereby 
EXERCISED with Kirk’s Automotive, Terminal Supply, Jack Doheny Supply Company, DTS Fluid 
Power, LLC (previously Rubber Materials), and Shults Equipment, Inc. to provide automobile, light 
truck, farm, and construction equipment replacement parts under the same pricing structure, terms, 
and conditions as the original contracts expiring May 6, 2008. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 4, 2005 
 

- 9 - 

E-20 Street Vacation Application (SV-182) – A Section of Alley Located South of Chopin 
and North of Maple, Section 27 

 
Resolution #2005-04-149-E-20 
 
WHEREAS, A request has been received for the vacation of a portion of a section of alley that 
is shown in the attached drawing entitled Alley Vacation & Easement Sketch, and further 
described as follows: 
 

A portion of a section of alley that is 18 feet wide by approximately 240.54 
feet, within the Addison Heights Subdivision, as recorded in Liber 33, page 
28 of Oakland County Plats, abutting Lots 78 through 90 and Lot 549, 
Section 27. 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council approved an authorizing resolution for the street vacation request 
on June 16, 2003, contingent upon an easement for continued use of full alley and until such 
time development of property directs recording of easement. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council CONCURS in the 
recommendations of City Management and APPROVES the final vacation request expressly 
reserving, saving and retaining therefrom an easement granting it and its designated licensees 
the right to construct, operate, maintain, repair, and/or replace over the entire right of way being 
vacated, any water mains, sanitary or storm sewer systems or other public utilities including 
ingress and egress. 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-4  Act 51 Mileage Certification for 2004 
 
Resolution #2005-04-150  
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, It is necessary to furnish certain road information to the State of Michigan for the 
purpose of obtaining funds under Act 51, P.A. 1951, as amended. 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy hereby accepts the following non-platted streets: Tanner, 
Peacock, Quill Creek, Dominique, Wyandotte and Colleen. 
 
RESOLVED, That said streets are located within the City of Troy; right-of-way is under the 
control of the City of Troy; said streets are public streets and are for public street purposes and 
were open to the public prior to December 31, 2004; and said streets are ACCEPTED into the 
City of Troy local street system. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City of Troy hereby DECERTIFIES the following street:  
River Bend effective on December 31, 2004. 
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 4, 2005 
 

- 10 - 

Absent: Howrylak  
 
E-5  Resolution Authorizing Request for Reimbursement:  Oakland County West Nile 

Virus Fund 
 
Resolution #2005-04-151  
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council for the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, hereby 
AUTHORIZES the City of Troy’s Park’s and Recreation Department, to seek reimbursement in 
the amount of $30,057.91 from the Oakland County’s West Nile Virus Fund for expenditures 
incurred while instituting proactive public health measures to reduce the population of infected 
mosquitoes in the environment. 
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  
 
E-6  Traffic Committee Recommendations – February 16, 2005 
 
(a) Stop Signs on Millburn at Brinston and on Millburn at Prescott 
 
Resolution #2005-04-152  
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order #_________ be ISSUED for installation of STOP signs 
on Millburn at Brinston and on Millburn at Prescott. 
 
Yes: Stine, Lambert   
No: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher  
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
(a) Yield Signs on Millburn at Brinston and on Millburn at Prescott 
 
Resolution #2005-04-153  
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Broomfield   
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order #05-03-SS(Y) be ISSUED for installation of YIELD 
signs on Millburn at Brinston and on Millburn at Prescott. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Lambert   
No: Stine   
Absent: Howrylak  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 4, 2005 
 

- 11 - 

MOTION CARRIED 
  
Proposed Resolutions for Traffic Committee Recommendations (b) (c) and (d)  
 
Resolution  
Moved by Lambert    
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 
(b) No Stopping, Standing, Parking Signs on South Side of Timberview Between 

Livernois and the Timberview/Millstone Intersection 
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order #_________ be ISSUED for installation of No Stopping, 
Standing, Parking Signs on the south side of Timberview between Livernois and the 
Timberview/Millstone intersection. 
 
(c) Installation of No Parking Zone Signs on the East Side of Millstone 50 Feet North 

and on the East Side of Timberview 50 Feet to the South of the 
Timberview/Millstone Intersection 

 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order #_________ be ISSUED for installation of No Parking 
Zone Signs on the east side of Millstone 50 feet north and on the east side of Timberview 50 
feet to the south of the Timberview/Millstone intersection. 
 
(d) Installation of a Stop Sign on Westbound Timberview at the Timberview/Millstone 

Intersection 
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order #__________ be ISSUED for installation of a Stop Sign 
on westbound Timberview at the Timberview/Millstone intersection. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Traffic Committee Recommendation (b)  
 
Resolution #2005-04-154  
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by STRIKING “for installation of No Stopping, 
Standing, Parking Signs” and INSERT “to restrict parking” BEFORE “on the south side of 
Timberview between Livernois and the Timberview/Millstone intersection.” 
 
Yes: All-6   
No: None   
Absent: Howrylak  
 
Vote on Traffic Committee Recommendations (b) as Amended, and (c) and (d)  
 
Resolution #2005-04-155   
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 4, 2005 
 

- 12 - 

 
(b) Restrict Parking on South Side of Timberview Between Livernois and the 

Timberview/Millstone Intersection 
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order #05-01-P be ISSUED to restrict parking on the south 
side of Timberview between Livernois and the Timberview/Millstone intersection. 
 
(c) Installation of No Parking Zone Signs on the East Side of Millstone 50 Feet North 

and on the East Side of Timberview 50 Feet to the South of the 
Timberview/Millstone Intersection 

 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order #05-02-P be ISSUED for installation of No Parking 
Zone Signs on the east side of Millstone 50 feet north and on the east side of Timberview 50 
feet to the south of the Timberview/Millstone intersection. 
 
(d) Installation of a Stop Sign on Westbound Timberview at the Timberview/Millstone 

Intersection 
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order #05-04-SS be ISSUED for installation of a Stop Sign on 
westbound Timberview at the Timberview/Millstone intersection. 
 
Yes: All-6   
No: None   
Absent: Howrylak  
 
E-7 Traffic Committee Recommendations – March 16, 2005 
 
(a) Installation of a Stop Sign at Cypress and Randall 
 
Resolution #2005-04-156 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order #__________ be ISSUED for installation of a Stop Sign 
at Cypress and Randall 
 
Yes: Lambert, Stine  
No:  Eisenbacher, Schilling, Beltramini Broomfield 
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
(a) No Changes at Cypress and Randall 
 
Resolution #2005-04-157 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Eisenbacher   
 
RESOLVED, That NO CHANGES be approved at Cypress and Randall. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 4, 2005 
 

- 13 - 

 
Yes:  Stine, Schilling, Beltramini Broomfield, Eisenbacher  
No: Lambert 
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Traffic Committee Recommendations (b) and (c) 
 
Resolution #2005-04-158 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Lambert  
 
(b) Installation of Signs in the Circle Drive in the South Parking Lot at Susick 

Elementary School 
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order #05-03-P be ISSUED for installation of signs indicating 
No Stopping, Standing, Parking Except For Morning Drop-Off Times in the circle drive in the 
north parking lot and installing signs indicating No Stopping, Standing, Parking-Bus 
Loading/Unloading Only in the circle drive in the south parking lot at Susick Elementary School. 
 
 (c) Installation of No Stopping, Standing, Parking Signs Along the East Curb and on 

the Two Adjacent Islands of the Library Parking Lot Driveway 
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order #05-04-P be ISSUED for installation of No Stopping, 
Standing, Parking Signs along the east curb and on the two adjacent islands of the library 
parking lot driveway. 
 
Yes: All-6   
No: None   
Absent: Howrylak  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  Economic 
Development Corporation; b) City Council Appointments: Historic District 
Commission; Library Board 

 
(a) Mayoral Appointments 

 
Resolution #2005-04-159 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR with 
COUNCIL APPROVAL to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 4, 2005 
 

- 14 - 

Economic Development Corporation
Mayor, Council Approval (9)– 6 years 
 
Doug Smith – Real Estate & Development Director Term expires 04-30-2011 

 
Yes:  All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  
 
(b) City Council Appointments 
 
Resolution #2005-04-160 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Historic District Commission One member must be an architect. 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years Two members-Historical Society recommendations. 
 One member – Historical Commission recommendation. 
 
Barbara Chambers - (Historical Commission) Term expires 03-01-08 
 
Library Board
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 years 
 
Joanne C. Allen Term Expires April 30, 2008 
 
Yes:  All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  
 
F-2 Blood Draw Procedure – Beaumont Hospital and Alliance Mobile Health 
 
Resolution #2005-04-161 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert    
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement between the City of Troy and Alliance Mobile Health is 
hereby APPROVED, the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to EXECUTE the document, 
and a copy is to be ATTACHED to the original minutes of this meeting.  
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement between the City of Troy and William Beaumont Hospital is 
hereby APPROVED, the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document, 
and a copy is to be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 4, 2005 
 

- 15 - 

Yes:  All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  
 
F-3 2005 Magic of Fall - Troy Daze Festival Schedule - Fees 
 
Resolution #2005-04-162 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy Daze/Magic of Fall schedule and fees are hereby APPROVED as 
requested by the Troy Daze Advisory Committee and a copy shall be ATTACHED to and made 
a part of the original Minutes of this meeting.   
 
Yes:  All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  
 
The meeting RECESSED at 8:52 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:04 PM. 
 
F-4 Designation of Limited Public Forums 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the front lawn of City Hall and the area 
surrounding the Reflective Head as the designated limited public forum area; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the rules and procedures governing the limited public 
forum area as recommended by City Management and attached hereto are hereby 
APPROVED. 
 
Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by INSERTING,  “and the parking lot north of 
the Community Center as recommended by City Management and adjacent to the Reflective 
Head area” in the first RESOLVED and INSERTING, “that City Council hereby DIRECTS City 
Management to provide City Council with a listing of further application procedures” in the 
second RESOLVED. 
 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 4, 2005 
 

- 16 - 

 
Resolution #2005-04-163 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Eisenbacher   
 
RESOLVED, That Designation of Limited Public Forms be POSTPONED until City 
Management can draft proper regulations governing the three (3) proposed designated limited 
public forum areas. 
 
Yes:  Schilling, Beltramini, Eisenbacher  
No: Lambert, Stine, Broomfield  
Absent: Howrylak  
  
MOTION FAILED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2005-04-164 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by INSERTING,  “and the parking lot north of 
the Community Center as recommended by City Management and adjacent to the Reflective 
Head area” in the first RESOLVED and INSERTING, “that City Council hereby DIRECTS City 
Management to provide City Council with a listing of further application procedures” in the 
second RESOLVED. 
 
Yes: Stine, Schilling, Broomfield, Lambert  
No: Beltramini, Eisenbacher   
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2005-04-165 
Moved by Schilling   
Seconded by Beltramini   
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by STRIKING “the front lawn of City Hall”. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Eisenbacher,  
No: Broomfield, Lambert, Stine  
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 4, 2005 
 

- 17 - 

 
Resolution #2005-04-166 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by STRIKING “application procedures” and 
INSERTING “selection processes allowing for time, place and manner.” 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution #2005-04-167 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the front lawn of City Hall, the parking 
lot area north of the Community Center as recommended by City Management and adjacent to 
the Reflective Head area and the area surrounding the Reflective Head as the designated 
limited public forum area; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the rules and procedures governing the limited public 
forum area as recommended by City Management and attached hereto are hereby 
APPROVED and that City Council hereby DIRECTS City Management to provide City Council 
with a listing of further selection processes allowing for time, place, and manner.  
 
Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Lambert, Stine  
No: Schilling, Beltramini   
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 10:55 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 11:03 PM. 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1998 Kirkton – April 18, 2005 
b) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1102 Boyd – April 18, 2005 
c) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 6771 Westaway – April 18, 2005 

Noted and Filed 
 
G-2 Green Memorandums:   
a) Islamic Association of Michigan 

Noted and Filed 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 4, 2005 
 

- 18 - 

 
COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 
 
H-1  Mayor Schilling’s Request for List of Churches in Troy and a List of Languages 

Spoken in Troy 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 – Order 
of Business, Article 15 I
 
Resolution #2005-04-168 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That City Council SUSPEND Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 
Order of Business, Article 15-I. Council Comments and AUTHORIZE City Council to discuss 
and take action on reconsideration of Consideration of National Day of Prayer, Resolution 
#2005-03-147, from the Special City Council Meeting of Monday, March 28, 2005. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Reconsider 
 
Resolution #2005-04-169 
Moved by Beltramini     
Seconded by Schilling    
 
RESOLVED, That Consideration of National Day of Prayer, Resolution #2005-03-147, Moved 
by Broomfield and Seconded by Eisenbacher, as it appears below be RECONSIDERED by City 
Council: 
 

RESOLVED, That in 2005, the City of Troy AUTHORIZES the 
National Day of Prayer Task Force to hold a National Day of 
Prayer-Christian observance to be observed from 12:00 PM to 
1:00 PM on Thursday, May 5, 2005 and that the Interfaith 
Group shall CONDUCT a service from 11:00 AM to 12:00 PM 
at Veteran’s Plaza. 
Yes: All-7  

 
Yes: Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Eisenbacher  
No: Lambert, Broomfield  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 4, 2005 
 

- 19 - 

Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2005-04-170 
Moved by Beltramini     
Seconded by Eisenbacher    
 
RESOLVED, That Reconsidered Resolution #2005-03-147 regarding, Consideration of National 
Day of Prayer, be AMENDED by STRIKING it in its entirety and SUBSTITUTED with, 
“RESOLVED, That the City of Troy AUTHORIZES the National Day of Prayer Task Force to 
hold a National Day of Prayer-Christian observance to be observed from 12:00 PM to 1:00 PM 
on Thursday, May 5, 2005 at one of the designated public forum sites.” 
 
Yes: Stine, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Lambert 
No: Schilling, Beltramini  
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution as Substituted 
 
Resolution #2005-04-171 
Moved by Broomfield   
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy AUTHORIZES the National Day of Prayer Task Force to 
hold a National Day of Prayer-Christian observance to be observed from 12:00 PM to 1:00 PM 
on Thursday, May 5, 2005 at one of the designated public forum sites. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Lambert, Stine  
No: Schilling, Beltramini, Eisenbacher  
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Resolution to Consider Observation of National Day of Prayer at Any of the City of Troy 
Parks or Utilize One of the Three Designated Limited Public Forum Sites 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Eisenbacher    
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That in 2005, the City of Troy AUTHORIZES all residents and any groups to 
observe the National Day of Prayer at any of the City of Troy parks or utilize one (1) of the three 
(3) designated limited public forum sites following the City of Troy’s prescribed rules and 
procedure.  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 4, 2005 
 

- 20 - 

 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2005-04-172 
Moved by Lambert     
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by STRIKING, “AUTHORIZED” and 
INSERTING, “INVITES”. 
 
Yes:  All-6 
No:  None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution #2005-04-173 
Moved by Eisenbacher    
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That in 2005, the City of Troy INVITES all residents and any groups to observe 
the National Day of Prayer at any of the City of Troy parks or utilize one (1) of the three (3) 
designated limited public forum sites following the City of Troy’s prescribed rules and 
procedure.  
 
Yes:  All-6 
No:  None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #26 – 
Continued Agenda Items Not Considered Before 12:00 AM 
 
Resolution #2005-04-174 
Moved by Lambert 
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
 
RESOLVED, That City Council SUSPEND Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #26  - 
Continued Agenda Items Not Considered Before 12:00 AM and AUTHORIZE City Council to 
EXTEND the adjournment time to 12:30 AM. 
 
Yes:  All-6 
No:  None 
Absent: Howrylak  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 4, 2005 
 

- 21 - 

REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Troy Historic Commission/Final – October 26, 2004 
b) Troy Historic Study Committee/Final – November 4, 2004 
c) Troy Historic Study Committee/Final – November 30, 2004 
d) Troy Historic District Study Committee/Final – January 4, 2005  
e) Troy Historic Commission/Final – January 25, 2005 
f) Troy Historic Study Committee/Final – February 1, 2005   
g) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – February 14, 2005  
h) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – February 15, 2005 
i) Troy Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – February 15, 2005 
j) Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting/Draft – March 1, 2005   
k) Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting/Final – March 1, 2005 
l) Troy Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – March 1, 2005  
m) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – March 2, 2005 
n) Planning Commission Regular Meeting/Draft – March 8, 2005  
o) Planning Commission Regular Meeting/Final – March 8, 2005 
p) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – March 14, 2005 
q) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – March 15, 2005 

Noted and Filed 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) Council Member Dave Lambert’s Report on the National League of Cities Conference 
b) Councilmember Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report for NLC Congressional Cities 

Conference 
c) Annual Library Survey of Users 
d) First Quarter 2005 Development Report 
e) Permits Issued During the Month of February 2005 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter to Cindy Stewart from Mary Beth Halushka of the Troy Board of Education 
b) Letter Thanking Police Officer Milt Stansbury for a Recent Ride Along 
c) Letter Thanking Police Officer Patrick Dyjewski for Providing Assistance to Broken Down 

Motorist and Motorist Needing Medical Attention 
d) Letter Thanking Police Officer LaForest for Assisting in Apprehending a Retail Fraud 

Suspect 
e) Letter Thanking Police Officer Craig Fitzpatrick and Police Officer Frank Nastasi for 

Providing Assistance to a Stranded Motorist 
f) Letter From Brad Byarski Thanking Jennifer Lawson for Offering Input and Information 

Regarding Maple Forest   
Noted and Filed 

 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:   
a) Resolution from the Oakland County Board of Commissioners in Support of the 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program 
Noted and Filed 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 4, 2005 
 

- 22 - 

J-5  Calendar 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-6  Options/Ramifications for Proposed I-75/Crooks/Long Lake Interchange 

Improvement Project 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-7  Golf, Inc. Article 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-8  Report on Liquor Compliance Inspections 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-9  Load Restrictions Report and Communication 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-10  Report Regarding Feasibility of a Minor League Baseball Stadium at Donald Flynn 

Park  
Noted and Filed 

 
J-11  State of Michigan Ash Tree Removal Contract 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-12  DPW Recycling Center Closure 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-13  Letter from Julie A. Wendt, Director, Licensing Division of the Liquor Control 

Commission 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-14 Law Day 2005 

Noted and Filed 
 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1  No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session  
 
Resolution #2005-04-175 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 4, 2005 
 

- 23 - 

BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as 
permitted by MCL 15.268 (a), Personnel Evaluations of Troy City Manager John Szerlag and 
Troy City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm. 
 
Yes:  All-6 
No:  None 
Absent: Howrylak  
 
The meeting RECESSED at 12:20 AM on Tuesday, April 05, 2005. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 1:13 AM on Tuesday, April 05, 2005. 
 
The meeting ADMOURNED at 1:140 AM on Tuesday, April 05, 2005. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
  

 
 Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 

City Clerk 
 
 



 PROCLAMATION  
 Recording for the Blind & Dyslexic Week 

 April 25 – 30, 2005 
 
WHEREAS, Recording for the Blind & Dyslexic of Michigan, located at 5600 Rochester Road 
in Troy, Michigan, is a non-profit volunteer organization serving people who cannot read standard 
print because of a visual, learning or other physical disability; and 
 
WHEREAS, Their mission is “to promote educational and professional success by converting 
printed materials into audio format” and those audio textbooks are provided free of charge to over 
9,000 Michigan members, grades kindergarten through graduate school; and  
 
WHEREAS, The careful reading of textbooks, descriptions of graphs, charts, diagrams, maps, 
tables and so forth, by the dedicated and highly trained volunteers at Recording for the Blind & 
Dyslexic of Michigan gives reading-disabled students equal access to the written word; and 
 
WHEREAS, Every year the demand for their services grows, and it is estimated that more than a 
quarter of a million learning disabled students ages 6 to 21 could benefit from the use of audio 
textbooks; and 
 
WHEREAS, Recording for the Blind & Dyslexic of Michigan will be conducting their 12th 
Annual Record-a-Thon, the purpose of which is to record as many textbooks as possible for six 
continuous days during the Week of April 25 – 30, 2005; and 
 
WHEREAS, Recording for the Blind & Dyslexic of Michigan will start this event with a 
Celebrity Kickoff on Monday, April 25, 2004 at 10:00 a.m.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
proclaims the week of April 25 – 30, 2005, as “Recording for the Blind & Dyslexic Week” in 
honor of the hard-working local volunteers who diligently give of their time and talents, not to 
mention their treasure, to provide equal educational opportunities to those who cannot read and 
who learn by listening. 
 
Presented this 25th day of April 2005. 
 

morrellca
Text Box
E-03a



LAW DAY PROCLAMATION 
May 1, 2005 

 
WHEREAS, One of the principles we fought for in the Revolutionary War was the right to trial by jury. 
The Declaration of Independence denounced King George III’s refusal to extend to Americans, “in 
many cases… the benefits of trial by jury”; and  
 
WHEREAS, A jury of one’s peers is a cornerstone of American democracy. Along with voting, it is one 
of the main ways people take part in the public life of this nation; and   
 
WHEREAS, Trial by jury is guaranteed in the Fifth, Sixth, and Seventh Amendments; and  
 
WHEREAS, Jurors decide whether defendants are guilty or not guilty, liable or not liable; and 
 
WHEREAS, The decisions that jurors make affect millions of lives everyday and have a profound 
impact on our economy and our society. By entrusting jurors from the community to decide legal 
cases-some of them involving millions of dollars or life and death issues-we reinforce our belief that 
everyday people can make the right decision, and that we are an open, democratic government; and;  
 
WHEREAS, Few activities in our civic life provide such a direct contact with our democratic process 
as does jury service; and  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that as we celebrate Law Day 2005, we acknowledge the 
central role of juries in American life, and we recognize the importance of educating our fellow citizens 
about the rewards and benefits of jury service; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Troy proclaims Sunday, May 1, 
2005 as Law Day.  We urge the citizens, schools, businesses, and media of the City of Troy to use 
this occasion to dedicate ourselves to preserve and strengthen the jury system.  We also encourage 
citizens to take advantage of the educational opportunities and information provided as part of the 
Troy City Attorney’s Office 2005 Law Day Program, including the video presentation embodying 
this year’s Law Day theme, “The American Jury: We the People in Action”, and the Law Day displays 
during the month of May at the Troy Public Library, and the Troy Museum and Historic Village. 
 
Signed this 18th day of April 2005.   
 
 
 
  

morrellca
Text Box
E-03b



 

 

April 4, 2005 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
Subject: Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award To Low Bidder –  

Roof Replacement Fire Station 4  
 

RECOMMENDATION 
On March 29, 2005, bid proposals were opened to provide roof replacement at Fire 
Station 4, 2103 E. Maple Road.  This bid includes a cost provision for plywood 
replacement as necessary.  City management recommends the contract be awarded to 
the low bidder, Bloomfield Construction Company of Bloomfield Hills, MI, for an 
estimated total cost of $31,190.00, for the 50-year asphalt fiberglass shingle system, at 
unit prices contained in the attached bid tabulation.  The cost includes an allowance to 
replace 20 additional sheets of fire retardant plywood, and insurance. 
 
The award is contingent upon contractor submission of properly executed bid 
documents, including insurance certificates, bonds, and all specified requirements. 
 
BACKGROUND 

• The roof shingles at Station 4 have blown off in several areas allowing water to 
enter the building and damage the ceilings.  The roof failures have been caused 
by plywood delimitation, which allows the roofing nails to come loose. 

 
• The base bid included the installation of ten (10) sheets of plywood.  After the 

existing roofing material is removed, an inspection of the existing roof surface will 
be made by representatives of the Building and Fire Departments to determine if 
any additional plywood above the original ten (10) sheets will be required. 

 
• The manufacturer guarantees the roofing material specified for fifty- (50) years. 

 
BUDGET 
Funds are available in the Fire Buildings and Repairs Capital Account Number 
401344.7975.070. 
 
96 Vendors Notified on MITN System 
  4 Bid Responses Rec’d 
 
Prepared by: Richard Sinclair, Assistant Fire Chief 

morrellca
Text Box
E-04a



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-10
Opening Date -- 3/29/05 BID TABULATION
Date Prepared -- 4/1/05 ROOF REPLACEMENT - FIRE STATION #4

VENDOR NAME: * BLOOMFIELD BUTCHER & CRANE BOSS
CONSTRUCTION BAECKER ROOFING INC COMMERCIAL

COMPANY CONSTRUCTION BUILDING

CHECK #: 417662948 029180906 363485282 649301946
CHECK AMOUNT: $4,200.00 $4,200.00 $4,200.00 $4,200.00

PROPOSAL: ROOF REPLACEMENT OF FIRE STATION #4 AT 2103 EAST MAPLE ROAD, TROY
To remove and replace the roof system in accordance with 
specifications for a 50 Year, Asphalt Fiberglass Shingle System

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 29,500$            34,900$            48,360$          50,350$          

Additional Costs: UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE
Fire Retardant Treated Plywood
4' x 8' Sheets 70.00$              85.00$               80.00$            90.00$             

ESTIMATED TOTAL FOR MATERIALS 1,400.00$         1,700.00$         1,600.00$       1,800.00$        

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX, +$289.99 XX XX Can Obtain
Cannot Meet

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 31,189.99$        36,600.00$         49,960.00$      52,150.00$       

CONTACT INFORMATION
Hr of Operation 8-4:30PM 8-5PM 7-5PM 6-7PM
24 Hr Phone No. (248)521-5201 (248)379-9673 (248)961-2282 (734)516-1940

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N YES YES YES YES
Date 3/9/05 3/9/05 3/9/05 3/9/05

COMPLETION DATE: BY JUNE 30, 2005
Can Meet XX XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

BIDDER QUESTIONNAIRE:
Attached XX XX XX XX
Not Attached

TERMS: BLANK 30 DAYS NET 30 - 10% Retention Attached to Bid

WARRANTY: BLANK CT - 10 YR 50 YR MFG 50 YRS MFG

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK BLANK LISTED IN BID LISTED IN BID

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Y or N YES YES YES YES

ADDENDUM 1: Y or N YES YES YES YES

ATTEST: * DENOTES LOW BIDDER
 Richard Sinclair
 Charlene McComb Jeanette Bennett
 Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director

G:Roof Replacement- Fire Station #4 ITB-COT 05-10

Based on 20 Additional Sheets









 
  April 6, 2005 
  
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager  
 
From:  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Charles Craft, Chief of Police             
   
Re: Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Option to Renew -

Towing and Storage Services 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Police Department recommends exercising the second of two one-year 
options to renew the Towing and Storage Services contract since Coleman’s 
Towing and Recovery, Inc. has indicated a desire to continue the contract at the 
same prices, terms, and conditions as the original contract for one-year expiring 
July 31, 2006 (letter attached).   
  
On August 6, 2001, the Troy City Council approved a three-year contract to 
provide Towing and Storage Services with an option to renew for two additional 
one-year periods to the low bidder, Coleman’s Towing and Recovery, Inc. 
(formerly A Roadone Company) (Resolution #2001-08-394-E-3).  On May 24, 
2004 (Resolution #2004-05-268-E-9), the first of two one-year options to renew 
the contract was exercised.   
 
SURVEY RESULTS 
 
The Purchasing Department conducted a market survey in 2004.  Increasing 
costs for fuel was named as one reason for towing prices remaining stable or 
increasing in 2004.  In this year of ever increasing fuel prices, exercising the 
option to renew the contract for another year using a 2001 pricing schedule is 
advisable without conducting another market survey.    
 
BUDGET IMPACT 
 
This contract establishes the towing rates for private vehicles in the City of Troy 
and provides for the towing of City vehicles. If a City vehicle is towed, the DPW 
Motor Pool operating budget is usually used if the tow is the result of an 
equipment failure. If the towing is due to operator error, the individual 
department’s operating budget is charged. 
 
G:/Bid Award 05-06/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 – Option – Towing 05-05.doc 

morrellca
Text Box
E-04b





 
  May 12, 2004 
  
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager  
 
From:  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Charles Craft, Chief of Police             
   
Re: Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Option to Renew -

Towing and Storage Services 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
On August 6, 2001, the Troy City Council approved a three-year contract to 
provide Towing and Storage Services with an option to renew for two additional 
one-year periods to the low bidder, Coleman’s Towing and Recovery, Inc. 
(formerly A Roadone Company) (Resolution #2001-08-394-E-3).  The Police 
Department recommends exercising the first of two one-year options under the 
same prices, terms, and conditions.     
 
Coleman’s Towing and Recovery, Inc. has indicated a desire to continue the 
contract at the same prices, terms, and conditions as the original contract for 
one-year expiring July 31, 2005 (letter attached).   
  
SURVEY RESULTS 
 
The Purchasing Department has conducted a market survey and concurs with 
the recommendation to exercise the option to renew, as costs particularly for 
insurance and fuel are increasing.  Also, the Police Department conducted two 
random surveys to ensure that prices charged are within the confines of the 
contract, and concluded that the billing was in accordance with the contract.   
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
This contract establishes the towing rates for private vehicles in the City of Troy 
and provides for the towing of City vehicles. If a City vehicle is towed, the DPW 
Motor Pool operating budget is usually used if the tow is the result of an 
equipment failure. If the towing is due to operator error, the individual 
department’s operating budget is charged. 
 
 







 
   April 29, 2004 

FROM:   Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 

CONTRACT: Towing Services 

RE: Market Survey 
 

A & M Service Center Inc.     Mario Valente – 3/29/04  (248) 588-3640 

What’s happened since 2001 in the towing market? 

Pretty much hookup charges have remained about the same  –  

Honestly – there is a problem with your (City’s) company – contract amounts bid are not being billed to the 
general public (he has seen the billing of vehicles being moved from one yard to another). 

Storage prices for A & M have increased from $10 to $15 in last year 

What do you see happening in the next year? – Would your prices increase, decrease or remain the same? 

Gas prices are part of doing business – should be absorbed; Over next year – towing prices should be stable 

 

Bob Adams Towing /Byers Wrecker Service  Terry Adams – 3/29/04  (248) 644-5000 

What’s happened since 2001 in the towing market? 

Obviously – your (City’s) company didn’t increase prices since 1997.  Honestly, to make a profit, their prices 
have to go up.  In the years 2001 to 2004 their prices are going up; fuel is escalating; their expenses are going 
up.   Currently, other communities are paying $75 per car tow and $15 for storage.   He can’t do it for $55 
per tow or for a $10 storage fee.  Mr. Adams suggests building an increase into any future contracts.  There is 
no respect for towing companies but over the last few years towing has become very sophisticated in the use 
of specialized equipment and training of personnel required for equipment use.  This professionalism in the 
industry increases costs.    

What do you see happening in the next year – Would your prices increase, decrease or remain the same? 

No decreases.  He projects prices to keep going up.  Prices should continue to increase over the next year.  
Anticipating fuel to increase 10-20%; health insurance to increase 12%; and Consumers to increase 30-40%.  
Prices of property are escalating with the corresponding increases in taxes that result in increased costs to store 
a vehicle. The other problem is that cities don’t want storage yards in their communities.   

The two companies would probably bid together again since it provides better service.  They have double the 
equipment and area coverage if together.    

     Page 1 of 2 

Purchasing 
Department 



l Page 2 

 

Market Survey - Towing 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Service Towing Inc.     Bruce Hertz – 3/30/04  
 (586) 756-9500 

What’s happened since 2001 in the towing market? 

It’s a crazy market and a hard question to answer.  Strange things are happening in the market place since 
prices are escalating but people are cutting prices.  Don’t know how people are doing it but they are holding 
prices to keep the business.  Costs are escalating dramatically in fuel and insurance.  Old units are being shut 
down to decrease insurance costs.  The City should look at the costs of towing City vehicles more.  Mr. Hertz 
recently bid the Sterling Heights towing contract and doesn’t understand how others are doing it. 

Wrecker Industry - revenue is down since more cities are installing traffic lights.  It is a hard thing to say but 
towing companies make their money on accidents.  It is better for the average person but hard on the industry.  
Revenue is lost to the industry with traffic light installation. 

What do you see happening in the next year – Would your prices increase, decrease or remain the same? 

Mr. Hertz sees fuel prices increasing in the next year and insurance costs increasing dramatically.  He has heard 
that the uninsured motorist insurance costs will increase this year. 

 

SUMMARY 

The survey conducted indicates that it is in the City’s best interest to continue the towing services contract 
with Coleman’s Towing since prices (particularly insurance and fuel costs) are increasing.  The Police 
Department conducted two random surveys of towing bills to ensure that all parties of the contract are being 
charged within the confines of the contract and answer the concern expressed by A & M Service that prices 
charged were incorrect.  The Police Department found that billing charged was in accordance with the 
contract (surveys attached).  Therefore, it is staff’s recommendation to proceed with the renewal option. 

 



















morrellca
Text Box
E-04c







April 1, 2005 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low 

Bidders – Aggregates  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On March 21, 2005, sealed bid proposals were opened to furnish one-year 
requirements of Aggregates with an option to renew for one additional year.  
After reviewing these proposals, City management recommends awarding 
contracts to the low bidders, Wolverine Contractors Inc. of Lathrup Village, MI, 
Richmond Transport of Lenox, MI, United Soils Inc. of Ray Township, MI, and 
Edw. C. Levy Co. of Detroit MI, for an estimated total cost of $29,015.00, at unit 
prices contained in the attached bid tabulation.  Aggregates are purchased on an 
as needed basis throughout the year based upon estimated quantities. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Item Est. Qty Description   Price Per     Estimated 
   (Ton)             Ton         Total 
Wolverine Contractors Inc. 
4.   100  Crushed Concrete 3”-6”  $ 11.82               $  1,182.00 
5   250  Chloride Sand    $ 14.10      $  3,525.00 
7.   250  Mason Sand   $ 10.33   $  2,582.50 
    Estimated Cost     $  7,289.50 
 
Richmond Transport 
3.   200  Crushed Concrete 1”-3”  $   9.75   $  1,950.00 
6.   250  2NS Sand   $   8.80   $  2,200.00 
    Estimated Cost     $  4,150.00 
 
United Soils Inc. 
2. 500  Pea Stone   $ 11.29   $  5,645.00 
    Estimated Cost     $  5,645.00 
 
Edw. C. Levy Co. 
1. 1000  6A Slag    $ 11.93   $11,930.00 
    Estimated Cost     $11,930.00 
 
    Estimated Total Cost    $29,014.50 
 
 
 

 
1 of 2 

morrellca
Text Box
E-04d



April 1, 2005 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re:  Bid Award – Aggregates 
 
 
BUDGET 
Funds for these materials are available through the Public Works operating 
budgets for Streets and Water, as monies clear through the balance sheet 
Inventory Accounts for Aggregates. 
 
 

  
51 Vendors Notified via MITN System 
  8 Bid Responses Rec’d 
  1 Late Bid 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Emily Frontera, Administrative Aide 
 

2 of 2 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-06
Opening Date -- 3/21/05 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 2
Date Prepared -- 4/1/05 AGGREGATES

VENDOR NAME: WOLVERINE RICHMOND UNITED EDW C 
CONTRACTORS TRANSPORT SOILS INC LEVY CO

INC

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
ITEM QTY/TONS DESCRIPTION TON TON TON TON

1. 1000 6A SLAG 12.77$           12.45$             N/A 11.93$           
2. 500 PEA STONE 12.70$           11.65$             11.29$           12.87$           
3. 200 CRUSHED CONCRETE, 1" - 3" 10.47$           9.75$               10.66$           No Bid
4. 100 CRUSHED CONCRETE, 3" - 6" 11.82$           No Bid 15.99$           No Bid
5. 250 CHLORIDE SAND 14.10$           No Bid 19.99$           No Bid
6. 250 2NS SAND 9.30$             8.80$               9.80$             9.07$             
7. 250 MASON SAND 10.33$           10.60$             11.30$           11.08$           

Blank Blank N/A N/A

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: 7,289.50$     4,150.00$       5,645.00$      11,930.00$   

    ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL ALL ITEMS: 30,828.50$    N/A N/A N/A

MINIMUM ORDER REQUIREMENTS 50 Tons 50 Tons 30 Tons 50 Tons
Within Hours 24 24 24 24

CONTACT INFORMATION
Hrs of Operation Open 24Hrs 6am-6pm 8:30-5pm 7-5pm
24 Hr. Phone No. (248)357-1000 (810)602-1351 (810)533-0076 N/A

INSURANCE CAN MEET XX XX XX XX
CANNOT MEET

TERMS: Net 30 Days Net 10th Net 30 Days Net 30 Days

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank Blank Alternate Bid: Mortar

Sand for Mason Sand

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

PROPOSAL: One (1) Year Requirements of Aggregates with an Option to Renew
for One (1) Additional Year

ATTEST: BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOW BIDDERS
 Charlene McComb
 Emily Frontera
 Tom Rosewarne
 Linda Bockstanz

_______________________________
Jeanette Bennett
Purchasing Director

G:\ITB-COT 05-06 Aggregates

DISCOUNT IF AWARDED ALL ITEMS



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-06
Opening Date -- 3/21/05 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 2
Date Prepared - 4/1/05 AGGREGATES

VENDOR NAME: SYLVESTER TJ FIORE GREAT LAKES ELLSWORTH
MATERIAL CO CRUSHED AGGREGATES INDUSTRIES

DBA THE STANLEY CONCRETE INC CO INC
GROUP

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
ITEM QTY/TONS DESCRIPTION TON TON TON TON

1. 1000 6A SLAG No Bid No Bid
2. 500 PEA STONE 13.05$             No Bid
3. 200 CRUSHED CONCRETE, 1" - 3" No Bid 11.75$             10.40$           
4. 100 CRUSHED CONCRETE, 3" - 6" No Bid No Bid
5. 250 CHLORIDE SAND No Bid No Bid 19.75$           
6. 250 2NS SAND No Bid No Bid
7. 250 MASON SAND No Bid No Bid

N/A N/A

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: -$                -$                -$              -$              

MINIMUM ORDER REQUIREMENTS 50 Tons N/A 50 Tons 50 Tons
Within Hours 24 24 24 24

CONTACT INFORMATION
Hrs of Operation 6-5pm 7-6pm 8-4pm 24 Hours
24 Hr. Phone No. (419)392-2568 (586)939-6200 (734)777-7299 (313)218-4790

INSURANCE CAN MEET XX XX XX XX
CANNOT MEET

TERMS: Net 30 Days Blank Net 30 Days Net 30

EXCEPTIONS: Blank N/A Blank None

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

G:\ITB-COT 05-06 Aggregates

DISCOUNT IF AWARDED ALL ITEMS







  April 5, 2005 
 
TO:               John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:          John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
                    Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
               Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Lowest 

Bidder Meeting Specifications – Printing of Troy Today, Quarterly Newsletter 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
Bid proposals to furnish printing of the quarterly newsletter Troy Today for one (1) year with 
an option to renew for two (2) additional one-year periods were opened on March 30, 2005.  
City management recommends a contract be awarded to the lowest acceptable bid received 
from Grand River Printing & Imaging, 8455 Haggerty Road, Van Buren Township, MI  48111, 
734-394-3635 at an estimated annual cost of $70,060.72, plus additional charges as needed 
at unit prices contained in the attached bid tabulation dated 3/30/05 and the actual cost of 
bulk rate postage.   
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
The Troy Today is mailed to all households four (4) times per year to publicize City 
information; phone numbers; Parks & Recreation, Library, Museum and Nature Center 
classes and special events.  It maintains regular features including road and infrastructure 
construction maps, development news, Council meeting schedules, Police and Fire tips and 
other special programs.  
 
EXPLANATION OF LOWEST BID WITHDRAWING 
Phillips Brothers Printing submitted the lowest bid at $65,200.00, but on April 4, 2005 they 
withdrew their bid due to the fact that they realized they overlooked or misunderstood a 
couple of items on the bid document.  Their email is attached.   
 
EXPLANATION OF BID NOT MEETING SPECIFICATIONS 
The paper specification was changed this year to allow a lower weight paper to decrease 
postage costs.  Grand River Printing & Imaging submitted two bids with the lowest of the two 
bids containing pricing for an alternate paper.  That paper was unacceptable since the opacity 
of the paper was lower which can result in unacceptable ink bleed through.  
 
BUDGET  
Funds are available in the Community Affairs Printing Account #748.7901, Library Printing 
Account #790.7901 and the Parks & Recreation Printing Account #752.7901. 
 
 
 
 
141 Vendors Notified via MITN System 
    6 Bid Responses Rec’d 
    1 Bid did not meet specifications      
    3 No Bids:  (2) companies could not be competitive 

(1) company policy prohibits including $1,500 check to insure the bid 
    1 Bid Withdrawn                                              

morrellca
Text Box
E-04e



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-05
Opening Date -- 3-30-05 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 2
Date Prepared -- 4/8/05 PRINTING OF TROY TODAY

VENDOR NAME: * GRAND RIVER PRINTING CLARK GRAPHICS INC
& IMAGING

CHECK # On File 620692837
CHECK AMOUNT $1,500.00 $1,500.00

PROPOSAL:   FURNISH ALL LABOR, MATERIALS, AND EQUIPMENT TO PROVIDE ONE YEAR REQUIREMENTS OF
   OFFSET PRINTING OF TROY TODAY WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO ADDITIONAL ONE-YEAR PERIODS

QTY                  DESCRIPTION
40,000 Copies Printing of TROY TODAY

per Printing Four Times per Year (160,000 Copies per Year)
  Complete for the Sum of:     17,515.18$                              24,663.00$                             

Extended Yearly Cost:          70,060.72$                             98,652.00$                             

Paper Manufactured by:           Cover Sonoma by Woodland
Inside Daytona by Woodland Daytona Offset

Additional Charges:
1) Cost per each additional 4-page spread See pricing schedule

50 lb  Offset Paper 3,114.00$                              
60 lb White Gloss Text Stock 2,856.00$                              

2) Changes once the silver print is completed $80.00/HR $75.00/HR
3) Cost for additional quantities per 500 Copies

   Offset       Gloss Text
Base Bid   (80 Pages +   4 pages) $168.56/500 Copies $144.00/500 Copies
Optional Pricing Per 500 Copies Per 500 Copies
a.) 84 Pages  (84 Pages +    4 pages) 602.35$                                  298.00$                                  
b.) 88 Pages  (80 Pages +    8 pages) 757.61$                                  290.00$                                  
c.) 92 Pages  (84 Pages +    8 pages) 1,953.83$                                348.00$                                  

Completion Schedule:
Can meet 10 CALENDAR DAYS XX XX
Cannot meet

Contact Information
Hours of Operations 3 shifts - 24 hours 24 hours
24 Hrs Emergency Phone No. (734)394-1400 (586)772-4900

Terms 2% 10 days; Net 30 Net 30 Less 1% Net 20

Warranty BLANK BLANK

Delivery 10 Business Days

Samples Y or N YES YES

Exceptions: BLANK IF STOCK IS UNAVAILABLE FOR 2ND, 3RD, AND 4TH

PRINTING COST IS $25,394 FOR 40,500

$25,250 FOR 40,000

Acknowledgement Completed Y or N YES YES
                            

BID WITHDRAWN :
 Phillips Brothers Printers Inc $65,200.00 * DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDER
DMS:
 Grand River Printing & Imaging - Alternate Bid - $67,335.32
    Reason: The alternate paper is unacceptable due to opacity - there is  greater chance of ink bleed through.
G:\ITB-COT 05-05 Printing of Troy Today



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-05
Opening Date -- 3-30-05 BID TABULATION Page 2 of 2
Date Prepared -- 4/8/05 PRINTING OF TROY TODAY

VENDOR NAME: UNIVERSITY ALLIED MAILING
LITHOPRINTERS INC & PRINTING INC

CHECK # 109517 100073969
CHECK AMOUNT $1,500.00 $1,500.00

PROPOSAL:   FURNISH ALL LABOR, MATERIALS, AND EQUIPMENT TO PROVIDE ONE YEAR REQUIREMENTS OF
   OFFSET PRINTING OF TROY TODAY WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO ADDITIONAL ONE-YEAR PERIODS

QTY                  DESCRIPTION
40,000 Copies Printing of TROY TODAY

per Printing Four Times per Year (160,000 Copies per Year)
  Complete for the Sum of:     24,990.00$                              1.37$                                      

Extended Yearly Cost:          99,960.00$                              219,901.00$                           

Paper Manufactured by:           Cover Cannon Woodland
Inside Woodland Woodland

Additional Charges:
1) Cost per each additional 4-page spread

50 lb  Offset Paper 1,685.00$                               6,375.31$                              
60 lb White Gloss Text Stock 1,685.00$                               8,492.12$                              

2) Changes once the silver print is completed $65.00/HR $100.00/HR
3) Cost for additional quantities per 500 Copies

   Offset       Gloss Text
Base Bid   (80 Pages +   4 pages) $170.00/500 Copies $647.45/500 Copies
Optional Pricing Per 500 Copies Per 500 Copies
a.) 84 Pages  (84 Pages +    4 pages) 190.00$                                  1,879.08$                               
b.) 88 Pages  (80 Pages +    8 pages) 210.00$                                  1,428.42$                               
c.) 92 Pages  (84 Pages +    8 pages) 230.00$                                  1,914.13$                               

Completion Schedule:
Can meet 10 CALENDAR DAYS XX XX
Cannot meet

Contact Information
Hours of Operations Production - M-F 24 Hours M-F 7:30 - 5pm
24 Hrs Emergency Phone No. (734)973-9414 (313)719-1500

Terms Net 30 Days Net 30 Days

Warranty BLANK BLANK

Delivery

Samples Y or N YES YES

Exceptions: BLANK BLANK

Acknowledgement Completed Y or N YES YES
NO BIDS:                            

ATTEST:  
 Debra Painter
 Cindy Stewart _________________________________

10 Business Days













March 31, 2005  
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
Re: Agenda Item:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Sole 

Bidder – Transit Mixed Concrete 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On March 14, 2005, bid proposals were opened to furnish one-year requirements 
of Transit Mixed Concrete on an as needed basis for replacement of sidewalks, 
curbs and streets, with an option to renew for one (1) additional year.  City 
management recommends awarding the contract to the sole bidder, Nagy Ready 
Mix Inc. of Utica, MI, as Primary Supplier, for an estimated cost of $166,554.00, 
at unit prices contained on the attached bid tabulation.  

 
SUMMARY 
 
PROPOSAL A – WEEK DAY DELIVERY 
 

ITEM EST QTY  DESCRIPTION   UNIT PRICE  
1. 100 YDS  6 Sack Mix   $   69.95/cy    
2. 500 YDS  7 Sack Mix (High Early)  $   77.95/cy 
3. 800 YDS  12 HR 300PSI Mix  $   77.95/cy 
                  Flexural Strength/ 7 sack 
 
 4.                         Split Load Charges 
    a. 15 times               2 Locations    $   95.00/ea 
    b.    2 times               3 locations    $ 145.00/ea 
5. 25 times               Below Minimum Load Charge  $   65.00/ea 
6. 50 YDS               Cold Weather Protection   $     5.00/cy 
   TOTAL ESTIMATED PRICE   $111,920.00  

 
PROPOSAL B – SATURDAY DELIVERY 
 

ITEM EST QTY  DESCRIPTION   UNIT PRICE 
1.   25 YDS  6 Sack Mix   $   75.95/cy 
2. 100 YDS  7 Sack Mix (High Early)  $   83.95/cy 
3. 500 YDS  12 HR 300PSI Mix  $   83.95/cy 
                  Flexural Strength/ 7 sack 
 
4.                                                   Split Load Charges 
    a.  5 times                2 Locations   $   95.00/ea 
    b.   2 times                3 locations   $ 145.00/ea 
5. 20 times                Below Minimum Load Charge $   65.00/ea 
6. 60 YDS                Cold Weather Protection  $     5.00/cy 
   TOTAL ESTIMATED PRICE  $ 54,633.75    

 
SECONDARY SUPPLIER 
Routinely, a secondary supplier is named in the event that the primary supplier is 
unable to provide material, or meet delivery needs.  Since only one vendor 
participated in the formal bid process and historical data shows that secondary 
suppliers are rarely called upon, an informal quote process was completed and 
Clawson & Killins Concrete Co. of Novi, MI shall be named as the Secondary 
Supplier.   

1 of 2 

morrellca
Text Box
E-04f



 
March 31, 2005 
 
To:  John Szerlag 
Re:  Bid Award – Transit Mixed Concrete 
 
PROPOSAL A – WEEK DAY DELIVERY 
 

ITEM   DESCRIPTION   UNIT PRICE  
1.   6 Sack Mix   $   68.00/cy    
2.   7 Sack Mix (High Early)  $   73.00/cy 
3.   12 HR 300PSI Mix  $   73.00/cy 
                 Flexural Strength/ 7 sack 
 
 4.                          Split Load Charges 
    a.                2 Locations    $ 100.00/ea 
    b.                   3 locations    $ 100.00/ea 
5.                Below Minimum Load Charge  $   80.00/ea 
6.               Cold Weather Protection   $     4.00/cy 
    

PROPOSAL B – SATURDAY DELIVERY 
 

ITEM    DESCRIPTION   UNIT PRICE 
1.      6 Sack Mix   $   73.00/cy 
2.    7 Sack Mix (High Early)  $   78.00/cy 
3.    12 HR 300PSI Mix  $   78.00/cy 
                 Flexural Strength/ 7 sack 
 
4.                                    Split Load Charges 
    a.                2 Locations   $ 100.00/ea 
    b.                 3 locations   $ 100.00/ea 
5.                Below Minimum Load Charge $   80.00/ea 
6.                Cold Weather Protection  $     5.00/cy 

    
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
As of the date and time of the bid opening, Nagy Ready Mix Inc., was the sole 
bidder for this contract.  Vendors who have provided mixed concrete in the past 
for the Streets Department were contacted to discuss their reasons for not 
participating in the formal bid process.  Clawson & Killins Concrete Co., Van 
Horn Concrete and Superior Materials all indicated that they had intended to 
participate but neglected to submit bid proposals by the bid deadline. 
  
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available in the operating budgets of the Streets Division for major and 
local drain, road and sidewalk surface maintenance; and the Water Division for 
mains, service and tap-in maintenance. 
 
20 Vendors Notified via MITN System 
12 JD Edwards Vendors Mailed Notices 
  1 Bid Response Rec’d 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Emily Frontera, Administrative Aide 

 
 

2 of 2 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-04
Opening Date -- 3/14/05 BID TABULATION Pg. 1 of 2
Date Prepared -- 3/17/05 TRANSIT MIXED CONCRETE

VENDOR NAME: * NAGY READY
MIX INC

EST UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE/YD PRICE/YD PRICE/YD PRICE/YD

PROPOSAL A: WEEKDAY DELIVERY

1. 100 YDS 6 SACK MIX 69.95$           

2. 500 YDS 7 SACK MIX (High Early) 77.95$           

3. 800 YDS 12 HR 300 PSI MIX 77.95$           
Flexural Strength/ 7 sack

4. SPLIT LOAD CHARGES
     a. 15 TIMES 2 LOCATIONS 95.00$           
     b. 2 TIMES 3 LOCATIONS 145.00$         

5. 25 TIMES BELOW MINIMUM LOAD CHARGE 65.00$           

6. 50 YDS COLD WEATHER PROTECTION 5.00$             

ESTIMATED TOTAL - PROPOSAL A: 111,920.00$  

PROPOSAL B: SATURDAY DELIVERY

1. 25 YDS 6 SACK MIX 75.95$           

2. 100 YDS 7 SACK MIX (High Early) 83.95$           

3. 500 YDS 12 HR 300 PSI MIX 83.95$           
Flexural Strength/ 7 sack

4. SPLIT LOAD CHARGES
      a. 5 TIMES 2 LOCATIONS 95.00$           
      b. 2 TIMES 3 LOCATIONS 145.00$         

5. 20 TIMES BELOW MINIMUM LOAD CHARGE 65.00$           

6. 60 YDS COLD WEATHER PROTECTION 5.00$             

ESTIMATED TOTAL - PROPOSAL B: 54,633.75$    

UNLOADING TIME PER CUBIC YARD:  6MIN PER CY

MINIMUM LOAD: 7 CUBIC YARDS

M-F  7-5:30
HOURS OF OPERATION:  Sat 7-12pm

MITCH
24 HRS PHONE NO.  (248)891-2231



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-04
Opening Date -- 3/14/05 BID TABULATION Pg. 2 of 2
Date Prepared  -- 3/17/05 TRANSIT MIXED CONCRETE

VENDOR NAME: * NAGY READY
MIX INC

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX
Cannot Meet

TERMS: BLANK

WARRANTY: BLANK

DELIVERY TIME: BLANK

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Y or N YES

PROPOSAL - One (1) Year Requirements of Transit Mixed Concrete with an
Option to Renew for One (1) Additional Year

ATTEST: * DENOTES SOLE BIDDER
  Loretta Wagner
  Emily Frontera
  Tom Rosewarne ______________________________
  Linda Bockstanz Jeanette Bennett

Purchasing Director

G:\ITB-COT 05-04 TransitMixConcrete 







April 14, 2005 
 
 
 
 

TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Mary Redden, Office Coordinator 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 10  

Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend Funds  
for Troy City Council Members’ Travel Expenses - 
National League of Cities (NLC) Congress of Cities 
and Exposition 

 
 
 
Authorization is requested for Council Members’ attendance of the NLC 82nd 
Congress of Cities and Exposition to be held in Charlotte, North Carolina in 
December 2005.   
 
NLC is offering a reduced registration rate if registration is made before April 30, 
3005.   
 
Council Members Beltramini and Lambert were authorized to attend this particular 
conference by Council resolutions #2005-02-083-E-13a and #2005-02-083-E-13b 
on February 21, 2005. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MR/mr 
 
AGENDA ITEMS\2005\04.18.05 – Stand Res #10 - Auth for NLC 82nd Congress of Cities and Exposition 

morrellca
Text Box
E-04g









April 5, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 
RE: Agenda Item – Request for Approval of Relocation Claim, Barbara A. 

Stimac, 2827 Thames, Sidwell # 88-20-25-226-004 
 Project No. 01.105.5 – Big Beaver Road Improvements, Rochester to 

Dequindre 
 

 
 

As part of the proposed Big Beaver Road Widening Project – Rochester to Dequindre, 
City Council previously authorized the purchase of the property at 2827 Thames from 
the Barbara A. Stimac Revocable Trust.  The closing was held on November 16, 2004.  
Mrs. Stimac has found a replacement dwelling on Axtell Road in Troy, Michigan. 
 
In accordance with Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, Mrs. Stimac is eligible for 
reimbursement of moving and incidental costs associated with her move.  Mrs. Stimac 
chose a self-move and is making a claim for a fixed moving payment in the amount of 
$1,800.   She has also made a claim for allowed incidental closing costs associated with 
the acquisition of her new dwelling. 
 
Mrs. Stimac has filed the attached Relocation Claim and supplied the needed 
documentation to justify the payment.  In order for the City to proceed with the proposed 
project, staff requests that City Council approve the attached Relocation Claim from 
Barbara A. Stimac in the amount of $2,245.00, and authorize payment.  Funds will 
come from the Big Beaver Road – Rochester to Dequindre project. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Larysa Figol, Right of Way Representative 

morrellca
Text Box
E-05







 
 
April 7, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 
RE: Agenda Item – Request for Acceptance of a Regrading and 

Temporary Construction Permit for the Troy Court Water Main 
Project #01.502.5 – Section 34 

 
 
In connection with the Troy Court Water Main improvement project affecting 
properties located on Elmwood Street and Troy Court in Section 34, the Real 
Estate and Development Department has received a Regrading and Temporary 
Construction Permit from Strained Gator, LLC, property owner of Sidwell #88-20-
34-152-023.  Staff has reviewed property values in the area and believes that a 
compensation amount of $1,000.00 is justifiable 
 
In order for the Water Department to proceed with the Troy Court water main 
improvement project, we recommend that City Council accept the attached 
temporary permit and authorize the payment of the agreed amount. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Larysa Figol, Right of Way Representative 

morrellca
Text Box
E-06



 
TROY COURT WATER MAIN 
Sidwell #88-20-34-152-023 

 
 

 

Subject Property









 
 
 
 
April 11, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate  Development Director 
   
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement 

for Watermain – Republic of San Marino Hall, Incorporated –  
1685 East Big Beaver Road – Project No. 04.929.3 
Sidwell #88-20-23-401-033 

 
 
In connection with the expansion of the San Marino Hall, located in the southeast 
quarter of Section 23, north of Big Beaver and west of John R., the Real Estate 
and Development Department has acquired a watermain easement from the 
property owner, Republic of San Marino Hall, Incorporated.  The consideration on 
this document is $1.00 
  
Management recommends that City Council accept the attached easement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Patricia A. Petitto, Senior Right of Way Representative 

morrellca
Text Box
E-07









morrellca
Text Box
E-08













TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council   
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
DATE: April 12, 2005 

  
  

SUBJECT: Maria Hunciag v. City of Troy  
 

 

 
In 2003, Maria Hunciag filed a lawsuit in federal court against the City of Troy. In 

this lawsuit, Ms. Hunciag alleged employment discrimination, based on age, national 
origin, and gender, in violation of both federal and state law.  She also asserted claims of 
retaliation, under both state and federal law.  Ms. Hunciag is currently employed as a part 
time Library Aide for the City.  She was previously employed at the Troy Museum, but was 
involuntarily separated from Museum employment in 2000.  She asserts that a younger 
white male was given the full time position of City of Troy Museum Archivist, even though 
she was more qualified for the position.  She initially approached the Equal Employment 
Opportunity Commission (EEOC) with her complaints.  The EEOC, after investigation, 
declined jurisdiction and referred the matter to the U.S. Department of Justice, which also 
declined to take any action on the complaints. As a result, she filed her own lawsuit in 
federal court.   The case proceeded through a lengthy discovery process, and the filing 
and briefing of the City’s Motion to Dismiss the case,In January 2005, U. S. District Court 
Judge Victoria Roberts dismissed all Ms. Hunciag’s claims that were based on federal law, 
and declined to exercise jurisdiction over the state law claims.  Ms. Hunciag then took the 
opportunity to file a new lawsuit in the Oakland County Circuit Court, which would allow for 
a final adjudication on the state law claims that were previously asserted.  This complaint, 
other than eliminating the federal claims, is almost identical to the one filed in federal court 
in 2003.  The minor additions and modifications are underlined by hand in the attached 
complaint.  The case has been assigned to Oakland Circuit Court Judge Gene Schnelz.     

 
Due to potential conflicts in litigating against a current employee, Attorney Laura 

Amtsbuechler of Johnson, Rosati, Lebarge, Aseltyne & Field handled the federal litigation. 
Although the Court did not entertain the arguments, Ms. Amtsbuechler also briefed the law 
and requested dismissal of the state law claims in her Motion for Summary Judgment.     
Absent objection from City Council, Ms. Amtsbuechler will continue her aggressive 
representation of the City in the state law case.  Our office will continue to monitor the 
progress and serve as a liaison for the City.        

 
If you have any questions concerning the above, please let us know.    
 
       

morrellca
Text Box
E-09































April 9, 2005 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM - REQUEST FOR ACCEPTANCE of Private Road 

Agreement, Private Sidewalk Agreement, Emergency Storm Sewer 
Easement, Emergency Access Easement, Permanent Sanitary 
Sewer Easement, and Permanent Water Main Easement – Golf 
John R, L.L.C. – The Enclave of Troy – Sidwell #88-20-13-351-025 

 
In connection with the development of The Enclave of Troy Condominium project 
on the north side of Wattles Road, east of John R Road, the Real Estate and 
Development Department has acquired the necessary required documents listed 
below.  The consideration on each document is $1.00. 
 
GRANTOR     TYPE of DOCUMENT 
 
Golf John R, L.L.C.                             Private Road Agreement  
Golf John R, L.L.C.                             Private Sidewalk Agreement 
Golf John R, L.L.C.                             Emergency Storm Sewer Easement 
Golf John R, L.L.C.                             Emergency Access Easement 
Golf John R, L.L.C.                             Permanent Sanitary Sewer Easement 
Golf John R, L.L.C.                             Permanent Water Main Easement 
  
  
 
In order for this development project to be finalized, management recommends 
that City Council accept the attached agreements, and easements for recording. 
It will also be necessary that the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to sign the 
Private Road and Private Sidewalk agreements.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Dennis C. Stephens, Right of Way Representative 
 

morrellca
Text Box
E-10







































































morrellca
Text Box
F-02









































morrellca
Text Box
F-03









































March 7, 2005 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 

Gert Paraskevin, Information Technology Director 
   
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item:  Bid Waiver - Purchase of Encoding Hardware and Hard 

Disc Array for Long-term Archival Storage   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Police Department recommends the City purchase hardware, licensing, and 
installation services to connect 13 additional cameras to record all activity in the 
Lockup Section of the Department from Integrated Media Technologies, Inc.  
Additionally, the Department recommends the purchase of a 4-Terra Byte RAID-5 
hard disc array storage unit for the long-term archival storage of the Lockup Section 
and Investigation Divisions cameras.  The total cost of the project is $36,077.00.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Police Department utilizes a recording system called SecureLink NVRS Classic 
manufactured by DVTel to digitally record interviews conducted by officers and 
activity in the Lockup Section.  The following chart shows the location and 
configuration of the hardware.   
 
 
Location 

Number of 
Cameras 

Number of 
Microphones 

 
Control/Activation 

Interview/Suspect 2 2 Manual 
Interview/Victim 1 1 Manual 
Polygraph 1 1 Manual 
Lockup Interview 1 1 Motion 
Lockup Breathalyzer 1 1 Motion 
Lockup Prisoner Property 1 1 Motion 

     
The backbone of the system is a Dell server.  The server has three 200GB hard 
drives with approximately 570GB dedicated to storing audio and video recordings.      
System software analysis indicates an average use of 10.3GB/day and 98GB 
remaining free.  The available storage space can vary greatly depending on the 
number of interviews and activity in the Lockup Section.  Because the storage of 
recordings is based on first in, first out and the drives have not yet reached capacity, 
retention of recordings is not yet an issue.         
 
This system, including the server and application software and licensing, a 
workstation, and all installation and programming services, was funded and 
purchased as part of the police and fire building project.  The primary security 
access system contractor was Dynalectric of Michigan.  In turn, they contracted with 
Integrated Media Technologies, Inc. to provide recording hardware and software for 
selected cameras.                                    1of 2 

morrellca
Text Box
F-04



March 7, 2005 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Bid Waiver – Purchase Encoding Hardware and Hard Disc Array Storage Unit 
 
BACKGROUND - Continued 
It is the Department’s recommendation to increase the immediate and long-term 
storage capability by purchasing the DVTel 4-terabyte RAID-5 hard disc array 
storage from Integrated Media.  It is also the Department’s recommendation to 
increase the number of cameras recorded to the long-term storage medium from 7 
to 20.  The additional 13 cameras are all in the Lockup Section.  The equipment will 
document and record a subject’s incarceration from the sallyport through the 
booking process into the cell and out of the facility.  Often, accusations and 
subsequent litigation occur many months after a subject’s release from the facility.  
This equipment will reduce our liability substantially.  The waiver is requested for the 
following reasons. 
 

• Integrated Media is the only certified DVTel Dealer in the Detroit area.  To 
qualify as a “certified“ dealer, one or more employees must attend and 
complete the Technical Certification Training.  This provides the technical 
skills necessary to support DVTel systems and is, according to the company, 
a costly and challenging endeavor.   

 
• The hardware and software purchased will be compatible with our existing 

equipment and application software.  As previously stated, Integrated Media 
designed, installed, and programmed the DVTel surveillance and recording 
hardware the department currently uses.  By continuing to purchase DVTel 
hardware and utilize the services and expertise of Integrated Media, 
conflicting hardware or software issues will not exist.  Past history and 
knowledge of the system is a precursor to the successful integration of this 
portion of the security plan.            

 
• Last, Integrated Media is very professional and has demonstrated the ability 

to meet the Department’s expectations and needs.  This recording system 
encompasses the most critical areas of the police department’s operations.  
The department would like to limit knowledge and access to a single 
company.      

 
BUDGET 
Funds to purchase the hardware, licensing and installation services are budgeted in 
the Police Department general equipment account #401315.7978.010.  Partial 
funding of this project will be through the fiscal year 2004-05 Byrne Memorial 
Formula and Local Law Enforcement Block Grant for $10,000.00.      
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Wendell Moore, Police Department Research & Technology 
 
 
 

2 of 2 



morrellca
Text Box
F-05









   Memorandum 
 

To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
From: John M Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
Date: April 13, 2005 
Subject: Agenda Item: Council Rules of Procedure Amendment to Accommodate 

SEMCOG and SOCRRA Member Appointments 
 

  
In response to City Council’s request to formalize the appointment of the City of 
Troy’s representation to SEMCOG and SOCRRA, the following Council Rules of 
Procedure amendment has been provided for City Council consideration: 

15.1 APPOINTMENT OF CITY OF TROY REPRESENTATION TO 
SEMCOG AND SOCRRA 
1. SEMCOG (Southeastern Michigan Council of Governments) 

Representation: The Mayor and City Council shall appoint one 
representative to serve on the SEMCOG Board for a term of two-
years expiring at 7:30 PM on the Monday following the Regular City 
Council Election. The appointments shall be made at the 
organizational meeting of Council at the first Regular meeting of 
every odd-year November.  
 

2. SOCRRA (South Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority) 
Representation: The Mayor and City Council shall appoint one 
delegate and one alternate to serve on the SOCRRA Board for a 
term of one-year expiring on June 15th.  

 
With the adoption of the proposed Rule amendment, the current Troy SEMCOG 
Representative will continue in that capacity until a new appointment is made at 
the November 14, 2005 Regular Council Meeting. The current Troy SOCRRA 
Delegate and Alternate will continue in their capacity until appointments are made 
at the June 6, 2005. 
 
The ICCA (Intergovernmental Cable Consortium Association), and CMN 
(Community Media Network) member appointments and terms have not been 
incorporated into Council’s Rules of Procedure. Since the contract between ICCA 
and CMN are not finalized, these appointments have not been addressed. The City 
Attorney will bring the proposed appointment process forward as part of the 
contract settlement.  
 
 

morrellca
Text Box
F-06



   Memorandum 
 

To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
From: John M Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
Date: April 14, 2005 
Subject: Agenda Item: FOIA (Freedom of Information Act) / Enhanced Access Policy 

Proposed Revision 
 

  
In response to the increase in labor and material costs, the City Clerk’s Office has 
reviewed and updated the attached City of Troy FOIA (Freedom of Information Act) 
policy. Copies of a document request form and City of Troy Response form have 
been included as part of the documentation. While it is not required by Statute that 
documents be requested on the attached form, the form does assist City staff in 
identifying and narrowing down searches to the exact document/s requested. 
Additionally, all written requests for documents identified with the acronym of FOIA 
or with the words Freedom of Information are processed according to the FOIA 
policy guidelines and time requirements. 
 
A recommended resolution has been incorporated into and is made part of the 
policy. 
 
 
 
 
cc: Lori Bluhm, City Attorney 

morrellca
Text Box
F-07



      

 

 
 

FOIA/ ENHANCED ACCESS POLICY 
 

 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

 
RESOLUTION 

 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy is a public body within the meaning of the Michigan Freedom of 
Information Act (MFOIA, found in MCL 15.231 et seq.) and the Michigan Enhanced Access Act 
(MCL 15.441 et seq.); 
 
WHEREAS, The declared public policy of the State of Michigan, as set forth in the MFOIA, is 
that all persons, except those incarcerated in state or local correctional facilities, are entitled to 
full and complete information regarding governmental decision-making; 
 
WHEREAS, In its capacity as a public body, the City of Troy creates, possesses and maintains 
certain records which fit within the definition of the term “public records” as defined in the 
MFOIA; 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy is required by the provisions of the MFOIA to grant requests by 
persons or corporations desiring to inspect or receive copies of public records when the 
requested documentation or information is described sufficiently to enable the public body to 
find the public record, except as provided in MCL 15.243; 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has the ability to provide some “public records” in a requested 
electronic format, but the cost of producing the requested public records exceeds normal 
MFOIA production costs and therefore is entitled to be reimbursed to the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy desires to establish procedures, guidelines and fees in 
accordance with and pursuant to the provisions of MFOIA and the Michigan Enhanced Access 
Act for application to and for use in connection with requests received by it for the inspection or 
receipt of copies of public records. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DESIGNATED as the 
FOIA/ Enhanced Access Act Coordinator for the City of Troy. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the attached FOIA/Enhanced Access policy is hereby 
ADOPTED by the City of Troy. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



 

PROCEDURES AND GUIDELINES REGARDING FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 
AND ENHANCED ACCESS TO PUBLIC RECORD REQUESTS 1 

A.  DESIGNATED FOIA COORDINATOR 1 

B.  REQUESTER RESPONSIBILITIES UNDER FOIA/ ENCHANCED ACCESS 1 

C.  CITY RESPONSIBILITIES UNDER FOIA/ENHANCED ACCESS 2 

D.  COSTS FOR RESPONDING TO FOIA REQUESTS 3 

E.  COSTS FOR RESPONDING TO ENHANCED ACCESS REQUESTS 4 

F.  APPEALS 4 



 

 

PROCEDURES AND GUIDELINES REGARDING FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND 
ENHANCED ACCESS TO PUBLIC RECORD REQUESTS 

A person has the right to submit a written request for public record(s) from the City and its 
departments.  The request must sufficiently describe the public record to enable the FOIA 
Coordinator to identify the requested public record. 
 
A.  DESIGNATED FOIA COORDINATOR 
 
The City Clerk is the designated FOIA Coordinator, who will accept and disseminate all non-
police written information requests, as outlined in this policy and the MFOIA.  The City Clerk 
shall also accept all subpoenas for records and process the subpoenas in the same manner.  
The Clerk will immediately forward the written request to the appropriate City Department, in 
addition to forwarding a copy of the information request to the City Attorney. 
 
The following officers shall be authorized to act as FOIA Coordinator designees: the Deputy 
City Clerk, the City Attorney, the Assistant City Attorneys, the Police Services Section 
Lieutenant, the Police Administrative Section Sergeant and the Police Records Supervisor.  The 
FOIA Coordinator and designees shall be responsible to accept and process requests for public 
records and approve denials in accordance with the MFOIA. The FOIA Coordinator shall also 
be responsible for keeping a copy of all written requests for one year and one day after the 
request is made. The FOIA Coordinator shall also be responsible for sending written notices of 
the ten (10) day extension of response time when a request cannot be completed within the 
allocated five (5) business days (six (6) days if the request is received by electronic mail or 
facsimile) statutory time period. 
 
All non-police department requests, after being processed, shall be immediately submitted to 
the City Attorney’s Office. If requested, the City Attorney and his/her designee shall make a final 
determination regarding release of the requested information shall be made.  When information 
is requested from the Police Department, and upon request, the City Attorney’s and or his/her 
designee shall make the final determination regarding release of the requested Police 
Department information. 
 
B.  REQUESTER RESPONSIBILITIES UNDER FOIA/ ENCHANCED ACCESS 
 
1. The requester of records must submit a written request for public record(s) from the City 

and its departments.  All non-police department requests must be submitted to the FOIA 
Coordinator.  All police department requests must be submitted to the Police Records 
Supervisor. 

 
2. The written request must sufficiently describe the public record to enable the FOIA 

Coordinator or designee to identify the requested public record.  The FOIA Coordinator or 
designee may send a notice requesting clarification of the request.  Such notice, if sent, 
shall not be interpreted as a denial of the request. 

 
3. Updates and revisions to the requested information will not be automatically supplied by 

the City of Troy.  A new written request must be made each time supplemental 
information is requested. 

 
 



 

 

C.  CITY RESPONSIBILITIES UNDER FOIA/ENHANCED ACCESS 
 
1. The FOIA Coordinator or designees shall respond to all written requests within five 

business days, unless a notice of extension has been sent. 
 
2. If the request indicates that the requester desires to inspect public record(s), the FOIA 

Coordinator will contact the requester to arrange for inspection of non-exempt public 
record(s) at a reasonable time.  The inspection and examination of public record(s) shall 
be conducted by the requesting person in the presence of an employee of the City of Troy 
and under conditions as the FOIA Coordinator, or his or her designee, might require in 
order to protect the City of Troy’s public records and prevent excessive and unreasonable 
interference with the discharge of municipal functions. 

  
3. If the request indicates that the requester wishes to have copies of public record(s) 

prepared and/or mailed, the FOIA Coordinator shall be responsible for providing copies of 
non-exempt public record(s), subject to the payment of costs, as outlined below. 

 
4. If requested in writing, the custodian of a public record shall provide a certified copy of a 

public record. 
 
5. If the written request is denied, the FOIA Coordinator or designee shall issue a written 

notice denying the request.  The notice shall include an explanation as to why the 
requested public record(s) are exempt from disclosure or an indication that the requested 
public record does not exist.  If a request is made for an existing public record that 
includes information that is exempt from disclosure under the MFOIA, and information that 
is not exempt, the FOIA Coordinator or designees must separate the material and make 
the non-exempt material available for examination and/or copying.  Additionally, the FOIA 
Coordinator or designees shall generally describe the material that had to be separated, 
unless doing so would reveal the contents of the exempt information and thus, defeat the 
purpose of the exemption.  The labor costs incurred in such procedure shall be treated in 
accordance with the cost provision, as set forth below. 

 
6. The City of Troy may provide enhanced access for the inspection, copying, or purchasing 

of select public record(s) that are not confidential or otherwise exempt by law from 
disclosure. Enhanced access is defined as a public record’s immediate availability for 
public inspection, purchase or copying by digital means.  Enhanced access does not 
include the transfer of ownership of a public record, and the City of Troy has a duty to 
ensure ownership of information products and City created intellectual property is 
protected and maintained.  In addition, a written disclaimer should explicitly state that the 
City of Troy, in providing enhanced access, make no warranties of any kind, including, but 
not limited to warranties of accuracy, fitness for a particular purpose, or of a recipient’s 
right of use, and states that all enhanced access is received “AS IS”.  Recipients of 
enhanced access are solely responsible for investigating, resisting, litigating and settling 
such complaints, including the payment of any damages or costs. 

 
7. Neither the City of Troy nor the FOIA Coordinator are obligated to create a record, list, 

compilation or summary of information which does not already exist.  This exemption 
includes analyzing, compiling, or summarizing existing information into a new format.  In 
addition, the MFOIA does not impose greater retention of public record responsibilities 
than what is required under other provisions of the law and/or City Charter. 

 



 

 

8. The City of Troy will utilize its best efforts to respond to all requests made pursuant to the 
MFOIA.  However, the City will search only the most likely locations for responsive public 
record(s).  The City of Troy is not required under MFOIA to search each and every record 
it maintains in order to discover material that might pertain to a specific request. 

 
D.  COSTS FOR RESPONDING TO FOIA REQUESTS 
 
Pursuant to the Michigan Freedom of Information Act [MCL 15.243(3)], the City of Troy is 
entitled to establish a policy seeking reimbursement to the City for the costs incurred in 
honoring Freedom of Information Act requests when the FOIA results in an unusually high cost 
to the public body.  Due to the large number of FOIA requests the City of Troy receives, the 
implementation of a cost recovery policy is therefore necessary.  The following costs incurred in 
responding to a FOIA request shall be chargeable to each FOIA requester: 
 
1. Photocopying charges of 32 cents per page, or if the nature of the duplication 

necessitates duplication by outside sources, the actual cost of employing such outside 
sources. 

 
2. Labor costs at the hourly wage of the lowest paid employee of the City of Troy capable of 

retrieving the information necessary to comply with a request incurred in duplication, 
mailing, search, examination, review and the deletion and separation of exempt and non-
exempt information. The City of Troy shall specifically identify the nature of the costs. 

 
3. Actual mailing costs. 
 
4. Actual duplication costs for photographs, videotapes, tape cassettes, maps, plans, or 

microforms and any other type of medium requested. 
 
6. If a person signs an Affidavit of Indigency, the first $20.00 of the charge is waived. 

However, the requester is responsible for any costs that exceed $20.00.  The requester is 
also responsible for paying for duplicate copies of requested information that has 
previously been provided to the requester. 

 
7. If the total estimated cost of a request exceeds $50.00, a deposit equal to one-half of the 

total estimated cost may be requested prior to completing the request. 
 
8. A requester has two weeks to pay for a FOIA request. Un-claimed FOIA requests will be 

destroyed if left un-claimed for a period of thirty (30) days.  Copies shall be made of the 
check or money order and receipt, which shall be attached to the original FOIA request. 

 
9. The FOIA Coordinator may waive some or all of the costs of responding to a FOIA 

request if furnishing copies of the requested document(s) is considered as primarily 
benefiting the general public. 



 

 

E.  COSTS FOR RESPONDING TO ENHANCED ACCESS REQUESTS 
 
Pursuant to the Michigan Enhanced Access To Public Records Act (MCL 15.232 et seq.), the 
City of Troy is entitled to establish a policy seeking reimbursement to the City for the costs 
incurred in responding to enhanced access requests, especially since these requests could 
result in an unusually high cost to the public body.  Therefore, the City of Troy will charge a 
reasonable fee to recover only the cost of providing the enhanced access information.  The 
reasonable fee shall include, but not be limited to, the direct cost of creating, compiling, storing, 
maintaining, processing, upgrading, or enhancing information or data in a form available for 
enhanced access, including the pro-rated cost of computer hardware and software, system 
development, employee time, and any other actual costs incurred in supplying the information 
or record in the form requested by the purchaser.  When calculating employee time, the actual 
wage (plus benefits) of the lowest paid employee capable of performing the responsibilities 
shall be utilized. 
 
F.  APPEALS 
 
In accordance with the MFOIA, where a person’s request for a public record is denied, in whole 
or in part, the person shall be entitled to file a written appeal of the decision in accordance with 
the following process: 
 
1. The requester shall be advised in writing of the right and the procedure for filing a written 

appeal to the City Manager. 
 
2. The FOIA Coordinator shall immediately, upon receipt, refer all written FOIA appeals to 

the City Manager.  The City Manager shall then review any materials submitted by the 
appellant, any written comments received from the FOIA Coordinator or designees, and 
any other information that the City Manager deems necessary. 

 
3. The City Manager has ten days, absent compelling reasons for an extension of time, to 

take any of the following actions in response to the filing of an appeal of a FOIA request 
denial: 

 A. Reverse the disclosure denial. 
 B. Issue a written notice to the requester affirming the disclosure denial.  
 C. Reverse the disclosure denial in part and issue a written notice to the requester 

affirming the denial in part. 



 

 

CITY OF TROY 
MICHIGAN 

REQUEST FOR COPIES OF PUBLIC RECORDS 
 
 
TO THE CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN: 
 
I HEREBY REQUEST COPY\COPIES OF PUBLIC RECORDS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Number of 

Copies Description of Public Record 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 
 
 
Signature of Applicant 
 
 
Print Name 
 
 
Address (Street, City, State and Zip Code) 
 
 
Phone Number 
 
 
Date 



 

 

 
Dear  Date  
 
Response to your inquiry of  requesting  

 
We have taken action as indicated below.  Please note that if your request for 
information has been denied, we have indicated the appropriate provisions under 
State Law P.A. 442(1976), which defines such information as exempt. 
 

1   Requested material attached.  

2 
 

 
Extension of 10 days  

3   Copying costs are estimated to be:  
    

  Bill enclosed. 
  You will be billed.  
  A Good Faith deposit is required at this time. Make check 

payable to: City of Troy 

4   

The Public Record does not exist as named.  We request a 
conference to clarify the description of the public Record in 
question as the initial inquiry is insufficient to enable us to 
identify the record.  You may call the City Clerk’s Office at (248) 
524-3316. 

5A 
 

 
Part of the requested material is attached.  Material denied is 
due to exemptions as Public Record as defined by State Law. 

5B   The requested material is denied in full due to exemption as 
Public Record as defined by State Law. 

 
A description of the denied record is attached. Those exemptions in State Law 
which are applicable to the City of Troy are listed below as enumerated under 
Section 13, Paragraph 1 of the Act.  Check indicates exemption invoked in denial of 
material.  See back of form for specific provisions. 
 

 
A  D   F  G 

 
H  J   N 

 
other

SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR A 
FULL EXPLANATION OF YOUR 
RIGHT TO SEEK JUDICIAL 
REVIEW. 

 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
City of Troy Representative 



 

 

 
EXEMPTIONS UNDER P.A. 442, SECTION 13, PARAGRAPH 1, AS INDICATED IN ITEM 5 
ON THE FRONT OF FORM INCLUDE: 
 
A. Information of a personal nature where the public disclosure of the information would 
constitute a clearly unwarranted invasion of the individual’s privacy. 
 
D. Records or information specifically described and exempted from disclosure by Statute. 
 
E. A public record or information described in this Section which is furnished by the public 
body originally compiling, preparing or receiving the record or information to a public officer of 
public body in connections with the performance of the duties of that public officer or public 
body, if the considerations originally giving rise to the exempt nature of the public record 
remains applicable. 
 
F. Trade secrets or commercial or financial information voluntarily provided to an agency for 
use in developing governmental policy if: 
 

i. The information is submitted upon a promise of confidentiality by the public body. 
ii. The promise of confidentiality is authorized by the chief administrative officer of the 

public body or by an elected official at the time the promise is made. 
iii. A description of the information is recorded by the public body within a reasonable time 

after it has been submitted, maintained in a central place within the public body, and 
made available to a person upon request. This subdivision shall not apply to information 
submitted as required by law or as a condition of receiving a governmental contract, 
license, or other benefit. 

 
G. Information or records subject to the Attorney Client Privilege. 
 
I. A bid or proposal by a person to enter into a contract or agreement, until the time for the 
public opening of bids or proposals, or if a public opening is not to be conducted, until the time 
for receipt of bids or proposals has expired. 
 
M. Communications and notes within a public body or between public bodies of an advisory 
nature to the extent that they cover other than purely factual materials and are preliminary to a 
final agency determination of policy or action. 
 
Other  



 

 

 
RIGHT TO APPEAL AND JUDICIAL REVIEW 
 
ACT 442, P.A. 1976, SECTION 10 ESTABLISHES THE REQUESTING PERSON’S RIGHT TO 
JUDICIAL REVIEW IN THE EVENT THAT PUBLIC BODY MAKES A FINAL DETERMINATION 
TO DENY ALL OR A PORTION OF A REQUEST.  THE REQUESTING PERSON MAY 
COMMENCE AN ACTION IN THE CIRCUIT COURT TO COMPEL DISCLOSURE OF THE 
PUBLIC RECORDS.  AN ACTION UNDER THIS SECTION ARISING FROM THE DENIAL OF 
AN ORAL REQUEST MAY NOT BE COMMENCED UNLESS THE REQUESTING PERSON 
CONFIRMS THE ORAL REQUEST IN WRITING NOT LESS THAN 5 DAYS BEFORE THE 
COMMENCEMENT OF THE ACTION.  IF A PERSON ASSERTING THE RIGHT TO 
INFORMATION UNDER THIS ACT PREVAILS IN ALL OR A PORTION OF THE COURT 
ACTION, THE COURT SHALL AWARD AN APPROPRIATE AMOUNT TOWARD 
REASONABLE ATTORNEY’S FEES, COSTS AND DISBURSEMENTS.  IN ADDITION, THE 
COURT MAY AWARD PUNITIVE DAMAGES IN THE AMOUNT OF $500.00 TO THE PERSON 
SEEKING ACCESS TO THE PUBLIC RECORDS.  IN ADDITION TO THE RIGHTS 
DESCRIBED ABOVE, YOU MAY ALSO FILE A WRITTEN APPEAL OF A DETERMINATION 
TO DENY ALL OR A PORTION OF A REQUEST BY DIRECTING THE APPEAL TO THE CITY 
OF TROY CITY MANAGER.  SUCH AN APPEAL MUST SPECIFICALLY STATE THE WORD 
“APPEAL” AND IDENTIFY THE REASON OR REASONS FOR REVERSAL OF THE 
DISCLOSURE DENIAL. 

 

 

 

 



 

 

STATEMENT OF COSTS REGARDING FOIA REQUEST 
 
 
The City of Troy has incurred the following costs, which it is allowed to 
recover under the Michigan Freedom of Information Act (“FOIA”), in 
regard to the FOIA request that you submitted on      . 
 

1 Actual mailing costs $       
2 Actual duplication or publication costs 

      pages @ $.32 per page 
$       

3 Actual labor costs incurred in duplication or 
publication       x $      / Minute  $       

4 Actual labor costs incurred in searching, 
examining, reviewing, deleting or separating 
material 
      Min x $      / Minute 

 
$       

5 
 

Miscellaneous:       Records on CD @ $5 per 
1,000 records $       

 
TOTAL

$       

 
 
 

 

Date:        
 

 
 

      
 

 Signature (City of Troy Representative) 
 



 
 
DATE:   April 11, 2005 

  
 

 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
    
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item 

Approval of Subdivision Entrance Sign/Agreement 
   Cedar Ridge Estates Subdivision 
 
 
 
 
In November of 2001, City Council made revisions to the Sign Ordinance that allowed 
for the placement of subdivision entranceway signs in the medians of public streets.  
Those revisions required that in order to place a sign within a median,  In this case the 
proposed sign is not proposed to be placed within the street median but rather in the 
detention pond parcel located adjacent to the subdivision entrance.  Since this detention 
pond parcel is owned by the City of Troy, we are proposing to use the same procedure 
to review and approve the sign.  That procedure requires that City Council must 
approve the sign design and materials.  It also requires the submission of an agreement 
for the maintenance and liability for the sign.   
 
At this time we have completed work on a sign proposed by the Cedar Ridge Estates 
Homeowners Association.  Staff has reviewed the design of the sign as well as the 
language of the agreement and the supporting documentation and recommends 
approval. 
 
We will be happy to answer any questions that you may have regarding this request. 
 
 
 
Reviewed as to form and Legality          

   Lori Grigg-Bluhm, City Attorney  Date 

morrellca
Text Box
F-08



































































DATE:  April 11, 2005 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – PLANNING CONSULTANT SERVICES CONTRACT 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
City Management is satisfied with the professional community planning services and 
landscape architecture services provided by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc.  City 
Management recommends approval of the Agreement for Consulting Services including 
the requested rate increase.  The term of the contract shall be for a period of five (5) 
years from the date of execution.  Further, the resolution authorizes the Mayor and City 
Clerk to execute the Agreement for Consulting Services. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On January 8, 2001, City Council authorized the City Manager to engage 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. for Planning Consulting Services.  An Agreement for 
Consulting Services was entered into on August 15, 2001 for a period of two (2) years.  
The terms of the agreement provide for modification of the conditions and extension of 
the terms by mutual agreement for both parties.  Although the term of the Agreement 
has expired, Mr. Carlisle has continued to abide by the original terms and conditions of 
the Agreement.   
 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. has submitted an updated Agreement for Consulting 
Services for City Council approval.  Included in the contract is an updated rate 
schedule.  The rates charged by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. have remained 
unchanged since entering into the agreement in August of 2001 (see table below).  The 
following shows the Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 2001 billing rates and the 
proposed billing rates, with the percentage increases.  
 

morrellca
Text Box
F-09



 
COMPARISON OF PROPOSED RATES AND CURRENT RATES 

For Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
Position Current Rate (in 

effect since 
01/01) 

Proposed Rate % Increase 

Principal Planner $85/hr. $95/hr. 11.8% 
Associate 
Planner/Landscape 
Architect 

$75/hr. $80/hr. 6.7% 

Planner/Landscape 
Architect 

$65/hr. $70/hr. 7.7% 

Planning Technician $45/hr. $50/hr. 11.1% 
Secretarial $40/hr. $45/hr. 12.5% 
Auto CAD/GIS $25/hr. $25/hr. 0% 
Expenses (photocopies, 
prints, maps, etc.) 

Cost + 20% Cost + 20% Depends on 
Cost  

 
Source: Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 

 
 
 
_____________________ 
Reviewed for Form and Legality 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

 
 
Attachments: 

1. Agreement for Consulting Services. 
2. Planning Consulting Firms Hourly Rate Comparison. 
 

 
cc: File/ Planning Consultant 
 Richard K. Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman, Inc. 
 
Prepared by: RBS, MFM 
 
 
G:\Planning Consultant Services 2005\Planning Consultant Services CCMemo 04 18 05.doc 









PLANNING CONSULTING FIRMS 
HOURLY RATE COMPARISON 

(July, 2000 rates) 
        

 Hourly Rate 
Position BIRCHLER 

ARROYO 
CARLISLE/ 
WORTMAN 

LSL McKENNA 

President   $100 $105 
Vice/President   $95 $95 
Senior Principal $87  $90 $85 
Principal $81  $85  
Principal Planner/Senior 
Project Planner 

$74 $85 $75 $80 

Associate Planner/Project 
Planner II 

$68 $75 $62 $50 

Planner/Project Planner I $60 $65 $52  
Assistant Planner  $45 $45 $45 
 
Source: Memo prepared by City Management, January 2, 2001. 
 
 
 
 
G:\Planning Consultant Services 2005\PLANNING CONSULTANT HOURLY RATES.doc 



GP 

April 12, 2005 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager / Finance and Administration 
 Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager / Services 
 Doug Smith, Director Real Estate and Development 

Gert Paraskevin, Information Technology Director 
 
RE: Agenda Item – Wireless Oakland Pilot Community 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
City administration requests approval and authorization to submit a request to Oakland County to 
become a pilot community for their high-speed wireless Internet initiative: Wireless Oakland.  As part 
of this request, the City would provide access to City owned infrastructure to facilitate building the 
wireless network in Troy.  Oakland County maintains that every community inside its boundaries will 
eventually have an opportunity to participate in this program.  However, the advantages of being a 
pilot community include the opportunity to provide input into the implementation of this program for our 
city as well as county wide, an opportunity to test the system first hand and ensure it works for our 
community, and in the process demonstrate the City’s interest in and support of providing free 
wireless internet access to citizens and visitors to Troy.   
 
BACKGROUND 
Oakland County held a Private Sector Summit on March 14, 2005 followed by a Public Sector Summit 
on March 16, 2005, to explain the Wireless Oakland Program.  Attached is the PowerPoint 
presentation given to the Public Sector that outlines their plan goals, objectives and timeline.   One of 
the key objectives is to provide some level of free high-speed Internet access to everyone in the entire 
county be it business, resident or visitor.  To meet that end the County is offering private industry free 
access to all existing County owned infrastructure, such as buildings, tornado siren poles, 
communication towers, traffic signals and unused fiber optic cable.  These companies would then affix 
the necessary hardware to this infrastructure to build a wireless network.  In return the County would 
receive free Internet access and the companies would have an opportunity to implement a business 
model that includes charging fees for advertising or additional services on top of basic wireless 
access.   The wireless network would be completely owned and operated by the private sector.   
 
Oakland County is planning to release an RFP in April 2005 to solicit private vendors to come up with 
viable proposals.  At the same time they are asking local government to provide a justification to 
become one of approximately 5 pilot communities.  Along with the justification they are asking for a 
commitment from the chief elected officer(s), a detailed inventory of qualified assets, and facilitated 
access to those assets.   
 
Support for Troy’s participation in this initiative has already begun to surface as evidenced by two 
attachments:  a letter from Walsh College and an article in the Troy Eccentric by County 
Commissioner Will Molnar. 
 
SUMMARY 
The City of Troy is in a good position to be considered as a pilot community.  We already have a good 
inventory of qualified assets in our GIS system.  We also have a good mix of residential, commercial, 
industrial and educational entities, along with the Automation Alley SmartZone.  Participating as a 
pilot community would demonstrate to the people that live in, work in and visit our community, that 
Troy is in fact a progressive city. 

morrellca
Text Box
F-10



Wireless Oakland:
Building the community and workforce of tomorrow…

Public Sector Summit
March 16, 2005



Opening Remarks

L. Brooks Patterson, County Executive



Wireless Oakland:
Project Goals & Benefits

Phil Bertolini, Chief Information Officer



Project Goals
• To blanket Oakland County with wireless 

internet service-portion of service free
• To break down the digital divide by offering 

“no-cost” or “low-cost” PCs, wireless 
technology, and training to underserved 
populations within Oakland County

• To enhance the commercial and residential 
character of the County by embracing 
technology in county and local planning 
practices



Project Benefits

• Enhance Oakland County’s ability to 
attract and retain high-tech and 
nanotechnology businesses

• Enhance Oakland County’s residential 
character

• Support a growing mobile workforce in 
public and private sectors



Project Benefits

• Elevate the technical knowledge of 
Oakland County’s workforce

• Support the County’s continued provision of 
eGovernment services and allow elected 
officials to “push” digital information to 
larger constituent groups



Call to Action
• Partners are a key component of this 

initiative:
– Local government
– Private industry
– Educational community
– Automation Alley
– GLIMA
– Michigan Broadband Authority
– Legislature



Intent of Meeting

• Clearly articulate the County’s vision
• Open a dialog with future partners
• Clearly articulate pilot community criteria
• NOT to solve technical problems



Wireless Internet Service:
Project Overview



Project Overview

• Oakland County will not own or operate 
wireless network

• Will leverage public assets (infrastructure) 
already funded by county taxpayers 

• Will provide incentive for private sector 
implementation and partner with technology 
provider(s) to offer service



Wireless Technologies



Project Boundaries
• County-wide, seamless coverage must be 

provided
• Free wireless internet service must be provided
• Higher-speed service and other “for fee” services 

can be offered
• Consumer based technology must be supported
• Access provided via standard “splash screen” 

that allows private partner(s) to sell advertising 
and/or “fee services”



Project Governance

• Advisory committee will be formed
– Public and private sector participants

• Key governance issues:
– Quality of service
– Technology integration
– Wireless Oakland “splash-screen” content

• Partnership agreements will be required



Public Assets

• Existing Private Sector Partnerships
– Private Tower Companies
– Automation Alley

• Physical Infrastructure 
• Existing Public Sector Partnerships

– CVTs, RCOC, OCDC, MBDA



Assets
• Dark fiber network

• Line of sight network

• 23 Government 
owned towers

• 120 Privately 
managed towers

• 200 Tornado siren 
poles

• 350 Public schools

• 325 Buildings & 
structures

• 1400 Traffic signals



Public Assets - Summary

• Approximately 2400 inventoried to date
– Worth hundreds of millions of dollars

• Additional assets will be pledged by future 
partners



Private Partner Criteria

• Creative Solutions
– Technology and Business Model

• Implementation Methodology
– Technical Approach and Feasibility 
– Build-out Schedule

• Countywide Service Approach



Private Partner Criteria

• Business Model
– Public or “Free” Services
– User Fees and Services
– Sustainability Plans

• Experience and Corporate Viability



• Gather partner feedback in March 2005
• Release RFP in April 2005
• Partner(s) selected in Summer of 2005
• Demonstration project in September 2005
• Pilot projects in Fall of 2005
• Full implementation in 2005 and 2006 

Schedule of Events



Pilot Communities

• Soliciting requests in April of 2005
• What are we expecting?

– Justification for selection 
– Commitment of Chief Elected Officer
– Detailed inventory of “qualified assets”
– Facilitated access to “qualified assets”

• Requests directed to Phil Bertolini
• Pilot selection made at conclusion of RFP 

review



Closing Comments

• How can you help?
– Educate your community
– Inventory “qualified assets”
– Volunteer to be a pilot
– Be ready to assist with full implementation



Question/Answer

For more information on Wireless Oakland, visit us 
on the web: www.co.oakland.mi.us/wireless







This story first appeared in:

 Troy Eccentric

 Sunday, March 27, 2005

Columns Back

Troy should pursue selection as Wireless Oakland 
pilot city

By Will Molnar 

When I was elected last November, I made a pledge to 
promote local economic development. Just over a week 
ago, at the Oakland County commissioners' auditorium 
in Pontiac, County Executive L. Brooks Patterson rolled 
out an ambitious new program which promises to do 
just that. The goal of Wireless Oakland is to blanket the 
county's 910 square miles with wireless Internet service
and provide free high speed Internet access to every 
resident, business and visitor in the county by the end 
of 2006.  

A veritable "technological cloud" would cover the 
county. With the right kind of modem (for example, a 
Blackberry), anyone could access the world-wide Web 
without having to be connected to a telephone line or 
cable. "I'm convinced the time is right for the county to 
go wireless," said Patterson. I'll second that.  

Although some cities have already gone wireless, 
Oakland County is seeking to become the first county in 
the nation to go wireless. The county plans to partner 
with the private sector and cities using our existing 
physical infrastructure. (The county's stated goal is to 
provide this service at no additional cost to the county. 
Businesses would be responsible for installing and 
operating the network.) With an estimated 2,400 
towers, government offices, public schools, traffic 
signals and some 500 miles of fiber-optic lines, the 
county is providing a very good platform on which 
private companies can build.  

Among the anticipated benefits of Wireless Oakland are 
a more attractive business climate and greater 
productivity, the rapid expansion of the county's 
growing mobile workforce, and better free Internet 
access for the county's seniors and low income 
residents. In exchange for use of public assets without 
charge, private companies are expected to offer a basic 
level of free service anywhere in the county. Under the 
county proposal, businesses would be able to sell 
advertising and charge fees for a faster connection.  

Having an educated workforce able to use the latest in 
technology is central to the county's economic 
development aims. "The goal is to create the workforce 
of tomorrow," said Oakland County's Chief Information 

Page 1 of 2Hometown Life

4/11/2005file://H:\My Documents\Oakland County\Wireless Oakland Initiative\Will Molnar - Wirel...



Officer Phil Bertolini. "If they never had access to the 
technology to begin with, how are they going to take 
advantage of those jobs?"  

The county is soliciting proposals from cities who wish 
to serve as the pilot project(s). In my opinion, Troy 
would be an excellent place within which to get the 
project off the ground. I've spoken to City of Troy 
officials, and they already are working with the county 
on submission of a proposal.  

If Oakland County is the economic engine of the State 
of Michigan, then Troy, with our thriving business 
community, is certainly the economic driving force in 
the county. A casual inventory of our assets, I think, 
would show that we already have most of the physical 
assets and communications infrastructure in place to go 
wireless.  

Troy is home to Automation Alley, the consortium of 
high-technology companies clustered along the I-75 
freeway, and the Big Beaver business corridor. Our 
schools and nearby institutions of higher learning are 
among the finest to be found anywhere, and the 
average educational attainment of our residents is 
among the highest in the county. Competing cities will 
find that's a tough combination to beat.  

The future belongs to those who are prepared to meet 
it head on. We aren't called the City of Tomorrow ; 
Today, for nothing. Troy is deserving of selection as 
one of the Wireless Oakland pilot cities and here's 
hoping it happens. The item will need to be moved 
forward first by Troy's City Council.  

As we celebrate our 50th birthday this year it would 
make a nice statement that, while Troy has grown by 
leaps and bounds, its best days are yet to come.  

Will Molnar is an Oakland County Commissioner, 
representing District 13, which includes part of Troy. 

Page 2 of 2Hometown Life

4/11/2005file://H:\My Documents\Oakland County\Wireless Oakland Initiative\Will Molnar - Wirel...



morrellca
Text Box
F-11

























morrellca
Text Box
F-12

























 1

 
 
 
DATE:  April 11, 2005 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
Steve Vandette, City Engineer 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 

 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – PRELIMINARY SITE CONDOMINIUM REVIEW – 

Oak Forest South Site Condominium, east side of Willow Grove, 
south of Square Lake Road, Section 11 – R-1C. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
At the March 8, 2005 Regular Meeting, the Planning Commission recommended 
approval of the Oak Forest South Site Condominium, with the following 
conditions:  

 
1. Submission of the landscaping information required by the Landscape 

Analyst in the Planning Department report dated March 3, 2005 (prior 
to Final Approval). 

 
2. The applicant must receive appropriate permits from the MDEQ prior to 

dredging, filling, or completing any other improvements within a State-
regulated wetland. 

 
3. The applicant must receive appropriate permits from the Oakland 

County Drain Commissioner and the City of Troy prior to completing 
any improvements to the Fetterly Drain. 

 
The petitioner can submit landscape information prior to Final Approval.  MDEQ 
permits and permits related to the Fetterly Drain are required prior to Final 
Approval.  City Management concurs with the Planning Commission 
recommendation and recommends approval of the Oak Forest South Site 
Condominium. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner and applicant is Dale Garrett of Ladd’s Inc. 

morrellca
Text Box
F-13



 2

Location of subject property: 
The property is located on the east side of Willow Grove, south of Square Lake 
Road, in Section 11. 
 
Size of subject parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 10.03 acres in area. 
 
Description of proposed development: 
The applicant is proposing a 23-unit site condominium.  The applicant proposes a 
layout with a future road stubbing at the northern property line.  This layout is 
consistent with the City ‘s policy of inter-connection whenever feasible. 
 
The City received a Petition for Temporary Street Barricade signed by 211 
residents of the Golf Trail Subdivision (see attached).  The petition requests the 
City place a temporary diagonal (NW to SE) street barricade at Trevino and 
Willow Grove.  The petition requests that the barricade be removed when Oak 
Forest and Oak Forest South developments are inter-connected by planned stub 
roads and Willow Grove is black topped.  See attached memorandum for City 
Management’s response to the petition. 
 
Current use of subject property: 
The property is presently vacant. 
  
Current use of adjacent parcels: 
North: Single family residential. 
 
South: Jaycee Park (City of Troy). 
 
East: Single family residential. 
 
West: Single family residential. 
 
Current zoning classification: 
The property is currently zoned R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
Zoning classification of adjacent parcels: 
North: R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
South: E-P Environmental Protection.  
 
East: R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
West: R-1C One Family Residential. 



 3

Future Land Use Designation: 
 
The property is designated on the Future Land Use Plan as Low Density 
Residential and Open Space. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Compliance with area and bulk requirements of the R-1C One Family Residential 
District: 
 
Lot Area:  Minimum lot area in the R-1C district is 10,500 square feet.  However, 
the applicant is utilizing the Lot Averaging Option, which permits a 10 percent 
reduction in lot area to 9,450 square feet with lot sizes averaging 10,500 square 
feet.   
 
Lot Width:  The minimum required lot width is 85 feet.  The applicant has utilized 
the lot averaging option, which permits a 10 percent reduction in lot widths, to 
76.5 feet.  
 
Height:  2 stories or 25 feet. 
 
Setbacks: Front:  30 feet. 
 Side (least one):  10 feet. 
 Side (total two):  20 feet.  
 Rear:  40 feet. 
 
Minimum Floor Area:  1,200 square feet. 
 
Maximum Lot Coverage:  30%. 
 
The applicant meets the area and bulk requirements of the R-1C One Family 
Residential District. 
 
Off-street parking and loading requirements:  
The applicant will be required to provide 2 off-street parking spaces per unit. 
 
Environmental provisions, including Tree Preservation Plan: 
A Tree Preservation Plan was submitted as part of the application. 
 
Stormwater detention: 
The applicant is proposing two storm water detention basins.  One will serve the 
9 units on the east side of the drain, one will serve the 14 units on the west side 
of the drain. 



 4

Natural features and floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are wetlands, woodlands and a drain 
on the property.  The applicant has provided a Preliminary Environmental Impact 
Statement.  The applicant has provided a Wetland Determination Report 
prepared by Holloway Environmental Planning, Inc., dated December 8, 2004.  
The applicant has provided a Wetlands Assessment Report prepared by the 
MDEQ on December 28, 2001.  The report indicates that there are a number of 
wetlands regulated under Part 303 of PA 451 of 1994, however the findings are 
not binding after October 17, 2004.  Any construction activity such as dredging, 
filling, or draining within a regulated wetland will require a permit from the MDEQ 
prior to the activity commencing.   
 
Subdivision Control Ordinance, Article IV Design Standards  
 

Blocks: The applicant proposes an approximately 1,100-foot road that 
ends in a cul-de-sac.  A stub road is proposed to the north east of unit 18.   
 
Lots: All units meet the minimum area and bulk requirements of the 
Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Streets: The paved portion of the street will be 28 feet wide, located within 
a 60-foot wide public right-of-way. 

 
Sidewalks: The applicant is proposing an 8-foot wide sidewalk along John 
R and Square Lake Roads.  The applicant also proposes a 5-foot wide 
sidewalk on both sides of the proposed interior roads.   

 
Utilities: The applicant is proposing to extend the sanitary sewer line under 
the drain to units 9 through 17. 

 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Preliminary Environmental Impact Statement. 
3. Petition for Temporary Street Barricade. 
4. Memorandum - Oak Forest South Traffic Concerns and Request to 

Close Trevino at Willow Grove Using Temporary Barricades. 
5. Public comment. 

 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/Oak Forest South Site Condominium 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Oak Forest South Site Condominium Sec 11\Prelim CC Approval Oak Forest South 
Site Condo 04 18 05.doc 







brattopp
Polygon



brattopp
Polygon

























 
 
 
April 13, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 
FROM: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager / Services 
  Steve Vandette, City Engineer 
  Charles Craft, Police Chief 
  William Nelson, Fire Chief 
  John Abraham, Deputy City Engineer/Traffic Engineer 
 
 
SUBJECT: Oak Forest South Traffic Concerns and Request to Close Trevino 

at Willow Grove Using Temporary Barricades.  
 
 

This is in response to some traffic concerns raised by the residents of the Golf 
Trail Subdivision regarding the new Oak Forest South development proposed 
near the south end of Willow Grove.  We have also received a petition from the 
homeowners in Golf Trail Subdivision requesting to close Trevino at Willow 
Grove by temporary barricades arranged in a diagonal fashion as shown in the 
diagram below.  The request is that the temporary barricades stay until Willow 
Grove is paved and the proposed Oak Forest and Oak Forest South 
developments have interconnection. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Oak Forest South 
Page 2 

 
The proposed Oak Forest South site condominium is a small residential 
development that will have 23 units on the proposed Brookwood Street.  Per the 
Institute of Transportation Engineers’ Trip Generation Manual, 23 homes may 
generate around 220 vehicle trips in a day.  The Golf Trail homeowners are 
concerned that all of the 220 trips will “cut-through” streets in their subdivision to 
access major roads, since Willow Grove is unpaved.  The homeowners also feel 
that if the developer can pave Willow Grove to Square Lake, majority of the traffic 
from the development may use Willow Grove rather than the existing subdivision 
streets.  Therefore, they request that Trevino be closed off temporarily. 
 

a. In estimating the 220 trips from the new development the manual includes 
trips by school buses, police patrol, mail service, snow plows, garbage 
pick-up and other utilities, who may already be using and serving the Golf 
Trail subdivision streets.  The estimated peak hour traffic is around 18 
trips in the morning and around 22 in afternoon peak hour from the new 
development; the remaining trips are spread over the rest of the day.  
Further, regarding construction traffic, it has been City policy to restrict the 
use of existing residential streets by heavy construction vehicles. 

b. The Golf Trail homeowners consider all traffic from the new development 
to be "cut-through" traffic.  In general, the definition of "cut-through" traffic 
is: vehicles that traverse residential streets to get from one Major Street to 
another Major Street to avoid delays due to traffic congestion.  Traffic 
within a residential mile section is still considered "neighborhood traffic", 
and does not fit the most popular definitions of “cut-through” traffic.   

c. Traffic volumes on Golf Trail streets range between 600 and 1600 trips in 
a day. Traffic volumes on Troy residential streets range between 300 and 
5000 trips in a day.  The Troy Police Department and City staff take their 
role in addressing traffic concerns very seriously, yet the ultimate burden 
of children’s safety rests on the motorists and parents in the City of Troy. 
Thankfully in Troy, largely due to diligent parents & drivers, and effective 
enforcement of traffic laws, we do not see many pedestrian related 
crashes. An analysis of all crashes reported in 2003 indicates that out of 
the total 3196 crashes reported, 6 were pedestrian related. Out of which 
only one crash occurred on a residential street, and involved a parent 
backing from their driveway striking their own child. This is not to discount 
the concerns of the parents in the Golf Trail subdivision, but as information 
that even though we have residential streets with traffic much higher than 
the streets in question, traffic crashes involving pedestrians are very few. 

d. Ordinances and the development standards do not require the developer 
to pave an existing street all the way to a major road. Normal process for 
paving the street is the Special Assessment District, where residents on 
the street petition and pay for the paving of the street.  It should be noted 
that whenever the street is paved, related utility work would also have to 
be completed such as sewers.  The developer is required to pave their 



Oak Forest South 
Page 3 

portion of the existing street frontage, which is currently shown on the 
development plans.  As information, paving Willow Grove with 9 inch 
asphalt would cost approximately $300,000 (inclusive of engineering 
design, inspection, paving, drainage work and exclusive of sanitary and 
storm sewers) 

e. It is the Fire Department’s position that any kind of closure of Trevino at 
Willow Grove will affect their response times when attending to 
emergencies.  The closure would result in a single access to homes on 
Willow Grove, in other words, create a half-mile long dead end street.  
Presently, fire apparatus responding to homes on Trevino have access 
from Willow Grove.  Any blockage on the street would result in slower 
response times of emergency vehicles to gain access to anything past the 
blockage.  The closure would also result in single access to the homes on 
Trevino east of Casper.  Once again, any blockage on the existing access 
points would result in the inability to reach the houses east of the 
blockage.  The Police and EMS also share similar concerns on the 
potential for delayed response in case of emergencies. 

f. The petition proposes to close Trevino off at Willow Grove using 
temporary barricades.  It was suggested that they could be movable, by 
the petitioner, to address some of the Fire Department concerns.  From 
our experience, if the temporary barricades are movable, they will more 
likely be moved often than necessary for emergency services.  This poses 
a concern with maintenance of the closure.  Therefore if the purpose of 
the closure is to prevent traffic from entering/exiting Trevino, the 
barricades have to be somewhat semi-permanent. 

g. Even though a temporary barricade is proposed, during winter months, 
snow will have to be plowed to the barricade on both Trevino and Willow 
Grove creating large snow accumulation that may make the street 
impassable at the barricade.  This would have the effect of a permanent 
closure at the end of these streets, heightening the emergency access 
concerns. 

h. Placing a barricade at Trevino may adversely affect all of the 'services' 
mentioned earlier, such as, school buses, garbage pick-up and other 
utilities, police patrol, snow plowing, mail service and others. 

i. Our Police Department and City staff have worked with the Golf Trail 
Subdivision on many occasions in the past to enhance residential area 
traffic safety and will continue to do so. 

For the above reasons, City staff recommend that the temporary barricade not be 
placed at the end of Trevino at Willow Grove.  It should also be noted that, all 
streets in question in the Golf Trail subdivision and Willow Grove are public 
streets, maintained by public funds, for public use. 
 
JKA  
G:\Council Reports & Communications\Oak Forest South.doc 





















































 1

DATE:  April 11, 2005 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
Steve Vandette, City Engineer 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 

 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – PRELIMINARY SITE CONDOMINIUM REVIEW – 

Oak Forest Site Condominium, south side of Square Lake Road, 
between Willow Grove and John R Road, section 11 – R-1C 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
At the March 8, 2005 Regular Meeting, the Planning Commission recommended 
approval of the Oak Forest Site Condominium, with the following conditions:  

 
1. Submission of the landscaping information required by the Landscape 

Analyst in the Planning Department report dated March 3, 2005. 
 
2. The applicant must receive appropriate permits from the MDEQ prior to 

dredging, filling, or completing any other improvements within a State-
regulated wetland. 

 
3. The applicant must receive appropriate permits from the Oakland 

County Drain Commissioner and the City of Troy prior to completing 
any improvements to the Fetterly Drain. 

 
4. Clarification of ownership of proposed open space that includes the 

proposed wetlands mitigation areas. 
 

5. Changing what is marked as the walking easement to a dedicated 
walkway.   

 
The petitioner can submit the additional landscaping information prior to Final 
Approval.  The plans were revised to show a 12-foot wide public walkway.  While 
the open space will most likely be General Common Area, this should be clarified 
by the petitioner.  City Management concurs with the Planning Commission 
recommendation and recommends approval of the Oak Forest Site 
Condominium. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner and applicant is Dale Garrett of Ladd’s Inc. 

morrellca
Text Box
F-14



 2

Location of subject property: 
The property is located on the south side of Square Lake Road, between Willow 
Grove and John R Road, in section 11. 
 
Size of subject parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 38.4 acres in area.  It has access to both Square 
Lake Road and John R Road. 
 
Description of proposed development: 
The applicant is proposing a 76-unit site condominium, with access to both 
Square Lake Road and John R Road.  Two stub streets to the north on the east 
side of the Fetterly Drain and one stub street to the south on the west side of the 
Fetterly Drain are also proposed.   
 
Current use of subject property: 
Two single-family homes presently sit on the property. 
  
Current use of adjacent parcels: 
North: Single family residential and vacant. 
 
South: Single family residential and vacant. 
 
East: Single family residential and vacant. 
 
West: Single family residential and vacant. 
 
Current zoning classification: 
The property is currently zoned R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
Zoning classification of adjacent parcels: 
North: R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
South: R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
East: R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
West: R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
 
Future Land Use Designation: 
The property is designated on the Future Land Use Plan as Low Density 
Residential and Open Space. 
 



 3

ANALYSIS 
 
Compliance with area and bulk requirements of the R-1C One Family Residential 
District: 
 
Lot Area: Minimum lot area in the R-1C district is 10,500 square feet.  However, 
the applicant is utilizing the Lot Averaging Option, which permits a 10 percent 
reduction in lot area to 9,450 square feet.   
 
Lot Width:  The minimum required lot width is 85 feet.  The applicant has utilized 
the lot averaging option, which permits a 10 percent reduction in lot widths, to 
76.5 feet.  
 
Height:  2 stories or 25 feet. 
 
Setbacks: Front:  30 feet. 
  Side (least one):  10 feet. 
  Side (total two):  20 feet.  
  Rear:  40 feet. 
 
Minimum Floor Area:  1,200 square feet. 
 
Maximum Lot Coverage:  30%. 
 
The applicant meets the area and bulk requirements of the R-1C One Family 
Residential District. 
 
Off-street parking and loading requirements:  
The applicant will be required to provide 2 off-street parking spaces per unit. 
 
Environmental provisions, including Tree Preservation Plan: 
A Tree Preservation Plan was submitted as part of the application. 
 
Stormwater detention: 
The applicant is proposing two storm water detention basins.  One will serve the 
38 units on the east side of the drain, one will serve the 38 units on the west side 
of the drain. 
 
Natural features and floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are wetlands, woodlands and a drain 
on the property.  The applicant has provided a Preliminary Environmental Impact 
Statement.  The applicant has provided a Wetland Determination Report 
prepared by Holloway Environmental Planning, Inc., dated December 8, 2004.  
The applicant has provided a Wetlands Assessment Report prepared by the 
MDEQ on December 28, 2001.  The report indicates that there are a number of 
wetlands regulated under Part 303 of PA 451 of 1994, however the findings are 



 4

not binding after October 17, 2004.  Any construction activity such as dredging, 
filling, or draining within a regulated wetland will require a permit from the MDEQ 
prior to the activity commencing.   
 
Subdivision Control Ordinance, Article IV Design Standards  
 

Lots:  All units meet the minimum area and bulk requirements of the 
Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Streets:  The proposed development has direct vehicular access to both 
John R and Square Lake Roads.  The paved portion of all proposed 
streets will be 28 feet wide, located within a 60-foot wide public right-of-
way. 
 
The applicant has provided two future connections to the north and one to 
the south.   

 
Sidewalks:  The applicant is proposing sidewalks on both sides of the 
proposed streets.  In addition, a 12-foot wide pedestrian connection is 
provided to the south, between units 30 and 31. 

 
Utilities:  The parcel is served by public water and sewer. 

 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Preliminary Environmental Impact Statement. 
3. Public comment. 

 
 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/Oak Forest Site Condominium 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Oak Forest Site Condo Sec 11\Prelim CC Approval Oak Forest Site Condo 04 18 
05.doc 



JO
H

N
 R

C
R

O
O

K
S

WATTLES

AD
A

M
S

C
O

O
LID

G
E

LONG LAKE

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

BIG BEAVER

LIV
E

R
N

O
IS

SOUTH BLVD

SQUARE LAKE

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

ST
E

PH
E

N
S

O
N

M
A

IN R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

I75

MAPLE

CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

SITE PLAN REVIEW
PROPOSED OAK FOREST

SITE CONDOMINIUM



JO
H

N
 R

E SQUARE LAKE

W
IL

LO
W

 G
R

O
V

E

TREVINO

JEFFREY

ABBOTSFORD

HIGHBURY

OAKWOOD

ATKIN
S

TOPAZ

C
ASP

ER

EN
D

IC
O

TT

LARAYNE

M
A

N
D

A
LE

V
IK

IN
G

BEATTIE

RUTGERS

PLAYER

H
O

LM

CLIFFSIDE

ADRIENNE

PHILATHA

TEA
KW

O
O

D

±0 200 400 600100
Feet

SITE PLAN REVIEW
OAK FOREST SITE CONDOMINIUM

SITE PLAN REVIEW
PROPOSED OAK FOREST SITE CONDOMINIUM
S OF SQUARE LAKE, BTWN WILLOW GROVE & JOHN R
SEC. 11   (76 UNITS/LOTS)



brattopp
Polygon



brattopp
Polygon

























































April 13, 2005 
 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Mark Stimac, Building and Zoning Director 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item:  Limited Public Forum - Selection Process 
 
Recommendation 
City management requests approval of the selection process for applications, 
rules and procedure for the Limited Public Forum.  
 
Background 
Attached please find a final draft of the application, procedure and rules for 
limited public forums.  The application, procedure/rules includes the selection 
process allowing for time, manner and place.     
 
Council needs to consider one of the following options: 
A) Those wishing to be considered for any date through May 8, 2005 must 
complete the designated public forum and lottery applications (Exhibit A) and 
submit to Parks and Recreation no later than 4 pm April 21, 2005. All applications 
after April 21, 2005 and at least two weeks in advance will be considered on a 
first come first served basis. 
 
B) Requests will be accepted and approved on a first come first served basis.  All 
written requests received after April 4, 2005 will be considered in the order 
received.   
 
C) Completed applications will be accepted beginning at noon, April 19th on a first 
come first served basis.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Carol K. Anderson 
 
 

morrellca
Text Box
F-15



 Parks & Recreation Department 
 3179 Livernois, Troy, 48083 
 248.524.3484  
  
DESIGNATED LIMITED PUBLIC FORUM APPLICATION 
                                                                                                      
Name of Individual/ 
Company/Group:________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Address:_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date of Function:_________________ Number of Users:________Time of Use*: Begin:__________ End:____________ 
 
Location (attached schematic shows available 
sites):_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Please read these carefully before completing your application.  The undersigned hereby verifies that he/she: 
1. Has the authority to sign this application for the above named organization, group or company. 
2. Has read the rules and regulations on the back of this form and agree to abide by all rules stated therein. 
3. Will perform the necessary clean up of the area following its use. 
4. Understands the approval of this application may include non-content based additional requirements and/or limitations 

based on time, place, and manner criteria.     
5. Agrees to stay within the boundaries of the reserved area and to limit gathering to this area.   
6. Has read and understand that permits are subject to all policies, rules and regulations as listed on the back of this 

form.   
7. Understands that failure to comply with all policies, rules and regulations herein stated or falsification of any 

information called for in this application will be grounds for denial of this or any future permits. 
8. Understands that the City does not intend to provide any service associated with the forum.  In cases where the forum 

requires City staff to perform work that would not be required if the Applicant’s requested use did not take place, the 
applicant will be charged the costs associated with the work.  The labor performed by staff will be at the discretion of 
the City Manager and/or designee and the applicant may not be notified of the requirement for services prior to the 
service being performed.  Should there be any costs incurred by the City, the applicant will be invoiced for additional 
costs within 30 days of the Applicant’s use of the forum. 

 
Please print/type name of contact person: ______________________________________________________ 
 
Address:___________________________City/Zip:_____________________Phone:___________________ 
 
Name of alternate contact person:____________________________________________________________ 
 
Address:___________________________City/Zip:_____________________Phone:____________________ 
 
The Applicant agrees to defend, indemnify and hold the City of Troy, its officers, officials, agents and employees, 
harmless from and against all claims arising by reason of injury or death of any person or damage to property arising out 
of or incidental to its use, except to the extent caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the City, its agents 
and employees.  The City shall provide the Applicant with notice of any claim which the City believes is covered by this 
agreement, and the Applicant shall timely appear in and defend all suits brought upon such claim and shall pay all incident 
costs and expenses, but the City shall have the right, at its option, to participate in the defense of any suit without relieving 
the Applicant of any of its obligations. 
 
I hereby apply for approval of the use of this Limited Public Forum, and affirm the above understandings and agree for 
myself and any others working with me that we will comply with the City’s Rules, the terms of the Written Confirmation of 
Approval and all other City requirements, ordinances and other laws that apply to this use.   
 
__________________________                  ___________________________________________________ 
Date                                                               Signature of Applicant 
RETURN THIS APPLICATION to the Parks and Recreation Department, 3179 Livernois.  Applications are accepted on a 
first come, first served basis, but not longer than 364 days in advance.  Applications must be made a minimum of two 
weeks in advance. 

Confirmation of Approval 
Approved by:___________________________Date approved:______________________________ 

Location:  Circle one              City Hall Lawn      Reflective Head       Parking lot North of Community Center 

Office Use Only 
Taken by:__________Date:______
Number in Parking Lot:__________
Location:_____________________
Fee Paid:____________________ 



      
A limited public forum is designed to allow a place for members of the public to express free speech. In no way 
should the content of the forum be interpreted as approved or endorsed by City staff, City Council or residents. 
 
Applicants wishing to have a limited public forum should read and be familiar with these procedures and rules 
as follows:   
 
Procedures for reserving Designated Limited Public Forum Area: 
 
1. Obtain permits at the Parks and Recreation office in the Troy Community Center, 3179 Livernois, 

Monday-Friday from 8:00 am to 10:00 pm and Saturday 9:00 am to noon (closed Saturdays July & Aug) 
2. A forty dollar ($40.00) reservation fee must accompany each application. 
3. Proof of residency, employment, or membership in a sponsoring Troy organization must be furnished 

upon request. 
4. Applications must be submitted two weeks in advance. 
 
Rules Governing Designated Limited Public Forum Area: 
 
1. Reservation must be made in person at the Parks and Recreation office during regular office hours. No 

phone reservations are accepted. 
2. 75% of the group must be Troy residents, work in Troy for the company having the function, or be a 

bonafide member of the sponsoring Troy organization.  A roster of those attending may be required. 
3. All vehicles must be confined to parking areas.  If using Reflective Head or City Hall lawn area during 

regular business hours, all cars must be parked in the lot east of the 52-4 District Court or the lot north 
of the Community Center on Troy Center Dr (see attached schematic).   

4. Permits must be retained at all times by Applicant and presented upon request. 
5. The permit is good for the listed reservation time only. (There are no rain dates.) 
6. Applicant’s use of the forum is limited to the areas as identified on attached schematic drawing.  
7. No refunds are granted for permit fees.  
8. The Applicant is responsible for leaving the area clean and orderly. 
9. Nothing shall be placed in or on the ground including tents, displays, ground signs, etc., without written 

authorization.  
10. Use of the limited public forum is limited to durations of not more than two hours.     
11. No amplified live music or bands are permitted.  Sound systems and speakers are allowed with written 

authorization ONLY. 
12. Use of the limited public forum may take place from dawn to dusk. 
13. No sound shall be emitted by the participants exceeding 65 decibels, measured at a distance of 15’ 

from the boundaries of designated forum area.  
14. There shall be no open flames or pyrotechnics as part of any use of the limited public forum. 
15. There shall be no profanity, pornography, or obscenity during the use of the limited public forum. 
 
Available locations for public forums (see map) 
 

1. Lawn area south of City Hall 
2. Area surrounding/adjacent to the Reflective Head 
3. Parking lot north of Community Center 

 
Requests for use of a limited public forum are taken on a first come, first served basis. When more than one 
request is made for the same date, there will be 30 minutes between the uses of the limited public forum. 
 



Designated 
Daytime 

Parking Area

Reflective Head 
Forum Area

North Parking 
Lot Forum Area

Front Lawn 
Forum Area

Limited 
Public Forum 
Location Map

COMMUNITY 
CENTER



 
Exhibit A 

LOTTERY APPLICATION: Limited Public Forum 
 
Please complete this form if the desired date is any date April 25th through May 8, 2005 
inclusive. 
 
The following individual, business, or organization, having read the Designated Public 
Forum Application and Rules and Procedures, hereby submits this application for possible 
selection in the lottery for the dates April 25th-May8th inclusive.  I (We) understand that a 
representative must be in attendance at the lottery drawing to make a selection of a site and 
date group if this application is selected.  I (We) understand that the failure to have a 
representative in attendance will be grounds for disqualification of my (our) application. 
 
The lottery will be held on April 22nd at 10am at the Community Center.  
 
Applicant’s Legal Name:            
 
Business, Civic Group or non-profit represented          
 
Phone:                
 
Address:                
 
City, State, Zip             
 
Name of Authorized Designee:           
 
Date group desired:             
 
 
The application and lottery application must be submitted by April 21st at 4pm.



 

 



morrellca
Text Box
G-02a







































































































Memorandum 

 

To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
  
From: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration  

Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
From: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration  

  
Date: April 13, 2005 
  
Date: April 13, 2005 

Re: Agenda Submittal: Charter Revisions – 2005 Proposed Charter Committee Referrals  Re: Agenda Submittal: Charter Revisions – 2005 Proposed Charter Committee Referrals  

The following submittals are general housekeeping items tied to the Election Consolidation 
Legislation Implementation process. Additionally, there is a recommendation that Charter 
Sections 7.5 and 7.5.5 be renumbered to realign them to Section 3.4 and to title Section 
7.5.5. The following proposed changes to the Charter implement the odd-year November 
cycle and provide for the staggering of terms: 
 
Section 3.4 – Revised to incorporate Section 7.5, extend the Mayor’s and Council 
Member’s term length from three (3) to four (4) years, and to change the term ending time 
from 8:00 PM to 7:30 PM. The proposed time change is to eliminate the two meeting times 
on the Monday following the election. 
 

Section 3.4 – Elective Officers and Terms of Office: 
The elective officers of the City shall be the six (6) members of Council and the Mayor 
all of whom shall be nominated and elected from the city at large for the terms provided 
herein. City Council Members and the Mayor shall be elected for terms of  four (4) 
years and shall serve until  7:30 PM on the first Monday following the regular election 
of the  fourth year of their term. 

 
Section 3.4.1 – Revised to realign Section 7.5.5 – “Elective Officers Term Limitations” to fall 
under Section 3.4 Elective Officers Terms of Office and to provide for a title for the section. 
Additionally, language is included to incorporate a provision for a term less than two (2) 
years and one (1) month to be exempt from term limitation. 
 

Section  3.4.1 – Elective Officers Term Limitations 
An elected member of the City Council shall not serve more than three terms as 
Councilperson.  The Mayor shall not serve more than two terms as Mayor.   Any 
service greater than two (2) years plus one (1) month shall constitute a term.  This 

morrellca
Text Box
G-02b



amendment shall apply only to terms starting after passage of this amendment.  
(11-08-94) 

 
Section 3.4.2 – Section inserted to provide for the balancing of staggered terms.  
 

Section 3.4.2 – Staggering Terms of Office: 
City Council Members with terms expiring April 2006 shall have their terms 
extended until November 2007; City Council Members with terms expiring April 
2007 shall have their terms extended until November 2007. The Mayor’s term, 
expiring April 2007, shall be extended until November 2007. The staggering of 
terms shall be established as follows: 
 

November 8, 2005 – Two (2) Council Members shall be elected for four (4) year 
terms with the terms expiring on November 9, 2009; 
November 6, 2007 – One (1) Council Member shall be elected for a two (2) year 
term with the term expiring on November 9, 2009; 
November 6, 2007 – Two (2) Council Members shall be elected for four (4) year 
terms with the terms expiring on November 14, 2011; 
November 6, 2007 – Mayor shall be elected for a four (4) year term with the 
term expiring November 14, 2011. 

 
Section 7.3 – Revised to change the election date to the odd-year November cycle. 
  

Section 7.3 - Election Date: 
A regular City election shall be held on the first Tuesday after the first Monday of 
every odd year November. ,  

 
Section 7.6 – Revised to reference Michigan Election Law and the provisions for calling a 
Special Election.  
 

Section 7.6 - Special Election: 
Special city elections shall be called in the manner and time as provided by 
statute.  



 
Date: April 8, 2005 
 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Douglas J. Smith, Director of Real Estate and Development 
 Mark Stimac, Building & Zoning Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
Subject: AGENDA ITEM - MINUTES FROM THE SPECIAL/JOINT MEETING OF 

THE CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION, MARCH 28, 2005 
 
 
A Special/Joint Meeting of the City Council and Planning Commission was held on 
March 28, 2005.  At this meeting an interest based approach was used in an attempt to 
gain consensus on three issues related to accessory buildings and commercial vehicles 
in one-family residential districts: footprint ratios, garage door heights and commercial 
vehicles. 
 
This memo was prepared in a further attempt to reach consensus on these issues.  The 
following indicates recommendations of the Planning Commission and City Council for 
their consideration in developing the ZOTA’s.  Council should advise as a governing 
body if the comments below do not reflect their general direction. 
 
Footprint Ratios 

• Maximum footprint ratio of 75% of the first floor area of the residence, and larger 
with a greater setback than otherwise required, based on a formula created by 
the Planning Commission. 

• Attached accessory structures that are legally in existence at the time the ZOTA 
is adopted shall be considered conforming structures. 

 
Garage Door Heights 

• No garage door height limitation.  
 
Commercial Vehicles 

• The responsibility of reviewing commercial vehicle appeals shall be transferred to 
the Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA), with due consideration of the legal issues. 

• After transfer of authority to Board of Zoning Appeals, including input from the BZA, 
the following issues should be addressed by City Management and the Planning 
Commission: 
o Definition of commercial vehicle. 
o Exceptions for major thoroughfare frontages. 
o Simplify renewals. 
o Modify four findings to grant appeal. 
o Creation of a special exception use. 
o Overall balance of individual property rights and neighborhood character. 

 

morrellca
Text Box
G-02c



Draft minutes from the joint meeting have been completed and are attached.   
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Richard Carlisle memorandum dated April 12, 2005. 
2. Minutes of the Special/Joint Meeting of the City Council and Planning 

Commission, March 28, 2005. 
 
cc: File/ ZOTA 215 
 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 215 Accessory Structures in R-1\Joint CC and PC Meeting Memo 04 18 05.doc 



 
 

Community Planners    Landscape Architects 
605 S. Main, Suite 1     Ann Arbor, MI  48104     734-662-2200     fax 734-662-1935 
6401 Citation Dr., Suite E   Clarkston, MI 48346  248-625-8480   fax 248-625-8455 

 
 
 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 

FROM: Richard K. Carlisle, AICP, PCP 

DATE: April 12, 2005 

RE: Comments on Joint City Council/Planning Commission meeting held on March 28, 
 2005 

Pursuant to the joint meeting held by the City Council and Planning Commission, there were two 
contrasting concepts that were discussed.  I have prepared sketches illustrating the contrasting 
concepts. 

Illustration #1 is based upon the Planning Commission recommendation.  Although I used the R-
1C District as the example, I believe the sketch properly illustrates the relationship between the 
attached accessory structure and the residence.  In consideration of the fact that garages are 
accessory or subordinate to the principle structure, the seventy five (75) percent standard results 
in a proper relationship between accessory and principle structures. 

Illustration #2 is based upon some of the discussion by Council which would allow an accessory 
garage to be equal to one hundred (100) percent of the total living area.  Illustration #2 uses the 
same parameter as Illustration #1 showing a two-story colonial residence.  The result of such an 
approach, as shown in Illustration #2, could be accessory buildings with twice the ground floor 
footprint as the principle residence.  Further, our illustration depicts an accessory building which 
is one story in height.  We know that accessory buildings of greater height are possible. 

Certainly, I could provide additional illustrations for other zoning districts.  While the specific 
dimensions between districts will change, the significant disparity in proportion will be similar to 
Illustrations #1 and #2. 



Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
April 12, 2005 
Page 2 
 
 

It is my opinion that basing regulations on seventy five (75) percent of the ground floor living 
areas is the preferred methodology.  Such a requirement establishes the proper relationship 
between a principle and subordinate use, promotes an appropriate balance in physical scale, and 
respects the essential residential character of Troy neighborhoods.  Finally, regulations can be 
developed which would protect existing accessory garages that may exceed the proposed 
restriction.   

Please let me know if you need any additional information. 
 

 
 
Project # 225-25-2401 
 
RKC: lh 
 
 







CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft March 28, 2005 
 

1 

A Special-Joint Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, March 28, 2005, at the Fire and 
Police Training Facility, 4850 John R – Troy, Michigan 48085. Mayor Pro Tem Beltramini called the 
Meeting to order at 7:48 PM. 

ROLL CALL: 

CITY COUNCIL PRESENT: 
Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin E. Beltramini  
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak  
David A. Lambert  
Jeanne M. Stine  

 
PLANNING COMMISSION: 
Gary Chamberlain 
Lynn Drake-Batts 
Larry Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Fazlullah M. Khan 
Thomas Strat 
Mark Vleck 
David Waller 
Wayne C. Wright 
Howard Wu 

 
Mayor Schilling introduced John Szerlag as the moderator of the interest-based approach to 
bargaining.  Mr. Szerlag described the interest-based approach and the meeting format. 
 
Consensus was reached by a vote by voice to follow simple ground rules as described by John 
Szerlag. 
 
John Szerlag moderated an interest-based discussion with the City Council and Planning 
Commission on accessory building footprint ratios, garage door height and commercial vehicle 
regulations. 
 

1. Options for Regulating Attached Garages and Accessory Structures 
 
Mark Miller, Planning Director, provided an update on ZOTA 215 and the process to date. 
 
Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning, presented a brief history of commercial vehicle 
restrictions in Troy. 
 
Planning Consultant Richard Carlisle provided a regional perspective on commercial vehicles.  
 
Peggy Clifton recorded interests and options on easels located at the front of the room. The following 
interests and options regarding Options for Regulating Attached Garages and Accessory Structures 
were recorded based on individual input: 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft March 28, 2005 
 

2 

PLANNING COMMISSION INTERESTS: 
 
I. Footprint Ratios 
 

1. Enforcement not to be retroactive for legally constructed structures.  (Do not create non-
conforming structures.) 

2. Replacement structures must conform. 
3. Maintain residential character. 

 
II. Garage Door Heights 
 

1. Maintain residential flavor/appearance. 
2. Do not store recreational vehicles in residential areas.   

 
CITY COUNCIL INTERESTS: 
 
I. Footprint Ratios 
 

1. Footprint ratio that does not create non-conformance. 
2. Footprint of living area, not just first floor. 
3. Solution should address Alpine Street. 
4. Allow building size to be dictated by size of property. 
5. Be careful not to permit too big of structure based on lot size. 

 
II. Garage Door Heights 
 

1. Maintain residential character. 
 
CITY MANAGEMENT INTERESTS: 
 
I. Footprint Ratios 
 

1. Consistency 
2. Practicality of application of ordinance 

 
II. Garage Door Heights 
 

1. No height limit. 
 
OPTIONS: 
 
I. Footprint Ratios 
 

1. 100% of livable area calibrated with setbacks. 
2. 75% of the first floor living area. 
3. 125% of living area. 
4. Establish a ceiling. 
5. Calibration of larger attached buildings based on height. 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft March 28, 2005 
 

3 

II. Garage Door Height 
 

1. 8’ for front entrances; larger in rear. 
2. No height restriction. 

 
GENERAL DIRECTION FROM CITY COUNCIL: 
 
 The option selected was 75% of first floor living area and larger with a greater setback than 

otherwise required, based on a formula created by the Planning Commission. 
 
 Do not limit garage door height  

 

2. Options for Regulating Commercial Vehicles 
Peggy Clifton recorded interests and options on easels located at the front of the room. The following 
interests and options regarding Options for Regulating Commercial Vehicles were recorded based on 
individual input: 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION INTERESTS: 
 
I. Commercial Vehicles  - (No comments) 
 
CITY COUNCIL INTERESTS: 
 
I. Commercial Vehicles 
 

1. Fix definition of commercial vehicle (weight, size, type). 
2. Make variance renewals automatic (if no changes). 
3. Exceptions considered for (1) Mile Road frontage; (2) Hardships (short-term); (3) Duration. 
4. Residentially zoned/utilized areas only. 

 
CITY MANAGEMENT INTERESTS: 
 
I. Commercial Vehicles 
 

1. Appropriate criteria be developed for variance to be granted. 
 
OPTIONS: 
 
I. Commercial Vehicles 
 

1. No change. 
2. Transfer authority to grant variances to BZA. 
3. Administrative approval of variance renewals. 
4. Change definition of commercial vehicles. 
5. Restrict indoor storage. 
6. Modify criteria – all 4 conditions must be met. 
7. Separate police power ordinance. 
8. Eliminate ability to appeal commercial vehicle storage provisions. 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft March 28, 2005 
 

4 

GENERAL DIRECTION FROM CITY COUNCIL: 
 

 Transfer authority to grant variances to BZA. 
 
 Develop appropriate criteria for granting variances. 

 
Following the interest-based discussion, moderator John Szerlag handed control of the meeting back 
to Mayor Schilling. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Council Rules  #16 – Members of the Public & Visitors 
 
Resolution #2005-03-148a 
Moved by Stine   
Seconded by Broomfield   
 
RESOLVED, That Council Rules #16, Members of the Public & Visitors, be SUSPENDED and that 
Public Comment be reduced from five minutes to two minutes at the request of the Chair and by 
majority vote of City Council members elect. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 10:36 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
  

 
 Laura A. Fitzpatrick 

Assistant to the City Manager 
 



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES   February 23, 2005 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held Wednesday, February 23, 2005, 
at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. City Clerk Bartholomew called the Meeting to 
order at 7:00 P.M. 

ROLL CALL:  
PRESENT:  David Anderson, Timothy Dewan, City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew 
ABSENT:  None 
ALSO PRESENT: Deputy City Clerk Barbara Holmes 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of January 26, 2005  
 
Resolution # EC-2005-01-03 
Motion by Anderson 
Seconded by Dewan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of January 26, 2005 are approved as submitted. 
 
Yes: Anderson, Bartholomew, Dewan 

Approval of Relocating All School District Precincts in the City of Troy from 
School Precincts to City of Troy Precincts 

 
Resolution # EC-2005-01-04 
Motion by Dewan 
Seconded by Anderson 

 
RESOLVED, That the Election Commission of the City of Troy hereby AUTHORIZES that 
the school district precincts for Avondale School District, School District of the City of 
Birmingham, Bloomfield Hills School District, The Lamphere Schools, School District of the 
City of Royal Oak, the Troy School District and Warren Consolidated School District 
currently servicing qualified electors in the City of Troy be RELOCATED to City of Troy 
precincts. 

 
Yes: Anderson, Bartholomew, Dewan 

Approval of Consolidation of All Applicable Relocated School District Precincts in 
the City of Troy 
 
Resolution # EC-2005-01-05 
Motion by Anderson 
Seconded by Dewan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Election Commission of the City of Troy hereby AUTHORIZES that 
applicable relocated school district precincts for Avondale School District, School District of 
the City of Birmingham, Bloomfield Hills School District, The Lamphere Schools, School 
District of the City of Royal Oak, the Troy School District currently and Warren 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01a



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES   February 23, 2005 
 
Consolidated School District servicing qualified electors in the City of Troy be 
CONSOLIDATED as deemed necessary and in accordance with MCL 168.659. 
 
Yes: Anderson, Bartholomew, Dewan 

Adjournment:  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:06 P.M. 
 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   February 23, 2005 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC) was held on February 23, 2005 at 7:00 PM at City 
Hall in the Lower Level Conference Room, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  Jessica Kraft called the 
meeting to order at 7:05 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Alexandra (Sasha) Bozimowski 

Maniesh Joshi  
Rishi Joshi  
Andrew Kalinowski 
Jessica Kraft (co-chair) 
Manessa Shaw (arrived 7:10 PM) 
Nicole Vitale (co-chair) 
YuJing Wang 
Karen Wullaert 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Min Chong 
Juliana D’Amico (excused) 
Catherine Herzog (excused) 
Monika Raj (excused) 
 

ALSO PRESENT:  Laura Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 
                              
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 
 

Resolution # TY-2005-02-06 
 Moved by M Joshi 
 Seconded by Bozimowski 
          RESOLVED, That the minutes of 1/19/05 be approved 
           Yes: 7 
           No:      None  
 Abstain: 1 - Wullaert 
           Absent: 5 – Chong, D’Amico, Herzog, Raj, Shaw 
           MOTION CARRIED 

 
3. Attendance Report: To note and file 
4. Membership Update: 

Also, looking ahead: Succession Plan for Seats to be Vacated 5/05 Due to Graduations 
(at least 8 seats will be vacated): 
 Feb, March: City accepting applications; TYC to promote 

o Applications distributed to share with fellow students -  must be a Troy 
resident in grade 9 –12 as of Fall 2005.   

 April 27th TYC Meeting: TYC interview applicants and recommend students for 
appointment; brainstormed questions to ask in interviews 

 May: Send recommendations to City Council 
 May 18th TYC Meeting: New members attend meeting with outgoing members 
 August: Terms officially begin for new members 

 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01b



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   February 23, 2005 
 
 

 2

5. Troy Daze Festival Update: Youth Council Sponsored Entertainment Event 
 Seeking Members to Help  

o Recruit entertainment: band(s) 
o Recruit or serve as Master of Ceremonies 
o Coordinate publicity 

 
6. Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provided Advance Notification  
 

 Resolution # TY-2005-02-07 
 Moved by Shaw 
 Seconded by Kalinowski 

 RESOLVED, That members D’Amico, Herzog and Raj are excused.  
 Yes: All - 9 
           No:      None  
           Absent: 4 – Chong, D’Amico, Herzog, Raj 
           MOTION CARRIED 
 
7. Motion to Change May Meeting 

 
      Resolution # TY-2005-02-08 
 Moved by Shaw 
 Seconded by Wang 

 RESOLVED, That the May 25, 2005 meeting be re-scheduled to May 18, 2005 for reason 
           of May 25th being the last day of school for the Troy Public School District. 
 Yes: All - 9   
           No:      None  
           Absent: 4 – Chong, D’Amico, Herzog, Raj 
           MOTION CARRIED 
 
  

Youth Council Comments 
      PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 
Next Meeting: Reminder Next Meeting: WED March 23rd 7:00 P.M. 

@ CITY HALL 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:32 P.M. 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Nicole Vitale, Co-chair 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Laura A. Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT – MARCH 2, 2005 

 1

 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, March 2, 2005, at the lower level conference room at City Hall.  
Leonard Bertin called the Meeting to order at 7:05 P.M. 
 
Present:  L Bertin, member  C. Buchanan, member 
   S. Burt, member  A. Done, member 
   A. Fuhrman, alternate P. Manetta, member  
   D. Pietron, member  M. Pritzlaff, alternate  
   S. Werpetinski, member 
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
   K. Jearls, staff 
 
Absent: K. Gauri, member EA T. House, member, EA 
   N. Johnson, alternate, UA A. Wiqar, student, UA 
    
ITEM B – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF FEBRUARY 2, 2005 
Burt made a motion that the minutes of February 2, 2005, with changes, be approved.  
Supported by Furhman.  All voted in favor. 
 
ITEM C – VISITORS, DELEGATIONS AND GENERAL PUBLIC 
Liz Kobylak, Chapter Coordinator for the Self Help for Hard of Hearing People 
Association, a national and State organization, was at our meeting.  The local website 
for this organization is wwwmi-shhh.org and the national website is 
wwwhearingloss.org.  As well as being a resident of Troy, Liz is an advocate for 
persons with hearing loss.   
 
ITEM D – NEW BUSINESS 
 
ITEM E – REGULAR BUSINESS 
Burt will attend the City Council meeting on 3/7/05 and Manetta and Done on 2/21/05. 
 
ITEM F – OLD BUSINESS 
Some of the suggested topics for MML disability training seminars were emergency 
preparedness, visual impairment, and hearing loss.   
 
We have received no response from City Council on a joint meeting.  We would like to 
emphasize the need for a joint meeting to discuss issues and concerns.  All voted in 
favor. 
 
Burt will bring the rest of the Face To Face and A.C.P.D. brochures to Grusnick.  He will 
then distribute them and discuss the availability of city racks with Cindy Stewart. 
 
 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01c



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT – MARCH 2, 2005 

 2

ITEM G - INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
Bertin received information from Ruth Linnemann, Michigan MS Society, regarding 
emergency preparedness gaps for people with disabilities.  She also sent information 
on grants available in the area of disability awareness training which Bertin will forward 
to the MML. 
 
The Ability Expo will not be held on Thursday night, we are attempting to do it on Friday 
evening.  There will be a charge for booth space for all but nonprofit organizations; one 
half the cost will be charged for nonprofits. 
 
Buchanan has a picture on display at the City Library that she painted for the “Paint A  
Miracle” project. 
 
ITEM H – ADJOURN 
Burt made a motion to adjourn at 7:48, Done seconded. 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                         _______________________________ 
                         Leonard Bertin, Chairperson 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
           Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL – MARCH 2, 2005 

 1

 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, March 2, 2005, at the lower level conference room at City Hall.  
Leonard Bertin called the Meeting to order at 7:05 P.M. 
 
Present:  L Bertin, member  C. Buchanan, member 
   S. Burt, member  A. Done, member 
   A. Fuhrman, alternate P. Manetta, member  
   D. Pietron, member  M. Pritzlaff, alternate  
   S. Werpetinski, member 
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
   K. Jearls, staff 
 
Absent: K. Gauri, member EA T. House, member, EA 
   N. Johnson, alternate, UA A. Wiqar, student, UA 
    
ITEM B – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF FEBRUARY 2, 2005 
Burt made a motion that the minutes of February 2, 2005, with changes, be approved.  
Supported by Furhman.  All voted in favor. 
 
ITEM C – VISITORS, DELEGATIONS AND GENERAL PUBLIC 
Liz Kobylak, Chapter Coordinator for the Self Help for Hard of Hearing People 
Association, a national and State organization, was at our meeting.  The local website 
for this organization is wwwmi-shhh.org and the national website is 
wwwhearingloss.org.  As well as being a resident of Troy, Liz is an advocate for 
persons with hearing loss.   
 
ITEM D – NEW BUSINESS 
 
ITEM E – REGULAR BUSINESS 
Burt will attend the City Council meeting on 3/7/05 and Manetta and Done on 2/21/05. 
 
ITEM F – OLD BUSINESS 
Some of the suggested topics for MML disability training seminars were emergency 
preparedness, visual impairment, and hearing loss.   
 
We have received no response from City Council on a joint meeting.  We would like to 
emphasize the need for a joint meeting to discuss issues and concerns.  All voted in 
favor. 
 
Burt will bring the rest of the Face To Face and A.C.P.D. brochures to Grusnick.  He will 
then distribute them and discuss the availability of city racks with Cindy Stewart. 
 
 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01d



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL – MARCH 2, 2005 

 2

ITEM G - INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
Bertin received information from Ruth Linnemann, Michigan MS Society, regarding 
emergency preparedness gaps for people with disabilities.  She also sent information 
on grants available in the area of disability awareness training which Bertin will forward 
to the MML. 
 
The Ability Expo will not be held on Thursday night, we are attempting to do it on Friday 
evening.  There will be a charge for booth space for all but nonprofit organizations; one 
half the cost will be charged for nonprofits. 
 
Buchanan has a picture on display at the City Library that she painted for the “Paint A  
Miracle” project. 
 
ITEM H – ADJOURN 
Burt made a motion to adjourn at 7:48, Done seconded. 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                         _______________________________ 
                         Leonard Bertin, Chairperson 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
           Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                 MARCH 2, 2005 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M. on Wednesday, March 2, 2005 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Rick Kessler 
   Bill Nelson 
   Tim Richnak 
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mitch Grusnick, Building Department Residential Plan Analyst 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF FEBRUARY 2, 2005 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of February 2, 2005 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  DAVID HABOIAN, OF KOJAIAN MANAGEMENT 
CORPORATION, 755 W. BIG BEAVER, for relief of Chapter 78 to place an 800 square 
foot special event wall sign for a 30-day period. 
 
Mr. Grusnick explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 78 to place an 
800 square foot special event wall sign for a 30-day period.  The banner, proposed to 
be located on the wall at the top of the building, announces the 100th anniversary of the 
Society of Automotive Engineers whose offices are located in the building.  The size of 
the special event sign is not limited by the ordinance, however, Chapter 78, Section 
14.02 limits the placement time of special event signs to seven (7) consecutive days 
within any twelve-month period. 
 
Mr. David Haboian of Kojaian Management, Mr. Jack Pokrzywa and Ms. Ila Lee of the 
Society of Automotive Engineers were present.  Mr. Haboian explained that the SAE is 
one of their largest tenants and occupy one and one-half floors of the Top of Troy 
building.  Mr. Haboian said that Kojaian Management fully supports this request and as 
the landlord would love to help them display their 100th anniversary.  The SAE is holding 
a conference from April 4th through the 11th and this would be an opportunity to make 
people aware of this organization. 
 
Mr. Jack Pokrzywa said that they have been in this community for a number of years 
and are the only automotive society in the area.  They have a number of activities  

 1

morrellca
Text Box
J-01e



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                 MARCH 2, 2005 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
planned for this week including competitions, classes and conferences at the San 
Marino Club.  They want people to know that that are 100 years old and this would also 
be a way for them to attract new members and students. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked what the specific dates would be.  Mr. Pokrzywa said they would like 
to display this banner both before and after the dates of the conference.  Mr. Haboian 
said that they would like the banner up for the month of April. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if there were any other instances where a banner was put out for a 
longer period of time.  Mr. Grusnick stated that he was aware of Oakland Mall receiving 
a variance to display a banner for a longer period of time. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to grant David Haboian, of Kojaian Management Corporation, 755 W. Big 
Beaver, relief of Chapter 78 to place an 800 square foot special event wall sign for a 30-
day period. 
 

• Banner will be displayed for the month of April. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  J & E HOME IMPROVEMENTS, 1264 CHAUCER 
DR., for relief of the 2003 Michigan Residential Code to finish a basement into habitable 
space, which will result in a ceiling height of 6’-10”, where 7’ is required. 
 
Mr. Grusnick explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the 2003 Michigan 
Residential Code to finish the basement at 1264 Chaucer.  Section R305.1 of the 2003 
Michigan Residential Code, requires a 7’ minimum ceiling height in habitable spaces 
including finished basements.  The distance from the basement floor to the bottom of 
the floor joists above is 7’–0”.  The plan submitted indicates a new dropped ceiling to be 
installed with a 6’-10” ceiling height. 
 
 

 2



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                 MARCH 2, 2005 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. David Shipley of J & E Home Improvements and Jim Murdock of 1264 Chaucer 
were present.  Mr. Shipley explained that this is an Owens Corning product and 
although the manufacturer recommends that the ceiling has a drop of 3”, they plan to 
raise it to 2”, the end result being that the ceiling would result with a 6’-10” ceiling 
height. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked what the relation between dry wall and asthma was.  Mr. Shipley said 
that there are arguments for and against this correlation.  He went on to say that he 
thinks it is because the dry wall is porous and can result in creating mold.  The Owens 
Corning ceiling has a substance that will help to resist mold. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked what the ceiling height would be at the bottom of the stairs.  Mr. 
Shipley said that they plan to elevate the ceiling at the bottom of the stairs to meet code. 
 
Motion by Nelson 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to grant J & E Home Improvements, 1264 Chaucer Dr., relief of the 2003 
Michigan Residential Code to finish a basement into habitable space, which will result in 
a ceiling height of 6’-10” where 7’ is required. 
 

• General ceiling height will be 6’-10”. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:43 A.M. 
 
 
              
      Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
 
 

 3



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Draft March 9, 2005 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees was held on 
Wednesday, March 9, 2005, at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI.   
The meeting was called to order at 12:10 p.m. 
 

 
TRUSTEES PRESENT: Mark Calice  
 Michael Geise 
 Thomas Houghton, Chair 
 John M. Lamerato 
 William R. Need 
 
ABSENT: David A. Lambert 
 Steven A. Pallotta 
 John Szerlag  
  
ALSO PRESENT: Laura Fitzpatrick 
  
 
EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 03 - 008 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Houghton 
 
RESOLVED, That Lambert, Pallotta and Szerlag be excused. 
 
Yeas:  All 4 
Absent: Lambert, Pallotta, Szerlag 
 
 
MINUTES 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 03 - 009 
Moved by Calice 
Seconded by Geise 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the February 9, 2005 meeting be approved.  
 
Yeas:  All 4 
Absent: Lambert, Pallotta, Szerlag 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01f



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Draft March 9, 2005 
 
 

 2

RETIREMENT REQUEST 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 03 - 010 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Houghton 
 
RESOLVED, That the request of Judith Ann Haselhuhn, DC, 5/13/05, 25 years, 8 months 
be approved. 
 
Yeas:  All 4 
Absent: Lambert, Pallotta, Szerlag 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – SUSPENDED PENSION CHAPTER 10 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 03 - 011 
Moved by Houghton 
Seconded by Calice 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney and Van Overbeke, Michaud & Timmony review the 
provisions of Chapter 10. 
 
Yeas:  All 4 
Absent: Lambert, Pallotta, Szerlag 
 
 
INVESTMENTS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 03- 012 
Moved by Calice 
Seconded by Geise 
 
RESOLVED, That the following investments be purchased and sold: 
Purchase:  2,000 shares Schlumberger; 1,500 shares Reuters Group; 1,000 shares Roper 
Industries. 
Sell:  Superior Industries; Smuckers; Delphi 
 
Yeas:  All 4 
Absent: Lambert, Pallotta, Szerlag 
 
 
The next meeting is April 13, 2005 at 12:00 p.m. at City Hall, Conference Room C, 
 500 W Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:10 p.m.  
 
 
JML/bt\Retirement Board\2005\3-09-05 Minutes_Draft.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 22, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Vice Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on March 22, 2005, in the Council Board Room of the Troy 
City Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Gary Chamberlain Lawrence Littman 
Lynn Drake-Batts Thomas Strat 
Fazal Khan 
Robert Schultz 
Mark J. Vleck (arrived 7:38 p.m.) 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Richard K. Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-03-036 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Littman and Strat are excused from attendance at this 
meeting for personal reasons.  
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Schultz, Waller, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Drake-Batts 
Absent:  Littman, Strat, Vleck (arrived 7:38 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-03-037 
Moved by:  Wright 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the March 1, 2005 Special/Study Meeting minutes as 
published. 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01g



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 22, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Yes: Drake-Batts, Khan, Schultz, Waller, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Chamberlain 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Vleck (arrived 7:38 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-03-038 
Moved by:  Khan 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the March 8, 2005 Regular Meeting minutes as published. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Schultz, Waller, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Drake-Batts 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Vleck (arrived 7:38 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

4. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported that the March 16, 2005 Downtown Development Authority meeting 
was cancelled. 
 
 

5. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported on the following items. 
 
1. Rezoning Request (Z 700), Clark Service Station, northeast corner of Livernois 

and Maple Road, Section 27, from B-1 to H-S – City Council Public Hearing on 
April 4, 2005.   

 
2. Proposed PUD #5, Maple Forest Crossing, east side of Rochester Road, south of 

South Boulevard – Review by the Planning Commission in the near future.   
 
3. Big Beaver Road Corridor Study – Meetings have been arranged with the two 

finalists; project is forthcoming and moving forward.   
 
(Mr. Vleck arrived at 7:38 p.m.) 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 22, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

6. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts reported on the March 15, 2005 Board of Zoning Appeals meeting. 
 
Interpretation Request re: the issuance of a building permit to construct a garage at 
3129 Alpine 
The BZA postponed this item at the request of the petitioner’s attorney.   
 
Variance request, Robert Kage, 718 Eckford 
The BZA denied relief of the Ordinance to maintain two covered storage structures 
and a lean-to attached to the existing pole building. 
 
Variance request, Larry Frandle, 1142 Boyd 
The BZA granted relief of the Ordinance to reconstruct a fire damaged home. 
 
Variance Request, Ram A. Sharma, 2951 Homewood 
The BZA denied relief of the Ordinance to maintain a porch enclosure constructed 
without a permit. 
 
 

7. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD 4) – Proposed The Monarch Private 
Residences, 209 units, 11,166 S.F. retail space and structured parking, North side 
of Big Beaver Road between Alpine and McClure, Section 20 – O-1 (Low Rise 
Office), P-1 (Vehicular Parking) and R-1B (One Family Residential) Districts 
 
Mr. Carlisle, Planning Consultant, provided a brief review of the proposed PUD 4.  Mr. 
Carlisle said the proposed development definitely meets the PUD criteria in terms of 
providing development quality objectives and a mixture of land uses.  Mr. Carlisle cited 
the significant items to be addressed further by the petitioner, as outlined below.  He 
believes all other issues addressed in his report can be worked out with the petitioner, 
including the public benefit.   
 
Future Land Use Plan 
Mr. Carlisle said a stronger direction is needed in the Future Land Use Plan for areas 
that are conducive to mixed-use development.  Items to be addressed are (1) a 
comparison between developing the property fully under the low-rise office district 
designation and proposed mixed use residential and (2) the transition to single family 
residential.    Mr. Carlisle said it would be unreasonable to delay the project pending a 
revision of the Future Land Use Plan.  
 
Density 
Mr. Carlisle said he would reserve his comments on density until he has an 
opportunity to review the Density Study that was recently provided by the petitioner.   
 
Traffic Impact 
Mr. Carlisle reported the traffic analysis is not complete.  He is confident that there will 
be significantly less impact from the proposed residential project compared to that of 
an office use, in terms of traffic volume and peak times of travel.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 22, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Transition 
Mr. Carlisle said the transition with the properties to the north of the proposed 
development is most likely the most difficult issue to address.  The petitioner, at his 
request to more significantly address the transition, increased the setback to 20 feet 
and provided additional landscaping as a buffer.  Mr. Carlisle said more needs to be 
done and suggested reducing the intensity of the buildings by stepping the buildings 
down; i.e., ranch style units on the ends of the buildings that would create a lower 
profile.   
 
Jennifer Mooney, Bob Dudick, Tom Kafkes and John Bender of Joseph Freed and 
Associates were present.  Also present were Gary Jonna of Whitehall Real Estate and 
Ron Phillips of Tadian Homes.   
 
Ms. Mooney provided a brief update of the project and specifically addressed the 
following items.   
 
• Transition to north with respect to setbacks and additional landscaping 
• Off-site landscaping along Alpine and east side of McClure 
• Shadow studies 
• Retail court with respect to depression and perimeter hedge 
• Commitment to public benefit 
• LEED points 
 
Ms. Mooney distributed the following information to members. 
• Mixed-Use Projects completed by Joseph Freed and Associates 
• Letter from Village Manager of Palatine, IL, regarding success of downtown 

redevelopment 
• The Monarch February 8, 2005 Neighborhood Meeting Notes, as well as 

communication with residents addressing concerns 
 
Additional items discussed were: 
• Retail signage 
• Sculpture 
• Project timetable 
• Requirements of preliminary approval; i.e., submission of finite data 
• Public Hearing date and importance of public input 
• Mass relationship 
• Guest parking with respect to location, convenience, inclement weather 
 

___________ 
 
Vice Chair Schultz requested a recess at 9:08 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:18 p.m. 
 

___________ 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 22, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Discussion continued on the setback for the residences to the north, and some 
members suggested a minimum setback of 30 feet.  It was determined that the 
Planning Department would obtain photographs of the houses to the north and 
provide site plan overlays.  The petitioner was encouraged to view the Rochester 
Commons development and the condominium development located at Wattles and 
John R with respect to setback relationships.   
 
There was a brief discussion on the monetary contribution by the petitioner as relates 
to the large garage located at 3129 Alpine Street.  Ms. Mooney stated that the 
development group contributed as a neighbor to help cover the legal expenses 
involved in the Zoning Board of Appeals due process.  The development group felt 
that $5,000 was an appropriate amount based on their presence in the neighborhood.   
 
Ms. Lancaster provided a brief summary of the appeal before the Zoning Board of 
Appeals relating to the issuance of a building permit for the large garage located at 
3129 Alpine.  She indicated that the matter has been postponed to the April meeting, 
and confirmed that there is no litigation at this time.  
 
Ms. Mooney asked the Planning Commission and Planning Department to consider 
scheduling a Public Hearing in April for the proposed planned unit development.   
 
 

8. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 212) – Freestanding Restaurants 
in the R-C (Research Center) and O-S-C (Office Service Commercial) Zoning Districts 
 
Mr. Miller said the proposed draft language allows for freestanding restaurants in the 
RC (Research Center) and O-S-C (Office Service Commercial) districts.  He asked the 
Commission’s input on (1) permitting banks and daycare facilities as stand-alone uses 
and (2) creating a similar amendment that would permit stand-alone restaurants in the 
O-M (Office Mid Rise) district.  
 
Discussion points were: 
• Special Land Use versus “by right” 
• Daycare facilities with respect to outside play area 
• Special Land Use to allow higher level of design and control of design 
• Integration of sites 
• Flexibility in parking requirements 
• Negotiation with prospective use 
• Relationship between buildings and pedestrian traffic 
• Discouragement of strip center development 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 22, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 201) – Commercial Recreation in 
the Light Industrial Zoning District 
 
Mr. Miller said the proposed draft language (1) defines indoor commercial recreation 
and (2) permits indoor commercial recreation facilities by right in the M-1 district.  
He asked for direction and input from the Commission.   
 
The members agreed that parking requirements should be addressed within the 
Zoning Ordinance text that would allow sufficient parking in relation to the activity of 
the facility.  The members generally agreed that the use should be permitted by 
special use.  The proposed ZOTA is a high priority item.   
 
 

10. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 216) – Additional Retail Along 
Major Thoroughfares in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed some issues associated with the concept of adding retail uses 
within existing industrial buildings along major thoroughfares.  An overhead drawing 
of the Beaute Craft Building located at 600 W. Maple Road was used to illustrate 
potential site plan issues.   
 
Discussion points were: 
• Parking, landscaping and setback requirements 
• Existing retail vacancy along Maple Road 
• Existing buildings along Maple Road in need of extensive remodeling vs. torn 

down and completely reconstructed 
• Potential mixed-use development; i.e., artist colony 
• Global solution needed; not a building-by-building solution 
• Relation of retail use between Maple Road frontage lots and interior street lots 
• Setting precedence with respect to setback requirements 
• Future land use planning 
 
Mr. Miller summarized that the majority of existing buildings along Maple Road are 
at a 50-foot setback line, and it appears retail use would not be feasible because 
too many problems would be created.  Mr. Miller suggested further strategic 
planning to arrive at short-term fixes and creativity in future land use planning.   
 
 

11. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Mike Baxter and Kim Duford of 3141 McClure, Troy, were present to speak on the 
proposed The Monarch Private Residences (PUD 4).  Their home is directly north of 
The Monarch project. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 22, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Mr. Baxter voiced opposition to The Monarch as currently proposed and displayed 
on the artist rendering.  Mr. Baxter said they have had discussions with the 
petitioner and details of the project have not been clear.  Mr. Baxter addressed the 
building setbacks.  He suggested a 50-foot minimum setback.  Mr. Baxter said the 
22-story tower would definitely impact them because they would have no privacy.  
They currently have one neighbor, and the project would give them over 200 
neighbors.  Mr. Baxter said the project is taking all of their property without any 
compensation.  He indicated they have offered to sell their home to the petitioner, 
and to date the petitioner has not responded to the offer.  Mr. Baxter informed the 
members that the minutes of the neighborhood meeting provided by the petitioner 
do not convey the hostility of the neighbors.  He said one or two neighbors spoke 
positively of the project but they live further into the subdivision.  Mr. Baxter 
addressed concerns relating to vehicular lights directed toward their bedroom and 
drainage.  Mr. Baxter said he feels the density of the project is too high.  He also 
addressed the existing vegetation between the properties to which the petitioner 
refers.  Mr. Baxter said the existing vegetation between the proposed development 
and their home is called a cyclone fence.   
 
Ms. Duford expressed concerns with construction noise and dirt and the affects of 
the development on their home; i.e., constant opening and closing of 55 garage 
doors, lights from the individual garages and porches, etc.  Ms. Duford said she 
believes their property value as well as their neighbor’s will decrease the minute the 
construction begins.  She said the lack of privacy would take away from the existing 
neighborhood character.  Ms. Duford addressed the trees, flowers and other 
vegetation that would be destroyed to allow the development.  Ms. Duford said they 
suggested to the petitioner that a bigger buffer to the subdivision providing 
additional landscaping, berm, or park area could be provided with the purchase of 
their property.  She indicated the disadvantages in the potential sale of their home.  
Ms. Duford welcomed the Planning Commission members to their home, so they 
could envision the close proximity of the development, and the view of the back side 
of the proposed development.  She addressed the concerns she has with the 
density of the project in relation to an office development.   
 
Mr. Baxter and Ms. Duford were encouraged to provide the Planning Department a 
written list of their concerns for the record and to attend all public hearings and 
meetings with respect to the proposed development.   
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Vleck said it would be very interesting to get the full public comment on the proposed 
PUD 4.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 22, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Mr. Chamberlain said he personally requested of the City Clerk’s Office to provide the City 
Council with only his name and no personal and confidential information.  He suggested 
that any other member who shares his concerns to personally advise the City Clerk’s 
Office of his/her wishes.  Mr. Chamberlain suggested a site visit of the proposed PUD 4.  
 
Mr. Miller said he would discuss scheduling a special meeting and site visit of the 
proposed PUD 4 with the Chairman.   
 
Ms. Lancaster said it was good to see all the members again. 
 
Mr. Miller reminded the members of the Special Joint Meeting of City Council and Planning 
Commission on March 28, 2005 at 7:30 p.m. at the Police/Fire Training Facility.   
 
Vice Chair Schultz briefly reviewed the discussion items and intent of the Special Joint 
Meeting.  He said the open meeting would be moderated by the City Manager, and asked 
that any member not able to attend to please advise the Planning Department.   
 
 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 10:54 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Vice Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Draft\03-22-05 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MARCH 22, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Vice Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on March 22, 2005, in the Council Board Room of the Troy 
City Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Gary Chamberlain Lawrence Littman 
Lynn Drake-Batts Thomas Strat 
Fazal Khan 
Robert Schultz 
Mark J. Vleck (arrived 7:38 p.m.) 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Richard K. Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-03-036 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Littman and Strat are excused from attendance at this 
meeting for personal reasons.  
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Schultz, Waller, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Drake-Batts 
Absent:  Littman, Strat, Vleck (arrived 7:38 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-03-037 
Moved by:  Wright 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the March 1, 2005 Special/Study Meeting minutes as 
published. 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01h



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MARCH 22, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Yes: Drake-Batts, Khan, Schultz, Waller, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Chamberlain 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Vleck (arrived 7:38 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-03-038 
Moved by:  Khan 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the March 8, 2005 Regular Meeting minutes as published. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Schultz, Waller, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Drake-Batts 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Vleck (arrived 7:38 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

4. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported that the March 16, 2005 Downtown Development Authority meeting 
was cancelled. 
 
 

5. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported on the following items. 
 
1. Rezoning Request (Z 700), Clark Service Station, northeast corner of Livernois 

and Maple Road, Section 27, from B-1 to H-S – City Council Public Hearing on 
April 4, 2005.   

 
2. Proposed PUD #5, Maple Forest Crossing, east side of Rochester Road, south of 

South Boulevard – Review by the Planning Commission in the near future.   
 
3. Big Beaver Road Corridor Study – Meetings have been arranged with the two 

finalists; project is forthcoming and moving forward.   
 
(Mr. Vleck arrived at 7:38 p.m.) 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MARCH 22, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

6. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts reported on the March 15, 2005 Board of Zoning Appeals meeting. 
 
Interpretation Request re: the issuance of a building permit to construct a garage at 
3129 Alpine 
The BZA postponed this item at the request of the petitioner’s attorney.   
 
Variance request, Robert Kage, 718 Eckford 
The BZA denied relief of the Ordinance to maintain two covered storage structures 
and a lean-to attached to the existing pole building. 
 
Variance request, Larry Frandle, 1142 Boyd 
The BZA granted relief of the Ordinance to reconstruct a fire damaged home. 
 
Variance Request, Ram A. Sharma, 2951 Homewood 
The BZA denied relief of the Ordinance to maintain a porch enclosure constructed 
without a permit. 
 
 

7. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD 4) – Proposed The Monarch Private 
Residences, 209 units, 11,166 S.F. retail space and structured parking, North side 
of Big Beaver Road between Alpine and McClure, Section 20 – O-1 (Low Rise 
Office), P-1 (Vehicular Parking) and R-1B (One Family Residential) Districts 
 
Mr. Carlisle, Planning Consultant, provided a brief review of the proposed PUD 4.  Mr. 
Carlisle said the proposed development definitely meets the PUD criteria in terms of 
providing development quality objectives and a mixture of land uses.  Mr. Carlisle cited 
the significant items to be addressed further by the petitioner, as outlined below.  He 
believes all other issues addressed in his report can be worked out with the petitioner, 
including the public benefit.   
 
Future Land Use Plan 
Mr. Carlisle said a stronger direction is needed in the Future Land Use Plan for areas 
that are conducive to mixed-use development.  Items to be addressed are (1) a 
comparison between developing the property fully under the low-rise office district 
designation and proposed mixed use residential and (2) the transition to single family 
residential.    Mr. Carlisle said it would be unreasonable to delay the project pending a 
revision of the Future Land Use Plan.  
 
Density 
Mr. Carlisle said he would reserve his comments on density until he has an 
opportunity to review the Density Study that was recently provided by the petitioner.   
 
Traffic Impact 
Mr. Carlisle reported the traffic analysis is not complete.  He is confident that there will 
be significantly less impact from the proposed residential project compared to that of 
an office use, in terms of traffic volume and peak times of travel.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MARCH 22, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Transition 
Mr. Carlisle said the transition with the properties to the north of the proposed 
development is most likely the most difficult issue to address.  The petitioner, at his 
request to more significantly address the transition, increased the setback to 20 feet 
and provided additional landscaping as a buffer.  Mr. Carlisle said more needs to be 
done and suggested reducing the intensity of the buildings by stepping the buildings 
down; i.e., ranch style units on the ends of the buildings that would create a lower 
profile.   
 
Jennifer Mooney, Bob Dudick, Tom Kafkes and John Bender of Joseph Freed and 
Associates were present.  Also present were Gary Jonna of Whitehall Real Estate and 
Ron Phillips of Tadian Homes.   
 
Ms. Mooney provided a brief update of the project and specifically addressed the 
following items.   
 
• Transition to north with respect to setbacks and additional landscaping 
• Off-site landscaping along Alpine and east side of McClure 
• Shadow studies 
• Retail court with respect to depression and perimeter hedge 
• Commitment to public benefit 
• LEED points 
 
Ms. Mooney distributed the following information to members. 
• Mixed-Use Projects completed by Joseph Freed and Associates 
• Letter from Village Manager of Palatine, IL, regarding success of downtown 

redevelopment 
• The Monarch February 8, 2005 Neighborhood Meeting Notes, as well as 

communication with residents addressing concerns 
 
Additional items discussed were: 
• Retail signage 
• Sculpture 
• Project timetable 
• Requirements of preliminary approval; i.e., submission of finite data 
• Public Hearing date and importance of public input 
• Mass relationship 
• Guest parking with respect to location, convenience, inclement weather 
 

___________ 
 
Vice Chair Schultz requested a recess at 9:08 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:18 p.m. 
 

___________ 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MARCH 22, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Discussion continued on the setback for the residences to the north, and some 
members suggested a minimum setback of 30 feet.  It was determined that the 
Planning Department would obtain photographs of the houses to the north and 
provide site plan overlays.  The petitioner was encouraged to view the Rochester 
Commons development and the condominium development located at Wattles and 
John R with respect to setback relationships.   
 
There was a brief discussion on the monetary contribution by the petitioner as relates 
to the large garage located at 3129 Alpine Street.  Ms. Mooney stated that the 
development group contributed as a neighbor to help cover the legal expenses 
involved in the Zoning Board of Appeals due process.  The development group felt 
that $5,000 was an appropriate amount based on their presence in the neighborhood.   
 
Ms. Lancaster provided a brief summary of the appeal before the Zoning Board of 
Appeals relating to the issuance of a building permit for the large garage located at 
3129 Alpine.  She indicated that the matter has been postponed to the April meeting, 
and confirmed that there is no litigation at this time.  
 
Ms. Mooney asked the Planning Commission and Planning Department to consider 
scheduling a Public Hearing in April for the proposed planned unit development.   
 
 

8. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 212) – Freestanding Restaurants 
in the R-C (Research Center) and O-S-C (Office Service Commercial) Zoning Districts 
 
Mr. Miller said the proposed draft language allows for freestanding restaurants in the 
RC (Research Center) and O-S-C (Office Service Commercial) districts.  He asked the 
Commission’s input on (1) permitting banks and daycare facilities as stand-alone uses 
and (2) creating a similar amendment that would permit stand-alone restaurants in the 
O-M (Office Mid Rise) district.  
 
Discussion points were: 
• Special Land Use versus “by right” 
• Daycare facilities with respect to outside play area 
• Special Land Use to allow higher level of design and control of design 
• Integration of sites 
• Flexibility in parking requirements 
• Negotiation with prospective use 
• Relationship between buildings and pedestrian traffic 
• Discouragement of strip center development 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MARCH 22, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 201) – Commercial Recreation in 
the Light Industrial Zoning District 
 
Mr. Miller said the proposed draft language (1) defines indoor commercial recreation 
and (2) permits indoor commercial recreation facilities by right in the M-1 district.  
He asked for direction and input from the Commission.   
 
The members agreed that parking requirements should be addressed within the 
Zoning Ordinance text that would allow sufficient parking in relation to the activity of 
the facility.  The members generally agreed that the use should be permitted by 
special use.  The proposed ZOTA is a high priority item.   
 
 

10. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 216) – Additional Retail Along 
Major Thoroughfares in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed some issues associated with the concept of adding retail uses 
within existing industrial buildings along major thoroughfares.  An overhead drawing 
of the Beaute Craft Building located at 600 W. Maple Road was used to illustrate 
potential site plan issues.   
 
Discussion points were: 
• Parking, landscaping and setback requirements 
• Existing retail vacancy along Maple Road 
• Existing buildings along Maple Road in need of extensive remodeling vs. torn 

down and completely reconstructed 
• Potential mixed-use development; i.e., artist colony 
• Global solution needed; not a building-by-building solution 
• Relation of retail use between Maple Road frontage lots and interior street lots 
• Setting precedence with respect to setback requirements 
• Future land use planning 
 
Mr. Miller summarized that the majority of existing buildings along Maple Road are 
at a 50-foot setback line, and it appears retail use would not be feasible because 
too many problems would be created.  Mr. Miller suggested further strategic 
planning to arrive at short-term fixes and creativity in future land use planning.   
 
 

11. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Mike Baxter and Kim Duford of 3141 McClure, Troy, were present to speak on the 
proposed The Monarch Private Residences (PUD 4).  Their home is directly north of 
The Monarch project. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MARCH 22, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Mr. Baxter voiced opposition to The Monarch as currently proposed and displayed 
on the artist rendering.  Mr. Baxter said they have had discussions with the 
petitioner and details of the project have not been clear.  Mr. Baxter addressed the 
building setbacks.  He suggested a 50-foot minimum setback.  Mr. Baxter said the 
22-story tower would definitely impact them because they would have no privacy.  
They currently have one neighbor, and the project would give them over 200 
neighbors.  Mr. Baxter said the project is taking all of their property without any 
compensation.  He indicated they have offered to sell their home to the petitioner, 
and to date the petitioner has not responded to the offer.  Mr. Baxter informed the 
members that the minutes of the neighborhood meeting provided by the petitioner 
do not convey the hostility of the neighbors.  He said one or two neighbors spoke 
positively of the project but they live further into the subdivision.  Mr. Baxter 
addressed concerns relating to vehicular lights directed toward their bedroom and 
drainage.  Mr. Baxter said he feels the density of the project is too high.  He also 
addressed the existing vegetation between the properties to which the petitioner 
refers.  Mr. Baxter said the existing vegetation between the proposed development 
and their home is called a cyclone fence.   
 
Ms. Duford expressed concerns with construction noise and dirt and the affects of 
the development on their home; i.e., constant opening and closing of 55 garage 
doors, lights from the individual garages and porches, etc.  Ms. Duford said she 
believes their property value as well as their neighbor’s will decrease the minute the 
construction begins.  She said the lack of privacy would take away from the existing 
neighborhood character.  Ms. Duford addressed the trees, flowers and other 
vegetation that would be destroyed to allow the development.  Ms. Duford said they 
suggested to the petitioner that a bigger buffer to the subdivision providing 
additional landscaping, berm, or park area could be provided with the purchase of 
their property.  She indicated the disadvantages in the potential sale of their home.  
Ms. Duford welcomed the Planning Commission members to their home, so they 
could envision the close proximity of the development, and the view of the back side 
of the proposed development.  She addressed the concerns she has with the 
density of the project in relation to an office development.   
 
Mr. Baxter and Ms. Duford were encouraged to provide the Planning Department a 
written list of their concerns for the record and to attend all public hearings and 
meetings with respect to the proposed development.   
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Vleck said it would be very interesting to get the full public comment on the proposed 
PUD 4.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MARCH 22, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Mr. Chamberlain said he personally requested of the City Clerk’s Office to provide the City 
Council with only his name and no personal and confidential information.  He suggested 
that any other member who shares his concerns to personally advise the City Clerk’s 
Office of his/her wishes.  Mr. Chamberlain suggested a site visit of the proposed PUD 4.  
 
Mr. Miller said he would discuss scheduling a special meeting and site visit of the 
proposed PUD 4 with the Chairman.   
 
Ms. Lancaster said it was good to see all the members again. 
 
Mr. Miller reminded the members of the Special Joint Meeting of City Council and Planning 
Commission on March 28, 2005 at 7:30 p.m. at the Police/Fire Training Facility.   
 
Vice Chair Schultz briefly reviewed the discussion items and intent of the Special Joint 
Meeting.  He said the open meeting would be moderated by the City Manager, and asked 
that any member not able to attend to please advise the Planning Department.   
 
 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 10:54 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Vice Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Final\03-22-05 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 



TROY DAZE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT        MARCH 22, 2005 

 
TROY DAZE ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

 
A.  CALL TO ORDER 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Advisory Committee was held Tuesday, March 22, 2005 at the 
Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to order at 7:34 pm. 
 
B.  MEMBERS PRESENT 
Present: 

Jim Cyrulewski     
Marilyn Musick      
Cecile Dilley  
Kessie Kaltsounis  
Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski     
Bob Berk 
Bill Hall 
Mike Gonda 
Jeff Stewart (absent)  
Bob Preston 
 

City Staff Present: 
Jeff Biegler 
Cindy Stewart 
Bob Matlick 
Gerry Scherlinck 
Tonya Perry 
  
EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 
Resolution # TD-2005-03-09 
Moved by Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski 
Seconded by Kessie Kaltsounis 
 
RESOLVED that absent member is excused. 
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Resolution # TD-2005-03-10 
Moved by Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski 
Seconded by Cecile Dilley 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes from the February 22, 2005 Troy Daze Advisory Committee are 
approved.   
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01i



TROY DAZE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT        MARCH 22, 2005 
 
 
C. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Tabled 
 

D.   OLD BUSINESS 
1. Volunteer Committee -Bob Preston reports no meeting has yet been held. 

Meeting set for April 12th 
    
Resolution # TD-2005-03-11 
Moved by   Kessie Kaltsounis 
Seconded by Marilyn Musick 
 
RESOLVED that the Troy Daze Advisory Committee Meeting be adjourned at 7:46 p.m. 
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED     
 
_____________________________ 
Bob Berk, Vice Chairperson 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Recording Secretary 
 
 



TROY DAZE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT        MARCH 22, 2005 
 

TROY DAZE FESTIVAL COMMITTEE  
 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Festival Committee was held Tuesday, March 22, 2005 
at the Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to order at 7:47 pm. 
 
A.  ROLL CALL 
 
Present*:

Leonard Bertin 
Mike Gonda 
Bob Preston 
JoAnn Preston 
Cecile Dilley  
Bill Hall 
Kessie Kaltsounis 

Bob Berk 
Jim Cyrulewski   
Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski 
Tom Clark  
Tarcisio Massaini  
Cynthia Buchanan 

   Doris Schuchter  
   Dan O’Brien  
   Shannon DeVries           
  

City Staff Present:
Jeff Biegler    
Bob Matlick  

   Tonya Perry 
   Gerry Scherlinck  
   Cindy Stewart 
    
B.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Change to February 22, 2005 meeting minutes 
 E. 1.  Meeting with four Advisory Board Members 
 
Moved by Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski 
Seconded by Marilyn Musick 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes with corrections from the February 22, 2005 Troy Daze Festival 
Committee are approved. 
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C.  TREASURER’S REPORT 
As of 2/28/05 
Revenue: $158,657.06 (no changes) 
Exp: $171,894.58 
Change of $251.09 from 1/31/05 
$100.00 sick pay 
$1.09 postage 
$150.00 entertainment 
 



TROY DAZE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT        MARCH 22, 2005 

• Received Knights of Columbus Revenue check 
• Need to collect from Jaycees (contact Laura F) 
•    Be sure to add this language to contracts regarding organizations providing services 

(petting zoo, 50-50 raffle, Jaycee Run) PAY 15% OF NET REVENUE TO 
FESTIVAL.  This fee was established approximately twenty years ago.  This 
ensures the non-profit will have an exclusive event. 
 

D.  CORRESPONDENCE 
1. March Meeting Notice 
2. Letter to Congressman Knollenberg regarding flag request 
3. Memo to City Manager regarding Troy Daze Fees 
4. Memo to Carol Anderson regarding Troy Daze Requests 
5. Memo regarding Fee Increase for Jaycee 5K Run/Walk  

 
E.  NOT AT THIS MEETING 
 
F.   
City Manager Follow-up Meeting 
Bob Berk requested meeting with John Szerlag – took place two weeks ago.  Wanted to talk 
about increases in fees and changes to budget before information went to City Council.  Have 
heard concerns related to canceling senior event and minimization of parade and wanted 
John Szerlag to be aware of possible changes to Festival. 
 
Corporate Sponsor Subcommittee Meeting 
Discussed sending out press release with possible changes.  Instead, turn this into positive 
by going after new potential sponsors.  We have not received any returns from sponsors 
except Henry Ford Hospital (in kind sponsor). 
 
Jim C and Mike G trying to meet with Coke as possible sponsor.  Committee will continue to 
call last year’s sponsors.  Verbal commitments are in for approximately four sponsors. 
 
CS – send list of new potential sponsors to Jim C 
 
G.  OLD BUSINESS 

  
1. Activities Event List 

• Subdivide the list into 3 categories – events, revenue, operations 
• Compare with demographics 
• Change scale 1-5 or 1-10 

 
 
Motion to subdivide the list into 3 categories (events, revenue, operations) 
Send back out for committee to prioritize events according to similar list from demographics 
Moved by Mike Gonda 
Seconded by Leonard Bertin 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 



TROY DAZE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT        MARCH 22, 2005 

 
2. Suggestions List Review 

 
Ability Expo 

• Move closer to headquarters:  have operations committee look at layout.  Would there 
be another use for shared tent. 

• Send Ability Expo flyer to Troy Special Education Department for distribution 
• Beaumont Health Fair in same tent as Ability Expo – dead issue 
• Shuttle drivers take seniors past Expo 
• Change event to Friday (works if sharing draft show tent). Saturday need different tent. 
 
Ability Expo concept might not work at Festival.  Long distance for disabled to travel to 
tent, uneven pavement/terrain.  Best suited to a mall or community center.  Committee 
needs to assess the situation and will report back 

 
Booths 

• All are workable 
 
Committee Food and Refreshment 

• Done 
 
Corporate Sponsorship 

• All are possible 
 
Magic Cauldron Ent/Games 

• All ok (see list) 
 
Mr. Troy 

• All ok 
 
Pony Rides/Petting Zoo 

• Have open for Special Children’s Day (vendor will provide coloring books for kids) 
• Feed animals after they eat 

 
Shuttle Service 

• All ok 
 
Volunteer Committee 

• Sub Committee met once – will report next month 
 

3. Action Item List 
 
Do we want to have special meeting for pursuing other fundraising options? 
Week of April 11 or April 18 – 5:30 p.m.  Suggestion for Wednesday, April 13th 6:00 p.m. 
Send email regarding place.  JB – check Community Center     /   CS – check City Hall 

 
Meeting is adjourned at 9:08 p.m.   



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   March 23, 2005 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC) was held on March 23, 2005 at 7:00 PM at City 
Hall in the Lower Level Conference Room, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  Maniesh Joshi and Min 
Chong called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Min Chong (co-chair) 

Alexandra (Sasha) Bozimowski 
Maniesh Joshi (co-chair) 
Rishi Joshi  
Andrew Kalinowski 
Manessa Shaw (arrived 7:10 PM) 
Nicole Vitale  
YuJing Wang 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Juliana D’Amico  
Catherine Herzog  
Jessica Kraft (excused) 
Monika Raj  
Karen Wullaert (excused) 
 

ALSO PRESENT:  Laura Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 
                              
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 
 

Resolution # TY-2005-03-09 
 Moved by Chong 
 Seconded by Bozimowski 
          RESOLVED, That the minutes of 2/23/05 be approved 
           Yes: 8 
           No:      None  
 Absent: 5 – D’Amico, Herzog, Kraft, Raj, Wullaert 
           MOTION CARRIED 

 
3. Attendance Report: To note and file 
4. Visitor: Jamie Martone, President of Teens Taking Action – to speak about Spring Break 

Troy Style 
5. Membership Update: 
 Vacant Seats: 9 applications on file; 6 from 2004, 3 from 2005; deadline is 4/15/05 

Also, looking ahead: Succession Plan for Seats to be Vacated 5/05 Due to Graduations 
(at least 8 seats will be vacated): 
 Feb, March: City accepting applications; TYC to promote; Application Deadline is 

4/15 
 April 27th TYC Meeting: TYC interview applicants and recommend students for 

appointment; brainstormed questions to ask in interviews 
 May: Send recommendations to City Council 
 May 18th TYC Meeting: New members attend meeting with outgoing members 
 August: Terms officially begin for new members 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01j



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   March 23, 2005 
 
 

 2

 
6. Troy Daze Festival Update: Youth Council Sponsored Entertainment Event 

 Seeking Members to Help  
o Recruit entertainment: band(s) 
o Recruit or serve as Master of Ceremonies 
o Coordinate publicity 

 
7. Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provided Advance Notification  
 

 Resolution # TY-2005-03-10 
 Moved by M Joshi 
 Seconded by Wang 

 RESOLVED, That members Kraft and Wullaert are excused.  
 Yes: All - 8 
           No:      None  
 Absent: 5 – D’Amico, Herzog, Kraft, Raj, Wullaert 
           MOTION CARRIED 
 
  

Youth Council Comments 
      PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 
Next Meeting: Reminder Next Meeting: WED APRIL 27th 7:00 P.M. 

@ CITY HALL (Interviews for TYC Applicants – watch mail for application packets!) 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:33 P.M. 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Min Chong, Co-chair 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Laura A. Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES - Draft April 12, 2005 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held Tuesday, April 12, 2005, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. City Clerk Bartholomew called the Meeting to order at 
7:30 P.M. 

ROLL CALL:  
PRESENT:  Timothy Dewan, City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew 
ABSENT:  David Anderson 
ALSO PRESENT: Deputy City Clerk Barbara Holmes 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of February 23, 2005  
 
Resolution # EC-2005-01-06 
Motion by Dewan 
Seconded by Bartholomew 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of February 23, 2005 are approved as submitted. 
 
Yes:  Bartholomew, Dewan  
No: None 
Absent: Anderson   

Approval of Precinct Inspector 
 

Resolution # EC-2005-01-07 
Motion by Bartholomew 
Seconded by Dewan 

 
City Clerk Bartholomew presented the proposed listing of Election Inspectors for 
appointment for the Election of Tuesday, May 3, 2005. 
  
Resolution # EC-2004-09-08 
Motion by Bartholomew 
Seconded by Anderson 
 
RESOLVED, That Election Inspectors be appointed for the Tuesday, May 3, 2005 Election, 
as presented by the City Clerk, is hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes:  Bartholomew, Dewan  
No: None 
Absent: Anderson   

Adjournment:  
The meeting was adjourned at 7:34 P.M. 
 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01k



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES - Draft April 12, 2005 
 
 



morrellca
Text Box
J-02a



morrellca
Text Box
J-02b



morrellca
Text Box
J-02c



morrellca
Text Box
J-02d



DATE:         April 1, 2005

TO:             John Szerlag, City Manager
FROM:        Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:   Permits issued during the Month of March 2005

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Add/Alter 7 $2,359,800.00 $12,470.00

Sub Total 7 $2,359,800.00 $12,470.00

COMMERCIAL
Fnd./Shell New 2 $1,297,500.00 $6,710.00
Add/Alter 19 $6,120,700.00 $21,385.00
Parking Lot 1 $52,000.00 $370.00
Kiosk 2 $9,000.00 $155.00

Sub Total 24 $7,479,200.00 $28,620.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 38 $8,516,364.00 $47,055.00
Add/Alter 19 $718,326.00 $5,530.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 5 $66,900.00 $775.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 1 $95,000.00 $585.00
Fire Repair 2 $144,097.00 $905.00
Temporary Sales Trailer 1 $2,500.00 $55.00
Wreck 1 $0.00 $60.00

Sub Total 67 $9,543,187.00 $54,965.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
Add/Alter 4 $7,066.00 $160.00

Sub Total 4 $7,066.00 $160.00

MULTIPLE
Add/Alter 2 $16,000.00 $260.00

Sub Total 2 $16,000.00 $260.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Signs 35 $0.00 $3,885.00
Fences 4 $0.00 $70.00

Sub Total 39 $0.00 $3,955.00

TOTAL 143 $19,405,253.00 $100,430.00

Page 1

morrellca
Text Box
J-02e



PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF MARCH 2005
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 38 $380.00
Cert. of Occupancy 66 $4,308.50
Plan Review 204 $15,814.00
Microfilm 31 $428.00
Building Permits 143 $100,430.00
Electrical Permits 329 $16,539.00
Heating Permits 305 $11,788.00
Air Cond. Permits 64 $2,575.00
Refrigeration Permits 4 $360.00
Plumbing Permits 97 $8,180.00
Storm Sewer Permits 29 $854.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 31 $1,079.00
Sewer Taps 43 $12,636.00

TOTAL 1384 $175,371.50

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF MARCH 2005
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 30 $150.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 35 $525.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 7 $7.00
Sewer Inst.-Reg. 5 $250.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 5 $50.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 3 $45.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 0 $0.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 12 $120.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 5 $75.00

TOTAL 102 $1,222.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2004 2004 2005 2005

JANUARY 100 $5,235,481.00 93 $6,617,765.00

FEBRUARY 130 $21,354,496.00 133 $8,586,755.00

MARCH 158 $9,372,242.00 143 $19,405,253.00

APRIL 178 $14,158,227.00 0 $0.00

MAY 232 $11,511,644.00 0 $0.00

JUNE 232 $16,224,865.00 0 $0.00

JULY 178 $19,788,711.00 0 $0.00

AUGUST 224 $11,179,780.00 0 $0.00

SEPTEMBER 198 $13,582,037.00 0 $0.00

OCTOBER 197 $11,540,976.00 0 $0.00

NOVEMBER 161 $6,232,506.00 0 $0.00

DECEMBER 148 $7,316,487.00 0 $0.00

TOTAL 2136 $147,497,452.00 369 $34,609,773.00



2004 2004

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2005

3

22

38

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35
40
45
50

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

A
pr

il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r



Apr 1, 2005 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF MARCH 2005Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter 2800 W BIG BEAVER Y-315  495,257.00ANDREW MAXX CONSTRUCTION
Commercial, Add/Alter 2801 W BIG BEAVER C-105  300,000.00PATRICK MONAHAN
Commercial, Add/Alter 5445 CORPORATE 100  2,261,915.00TODD SACHSE
Commercial, Add/Alter 1250 STEPHENSON A  750,000.00JOE NEWOOD
Commercial, Add/Alter 360 W FOURTEEN MILE  120,000.00LAKEVIEW CONSTRUCTION INC
Commercial, Add/Alter 2800 W BIG BEAVER W-310  275,728.00RETAIL PLANNING & CONSTRUCTION
Commercial, Add/Alter 2801 W BIG BEAVER C-143  495,000.00SKANSKA USA BUILDING, INC.
Commercial, Add/Alter 2801 W BIG BEAVER E-150  150,000.00SACHSE CONSTRUCTION
Commercial, Add/Alter 2801 W BIG BEAVER E-150  950,000.00BRAVO DEVELOPMENT

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  5,797,900.00

Commercial, Fnd/Shell New 1985 W BIG BEAVER  300,000.00MARC COOKE
Commercial, Fnd/Shell New 4908 JOHN R 4972  997,500.00LAITH JONNA

Commercial, Fnd/Shell NewTotal  1,297,500.00

Industrial, Add/Alter 1755 MAPLELAWN A  2,000,000.00CHARLES BENNETT
Industrial, Add/Alter 1225 E BIG BEAVER  250,000.00BEHR AMERICA INC

Industrial, Add/AlterTotal  2,250,000.00

Total Valuation:  9,345,400.00Records  14



TO: MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL 
FROM: LORI GRIGG BLUHM, CITY ATTORNEY 

ROBERT F. DAVISSON, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 
CAROLYN F. GLOSBY, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 
SUSAN M. LANCASTER, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 
ALLAN T. MOTZNY, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 

DATE: April 11, 2005 

  
  

SUBJECT: 2005 FIRST QUARTER LITIGATION REPORT 
 

 
The following is the quarterly report of pending litigation and other matters of 

interest.  The accomplishments during the first quarter of 2005 are in bold. 
 

A. ANATOMY OF THE CASE 
 

Once a lawsuit has been filed against the City or City employees, the City Attorney’s 
office prepares a memo regarding the allegations in the complaint.  At that time, our office 
requests authority from Council to represent the City and/or the employees.  Our office then 
engages in the discovery process, which generally lasts for several months, and involves 
interrogatories, requests for documents, and depositions.  After discovery, almost all cases 
are required to go through case evaluation (also called mediation).  In this process, three 
attorneys evaluate the potential damages, and render an award.  This award can be 
accepted by both parties, and will conclude the case.  However, if either party rejects a case 
evaluation award, there are potential sanctions if the trial result is not as favorable as the 
mediation award.  In many cases, a motion for summary disposition will be filed at the 
conclusion of discovery.  In all motions for summary disposition, the Plaintiff’s version of the 
facts are accepted as true, and if the Plaintiff still has failed to set forth a viable claim against 
the City, then dismissal will be granted.  It generally takes at least a year before a case will be 
presented to a jury.  It also takes approximately two years before a case will be finalized in 
the Michigan Court of Appeals and/or the Michigan Supreme Court.   

 
 

B. ZONING CASES 
 

These are cases where the property owner has sued for a use other than that for which 
the land is currently zoned and/or the City is suing a property owner to require 
compliance with the existing zoning provisions.  
 

1. Troy v. Papadelis and Papadelis v Troy - This is a case filed by the City 
against Telly’s Nursery, seeking to enjoin the business from using the 
northern parcel for commercial purposes.  After a lengthy appellate history, 
an order has been entered in the Oakland County Circuit Court, requiring 
compliance on or before April 29, 2002.  The Papadelis family failed to 
comply with the Court’s order, and therefore a Contempt Motion was filed.  
Oakland County Circuit Court Judge Colleen O’Brien determined that the 
defendants were in contempt of court, and required them to pay $1,000 to 
the City of Troy.  However, the Court also determined that the defendants 

morrellca
Text Box
J-02f



 2

were in compliance with the City of Troy zoning ordinances as of the date 
of the court decision.  The Troy City Council authorized an appeal of this 
decision to the Michigan Court of Appeals.  It was filed on September 27, 
2002. The neighbors filed an application for leave to appeal, which was 
denied by the Michigan Court of Appeals on 2/10/03.   After receiving 
criminal citations from the City for expansion of the business, Papadelis 
filed a federal lawsuit against the City of Troy, alleging civil rights violations 
and seeking an injunction against the prosecution and/or further expansion.  
The neighboring property owners have filed a Motion to Intervene, which 
was granted by Federal US District Court Judge Arthur Tarnow.  Troy filed 
a counterclaim in the Federal Court case but it was dismissed by Judge 
Tarnow, who refused to exercise jurisdiction over the counter-complaint, 
since it would require him to interpret the opinion of the Oakland County 
Circuit Court Judge.  Troy has subsequently filed two separate motions to 
dismiss the Papadelis complaint. One of the motions asserts the same 
jurisdictional claim that was raised against the counter-complaint.  The 
hearing on both motions is scheduled for 4/7/05.  Discovery continues 
in the interim. 

 
2. Williams et. al v. City of Troy and Ken Freund-  Some of the residents in 

the Middlesex Country Homesites Subdivision have filed this lawsuit 
against the City and developer Ken Freund.  The lawsuit challenges that 
the City of Troy improperly approved the Freund Site Condominium project 
without requiring an official replat of the property.  The Troy City Council 
granted preliminary approval of the site condominium plan on March 3, 
2003. Each of the parties filed a Motion for Summary Disposition. On 
9/3/03, Judge Kuhn heard oral arguments from all parties on the Motions 
for Summary Disposition.  On 3/24/04, the Court entered an order that 
holds that a re-plat is not required for site condominium developments.  
This resulted in the Court granting Summary Disposition in favor of the City 
on Counts I and II of the Plaintiffs’ Complaint. However, the Court failed to 
rule on Count III, a violation of substantive due process allegation. The City 
has filed a Supplemental Brief asking for dismissal of Count III.  Judge 
Warren has set a hearing date on the City’s second Motion for 
Summary Disposition for May 2005.   

 
3. Rathka v. City of Troy – This lawsuit was filed by Roy Rathka, Jr. and 

concerns property he owns on Canham, a gravel drive located south of 
Square Lake Road and west of Livernois Road.  Mr. Rathka claims he was 
wrongfully denied a building permit to build a duplex on Canham.  The 
permit was denied pursuant to Section 40.10.01 of the Troy Zoning 
Ordinance that requires proposed building in one or two family residential 
districts to front on a public street that has been accepted for maintenance 
by the City.  The City filed a motion for summary disposition, which was 
granted on 6/21/04.  On 6/28/04, Plaintiff filed an appeal of the dismissal to 
the Michigan Court of Appeals.  Rathka has filed three motions for an 
extension of time to file his appellate brief.  The first two motions 



 3

were granted but the last motion was denied. Rathka has now filed a 
motion to hold the appeal in abeyance to allow him to pursue 
settlement negotiations with the City.    

 
4.  Long Lake Road Development Partners v. City of Troy – Plaintiffs served 

this zoning challenge against the City on March 29, 2004.  Plaintiffs own 
the 14.5-acre parcel of property on the south side of Long Lake, west of 
Rochester Road.  This property was the subject of an earlier zoning 
challenge, Goodman v. Troy, which was dismissed in favor of the City.  The 
property is currently zoned R-1T (medium density residential).  Plaintiffs 
requested a commercial re-zoning of the property, which was denied by 
City Council on January 26, 2004, in accordance with the Planning 
Commission recommendation of November 11, 2003.  Plaintiffs argue that 
the refusal to re-zone the property to B-3 is arbitrary and capricious, and a 
violation of procedural due process, equal protection, and an 
unconstitutional taking of property.  When Troy advised Plaintiffs it would 
be filing a motion to dismiss the case, the Plaintiffs voluntarily agreed to 
dismiss the case without prejudice.  The order for dismissal was entered 
1/ 21/05. 

 
 

C.  EMINENT DOMAIN CASES 
 

These are cases in which the City wishes to acquire property for a public 
improvement and the property owner wishes to contest either the necessity or the 
compensation offered. In cases where only the compensation is challenged, the City 
obtains possession of the property almost immediately, which allows for major projects to 
be completed.    

 
 

1.  Parkland Acquisition (Sections 22, 24, 36) 
 

 Troy v. Premium Construction, L.L.C. – A bench trial began on 
2/22/05.  The City has called seven of its thirteen witnesses. The 
Court has had to interrupt our bench trial proceedings with a 
number of criminal jury trials.  We remain on stand-by status, 
ready to continue the trial at the Court’s call.  

 
 

  2.  Big Beaver Improvements – Rochester to Dequindre  
 

Troy v Saoud & Nidhal Jamo – The City obtained an Order for 
Possession and Payment of Just Compensation into Escrow on 
1/5/05.  The case was filed since the City could not otherwise 
get clear title, due to a dispute between the mortgage company 
and the former property owners.  As a result, the just 
compensation was escrowed with the City until a further Court 



 4

order concerning the disbursement.  The parties have agreed to 
release payment on one of the outstanding mortgages 
(Ameriquest).  The remainder of the just compensation remains 
in escrow until the other parties reach a final resolution of all 
claims to the money.  
 
 

D. CIVIL RIGHTS CASES 
 

 These are cases that are generally filed in the federal courts, under 42 U.S.C. Section 
1983.   In these cases, the Plaintiffs argue that their civil rights were somehow violated by the 
City and/or the police officers of the City of Troy.  
 

 
 Maria Elena Hunciag v. Troy- This is an alleged employment discrimination 

case filed on July 1, 2003.  According to the complaint, Ms. Hunciag argues 
that she was denied the position of Troy Museum Curator due to alleged age, 
gender, and/or national origin discrimination.  A Motion for Summary Judgment 
was filed with the Court, and the parties are waiting for the Court to schedule a 
hearing on the motion.  On January 12, 2005, Judge Victoria Roberts 
granted the Motion for Summary Judgment and dismissed all federal 
claims.  Ms. Hunciag had also asserted some state law claims, which the 
Judge dismissed on jurisdictional grounds.  The Court’s dismissal of the 
state law claims allows Plaintiff to file a new complaint in the Oakland 
County Circuit Court, where the state law claims could still be 
adjudicated.   

 
 

E. PERSONAL INJURY AND DAMAGE CASES 
 

These are cases in which the Plaintiff claims that the City or City employees were 
negligent in some manner that caused injuries and/or property damage.  The City enjoys 
governmental immunity from ordinary negligence, unless the case falls within one of four 
exceptions to governmental immunity:  a) defective highway exception, which includes 
sidewalks and road way claims; b) public building exception, which imposes liability only 
when injuries are caused by a defect in a public building; c) motor vehicle exception, 
which imposes liability when an employee is negligent when operating their vehicle; d) 
proprietary exception, where liability is imposed when an activity is conducted primarily 
to create a profit, and the activity somehow causes injury or damage to another; e)  
trespass nuisance exception, which imposes liability for the flooding cases.     

 
  

1. Nancy Cook v. Troy and Makowski-  The City was served with this lawsuit 
on 2/21/04.  According to the complaint, Ms. Cook sustained a fall on the 
sidewalk at 561 Burtman Street, the home owned by co-defendant, Ronald 
Makowski.  This fall allegedly occurred on 10/18/03.  The complaint alleges 
that the City is liable for her injuries under the defective highway exception 



 5

to governmental immunity.  The complaint alleges that the sidewalk was 
not kept in reasonable repair.  The case was evaluated in September 2004 
by an Oakland Circuit Court panel in the amount of $35,000, which the City 
has rejected.  The Court ordered the case into non-binding facilitation to 
encourage settlement, which failed to resolve the case.  By order dated 
2/10/05, the Oakland Circuit Court Judge Michael Warren granted the 
City’s Motion for Summary Disposition.  An order closing the case 
was entered by the Court on 3/1/05. 

 
2. Doris and Morris Story v. Troy– The City was served with this lawsuit on 

2/24/04.  On the morning of 5/27/03, Doris Story, a California resident, was 
walking on the sidewalk in front of the residence at 5737 Patterson Drive.  
According to the complaint, she “tripped on an uneven and dangerous buckle 
in the defective sidewalk.”  Her injuries from the fall include a fractured right 
wrist and arm, in addition to pain, limited range of motion, swelling, and 
scarring from surgery.  Morris Story has asserted a claim for loss of 
consortium.  The case was ordered into facilitation by Judge Chabot, 
which occurred on 3/3/05 and failed to resolve the matter.  A jury trial has 
been scheduled for 5/12/05.   

4.   Estate of Leslie McPherson v. Troy - This case was filed against the City on 
behalf of the Estate of Leslie McPherson by Trudy McPherson as Personal 
Representative.  The lawsuit is based on a sewer back up that occurred in 
August 2002 and is brought under the newly revised statutory exception to 
governmental immunity, MCL 691.1416, et seq.  Plaintiff’s alleged damages 
include claims of structural damage and diminution in value of the property, 
plus the costs of sanitizing and cleaning the home.  Additionally, plaintiff claims 
Leslie McPherson’s exposure to the backed up sewage resulted in his death.  
The case has been settled for a nominal sum.  An order of dismissal will 
be entered after Plaintiff signs a release and receives a settlement check. 

 

F. MISCELLANEOUS CASES 
 

1.   Catherine Norris and Kathleen Livingway v. City of Troy – This lawsuit is 
identical to lawsuits filed in 12 other communities in the State of Michigan.  The 
complaint asserts that the revenue paid by cable television companies, 
pursuant to franchise agreements, constitutes an impermissible tax that is 
prohibited by the Headlee Amendment.  A motion for summary disposition, in 
addition to a motion for class certification, was scheduled for 4/21/04.  Plaintiffs 
have filed appeals in several of the lawsuits against some of the other twelve 
communities in the Michigan Court of Appeals.  As a result, Troy’s case is 
stayed until these appeals are concluded.  The briefs on appeal have been 
filed.   

2. Kent Fehribach v. City of Troy – In this lawsuit, there are two challenges to the 
City’s political sign ordinance.  Plaintiff is challenging the restriction of placing 



 6

political signs in residential areas more than 30 days prior to an election and 
the two sign per residence limit.  Plaintiff filed a motion for a temporary 
restraining order, which was heard in Judge Gadola’s absence by Judge 
Steeh.  Judge Steeh temporarily restrained the City from enforcing the two 
provisions against the plaintiff until Judge Gadola entered a subsequent order. 
An Opinion and Order Granting Preliminary Injunction was entered on 
10/18/04.  The City has filed its answer and affirmative defenses.  
Meanwhile, amendment of the sign ordinance is underway. 

3. RWT Building, LLC v Troy – The lawsuit was filed to amend the 1924 recorded 
plat for the Crestwood Site Condominium development, which was recently 
approved by City Council.  The property cannot be developed in accordance 
with the original plat, since the lot sizes would not meet current City standards. 
On 1/21/05, the Court entered a stipulated Order Vacating a Portion of 
Crestfield Subdivision.  This matter is now closed. 

4. Sunset Excavating, Inc. v MDOT - Sunset has indirectly sued the City of 
Troy for an alleged change order in the Big Beaver Road Project (from I-75 
to Rochester Road).  Sunset argues that the unexpected requirement to 
remove some of the existing soil and replace it with a finer grade of soil 
justifies an additional $190,000 in compensation.  Since the Project was 
partially financed with federal funds, MDOT was required to serve as the 
coordinator of the project, and therefore signed the contract with Sunset 
Excavating, Inc.  As the contracting party, MDOT is actually the named 
defendant in this lawsuit, even though it is the City of Troy that assumes all 
liability for the Project.  Discovery is on-going.  

 
 

G.  CRIMINAL CASE APPEALS 

1. People v. Douglas Cochran – Mr. Cochran was found responsible for a 
prohibited left turn at a formal hearing (a civil infraction action).  He filed an 
appeal of this action with the Oakland County Circuit Court.  He argues that he 
was justified in committing the civil infraction offense, due to alleged improper 
signage and a failure to warn at an on-going road construction project.  When 
Mr. Cochran did not timely file his appeal brief, the court scheduled a show 
cause hearing.   At that hearing, the court granted Mr. Cochran an extension of 
time to file his brief.  Again, he failed to timely submit his brief.  On March 23, 
2005, the Court entered an order, dismissing this appeal.   

2. People v. Vincent Ankawi – Mr. Ankawi was found guilty of Operating While 
Intoxicated.  He has filed an appeal of his conviction with the Oakland County 
Court.  Appeal briefs have been filed and oral argument has been 
scheduled for 4/13/05. 

If you have any questions concerning these cases, please let us know.   

 



morrellca
Text Box
J-02g

































TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John Lamerato, Asst. City Manager/Finance & Admin.  

Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
   
SUBJECT:  AGENDA ITEM  – ICMA Survey  
 
DATE:   April 13, 2005 
 
 
Attached is the ICMA Report of Results and the Report of Normative Comparisons 
for the City of Troy from the National Citizen Survey submitted by the National 
Research Center, Inc. 
 
Following the mailing of a pre survey notification postcard to a random sample of 
1,200 households, surveys were mailed to the same residences approximately one 
week later.  Completed surveys were received from 544 residents, for a response 
rate of 49%.  Typically the response rates obtained on citizen surveys range from 
25% to 40%. 
 
It is customary to describe the precision of estimates made from surveys by a “level 
of confidence” (or margin of error).  The 95 percent confidence level for this survey of 
1,200 residents is generally no greater than plus or minus 5 percentage points 
around any given percent reported for the entire sample. 
 
The positives from the survey include 90% of respondents rating the overall quality of 
life in Troy as “good” or “excellent.”  The Community Participation questions showed 
a high percentage of respondents engaging in various activities throughout the 
community including 81% reporting visiting a park in Troy and 89% reading the Troy 
Today quarterly newsletter. 
 
 
 
 
CS  

 

morrellca
Text Box
J-02h



 

 
 

The National 

C I T I Z E N  S U R V E Y ™  

2 0 0 5  
Report of Results for the 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Submitted by: 

NATIONAL RESEARCH CENTER, INC. 
3005 30th Street • Boulder, CO  80301 
tel. 303-444-7863 • fax. 303-441-1145 
e-mail: ncs@n-r-c.com • www.n-r-c.com  Febraury 2005 
 



  
Table of Contents 

 

Survey Background....................................................................................................................................... 1 

 About The National Citizen Survey™ .............................................................................................. 1 

 Understanding the Results............................................................................................................... 2 

Community Life ............................................................................................................................................. 7 

 Quality of Life ................................................................................................................................... 7 

 Ratings of Community Characteristics in Troy................................................................................. 9 

 Perceptions of Safety ..................................................................................................................... 15 

 Community Participation ................................................................................................................ 17 

Local Government....................................................................................................................................... 19 

 Public Trust .................................................................................................................................... 19 

 Services Provided by Troy ............................................................................................................. 21 

 The City of Troy Employees........................................................................................................... 30 

Additional Questions ................................................................................................................................... 32 

Appendix I: Frequency of Responses to All Survey Questions .................................................................. 34 

Appendix II: Survey Methodology ............................................................................................................... 46 

 Sampling ........................................................................................................................................ 46 

 Survey Administration .................................................................................................................... 46 

 Response Rate and Confidence Intervals ..................................................................................... 47 

 Weighting and Analyzing the Data................................................................................................. 47 

Appendix III: Survey Materials .................................................................................................................... 50 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 1 

SU
R
VE

Y 
BA

CK
G

R
O

U
N

D
 

 

 
URVEY BACKGROUND 
ABOUT THE NATIONAL CITIZEN SURVEYTM 

 
The National Citizen SurveyTM (The NCSTM) is a collaborative effort between 

National Research Center, Inc. (NRC) and the International City/County 

Management Association (ICMA).   

The survey and its administration are standardized to assure high quality survey 

methods and comparable results across The National Citizen SurveyTM 

jurisdictions.  Participating households are selected at random and the household 

member who responds is selected without bias.  Multiple mailings give each 

household more than one chance to participate with self-addressed and postage 

paid envelopes.  Results are statistically reweighted to reflect the proper 

demographic composition of the entire community. 

The National Citizen SurveyTM customized for this jurisdiction was developed in 

close cooperation with local jurisdiction staff.  The City of Troy staff selected 

items from a menu of questions about services and community problems; they 

defined the jurisdiction boundaries NRC used for sampling; and they provided the 

appropriate letterhead and signatures for mailings.  City of Troy staff also 

determined local interest in a variety of add-on options to The National Citizen 

SurveyTM Basic Service. 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 2 

SU
R
VE

Y 
BA

CK
G

R
O

U
N

D
 

 

UNDERSTANDING THE RESULTS 
Survey Administration 

Following the mailing of a pre-survey notification postcard to a random sample of 

1,200 households, surveys were mailed to the same residences approximately 

one week later.  A reminder letter and a new survey were sent to the same 

households after two weeks.  Of the mailed postcards, 88 were undeliverable 

due to vacant or “not found” addresses.  Completed surveys were received from 

544 residents, for a response rate of 49%.  Typically, the response rates 

obtained on citizen surveys range from 25% to 40%.   

It is customary to describe the precision of estimates made from surveys by a 

“level of confidence” (or margin of error).  The 95 percent confidence level for this 

survey of 1,200 residents is generally no greater than plus or minus 5 percentage 

points around any given percent reported for the entire sample. 

The results were weighted to reflect the demographic profile of all residents in the 

City of Troy.  (For more information on the survey methodology, see Appendix II.   

A copy of the survey materials can be found in Appendix III.) 

Survey Validity 

The question of survey validity has two parts: 1) how can we be confident that 

the results from our sample are representative of the results we would have 

gotten had we administered the survey to the entire population? and 2) how 

closely do the perspectives recorded on the survey reflect what residents really 

believe or do? 

To answer the first question, we use the best survey research practices for the 

resources spent to assure that the results from the sample reflect the opinions of 

residents in the entire jurisdiction.  These practices include: 

  1) Using a mail-out/mail-back methodology, which typically gets a higher 

response rate than phone for the same dollars spent. 

  2) Selecting households at random within the jurisdiction. 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 3 

SU
R
VE

Y 
BA

CK
G

R
O

U
N

D
 

  3) Over-sampling attached units to improve response from hard-to-reach, 

lower income, or younger apartment dwellers. 

  4) Selecting the respondent within the household using an unbiased sampling 

procedure1.   

  5) Contacting potential respondents three times to encourage response from 

people who may have different opinions or habits than those who would 

respond with only a single prompt. 

  6) Soliciting response on jurisdiction letterhead signed by the highest ranking 

elected official or staff member. 

  7) Providing a self-addressed, postage-paid return envelope. 

  8) Offering the survey in Spanish when appropriate and requested by City 

officials. 

  9) Using the most recent available information about the characteristics of 

jurisdiction residents to reweight the data to reflect the demographics of the 

population. 

The answer to the second question about how closely the perspectives recorded 

on the survey reflect what residents really believe or do is more complex.  

Resident responses to surveys are influenced by a variety of factors.  For 

questions about service quality, residents’ expectations for service quality play a 

role as well as the “objective” quality of the service provided, the way the resident 

perceives the entire community (that is, the context in which the service is 

provided), the scale on which the resident is asked to record her opinion and, of 

course, the opinion, itself, that a resident holds about the service.  Similarly a 

resident’s report of certain behaviors is colored by what he or she believes is the 

socially desirable response (e.g. reporting tolerant behaviors toward “oppressed 

groups,” likelihood of voting a tax increase for services to poor people, use of 

alternative modes of travel to work besides the single occupancy vehicle), her 

memory of the actual behavior (if it is not a question speculating about future 

actions, like a vote), her confidence that she can be honest without suffering any 

                                                      
1 The birthday method requests that the respondent in the household be the adult (18 years old or 
older) who most recently had a birthday, irrespective of year of birth.   



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 4 

SU
R
VE

Y 
BA

CK
G

R
O

U
N

D
 

negative consequences (thus the need for anonymity) as well as the actual 

behavior itself.  

How closely survey results come to recording the way a person really feels or 

behaves often is measured by the coincidence of reported behavior with 

observed current behavior (e.g. driving habits), reported intentions to behave with 

observed future behavior (e.g. voting choices) or reported opinions about current 

community quality with objective characteristics of the community (e.g. feelings of 

safety correlated with rates of crime).  There is a body of scientific literature that 

has investigated the relationship between reported behaviors and actual 

behaviors.  Well-conducted surveys, by and large, do capture true respondent 

behaviors or intentions to act with great accuracy.  Predictions of voting 

outcomes tend to be quite accurate using survey research, as do reported 

behaviors that are not about highly sensitive issues (e.g. family abuse or other 

illegal or morally sanctioned activities).  For self-reports about highly sensitive 

issues, statistical adjustments can be made to correct for the respondents’ 

tendency to report what they think the “correct” response should be. 

Research on the correlation of resident opinion about service quality and 

“objective” ratings of service quality tend to be ambiguous, some showing 

stronger relationships than others.  NRC’s own research has demonstrated that 

residents who report the lowest ratings of street repair live in communities with 

objectively worse street conditions than those who report high ratings of street 

repair (based on road quality, delay in street repair, number of road repair 

employees).  Similarly, the lowest rated fire services appear to be “objectively” 

worse than the highest rated fire services (expenditures per capita, response 

time, “professional” status of fire fighters, breadth of services and training 

provided).  Whether some research confirms or disconfirms that relationship 

between what residents think about a community and what can be seen 

“objectively” in a community, we have argued that resident opinion is a 

perspective that cannot be ignored by government administrators.  Elsewhere we 

have written, “If you collect trash three times a day but residents think that your 

trash haul is lousy, you still have a problem.” 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 5 

SU
R
VE

Y 
BA

CK
G

R
O

U
N

D
 

 

Use of the “Excellent, Good, Fair, Poor” Response Scale 

The scale on which respondents are asked to record their opinions about service 

and community quality is “excellent,” “good,” “fair” or “poor” (EGFP). This scale 

has important advantages over other scale possibilities (very good to very bad; 

very satisfied to very dissatisfied; strongly agree to strongly disagree, as 

examples).  EGFP is used by the plurality of jurisdictions conducting citizen 

surveys across the U.S.  The advantage of familiarity is one we did not want to 

dismiss because elected officials, staff and residents already are acquainted with 

opinion surveys measured this way.  EGFP also has the advantage of offering 

three positive options, rather than only two, over which a resident can offer an 

opinion.  While symmetrical scales often are the right choice in other 

measurement tasks, we have found that ratings of almost every local government 

service in almost every jurisdiction tend, on average, to be positive (that is, above 

the scale midpoint).  Therefore, to permit finer distinctions among positively rated 

services, EGFP offers three options across which to spread those ratings.  EGFP 

is more neutral because it requires no positive statement of service quality to 

judge (as agree-disagree scales require) and, finally, EGFP intends to measure 

absolute quality of service delivery or community quality (unlike satisfaction 

scales which ignore residents’ perceptions of quality in favor of their report on the 

acceptability of the level of service offered). 

“Don’t Know” Responses 

On many of the questions in the survey respondents may answer “don’t know.”  

The proportion of respondents giving this reply is shown in the full set of 

responses included in Appendix I.  However, these responses have been 

removed from the analyses presented in the body of the report.  In other words, 

the tables and graphs display the responses from respondents who had an 

opinion about a specific item. 

For two of the items related to crime victimization and crime reporting, “don’t 

know” responses were not removed.  These questions were not evaluative; 

rather, respondents were asked if they or any member of their household had 

been a victim of a crime within the last year.  If they were, they were then asked 

whether the crime had been reported to police.  



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 6 

SU
R
VE

Y 
BA

CK
G

R
O

U
N

D
 

 

Putting Evaluations Onto a 100-Point Scale 

Although responses to many of the evaluative questions were made on a 4 point 

scale with 4 representing the best rating and 1 the worst, many of the results in 

this summary are reported on a common scale where 0 is the worst possible 

rating and 100 is the best possible rating.  If everyone reported “excellent,” then 

the result would be 100 on the 100-point scale.  Likewise, if all respondents gave 

a “poor” rating, the result would be 0 on the 100-point scale.  If the average rating 

for quality of life was “good,” then the result would be 67 on a 100-point scale; 

“fair” would be 33 on the 100-point scale.  The 95 percent confidence interval 

around an average score on the 100-point scale is no greater than plus or minus 

5 points based on all respondents. 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 7 

CO
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
LI

FE
 

 

OMMUNITY LIFE 
 
The National Citizen SurveyTM contained many questions related to the life of 

residents in the community.  Survey participants were asked to rate their overall 

quality of life, as well as other aspects of quality of life in Troy.  They also 

evaluated characteristics of the community, and gave their perceptions of safety 

in the City of Troy.  The questionnaire assessed use of the amenities of the 

community and involvement by respondents in the civic and economic life of 

Troy. 

QUALITY OF LIFE 
 
When asked to rate the overall quality of life in Troy, 35% of respondents thought 

it was “excellent.”  Only 1% rated overall quality of life as “poor.”  All of the 

responses of residents who had an opinion about the overall quality of life in Troy 

are shown in Figure 1 below. Other ratings can be seen in the figures on the 

following page. 

Figure 1: Overall Quality of Life in Troy 

 

excellent
29%

good
58%

fair
11%

poor
2%



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 8 

CO
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
LI

FE
 

 
Figure 2: Quality of Life Ratings 

 
Figure 2b: Quality of Life Ratings  

 
 excellent good fair poor 
How do you rate Troy as a place to live? 46% 49% 5% 0%

How do you rate your neighborhood as a place to live? 40% 50% 9% 1%

How do you rate Troy as a place to raise children? 46% 47% 6% 1%

How do you rate Troy as a place to retire? 20% 39% 27% 13%

How do you rate the overall quality of life in Troy? 35% 55% 9% 1%

Note: "Don't Know" responses are removed  
 

80
76

80

55

75

0

33

67

100

Troy as a place to
live

Neighborhood as a
place to live

Troy as a place to
raise children

Troy as a place to
retire

Overall quality of
life in Troy

Average Rating (0=poor, 
100=excellent) 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 9 

CO
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
LI

FE
 

 

RATINGS OF COMMUNITY 
CHARACTERISTICS IN TROY 
 
The highest rated characteristics of Troy were shopping opportunities, 

recreational opportunities, openness and acceptance and overall appearance of 

Troy.  When asked about potential problems in Troy, the three concerns rated by 

the highest proportion of respondents as a “major problem” were traffic 

congestion, taxes, and too much growth. The rate of population growth in Troy 

was viewed as “too fast” by 53% of respondents, while 1% thought it was “too 

slow.” 

Figure 3: Characteristics of the Community: 
General and Opportunities 

 

60

71 71

63

84

72

59

0

33

67

100

Sense of
community

Openness
and

acceptance

Overall
appearance

of Troy

Opportunities
to attend
cultural

activities

Shopping
opportunities

Recreational
opportunities

Job
opportunities

Average Rating 
(0=poor, 100=excellent)



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 10 

CO
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
LI

FE
 

 
Figure 3b: Characteristics of the Community: General and Opportunities  

 
 excellent good fair poor
Sense of community 17% 52% 24% 7%

Openness and acceptance of the community towards people of diverse 
backgrounds 32% 52% 13% 2%

Overall appearance of Troy 26% 62% 11% 1%

Opportunities to attend cultural activities 22% 49% 24% 5%

Shopping opportunities 59% 35% 5% 1%

Recreational opportunities 36% 45% 16% 2%

Job opportunities 18% 48% 27% 7%

Note: "Don't Know" responses are removed  



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 11 

CO
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
LI

FE
 

Figure 4: Characteristics of the Community: Access  
 

 
 
 

Figure 4b: Characteristics of the Community: Access  
 
 excellent good fair poor 
Access to affordable quality housing 8% 47% 31% 14%

Access to affordable quality child care 7% 53% 31% 9%

Note: "Don't Know" responses are removed  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

49
53

0

33

67

100

Access to affordable quality housing Access to affordable quality child care

Average Rating (0=poor, 
100=excellent) 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 12 

CO
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
LI

FE
 

Figure 5: Characteristics of the Community: Mobility 

 
 
 
 

Figure 5b: Characteristics of the Community: Mobility  
 
 excellent good fair poor 
Ease of car travel in Troy 11% 42% 31% 16%

Ease of bus travel in Troy 5% 15% 27% 54%

Ease of bicycle travel in Troy 6% 36% 35% 22%

Ease of walking in Troy 13% 46% 26% 15%

Note: "Don't Know" responses are removed  

49

24

42

52

0

33

67

100

Ease of car travel in
Troy

Ease of bus travel Ease of bicycle travel Ease of walking

Average Rating (0=poor, 
100=excellent) 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 13 

CO
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
LI

FE
 

53%

27%

4%

1%

8%

55%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Population growth

Retail growth (stores,
restaurants etc.)

Jobs growth

Percent of Respondents

too slow
too fast

 
Figure 6: Ratings of Potential Problems in Troy 

 
Figure 7: Ratings of Rates of Growth in Troy 

*Note:  Responses of “neither too fast nor too slow” were omitted. 

2%

9%

17%

1%

0%

5%

3%

22%

35%

4%

1%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Crime

Drugs

Too much growth

Lack of growth

Graffiti

Noise

Run down buildings, weed lots, or junk vehicles

Taxes

Traffic congestion

Unsupervised youth

Homelessness

Percent of Respondents Rating as "Major Problem"



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 14 

CO
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
LI

FE
 

 
Seventy-five percent of Troy residents expected that the coming six months 

would have a somewhat or very positive impact on their family, while 22% felt 

that the economic future would be somewhat or very negative. 

 

 
Figure 8: Perceptions of Economy 

 
What impact, if any, do you think the economy will have on your family 

income in the next 6 months?  Do you think the impact will be . . . . 

 

somewhat 
negative

17%

neutral
48%

somewhat 
positive

27%

very positive
3%

very negative
5%



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 15 

CO
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
LI

FE
 

 

PERCEPTIONS OF SAFETY 
 
When evaluating safety in the community, 86% of respondents felt “somewhat” or 

“very safe” from violent crimes in Troy.  In their neighborhood after dark, 86% of 

survey participants felt “somewhat” or “very safe.” 

As assessed by the survey, 10% of households reported that at least one 

member had been the victim of one or more crimes in the past year.  Of those 

who had been the victim of a crime, 71% had reported it to police.   

Figure 9: Ratings of Safety from Various Problems in Troy 

 
Figure 10: Ratings of Safety in Various Areas in Troy 

82%

75%

86%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Fire

Property crimes

Violent crime

Percent of Respondents Feeling "Very" or "Somewhat" Safe

56%

94%

70%

90%

86%

97%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

In Troy's parks after dark

In Troy's parks during
the day

In Troy's downtown area
after dark

In Troy's downtown area
during the day

In your neighborhood
after dark

In your neighborhood
during the day

Percent of Respondents Feeling "Very" or "Somewhat" Safe



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 16 

CO
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
LI

FE
 

 
Figure 11: Percent of Respondents’ Households That Were Victim of 

a Crime in the Last 12 Months 

 
 
 
Figure 12: Percent of Respondents’ Households That Were Victim of 

a Crime Who Reported the Crime 

No Household 
Member Was 

a Crime Victim
88%

Household 
Member(s) 

Was a Victim 
of Crime

10%

Don't Know
2%

Don't know
0%

Reported the 
Crime
71%

Did NOT 
Report the 

Crime
29%



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 17 

CO
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
LI

FE
 

 

COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION 
 

Participation in the civic, social and economic life of Troy during the past year 

was assessed on the survey.  The proportion of respondents engaging in various 

activities is shown in the chart below.  Among those completing the 

questionnaire, 81% reported visiting a park in Troy in the past year and 89% had 

read the Troy Today newsletter. 

Figure 13: Percent of Respondents Engaging in Various Activities in 
Troy in the Past Year 

75%

64%

47%

81%

6%

20%

46%

82%

34%

89%

87%

34%

70%

27%

40%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Used Troy public libraries or their services

Used Troy recreation centers

Participated in a recreation program or activity

Visited a Troy park

Ridden a local bus within Troy

Attended a meeting of local elected officials or other
local public meeting

Watched a meeting of local elected officials or other
local public meeting on cable television

Recycled used paper, cans or bottles from your home

Volunteered your time to some group/activity in Troy

Read Troy Today Newsletter

Used the Internet for anything

Used the Internet to conduct business with Troy

Purchased an item over the Internet

Visited the Troy Historical Museum

Visited one of Troy’s golf courses

Percent of Respondents Engaging in Activity Once or More



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 18 

CO
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
LI

FE
 

 
 
Voter status was also estimated2, with 82% saying that they had voted in the last 

election. 

 
 
 

Figure 14: Voter Status  
 
 no yes 
Did you vote in the last election? 18% 82%

Are you likely to vote in the next election? 10% 90%
 

                                                      
2 In general on a survey, a greater proportion of people will report having voted, than actual voting 
records verify. 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 19 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

R
N

M
EN

T 

 

OCAL GOVERNMENT 
 
Several aspects of the government of the City of Troy were evaluated by 

residents completing The National Citizen Survey™.  They were asked how 

much trust they placed in their local government, and what they felt about the 

services they receive from the City of Troy.  Those who had any contact with a 

City of Troy employee in the past year gave their impressions of the most recent 

encounter. 

PUBLIC TRUST 
 
When asked to evaluate whether they felt they received good value for taxes 

they pay, residents gave an average rating of 67 on a 100-point scale.  

Figure 15: Ratings of Public Trust 

67 68 68

60

0

25

50

75

100

I receive good value for
taxes I pay

Pleased with the overall
direction the City is

taking

Troy welcomes citizen
involvement

The City government
listens to citizens

Average Rating (0=poor, 
100=excellent) 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 20 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

R
N

M
EN

T 

 
Figure 15b: Public Trust Ratings  

 
 

strongly 
agree 

somewhat 
agree 

neither agree 
nor disagree 

somewhat 
disagree 

strongly 
disagree 

I receive good value for the City of 
Troy taxes I pay 22% 46% 15% 12% 5%

I am pleased with the overall 
direction that the City of Troy is 
taking 23% 45% 15% 12% 4%

The City of Troy government 
welcomes citizen involvement 20% 49% 18% 7% 5%

The City of Troy government 
listens to citizens 12% 44% 24% 11% 9%

Note: "Don't Know" responses are removed  



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 21 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

R
N

M
EN

T 

SERVICES PROVIDED BY TROY 
 
The responses of residents with an opinion about the overall quality of services 

provided by Troy are shown in Figure 16 below. Average ratings given to specific 

services are shown on the following pages. 

Figure 16: Overall Quality of Services Provided by the City of Troy 

 

excellent
29%

good
58%

fair
11%

poor
2%



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 22 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

R
N

M
EN

T 

On average, residents of Troy gave the highest evaluations to their own local 

government and the lowest average rating to the state government. 

 
Figure 17: Rating of Overall Quality of Services Provided by Various 

Levels of Government 

 
 

Figure 17b: Overall Quality of Services: City of Troy, Federal Government and State Government  
 
 excellent good fair poor
Overall, how would you rate the quality of the services provided by the City of 
Troy? 29% 58% 11% 2%

Overall, how would you rate the quality of the services provided by the Federal 
Government? 4% 43% 43% 10%

Overall, how would you rate the quality of the services provided by the State 
Government? 3% 44% 41% 12%

Note: "Don't Know" responses are removed  

71

47 46

0

33

67

100

City of Troy Federal Government State Government

Average Rating (0=poor, 
100=excellent) 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 23 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

R
N

M
EN

T 

 
Figure 18: Quality of Public Safety Services 

 

 
 

Figure 18b: Quality of Public Safety Services  
 
 excellent good fair poor 
Police services 47% 43% 7% 3%

Fire services 52% 42% 4% 2%

Ambulance/emergency medical services 46% 48% 4% 1%

Crime prevention 30% 55% 12% 3%

Fire prevention and education 35% 54% 9% 2%

Traffic enforcement 23% 53% 17% 7%

Note: "Don't Know" responses are removed  

78
82 80

71 74

64

0

33

67

100

Police services Fire services Ambulance/EMS Crime
prevention

Fire prevention
and education

Traffic
enforcement

Average Rating (0=poor, 
100=excellent) 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 24 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

R
N

M
EN

T 

Figure 19: Quality of Transportation Services 
 

 
 
 

Figure 19b: Quality of Transportation Services  
 
 excellent good fair poor 
Street repair 6% 30% 39% 26%

Street cleaning 11% 44% 29% 16%

Street lighting 11% 47% 26% 15%

Snow removal 13% 37% 27% 24%

Sidewalk maintenance 10% 47% 30% 13%

Traffic signal timing 7% 42% 30% 21%

Amount of public parking 15% 61% 19% 4%

Bus/transit services 7% 24% 29% 40%

Note: "Don't Know" responses are removed  

39

51 52
46

51
45

63

33

0

33

67

100

Street repair Street
cleaning

Street
lighting

Snow
removal

Sidewalk
maintenance

Traffic signal
timing

Amount of
public

parking

Bus/transit
services

Average Rating (0=poor, 
100=excellent) 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 25 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

R
N

M
EN

T 

 
Figure 20a: Quality of Leisure Services 

 

 

75 77 75 78 77 75

0

33

67

100

City parks Rec
pgrms/class

Range/var of
rec

pgrms/class

Rec
cntrs/fclties

Accessibility of
parks

 Access of  rec
cntrs/facilities

Average Rating 
(0=poor, 100=excellent) 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 26 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

R
N

M
EN

T 

 
Figure 20b: Quality of Leisure Services continued 

 
 

 
Figure 20c: Quality of Leisure Services  

 
 excellent good fair poor 
City parks 36% 54% 9% 1%

Recreation programs or classes 41% 49% 9% 1%

Range/variety of recreation programs and classes 39% 47% 12% 1%

Recreation centers/facilities 44% 47% 8% 1%

Accessibility of parks 42% 49% 8% 2%

Accessibility of recreation centers/facilities 38% 50% 10% 1%

Appearance/maintenance of parks 35% 54% 9% 1%

Appearance of recreation centers/facilities 41% 49% 9% 1%

Public library services 44% 45% 8% 2%

Variety of library materials 42% 45% 10% 3%

Note: "Don't Know" responses are removed  
 

74 77 77 75

0

33

67

100

App/mtce of parks App of recreation
centers/facilities

Pub library services Variety of lib materials

Average Rating 
(0=poor, 100=excellent) 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 27 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

R
N

M
EN

T 

Figure 21: Quality of Utility Services 
 

 
 

Figure 21b: Quality of Utility Services  
 
 excellent good fair poor 
Garbage collection 42% 45% 11% 2%

Recycling 41% 40% 12% 8%

Yard waste pick-up 37% 43% 17% 3%

Storm drainage 14% 59% 22% 5%

Sewer services 16% 62% 18% 3%

Note: "Don't Know" responses are removed  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

76
71 71

61 64

0

33

67

100

Garbage
collection

Recycling Yard waste pick-
up

Storm drainage Sewer services

Average Rating (0=poor, 
100=excellent) 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 28 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

R
N

M
EN

T 

 
Figure 22: Quality of Planning and Code Enforcement Services 

 
 

 
Figure 22b: Quality of Planning and Code Enforcement Services  

 
 excellent good fair poor 
Land use, planning and zoning 10% 44% 31% 15%

Code enforcement (weeds, abandoned buildings, etc) 13% 51% 28% 8%

Animal control 18% 55% 23% 4%

Economic development 12% 61% 22% 4%

Note: "Don't Know" responses are removed  
 

50
57

63 61

0

33

67

100

Land use, planning
and zoning

Code enforcement Animal control Economic
development

Average Rating (0=poor, 
100=excellent) 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 29 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

R
N

M
EN

T 

Figure 23: Quality of Services to Special Populations and Other 
Services  

 
 
 

Figure 23b: Quality of Services to Special Populations and Other Services  
 
 excellent good fair poor 
Services to seniors 23% 53% 18% 5%

Services to youth 26% 50% 19% 5%

Services to low-income people 11% 40% 29% 19%

Public information services 23% 57% 16% 3%

Public schools 53% 40% 6% 1%

Cable television 20% 52% 21% 7%

Note: "Don't Know" responses are removed  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

65 66

48

67

81

62

72 74

0

33

67

100

Services to
seniors

Services to
youth

Services to
low-income

people

Public
information

services

Public
schools

Cable
television

Troy
Museum

Nature
Center

Average Rating (0=poor, 
100=excellent) 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 30 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

R
N

M
EN

T 

 
 

THE CITY OF TROY EMPLOYEES 
 
Impressions of the City of Troy employees were assessed on the questionnaire.  

Those who had been in contact with a City of Troy employee in the past year 

(62%) rated their overall impression as 74 on a 100-point scale. 

Figure 24: Percent of Respondents Who Had Contact with a City of 
Troy Employee 

 
 

Did NOT 
Have Contact 

in Last 12 
Months

38%

Had contact 
in Last 12 
Months

62%



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 31 

LO
CA

L 
G

O
VE

R
N

M
EN

T 

 
Figure 25: Ratings of Contact with the City of Troy Employees 

 
 
 

Figure 25b: Impression of Contact with Employees  
 
 excellent good fair poor 
Knowledge 41% 48% 8% 3%

Responsiveness 42% 43% 9% 5%

Courtesy 46% 36% 12% 5%

Overall Impression 41% 43% 11% 5%

Note: "Don't Know" responses are removed  
 

 

76 74 74 74

0

33

67

100

Knowledge Responsiveness Courtesy Overall Impression

Average Rating (0=poor, 
100=excellent) 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 32 

AD
D

IT
IO

N
AL

 Q
U

ES
TI

O
N

S 

 
 

DDITIONAL QUESTIONS 
 
Three additional questions were asked by the City of Troy.  The results for these 

questions are displayed below.  Open-ended results can be found under 

separate cover. 

 
 
 

Figure 26: Policy Question #1  

To what degree would you support or oppose maintaining the current tax rate even 
if it results in a reduction of essential City Services (Police, Fire, Public Works, etc.)? 

 Percent of Respondents 

strongly support 17%

somewhat 
support 22%

neither support 
nor oppose 13%

somewhat 
oppose 22%

strongly oppose 17%

don’t know 9%
 
 
 

Figure 27: Policy Question #2  

To what degree would you support or oppose implementing new user fees (Library, 
Parks & Recreation programs) where none currently exist before an increase in 

taxes?  
 Percent of Respondents 

strongly support 16%

somewhat 
support 24%

neither support 
nor oppose 8%

somewhat 
oppose 19%

strongly oppose 27%

don’t know 7%
 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 33 

AD
D

IT
IO

N
AL

 Q
U

ES
TI

O
N

S 

 
Figure 28: Policy Question #3  

For non-essential services (Community Center, Museum, Nature Center) to what 
degree would you support or oppose an increase in user fees before an increase in 

taxes?  
 Percent of Respondents 

strongly support 26%

somewhat 
support 31%

neither support 
nor oppose 11%

somewhat 
oppose 12%

strongly oppose 14%

don’t know 6%



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 34 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 I
 

 
 

PPENDIX I: FREQUENCY OF RESPONSES 
TO ALL SURVEY QUESTIONS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Question #1: Quality of Life Ratings  
 
 excellent good fair poor don't know Total
How do you rate Troy as a place to live? 45% 49% 5% 0% 0% 100%

How do you rate your neighborhood as a place to live? 40% 49% 9% 1% 1% 100%

How do you rate Troy as a place to raise children? 42% 42% 5% 1% 10% 100%

How do you rate Troy as a place to retire? 16% 32% 22% 11% 18% 100%

How do you rate the overall quality of life in Troy? 34% 55% 9% 0% 1% 100%
 
 
 

Question #2: Please rate each of the following characteristics as they relate to Troy as a whole  
 
 excellent good fair poor don't know Total
Sense of community 17% 50% 23% 6% 4% 100%

Openness and acceptance of the community towards 
people of diverse backgrounds 30% 49% 12% 2% 6% 100%

Overall appearance of Troy 26% 61% 11% 1% 1% 100%

Opportunities to attend cultural activities 20% 43% 21% 4% 12% 100%

Shopping opportunities 58% 35% 5% 1% 1% 100%

Recreational opportunities 35% 44% 16% 2% 2% 100%

Job opportunities 13% 36% 20% 5% 26% 100%

Access to affordable quality housing 7% 43% 29% 13% 9% 100%

Access to affordable quality child care 3% 24% 14% 4% 54% 100%

Ease of car travel in Troy 11% 42% 30% 16% 1% 100%

Ease of bus travel in Troy 2% 6% 10% 21% 61% 100%

Ease of bicycle travel in Troy 4% 25% 24% 15% 31% 100%

Ease of walking in Troy 12% 42% 24% 14% 7% 100%
 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 35 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 I
 

 
Question #3: Please rate the speed of growth in the following categories in Troy over the past two 

years  
 
 

much too 
slow 

somewhat too 
slow 

right 
amount 

somewhat too 
fast 

much too 
fast 

don't 
know Total

Population growth 0% 1% 33% 26% 11% 30% 100%

Retail growth (stores, 
restaurants etc.) 0% 7% 54% 16% 6% 17% 100%

Jobs growth 4% 19% 17% 1% 0% 57% 100%
 
 
 

Question #4: To what degree are the following problems in Troy  
 
 

not a 
problem 

minor 
problem 

moderate 
problem 

major 
problem 

don't 
know Total

Crime 15% 46% 26% 2% 11% 100%

Drugs 13% 24% 21% 6% 36% 100%

Too much growth 20% 24% 26% 14% 17% 100%

Lack of growth 57% 13% 8% 1% 21% 100%

Graffiti 56% 24% 2% 0% 18% 100%

Noise 34% 41% 16% 4% 4% 100%

Run down buildings, weed lots, or 
junk vehicles 41% 40% 10% 2% 6% 100%

Taxes 16% 24% 30% 20% 10% 100%

Traffic congestion 4% 16% 44% 34% 2% 100%

Unsupervised youth 22% 34% 15% 3% 26% 100%

Homelessness 43% 18% 4% 1% 35% 100%
 
 
 

Question #5: Please rate how safe you feel from the following occurring to you in Troy  
 
 

very 
safe 

somewhat 
safe 

neither safe 
nor unsafe 

somewhat 
unsafe 

very 
unsafe 

don't 
know Total

Violent crime (e.g., rape, 
assault, robbery) 42% 42% 10% 4% 0% 3% 100%

Property crimes (e.g., 
burglary, theft) 25% 48% 14% 9% 2% 2% 100%

Fire 42% 37% 14% 3% 1% 4% 100%
 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 36 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 I
 

 
Question #6: Please rate how safe you feel:  

 
 

very 
safe 

somewhat 
safe 

neither safe 
nor unsafe 

somewhat 
unsafe 

very 
unsafe 

don't 
know Total

In your neighborhood 
during the day 71% 25% 2% 1% 0% 0% 100%

In your neighborhood 
after dark 39% 46% 8% 5% 1% 1% 100%

In Troy's downtown area 
during the day 49% 40% 7% 2% 0% 1% 100%

In Troy's downtown area 
after dark 24% 45% 16% 11% 1% 2% 100%

In Troy's parks during the 
day 51% 30% 4% 1% 0% 13% 100%

In Troy's parks after dark 10% 30% 18% 10% 3% 29% 100%
 
 
 

Question #7: During the past twelve months, were you or anyone in your household the victim of any 
crime?  

 
  Percent of Respondents 

no 89%

yes 10%

don't know 2%
During the past twelve months, were you or anyone in 
your household the victim of any crime? 

Total 100%
 
 
 

Question #8: If yes, was this crime (these crimes) reported to the police?  
 
  Percent of Respondents 

no 29%

yes 71%
If yes, was this crime (these crimes) reported to the 
police? 

Total 100%
 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 37 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 I
 

 
Question #9: In the last 12 months, about how many times, if ever, have you or other household 

members done the following things in the City of Troy?  
 
 never

once or 
twice 

3 to 12 
times 

13 to 26 
times 

more than 
26 times Total

Used Troy public libraries or their services 25% 21% 32% 11% 11% 100%

Used Troy recreation centers 36% 19% 21% 11% 13% 100%

Participated in a recreation program or activity 53% 17% 17% 6% 7% 100%

Visited a Troy park 19% 26% 32% 11% 11% 100%

Ridden a local bus within Troy 94% 3% 2% 0% 0% 100%

Attended a meeting of local elected officials or 
other local public meeting 80% 14% 6% 0% 0% 100%

Watched a meeting of local elected officials or 
other local public meeting on cable television 54% 20% 16% 7% 3% 100%

Recycled used paper, cans or bottles from your 
home 18% 9% 11% 10% 52% 100%

Volunteered your time to some group/activity in 
Troy 66% 15% 11% 2% 6% 100%

Read Troy Today Newsletter 11% 12% 41% 18% 18% 100%

Used the Internet for anything 13% 3% 5% 4% 75% 100%

Used the Internet to conduct business with Troy 66% 18% 11% 1% 4% 100%

Purchased an item over the Internet 30% 13% 28% 13% 16% 100%

Visited the Troy Historical Museum 73% 23% 3% 0% 0% 100%

Visited one of Troy’s golf courses 60% 19% 16% 3% 2% 100%
 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 38 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 I
 

 
Question #10: How do you rate the quality of each of the following services in Troy?  

 
 excellent good fair poor don't know Total
Police services 43% 39% 7% 3% 9% 100%

Fire services 42% 33% 3% 1% 21% 100%

Ambulance/emergency medical services 28% 30% 3% 1% 38% 100%

Crime prevention 24% 44% 10% 2% 20% 100%

Fire prevention and education 24% 36% 6% 1% 33% 100%

Traffic enforcement 21% 48% 16% 6% 10% 100%

Garbage collection 40% 44% 11% 2% 3% 100%

Recycling 36% 35% 11% 7% 11% 100%

Yard waste pick-up 32% 37% 14% 3% 14% 100%

Street repair 5% 29% 37% 25% 4% 100%

Street cleaning 11% 41% 26% 14% 8% 100%

Street lighting 11% 45% 25% 14% 4% 100%

Snow removal 12% 36% 26% 23% 2% 100%

Sidewalk maintenance 8% 39% 25% 11% 17% 100%

Traffic signal timing 7% 41% 30% 20% 2% 100%

Amount of public parking 13% 55% 17% 4% 11% 100%

Bus/transit services 2% 7% 9% 12% 70% 100%

Storm drainage 11% 47% 18% 4% 19% 100%

Sewer services 13% 49% 15% 2% 21% 100%

City parks 32% 48% 8% 1% 11% 100%

Recreation programs or classes 30% 36% 6% 1% 27% 100%

Range/variety of recreation programs and classes 29% 35% 9% 1% 26% 100%

Recreation centers/facilities 35% 38% 7% 1% 19% 100%

Accessibility of parks 37% 44% 7% 2% 10% 100%

Accessibility of recreation centers/facilities 33% 43% 9% 1% 14% 100%

Appearance/maintenance of parks 32% 49% 9% 1% 9% 100%

Appearance of recreation centers/facilities 35% 42% 8% 1% 14% 100%

Land use, planning and zoning 8% 34% 24% 12% 22% 100%

Code enforcement (weeds, abandoned buildings, etc) 10% 39% 21% 6% 24% 100%

Animal control 12% 37% 16% 3% 32% 100%

Economic development 9% 46% 17% 3% 24% 100%

Services to seniors 11% 25% 9% 2% 53% 100%

Services to youth 14% 27% 10% 3% 45% 100%

Services to low-income people 3% 11% 8% 5% 73% 100%

Public library services 38% 39% 7% 2% 14% 100%

Variety of library materials 34% 36% 8% 2% 20% 100%

Public information services 17% 42% 12% 2% 27% 100%



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 39 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 I
 

Question #10: How do you rate the quality of each of the following services in Troy? 
 excellent good fair poor don't know Total
Public schools 39% 29% 4% 1% 26% 100%

Cable television 16% 41% 17% 5% 21% 100%

Troy Museum 16% 22% 6% 1% 55% 100%

Nature Center 19% 29% 5% 1% 45% 100%
 
 
 

Question #11: Overall, how would you rate the quality of the services provided by . . .  
 
 excellent good fair poor 

don't 
know Total

Overall, how would you rate the quality of the services provided 
by the City of Troy? 29% 57% 11% 2% 2% 100%

Overall, how would you rate the quality of the services provided 
by the Federal Government? 3% 37% 37% 8% 15% 100%

Overall, how would you rate the quality of the services provided 
by the State Government? 3% 38% 35% 11% 13% 100%

 
 
 

Question #12: Have you had any in-person or phone contact with an employee of the City of Troy 
within the last 12 months?  

 
  Percent of Respondents 

no 38%

yes 62%
Have you had any in-person or phone contact with an employee 
of the City of Troy within the last 12 months? 

Total 100%
 
 
 

Question #13: What was your impression of the employees of the City of Troy in your most recent 
contact?  

 
 excellent good fair poor don't know Total 
Knowledge 39% 46% 8% 3% 4% 100%

Responsiveness 40% 42% 9% 5% 4% 100%

Courtesy 45% 35% 12% 5% 4% 100%

Overall Impression 40% 41% 11% 4% 3% 100%
 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 40 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 I
 

 
Question #14: Please rate your agreement or disagreement with the following statements.  

 
 

strongly 
agree 

somewhat 
agree 

neither agree 
nor disagree

somewhat 
disagree 

strongly 
disagree 

don't 
know Total

I receive good value for 
the City of Troy taxes I 
pay 20% 42% 14% 11% 4% 8% 100%

I am pleased with the 
overall direction that the 
City of Troy is taking 22% 43% 14% 11% 4% 5% 100%

The City of Troy 
government welcomes 
citizen involvement 16% 38% 14% 5% 4% 24% 100%

The City of Troy 
government listens to 
citizens 9% 33% 18% 8% 7% 24% 100%

 
 
 

Question #15: What impact, if any, do you think the economy will have on your family income in the 
next 6 months?  

 
  

Percent of 
Respondents 

very positive 3%

somewhat positive 27%

neutral 49%

somewhat negative 17%

very negative 5%

What impact, if any, do you think the economy will 
have on your family income in the next 6 months? Do 
you think the impact will be: 

Total 100%
 
 
 

Question #16a: Policy Question #1  
 
  

Percent of 
Respondents 

strongly support 17%

somewhat support 22%

neither support nor oppose 13%

somewhat oppose 22%

strongly oppose 17%

don’t know 9%

To what degree would you support or oppose 
maintaining the current tax rate even if it results in a 
reduction of essential City Services (Police, Fire, 
Public Works, etc.)? 

Total 100%
 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 41 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 I
 

 
Question #16b: Policy Question #2  

 
  

Percent of 
Respondents 

strongly support 16%

somewhat support 24%

neither support nor oppose 8%

somewhat oppose 19%

strongly oppose 27%

don’t know 7%

To what degree would you support or oppose 
implementing new user fees (Library, 
Parks&Recreation programs) where none currently 
exist before an increase in taxes? 

Total 100%
 

Question #16c: Policy Question #3  
 
  

Percent of 
Respondents 

strongly support 26%

somewhat support 31%

neither support nor oppose 11%

somewhat oppose 12%

strongly oppose 14%

don’t know 6%

For non-essential services (Community Center, 
Museum, Nature Center) to what degree would you 
support or oppose an increase in user fees before an 
increase in taxes? 

Total 100%
 

Question #17: Do you live within the City limits of the City of Troy?  
 
  

Percent of 
Respondents 

no 2%

yes 98%Do you live within the limits of the City of Troy? 

Total 100%
 

Question #18: Employment Status  
 
  

Percent of 
Respondents 

no 26%

yes 74%Are you currently employed? 

Total 100%
 

Question #18a: Usual Mode of Transportation to Work  
 
  

Percent of Employed 
Respondents 

Motorized vehicle 98%

Work at home 2%
What one method of transportation do 
you usually use (for the longest distance 
of your commute) to travel to work? 

Total 100%
 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 42 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 I
 

Question #18b: Drive Alone or Carpool  
 
  

Percent of Employed 
Respondents 

no 88%

yes 12%

If you checked the motorized vehicle (e.g. 
car, truck, van, motorcycle, etc.) box in 
18a, do other people usually ride with you 
to or from work? Total 100%

 
 

Usual Mode of Transportation to Work, Including Carpooling  
 
  

Percent of Employed 
Respondents 

Motorized vehicle, no others 
(SOV) 86%

Motorized vehicle, with others 
(MOV) 11%

work at home 2%

Usual mode of transportation to work 

Total 100%
 
 

Question #19: Length of Residency  
 
  Percent of Respondents 

less than 2 years 18%

2-5 years 18%

6-10 years 16%

11-20 years 21%

more than 20 years 26%

How many years have you lived in Troy? 

Total 100%
 
 

Question #20: Type of Housing Unit  
 
  Percent of Respondents 

one family house detached 
from any other houses 73%

one family house attached to 
one or more houses 2%

building with two or more 
apartments or condominiums 24%

mobile home 1%

other 1%

Which best describes the building you live 
in? 

Total 100%
 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 43 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 I
 

 
Question #21: Tenure Status  

 
  Percent of Respondents 

rented for cash or occupied 
without cash payment? 22%

owned by you or someone in 
this house 78%

Is this house, apartment, or mobile 
home... 

Total 100%
 
 

Question #22: Presence of Children in Household  
 
  Percent of Respondents 

no 70%

yes 30%
Do any children age 12 or under live in 
your household? 

Total 100%
 
 

Question #23: Presence of Teenagers in Household  
 
  Percent of Respondents 

no 84%

yes 16%
Do any teenagers ages 13 through 17 
live in your household? 

Total 100%
 
 

Question #24: Presence of Senior Adults in Household  
 
  Percent of Respondents 

no 80%

yes 20%
Are you or any other members of your 
household aged 65 or older? 

Total 100%
 
 

Question #25: Presence of Persons with Disabilities in Household  
 
  Percent of Respondents 

no 89%

yes 11%
Does any member of your household 
have a physical handicap or is anyone 
disabled? 

Total 100%
 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 44 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 I
 

 
Question #26: Education  

 
  Percent of Respondents 

12th Grade or less, no diploma 2%

high school diploma 8%

some college, no degree 18%

associate's degree (e.g. AA, 
AS) 5%

bachelor's degree (e.g. BA, 
AB, BS) 34%

graduate degree or 
professional degree 33%

What is the highest degree or level of 
school you have completed? 

Total 100%
 
 

Question #27: Annual Household Income  
 
  Percent of Respondents 

less than $24,999 7%

$25,000 to $49,999 17%

$50,000 to $99,999 35%

$100,000 or more 41%

How much do you anticipate your 
household's total income before taxes 
will be for the current year? 

Total 100%
 
 

Question #28: Ethnicity  
 
  Percent of Respondents 

no 97%

yes 3%Are you Spanish/Hispanic/Latino? 

Total 100%
 
 

Question #29: Race  
 
 Percent of Respondents 
American Indian or Alaskan native 1%

Asian or Pacific Islander 15%

Black, African American 2%

White/Caucasian 81%

Other 3%

Total may exceed 100% as respondents could select more than one category.  
 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 45 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 I
 

 
Question #30: Age  

 
  Percent of Respondents 

18-24 years 4%

25-34 years 22%

35-44 years 21%

45-54 years 25%

55-64 years 12%

65-74 years 8%

75 years or older 9%

In which category is your age? 

Total 100%
 

Question #31: Gender  
 
  Percent of Respondents 

Female 51%

Male 49%What is your gender? 

Total 100%
 

Question #32: Voter Registration Status  
 
  Percent of Respondents 

no 14%

yes 84%

don't know 2%
Are you registered to vote in your 
jurisdiction? 

Total 100%
 

Question #33: Vote in Last Election?  
 
  Percent of Respondents 

no 18%

yes 82%Did you vote in the last election? 

Total 100%
 

Question #34: Likely to Vote in Next Election?  
 
  Percent of Respondents 

no 9%

yes 86%

don't know 5%
Are you likely to vote in the next election?

Total 100%
 

 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 46 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 I
I 

 

PPENDIX II: SURVEY METHODOLOGY 
 
The National Citizen SurveyTM was developed to provide local jurisdictions an 

accurate, affordable and easy way to assess and interpret resident opinion about 

important community issues.  While standardization of question wording and 

survey methods provide the rigor to assure valid results, each jurisdiction has 

enough flexibility to construct a customized version of The National Citizen 

SurveyTM that asks residents about key local services and important local issues.   

Results offer insight into residents’ perspectives about local government 

performance and as such provide important benchmarks for jurisdictions working 

on performance measurement.  The National Citizen SurveyTM is designed to 

help with budget, land use and strategic planning as well as to communicate with 

local residents.  The National Citizen SurveyTM permits questions to test support 

for local policies and answers to its questions also speak to community trust and 

involvement in community-building activities as well as to resident demographic 

characteristics.  

SAMPLING 
 
Approximately 1,200 households were selected to participate in the survey using 

a stratified systematic sampling method.3  An individual within each household 

was selected using the birthday method.4 

SURVEY ADMINISTRATION 
 
Households received three mailings between the 4th and the 18th of January 

2005.  The first was a postcard notifying them they had been selected to 

participate in the City of Troy 2005 Citizen Survey.  The postcard was signed by 

the city manager.  About a week later a survey was mailed with a cover letter 

also signed by the city manager.  Approximately one week after the first survey 

was mailed, a second survey was mailed, with a cover letter asking those who 

                                                      
3  Systematic sampling is a method that closely approximates random sampling by selecting every 
Nth address until the desired number of households is chosen. 
4  The birthday method is a process to remove bias in the selection of a person within the household 
by asking the “person whose birthday has most recently passed” to complete the questionnaire.  The 
underlying assumption in this method is that day of birth has no relationship to the way people 
respond to surveys but leaving selection of respondent to household members will lead to bias. 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 47 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 I
I 

had not yet participated to do so, while informing those who had already 

completed the survey not to do so again. 

RESPONSE RATE AND CONFIDENCE 
INTERVALS 
 
Of the 1,112 eligible households, 544 completed the survey providing a response 

rate of 49%.  Approximately 88 addresses sampled were “vacant” or “not found.5”  

In general, the response rates obtained on citizen surveys range from 25% to 

40%.   The sample of households was selected systematically and impartially 

from a list of residences in the United States maintained by the U.S. postal 

service and sold to NRC through an independent vendor.   For each household, 

one adult, selected in an unbiased fashion, was asked to complete the survey.  

In theory, in 95 cases out of 100, the results based on such samples will differ by 

no more than 5 percentage points in either direction from what would have been 

obtained had responses been collected from all Troy adults.  This difference is 

also called a “margin of error.” 6   This difference from the presumed population 

finding is referred to as the sampling error.  For subgroups of responses, the 

margin of sampling error is larger.  In addition to sampling error, the practical 

difficulties of conducting any survey of the public may introduce other sources of 

error.  For example, the failure of some of the selected adults to participate in the 

sample or the difficulty of including all sectors of the population, such as 

residents of some institutions or group residences, may lead to somewhat 

different results.  

WEIGHTING AND ANALYZING THE DATA 
 
The surveys were analyzed using the SPSS statistical package. Frequency 

distributions and average (mean) ratings are presented in the body of the report. 

The demographic characteristics of the sample were compared to those of the 

City of Troy as reflected in the information sent by staff to National Research 

                                                      
5  “Eligible” households refer to addresses that belong to residences that are not vacant within the 
City of Troy.   
6  The margin of error was calculated using the following formula:  1.96  * square root (0.25/400).  
This margin of error is calculated in the most conservative way.  The standard error was assumed to 
be the greatest for a binomial distribution:  50%/50%.   



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 48 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 I
I 

Center, Inc.  When necessary, survey results were statistically adjusted to reflect 

the known population profile. 

 
Generally, only two variables are used in a weighting scheme.  Known population 

characteristics are compared to the characteristics of survey respondents.  

Generally, characteristics chosen as weighting variables are selected because 

they are not in proportion to what is shown in a jurisdiction’s demographic profile 

and because differences in opinion are observed between subgroups of these 

characteristics.  The two socioeconomic characteristics that were used to weight 

the survey results were housing unit type and gender/age. Other discrepancies 

between the whole population and the sample were also aided by the weighting 

due to the intercorrelation of many socioeconomic characteristics, although the 

percentages are not always identical in the sample compared to the population 

norms.  The results of the weighting scheme are presented in the table on the 

next page. 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 49 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 I
I 

 

Weighting Scheme for the City of Troy 
2005 Citizen Survey 

Respondent 
Characteristics Population Norm* 

Unweighted 
Survey Data 

Weighted Survey 
Data 

Tenure  
 Rent Home 23% 14% 22% 
  Own Home 77% 86% 78% 

Type of Housing Unit    
  Single-Family Detached 73% 83% 73% 
  Attached 27% 17% 27% 

Ethnicity    
  Non-Hispanic 99% 99% 98% 
  Hispanic 1% 1% 2% 

Race    
 White/Caucasian 82% 85% 81% 
  Non-White 18% 15% 19% 

Gender    
  Female 51% 51% 51% 
  Male 49% 49% 49% 

Age    
  18-34 26% 9% 26% 
  35-54 46% 49% 46% 
  55+ 28% 42% 28% 

Gender and Age    
 Females 18-34 13% 5% 13% 
 Females 35-54 23% 26% 23% 
 Females 55+ 15% 20% 15% 
 Males 18-34 13% 4% 13% 
 Males 35-54 23% 23% 23% 
 Males 55+ 13% 22% 13% 

* Source: 2000 Census 
 



 Report of Results 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 50 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 I
II

 

 

PPENDIX III: SURVEY MATERIALS 
 
The following pages contain copies of the survey materials sent to randomly 

selected households within the City of Troy.  All households selected for inclusion 

in the study were first sent a prenotification postcard informing them that they 

would be receiving a questionnaire within the following week.  A week later, a 

cover letter and survey were sent, with a postage paid return envelope.  Two 

weeks later a second cover letter and survey were sent.  The second cover letter 

asked that those who had responded not do so again, while urging those who 

had not yet returned their surveys to please do so. 



  Page 1 of 5 

The City of Troy 2005 Citizen Survey 
 
Please complete this questionnaire if you are the adult (age 18 or older) in the household who most recently had a 
birthday.  The adult's year of birth does not matter.  Please circle the response that most closely represents your 
opinion for each question.   Your responses are anonymous and will be reported in group form only.  
 
1. Please circle the number that comes closest to your opinion for each of the following questions: 
 excellent good fair poor don't know 
How do you rate Troy as a place to live?........................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
How do you rate your neighborhood as a place to live? .................................................1 2 3 4 5 
How do you rate Troy as a place to raise children? ........................................................1 2 3 4 5 
How do you rate Troy as a place to retire? .....................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
How do you rate the overall quality of life in Troy?.......................................................1 2 3 4 5 
 
2. Please rate each of the following characteristics as they relate to Troy as a whole: 
 excellent good fair poor don't know 
Sense of community........................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Openness and acceptance of the community towards people of diverse backgrounds ...1 2 3 4 5 
Overall appearance of Troy.............................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Opportunities to attend cultural activities .......................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Shopping opportunities ...................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Recreational opportunities ..............................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Job opportunities.............................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Access to affordable quality housing ..............................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Access to affordable quality child care ...........................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Ease of car travel in Troy................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Ease of bus travel in Troy ...............................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Ease of bicycle travel in Troy .........................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Ease of walking in Troy..................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
 
3. Please rate the speed of growth in the following categories in Troy over the past 2 years: 
 much somewhat right somewhat much don't 
 too slow too slow amount too fast too fast know 
Population growth................................................................ 1 2 3 4 5 6 
Retail growth (stores, restaurants etc.)................................. 1 2 3 4 5 6 
Jobs growth.......................................................................... 1 2 3 4 5 6 
 
4. To what degree, if at all, are the following problems in Troy:  
  not a minor moderate major don't 
 problem problem problem problem know 
Crime ...........................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Drugs............................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Too much growth.........................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Lack of growth.............................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Graffiti .........................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Noise ............................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Run down buildings, weed lots, or junk vehicles.........................................1 2 3 4 5 
Taxes............................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Traffic congestion ........................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Unsupervised youth .....................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Homelessness...............................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 



  Page 2 of 5 

 

5. Please rate how safe you feel from the following occurring to you in Troy: 
 very somewhat neither safe somewhat very don't 
 safe safe nor unsafe unsafe unsafe know 
Violent crime (e.g., rape, assault, robbery) ............1 2 3 4 5 6 
Property crimes (e.g., burglary, theft) ....................1 2 3 4 5 6 
Fire.........................................................................1 2 3 4 5 6 
 
6.  Please rate how safe you feel: 
 very somewhat neither safe somewhat very don't 
 safe safe nor unsafe unsafe unsafe know 
In your neighborhood during the day.....................1 2 3 4 5 6 
In your neighborhood after dark ............................1 2 3 4 5 6 
In Troy’s shopping/commercial area during the day ..1 2 3 4 5 6 
In Troy's shopping/commercial area after dark......1 2 3 4 5 6 
In Troy’s parks during the day...............................1 2 3 4 5 6 
In Troy's parks after dark .......................................1 2 3 4 5 6 
 
7.  During the past twelve months, were you or anyone in your household the victim of any crime? 

 no [go to question #9]  yes [go to question #8]  don't know 
 
8.   If yes, was this crime (these crimes) reported to the police? 

 no  yes  don't know 
 
9.   In the last 12 months, about how many times, if ever, have you or other household members participated in the following 

activities in Troy? 
  once or 3 to 12 13 to 26 more than 
 never twice times times 26 times 
Used Troy public libraries or their services ......................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Used Troy recreation centers ............................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Participated in a recreation program or activity ................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Visited a neighborhood or City park.................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Ridden a local bus within Troy .........................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Attended a meeting of local elected officials or other local public meeting .....1 2 3 4 5 
Watched a meeting of local elected officials or other local public meeting  
 on cable television .....................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Recycled used paper, cans or bottles from your home......................................1 2 3 4 5 
Volunteered your time to some group/activity in Troy.....................................1 2 3 4 5 
Read Troy Today Newsletter ............................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Used the Internet for anything ..........................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Used the Internet to conduct business with the City of Troy ............................1 2 3 4 5 
Purchased an item over the Internet ..................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Visited the Troy Historical Museum.................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Visited one of Troy’s golf courses....................................................................1 2 3 4 5 



  Page 3 of 5 

 
10.  How do you rate the quality of each of the following services in Troy? 
 excellent good fair poor don't know 
Police services.................................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Fire services ....................................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Ambulance/emergency medical services ........................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Crime prevention ............................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Fire prevention and education.........................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Traffic enforcement ........................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Garbage collection ..........................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Recycling ........................................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Yard waste pick-up .........................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Street repair.....................................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Street cleaning.................................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Street lighting..................................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Snow removal  ...............................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Sidewalk maintenance ....................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Traffic signal timing .......................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Amount of public parking...............................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Bus/transit services .........................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Storm drainage................................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Sewer services.................................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
City parks........................................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Recreation programs or classes.......................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Range/variety of recreation programs and classes ..........................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Recreation centers/facilities ............................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Accessibility of parks......................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Accessibility of recreation centers/facilities ...................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Appearance/maintenance of parks ..................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Appearance of recreation centers/facilities .....................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Land use, planning and zoning ......................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Code enforcement (weeds, abandoned buildings, etc) ...................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Animal control ...............................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Economic development...................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Services to seniors ..........................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Services to youth.............................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Services to low-income people .......................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Public library services.....................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Variety of library materials .............................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Public information services.............................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Public schools .................................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Cable television...............................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Troy Museum..................................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Nature Center..................................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
 
11.  Overall, how would you rate the quality of the services provided by… 
 
 excellent good fair poor don't know 
The City of Troy? ...........................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
The Federal Government?...............................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
The State Government?...................................................................................................1 2 3 4 5 
 
12.  Have you had any in-person or phone contact with an employee of the City of Troy within the last 12 months (including 

police, receptionists, planners or any others)? 
 no [go to question #14]  yes [go to question #13] 

 
 



  Page 4 of 5 

 

 13.  What was your impression of employees of the City of Troy in your most recent contact? (Rate each characteristic 
below.) 

 excellent good fair poor don't know 
Knowledge...........................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Responsiveness....................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Courtesy ..............................................................1 2 3 4 5 
Overall impression ..............................................1 2 3 4 5 

 
14.  Please rate the following statements by circling the number that most clearly represents your opinion: 
 strongly somewhat neither agree somewhat strongly don't 
 agree agree nor disagree disagree disagree know 
I receive good value for the City of Troy taxes I pay ....................1 2 3 4 5 6 
I am pleased with the overall direction that the  
 City of Troy is taking..............................................................1 2 3 4 5 6 
The City of Troy government welcomes citizen involvement .......1 2 3 4 5 6 
The City of Troy government listens to citizens ............................1 2 3 4 5 6 
 
15. What impact, if any, do you think the economy will have on your family income in the next 6 months? Do you think the 

impact will be: 
 very positive  somewhat positive  neutral  somewhat negative  very negative 

 
16. Please check the response that comes closest to your opinion for each of the following questions: 

a. To what degree would you support or oppose maintaining the current tax rate even if it results in a reduction of 
essential City Services (Police, Fire, Public Works, etc.)? 

 
    strongly support      somewhat oppose 
    somewhat support      strongly oppose 
    neither support nor oppose    don’t know 
 

b. To what degree would you support or oppose implementing new user fees (Library, Parks & Recreation 
uses/programs) where none currently exist before an increase in taxes?  

 
    strongly support      somewhat oppose 
    somewhat support      strongly oppose 
    neither support nor oppose    don’t know 
 

c. For non-essential services (Community Center, Museum, Nature Center) to what degree would you support or 
oppose an increase in user fees before an increase in taxes? 

 
    strongly support      somewhat oppose 
    somewhat support      strongly oppose 
    neither support nor oppose    don’t know 
 

d. Our last survey conducted in 1999 indicated that traffic congestion was Troy’s #1 concern. What suggestions 
do you have for the City of Troy to address traffic congestion? 

 _________________________________________________________________________________  
 
 _________________________________________________________________________________  
 
 _________________________________________________________________________________  
 

e. The construction phase of the proposed I-75/Crooks/Long Lake Interchange Project, is contingent upon 
receiving an estimated $40 million from the Federal Highway Administration and the City of Troy will expend 
approximately $2.5 million for right-of-way acquisition.  What do you think about the City of Troy proceeding 
with this project? 

 _________________________________________________________________________________  
 
 _________________________________________________________________________________  
 
 _________________________________________________________________________________  



The National Citizen Survey™ © 2001-2005 National Research Center, Inc. Page 5 of 5 

 

Our last questions are about you and your household.  Again, all of your responses to this survey are completely anonymous 
and will be reported in group form only. 
 
17.  Do you live within the City limits of the City of Troy? 

  no  yes 
 

18.  Are you currently employed? 
 no [go to question #19]  yes [go to question #18a] 

 
 18a. What one method of transportation do you usually 

use (for the longest distance of your commute) to 
travel to work? 

 Motorized vehicle (e.g. car, truck, van, 
motorcycle etc…) 

 Bus, Rail, Subway, or other public 
transportation 

 Walk 
 Work at home 
 Other 

 
 18b. If you checked the motorized vehicle (e.g. car, 

truck, van, motorcycle, etc.) box in 18a, do other 
people (adults or children) usually ride with you to 
or from work? 

  no  yes 
 
19.  How many years have you lived in Troy?  

 less than 2 years  11-20 years 
 2-5 years  more than 20 years 
 6-10 years 

 
20.  Which best describes the building you live in? 

 one family house detached from any other houses 
 house attached to one or more houses (e.g. a duplex 

or town home) 
 building with two or more apartments or 

condominiums 
 mobile home 
 other 

 
21.  Is this house, apartment, or mobile home... 

 rented for cash or occupied without cash payment? 
 owned by you or someone in this house with a 

mortgage or free and clear? 
 
22.  Do any children 12 or under live in your household? 
  no  yes 
 
23.  Do any teenagers aged between 13 and 17 live in your 

household? 
  no  yes 
 
24.  Are you or any other members of your household aged 

65 or older? 
  no  yes 

25.  Does any member of your household have a physical 
handicap or is anyone disabled? 

  no  yes 
 

26.  What is the highest degree or level of school you have 
completed? (mark one box) 

 12th Grade or less, no diploma 
 high school diploma 
 some college, no degree 
 associate's degree (e.g. AA, AS) 
 bachelor's degree (e.g. BA, AB, BS) 
 graduate degree or professional degree 

 
27. How much do you anticipate your household's total 

income before taxes will be for the current year? 
(Please include in your total income money from all 
sources for all persons living in your household.) 

 less than $24,999 
 $25,000 to $49,999 
 $50,000 to $99,999 
 $100,000 or more 

 
28.  Are you Spanish/Hispanic/Latino? 
  no  yes 
 
29. What is your race? (Mark one or more races to 

indicate what race you consider yourself to be) 
 American Indian or Alaskan native 
 Asian or Pacific Islander 
 Black, African American 
 White/Caucasian 
 Other 

 
30.  In which category is your age? 

 18-24 years  55-64 years 
 25-34 years  65-74 years 
 35-44 years  75 years or older 
 45-54 years 

 
31.  What is your sex? 
  female  male 
 
32.  Are you registered to vote in your jurisdiction? 
  no  yes  don’t know 
 
33.  Did you vote in the last election? 
  no  yes  don’t know 
 
34.  Are you likely to vote in the next election? 
  no  yes  don’t know 
 
Thank you for completing this survey.  Please return the 
completed survey in the postage paid envelope to: National 
Research Center, Inc., 3005 30th St., Boulder, CO 80301 



 
) 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
January 2005 

 
 

Dear Troy Resident: 
 

The City of Troy wants to know what you think about our community and municipal 
government.  You have been randomly selected to participate in Troy’s 2005 Citizen 
Survey.   

 
Please take a few minutes to fill out the enclosed Citizen Survey.  Your answers will 
help the City Council make decisions that affect our community.  You should find the 
questions interesting and we will definitely find your answers useful.  Please participate! 

 
To get a representative sample of Troy residents, the adult (anyone 18 years or 
older) in your household who most recently had a birthday should complete this 
survey.  Year of birth of the adult does not matter. 

 
Please have the appropriate member of the household spend a few minutes to answer 
all the questions and return the survey in the enclosed postage-paid envelope.  Your 
responses will remain completely anonymous. 

 
Your participation in this survey is very important – especially since your household is 
one of only a small number of households being surveyed.  If you have any questions 
about the Citizen Survey please call (248) 524-1147. 

 
Please help us shape the future of Troy.  Thank you for your time and participation. 

 
Sincerely, 

 
John Szerlag 
City Manager 

 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

January 2005 
 
 
Dear City of Troy Resident: 
 
About one week ago, you should have received a copy of the enclosed survey.  If you 
completed it and sent it back, we thank you for your time and ask you to 
discard this survey.  Please do not respond twice.  If you have not had a chance 
to complete the survey, we would appreciate your response.  The City of Troy wants 
to know what you think about our community and municipal government.  You have 
been randomly selected to participate in the City of Troy’s Citizen Survey.   
 
Please take a few minutes to fill out the enclosed Citizen Survey.  Your answers will 
help Troy City Council make decisions that affect our community.  You should find 
the questions interesting and we will definitely find your answers useful.  Please 
participate! 
 
To get a representative sample of Troy residents, the adult (anyone 18 years or 
older) in your household who most recently had a birthday should complete 
this survey.  Year of birth of the adult does not matter. 
 
Please have the appropriate member of the household spend a few minutes to answer 
all the questions and return the survey in the enclosed postage-paid envelope.  Your 
responses will remain completely anonymous. 
 
Your participation in this survey is very important – especially since your household 
is one of only a small number of households being surveyed.  If you have any 
questions about the Citizen Survey please call (248) 524-1147. 
 
Please help us shape the future of Troy.  Thank you for your time and participation. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
John Szerlag 
City Manager 



 
 
 

 
 

 
500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

 
500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

 
 
 

 
 

 
500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

 
 

 
 

 

Presorted 
First Class Mail 

US Postage  
PAID 

Boulder, CO 
Permit NO. 94 

Presorted 
First Class Mail 

US Postage  
PAID 

Boulder, CO 
Permit NO. 94 

Presorted 
First Class Mail 

US Postage  
PAID 

Boulder, CO 
Permit NO. 94 

Presorted 
First Class Mail 

US Postage  
PAID 

Boulder, CO 
Permit NO. 94 



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Dear City of Troy Resident, 
 
Your household has been selected at random to participate in an 
anonymous citizen survey about the City of Troy.  You will receive a 
copy of the survey next week in the mail with instructions for 
completing and returning it.  Thank you in advance for helping us 
with this important project! 
 
Sincerely, 

 
John Szerlag       
City Manager 

 
 

  
 
 
 

Dear City of Troy Resident, 
 
Your household has been selected at random to participate in an 
anonymous citizen survey about the City of Troy.  You will receive 
a copy of the survey next week in the mail with instructions for 
completing and returning it.  Thank you in advance for helping us 
with this important project! 
 
Sincerely, 

 
John Szerlag       
City Manager 

 

 
 
 

Dear City of Troy Resident, 
 
Your household has been selected at random to participate in an 
anonymous citizen survey about the City of Troy.  You will 
receive a copy of the survey next week in the mail with 
instructions for completing and returning it.  Thank you in 
advance for helping us with this important project! 
 
Sincerely, 

 
John Szerlag       
City Manager 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Dear City of Troy Resident, 
 
Your household has been selected at random to participate in an 
anonymous citizen survey about the City of Troy.  You will receive a 
copy of the survey next week in the mail with instructions for 
completing and returning it.  Thank you in advance for helping us 
with this important project! 
 
Sincerely, 

 
John Szerlag       
City Manager 
 
 

 



 

 
500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

 
 
 

Presorted 
First Class Mail 

US Postage  
PAID 

Boulder, CO 
Permit NO.94 



 



 
 

 
The National 

C I T I Z E N  S U R V E Y ™  

2 0 0 5  
Report of Normative Comparisons for 

the City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Submitted by: 

NATIONAL RESEARCH CENTER, INC. 
3005 30th Street • Boulder, CO  80301 
tel. 303-444-7863 • fax. 303-441-1145 
e-mail: ncs@n-r-c.com • www.n-r-c.com February 2005



  
Table of Contents 

 

Survey Background....................................................................................................................................... 1 

 About The National Citizen SurveyTM............................................................................................... 1 

 Understanding the Normative Comparisons.................................................................................... 3 

Comparisons ................................................................................................................................................. 6 

Appendix I: List of Jurisdictions Included in the Normative Comparisons .................................................. 22 

Appendix II: Frequently asked Questions about The Citizen Survey Database ......................................... 30 

 

 



 Report of Normative Comparisons 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 1 

SU
R
VE

Y 
BA

CK
G

R
O

U
N

D
 

 

 
URVEY BACKGROUND 
ABOUT THE NATIONAL CITIZEN SURVEYTM 

 
The National Citizen SurveyTM (The NCSTM) is a collaborative effort between 

National Research Center, Inc. (NRC) and the International City/County 

Management Association (ICMA).   

The National Citizen SurveyTM was developed to provide local jurisdictions an 

accurate, affordable and easy way to assess and interpret resident opinion about 

important community issues.  While standardization of question wording and 

survey methods provide the rigor to assure valid results, each jurisdiction has 

enough flexibility to construct a customized version of The National Citizen 

SurveyTM that asks residents about key local services and important local issues.   

Results offer insight into residents’ perspectives about local government 

performance and as such provide important benchmarks for jurisdictions working 

on performance measurement.  The National Citizen SurveyTM is designed to 

help with budget, land use and strategic planning as well as to communicate with 

local residents.  The National Citizen SurveyTM permits questions to test support 

for local policies and answers to its questions also speak to community trust and 

involvement in community-building activities as well as to resident demographic 

characteristics.   

The survey and its administration are standardized to assure high quality survey 

methods and comparable results across The National Citizen SurveyTM 

jurisdictions.  Participating households are selected at random and the household 

member who responds is selected without bias.  Multiple mailings give each 

household more than one chance to participate with self-addressed and postage 

paid envelopes.  Results are statistically reweighted to reflect the proper 

demographic composition of the entire community.  The National Citizen 

SurveyTM customized for this jurisdiction was developed in close cooperation with 

local jurisdiction staff.  The City of Troy staff selected items from a menu of 

questions about services and community problems; they defined the jurisdiction 

boundaries NRC used for sampling; and they provided the appropriate letterhead 



 Report of Normative Comparisons 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 2 

SU
R
VE

Y 
BA

CK
G

R
O

U
N

D
 

and signatures for mailings.   City of Troy staff also determined local interest in a 

variety of add-on options for The National Citizen SurveyTM Basic Service. 



 Report of Normative Comparisons 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 3 

SU
R
VE

Y 
BA

CK
G

R
O

U
N

D
 

 

UNDERSTANDING THE NORMATIVE 
COMPARISONS 
Comparison Data 

National Research Center, Inc. has collected citizen surveys conducted in over 

350 jurisdictions in the United States.  Responses to over 4,000 survey questions 

dealing with resident perceptions about the quality of community life and services 

provided by local government were recorded, analyzed and stored in an 

electronic database.  

The jurisdictions in the database represent a wide geographic and population 

range as shown in the table below. 

Jurisdiction Characteristic Percent of Jurisdictions 
Region  
     West Coast1 21%
     West2 14%
     North Central West3 12%
     North Central East4 14%
     South Central5 9%
     South6 22%
     Northeast West7 4%
     Northeast East8 4%
Population  
     less than 40,000 33%
     40,000 to 74,999 25%
     75,000 to 149,000 18%
     150,000 or more 24%

 

1Alaska, Washington, Oregon, California, Hawaii 
2Montana, Idaho, Wyoming, Colorado, Utah, Nevada, Arizona, New Mexico 
3North Dakota, South Dakota, Nebraska, Kansas, Iowa, Missouri, Minnesota 
4Illinois, Indiana, Ohio, Michigan, Wisconsin 
5Oklahoma, Texas, Louisiana, Arkansas 
6West Virginia, Virginia, Kentucky, Tennessee, Mississippi, Alabama, Georgia, Florida, South 
Carolina, North Carolina, Maryland, Delaware, Washington DC 
7New York, Pennsylvania, New Jersey 
8Connecticut, Rhode Island, Massachusetts, New Hampshire, Vermont, Maine 



 Report of Normative Comparisons 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 4 

SU
R
VE

Y 
BA

CK
G

R
O

U
N

D
 

 

Use of the “Excellent, Good, Fair, Poor” Response Scale 

The scale on which respondents are asked to record their opinions about service 

and community quality is “excellent,” “good,” “fair” or “poor” (EGFP). This scale 

has important advantages over other scale possibilities (very good to very bad; 

very satisfied to very dissatisfied; strongly agree to strongly disagree, as 

examples).  EGFP is used by the plurality of jurisdictions conducting citizen 

surveys across the U.S.  The advantage of familiarity is one we did not want to 

dismiss because elected officials, staff and residents already are acquainted with 

opinion surveys measured this way.  EGFP also has the advantage of offering 

three positive options, rather than only two, over which a resident can offer an 

opinion. While symmetrical scales often are the right choice in other 

measurement tasks, we have found that ratings of almost every local government 

service in almost every jurisdiction tend, on average, to be positive (that is, above 

the scale midpoint).  Therefore, to permit finer distinctions among positively rated 

services, EGFP offers three options across which to spread those ratings.  EGFP 

is more neutral because it requires no positive statement of service quality to 

judge (as agree-disagree scales require) and, finally, EGFP intends to measure 

absolute quality of service delivery or community quality (unlike satisfaction 

scales which ignore residents’ perceptions of quality in favor of their report on the 

acceptability of the level of service offered). 

Putting Evaluations Onto a 100-Point Scale 

Although responses to many of the evaluative questions were made on a 4 point 

scale with 4 representing the best rating and 1 the worst, many of the results in 

this summary are reported on a common scale where 0 is the worst possible 

rating and 100 is the best possible rating.  If everyone reported “excellent,” then 

the result would be 100 on the 100-point scale.  Likewise, if all respondents gave 

a “poor” rating, the result would be 0 on the 100-point scale.  If the average rating 

for quality of life was “good,” then the result would be 67 on a 100-point scale; 

“fair” would be 33 on the 100-point scale.  The 95 percent confidence interval 

around an average score on the 100-point scale is no greater than plus or minus 

5 points based on all respondents. 



 Report of Normative Comparisons 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 5 

SU
R
VE

Y 
BA

CK
G

R
O

U
N

D
 

 

Interpreting the Results 

Comparisons are provided when similar questions are included in our database, 

and there are at least five other jurisdictions in which the question was asked.  

Where comparisons are available, three numbers are provided in the table.  The 

first is the rank assigned to your jurisdiction’s rating among jurisdictions where a 

similar question was asked.  The second is the number of jurisdictions that asked 

a similar question.  Third, the rank is expressed as a percentile to indicate its 

distance from the top score. This rank (5th highest out of 25 jurisdictions’ results, 

for example) translates to a percentile (the 80th percentile in this example). A 

percentile indicates the percent of jurisdictions with identical or lower ratings. 

Therefore, a rating at the 80th percentile would mean that your jurisdiction’s 

rating is equal to or better than 80 percent of the ratings from other jurisdictions. 

Conversely, 20 percent of the jurisdictions where a similar question was asked 

had higher ratings.  

Alongside the rank and percentile appears a comparison: “above the norm,” 

“below the norm” or “similar to the norm.” This evaluation of “above,” “below” or 

“similar to” comes from a statistical comparison of your jurisdiction’s rating to the 

norm (the average rating from all the comparison jurisdictions where a similar 

question was asked).  Differences of 3 or more points on the 100-point scale 

between your jurisdiction’s ratings and the average based on the appropriate 

comparisons from the database are considered “statistically significant,” and thus 

are marked as “above” or “below” the norm.  When differences between your 

jurisdiction’s ratings and the national norms are less than 3 points, they are 

marked as “similar to” the norm. 

The data are represented visually in a chart that accompanies each table.  Your 

jurisdiction’s percentile for each compared item is marked with a black line on the 

chart. 



 Report of Normative Comparisons 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 6 

CO
M

PA
R
IS

O
N

S 

 

 
OMPARISONS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 1a: Quality of Life Ratings 

 
 

0

25

50

75

100

Troy as a place to
live

Neighborhood as a
place to live

Troy as a place to
raise children

Troy as a place to
retire

The overall quality
of life in Troy

Percentile



 Report of Normative Comparisons 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 7 

CO
M

PA
R
IS

O
N

S 

 
 

Figure 1b: Quality of Life Ratings  

 
 

City of 
Troy 

Rating Rank

Number of 
Jurisdictions for 

Comparison 
City of Troy 
Percentile 

Comparison of Troy 
Rating to Norm 

Troy as a place to 
live 80 35 234 85%ile above the norm

Neighborhood as a 
place to live 76 18 103 83%ile above the norm

Troy as a place to 
raise children 80 14 129 90%ile above the norm

Troy as a place to 
retire 55 65 105 39%ile similar to the norm

The overall quality of 
life in Troy 75 54 184 71%ile above the norm

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Report of Normative Comparisons 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 8 

CO
M

PA
R
IS

O
N

S 

 
Figure 2a: Characteristics of the Community: General and 

Opportunities 
 

 
Figure 2b: Characteristics of the Community: General and Opportunities  

 
 

City of 
Troy 

Rating Rank

Number of 
Jurisdictions for 

Comparison 
City of Troy 
Percentile 

Comparison of Troy 
Rating to Norm 

Sense of community 60 24 84 73%ile above the norm

Openness and 
acceptance 71 2 65 98%ile above the norm

Overall appearance of 
Troy 71 22 114 82%ile above the norm

Opportunities to attend 
cultural activities 63 25 93 74%ile above the norm

Shopping opportunities 84 4 91 97%ile above the norm

Recreational 
opportunities 72 12 111 90%ile above the norm

Job opportunities 59 15 135 90%ile above the norm

0

25

50

75

100

Sense of
community

Openness
and

acceptance

Overall
appearance

of Troy

Opportunities
to attend
cultural

activities

Shopping
opportunities

Recreational
opportunities

Job
opportunities

Percentile



 Report of Normative Comparisons 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 9 

CO
M

PA
R
IS

O
N

S 

0

25

50

75

100

Access to
affordable

quality housing

Access to
affordable

quality child
care

Ease of car
travel in Troy

Ease of bus
travel in Troy

Ease of bicycle
travel in Troy

Ease of walking
in Troy

Percentile

 
Figure 3a: Characteristics of the Community: Access and Mobility 

 
 

 
Figure 3b: Characteristics of the Community: Access  

 
 

City of 
Troy 

Rating Rank
Number of Jurisdictions 

for Comparison 
City of Troy 
Percentile 

Comparison of Troy 
Rating to Norm 

Access to affordable 
quality housing 49 61 144 58%ile similar to the norm

Access to affordable 
quality child care 53 24 59 61%ile similar to the norm

Ease of car travel in 
Troy 49 48 88 47%ile similar to the norm

Ease of bus travel in 
Troy 24 40 41 5%ile below the norm

Ease of bicycle travel 
in Troy 42 49 72 33%ile below the norm

Ease of walking in 
Troy 52 28 58 53%ile similar to the norm

 



 Report of Normative Comparisons 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 10 

CO
M

PA
R
IS

O
N

S 

0

25

50

75

100

Violent crime (e.g., rape, assault,
robbery)

Property crimes (e.g., burglary,
theft)

Fire

Percentile

 
Figure 4a: Ratings of Safety from Various Problems 

 
 

Figure 4b: Ratings of Safety From Various Problems  

 
 

City of 
Troy 

Rating Rank

Number of 
Jurisdictions for 

Comparison 
City of Troy 
Percentile 

Comparison of Troy 
Rating to Norm 

Violent crime (e.g., 
rape, assault, 
robbery) 81 14 85 85%ile above the norm

Property crimes (e.g., 
burglary, theft) 72 15 85 84%ile above the norm

Fire 80 8 82 91%ile above the norm
 



 Report of Normative Comparisons 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 11 

CO
M

PA
R
IS

O
N

S 

0

25

50

75

100

In your
neighborhood
during the day

In your
neighborhood

after dark

In Troy's
downtown area
during the day

In Troy's
downtown area

after dark

In Troy's parks
during the day

In Troy's parks
after dark

Percentile

 
Figure 5a: Ratings of Safety in Various Areas 

 
 

Figure 5b: Ratings of Safety in Various Areas  

 
 

City of 
Troy 

Rating Rank

Number of 
Jurisdictions for 

Comparison 
City of Troy 
Percentile 

Comparison of Troy 
Rating to Norm 

In your neighborhood 
during the day 92 24 94 76%ile similar to the norm

In your neighborhood 
after dark 79 34 185 82%ile above the norm

In Troy's downtown 
area during the day 84 43 81 48%ile similar to the norm

In Troy's downtown 
area after dark 70 27 107 76%ile above the norm

In Troy's parks during 
the day 88 22 87 76%ile above the norm

In Troy's parks after 
dark 62 18 81 79%ile above the norm

 



 Report of Normative Comparisons 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 12 

CO
M

PA
R
IS

O
N

S 

0

25

50

75

100

Police services Fire services Ambulance/EMS Crime
prevention

Fire prevention
and education

Traffic
enforcement

Percentile

 
Figure 6a: Quality of Public Safety Services 

 
 

Figure 6b: Quality of Public Safety Services  

 
 

City of 
Troy 

Rating Rank

Number of 
Jurisdictions for 

Comparison 
City of Troy 
Percentile 

Comparison of 
Troy Rating to 

Norm 
Police services 78 40 347 89%ile above the norm

Fire services 82 54 268 80%ile above the norm

Ambulance/emergency 
medical services 80 50 177 72%ile similar to the norm

Crime prevention 71 8 96 93%ile above the norm

Fire prevention and 
education 74 17 77 79%ile above the norm

Traffic enforcement 64 33 155 79%ile above the norm
 



 Report of Normative Comparisons 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 13 

CO
M

PA
R
IS

O
N

S 

0

25

50

75

100

Street repair Street
cleaning

Street
lighting

Snow
removal

Sidewalk
maintenance

Traffic signal
timing

Amount of
public

parking

Bus/transit
services

Percentile

 
Figure 7a: Quality of Transportation Services 

 
Figure 7b: Quality of Transportation Services  

 
 

City of Troy 
Rating Rank

Number of Jurisdictions 
for Comparison 

City of Troy 
Percentile 

Comparison of Troy 
Rating to Norm 

Street repair 39 204 259 22%ile below the norm

Street cleaning 51 120 168 29%ile below the norm

Street lighting 52 105 155 33%ile similar to the norm

Snow removal 46 128 140 9%ile below the norm

Sidewalk 
maintenance 51 39 102 63%ile similar to the norm

Traffic signal 
timing 45 38 74 50%ile similar to the norm

Amount of public 
parking 63 2 49 98%ile above the norm

Bus/transit 
services 33 93 99 7%ile below the norm



 Report of Normative Comparisons 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 14 

CO
M

PA
R
IS

O
N

S 

0

25

50

75

100

City parks Rec pgrms/class Range/var of rec
pgrms/class

 Rec cntrs/fclties

Percentile

 
Figure 8a: Quality of Leisure Services 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Report of Normative Comparisons 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 15 

CO
M

PA
R
IS

O
N

S 

0

25

50

75

100

Accessibility of
parks

 Accessibility of
recreation

cntrs/facilities

App/mtce of
parks

App of
recreation

centers/facilities

Pub library
services

Variety of lib
materials

Percentile

 
 

Figure 8b: Quality of Leisure Services continued 

 
Figure 8c: Quality of Leisure Services  

 
 

City of 
Troy 

Rating Rank

Number of 
Jurisdictions for 

Comparison 
City of Troy 
Percentile 

Comparison of 
Troy Rating to 

Norm 
City parks 75 39 173 78%ile above the norm

Recreation programs or classes 77 18 191 91%ile above the norm

Range/variety of recreation 
programs and classes 75 1 56 100%ile above the norm

Recreation centers/facilities 78 11 119 92%ile above the norm

Accessibility of parks 77 8 72 90%ile above the norm

Accessibility of recreation 
centers/facilities 75 2 34 97%ile above the norm

Appearance/maintenance of 
parks 74 30 177 84%ile above the norm

Appearance of recreation 
centers/facilities 77 2 44 98%ile above the norm

Public library services 77 51 229 78%ile above the norm

Variety of library materials 75 4 55 95%ile above the norm



 Report of Normative Comparisons 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 16 

CO
M

PA
R
IS

O
N

S 

0

25

50

75

100

Garbage collection Recycling Yard waste pick-up Storm drainage Sewer services

Percentile

 
Figure 9a: Quality of Utility Services 

 
 
 

Figure 9b: Quality of Utility Services  
 
 

City of Troy 
Rating Rank 

Number of Jurisdictions 
for Comparison 

City of Troy 
Percentile 

Comparison of Troy 
Rating to Norm 

Garbage 
collection 76 63 219 72%ile similar to the norm

Recycling 71 64 172 63%ile similar to the norm

Yard waste 
pick-up 71 17 74 78%ile above the norm

Storm 
drainage 61 29 145 81%ile above the norm

Sewer 
services 64 49 120 60%ile similar to the norm

 
 
 
 
 



 Report of Normative Comparisons 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 17 

CO
M

PA
R
IS

O
N

S 

0

25

50

75

100

Land use, planning and
zoning

Code enforcement Animal control Economic development

Percentile

 
Figure 10a: Quality of Planning and Code Enforcement Services 

 
 
 

Figure 10b: Quality of Planning and Code Enforcement Services  

 
 

City of 
Troy 

Rating Rank
Number of Jurisdictions 

for Comparison 
City of Troy 
Percentile 

Comparison of Troy 
Rating to Norm 

Land use, planning 
and zoning 50 30 108 73%ile above the norm

Code enforcement 57 41 170 76%ile above the norm

Animal control 63 41 142 72%ile above the norm

Economic 
development 61 12 93 88%ile above the norm

 



 Report of Normative Comparisons 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 18 

CO
M

PA
R
IS

O
N

S 

0

25

50

75

100

Services to
seniors

Services to
youth

Services to low-
income people

Public
information

services

Public schools Cable television

Percentile

 
Figure 11a: Quality of Services to Special Populations and Other 

Services 

 
 
 

Figure 11b: Quality of Services to Special Populations and Other Services  
 
 

City of Troy 
Rating Rank

Number of Jurisdictions 
for Comparison 

City of Troy 
Percentile 

Comparison of Troy 
Rating to Norm 

Services to seniors 65 37 129 72%ile above the norm

Services to youth 66 12 115 90%ile above the norm

Services to low-
income people 48 12 61 82%ile above the norm

Public information 
services 67 12 118 91%ile above the norm

Public schools 81 9 179 96%ile above the norm

Cable television 62 2 55 98%ile above the norm



 Report of Normative Comparisons 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 19 

CO
M

PA
R
IS

O
N

S 

0

25

50

75

100

City of Troy Federal Government State Government

Percentile

 
Figure 12a: Overall Quality of Services 

 
 

Figure 12b: Overall Quality of Services  

 
 

City of 
Troy 

Rating Rank

Number of 
Jurisdictions for 

Comparison 
City of Troy 
Percentile 

Comparison of Troy 
Rating to Norm 

Services provided by 
the City of Troy 71 45 193 77%ile above the norm

Services provided by 
the Federal Government 47 23 73 70%ile similar to the norm

Services provided by 
the State Government 46 31 73 59%ile similar to the norm



 Report of Normative Comparisons 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 20 

CO
M

PA
R
IS

O
N

S 

0

25

50

75

100

Knowledge Responsiveness Courtesy Overall Impression

Percentile

 
Figure 13a: Ratings of Contact with City Employees 

 
 

Figure 13b: Ratings of Contact with the City Employees  
 
 

City of Troy 
Rating Rank

Number of Jurisdictions 
for Comparison 

City of Troy 
Percentile 

Comparison of Troy 
Rating to Norm 

Knowledge 76 31 122 75%ile similar to the norm

Responsiveness 74 31 128 77%ile above the norm

Courtesy 74 21 90 78%ile above the norm

Overall 
Impression 74 42 155 74%ile above the norm

 



 Report of Normative Comparisons 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 21 

CO
M

PA
R
IS

O
N

S 

0

25

50

75

100

I receive good value for
the City of Troy taxes I

pay

Overall direction that the
City of Troy is taking

The City govt. welcomes
citizen involvement

The City govt. listens to
citizens

Percentile

 
 

Figure 14a: Ratings of Public Trust 

 
 

Figure 14b: Ratings of Public Trust  

 
 

City of 
Troy 

Rating Rank

Number of 
Jurisdictions for 

Comparison 
City of Troy 
Percentile 

Comparison of Troy 
Rating to Norm 

I receive good value for 
the City of Troy taxes I 
pay 67 11 49 80%ile above the norm

Overall direction that the 
City of Troy is taking 68 17 106 85%ile above the norm

The City govt. welcomes 
citizen involvement 68 16 91 84%ile above the norm

The City govt. listens to 
citizens 60 21 84 76%ile above the norm

 



 

 Report of Normative Comparisons 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 22 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 I
 

APPENDIX I: LIST OF JURISDICTIONS 
INCLUDED IN NORMATIVE 
COMPARISONS 
 
Jurisdiction Name State 2000 Population
Homer      AK 3,946
Auburn      AL 42,987
Huntsville      AL 158,216
Phenix City      AL 28,265
Fayetteville      AR 58,047
Fort Smith      AR 80,268
Hot Springs      AR 35,613
Little Rock      AR 183,133
Siloam Springs      AR 10,000
Chandler      AZ 176,581
Gilbert      AZ 109,697
Mesa      AZ 396,375
Phoenix      AZ 1,321,045
Safford      AZ 9,232
Scottsdale AZ 202,705
Sedona      AZ 10,192
Tempe      AZ 158,625
Tucson      AZ 486,699
Antioch      CA 90,532
Arcadia      CA 53,054
Bakersfield      CA 247,057
Berkeley      CA 102,743
Claremont      CA 33,998
Concord      CA 121,780
Coronado      CA 24,100
Cypress      CA 46,229
El Cerrito      CA 23,171
Encinitas      CA 54,014
Fremont      CA 203,413
Garden Grove      CA 165,196
Gilroy      CA 41,464
Hercules      CA 19,488
Highland      CA 44,605
La Mesa      CA 54,749
Lakewood      CA 79,345
Livermore      CA 73,345
Lompoc      CA 41,103
Long Beach      CA 461,522
Los Alamitos      CA 11,536
Los Gatos      CA 28,592
Menlo Park      CA 30,785
Monterey      CA 29,674



 

 Report of Normative Comparisons 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 23 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 I
 

Jurisdiction Name State 2000 Population
Mountain View      CA 70,708
Novato      CA 47,630
Oceanside      CA 161,029
Oxnard      CA 170,358
Palm Springs      CA 42,807
Palo Alto CA 58,598
Pasadena      CA 133,936
Pleasanton      CA 63,654
Pomona      CA 149,473
Poway      CA 48,044
Redding      CA 80,865
Ridgecrest      CA 24,927
Riverside      CA 255,166
Rosemead      CA 53,505
Sacramento County      CA 1,223,499
San Francisco      CA 776,733
San Jose      CA 894,943
San Luis Obispo County      CA 247,900
San Mateo      CA 92,482
San Rafael      CA 56,063
San Ramon      CA 44,722
Santa Clara      CA 102,361
Santa Clarita      CA 151,088
Santa Monica      CA 84,084
Santa Rosa      CA 147,595
Simi Valley      CA 111,351
Solana Beach      CA 12,979
South Gate      CA 96,375
Sunnyvale      CA 131,760
Temecula      CA 57,716
Thousand Oaks      CA 117,005
Torrance      CA 137,946
Visalia      CA 91,565
Walnut Creek      CA 64,296
Yuba City      CA 36,758
Arvada      CO 102,153
Boulder      CO 94,673
Boulder County      CO 291,288
Broomfield      CO 38,272
Castle Rock      CO 20,224
Denver (City and County)      CO 554,636
Englewood      CO 31,727
Fort Collins      CO 118,652
Golden      CO 17,159
Greeley      CO 76,930
Greenwood Village      CO 11,035
Jefferson County      CO 527,056
Lafayette      CO 23,197
Lakewood      CO 144,126



 

 Report of Normative Comparisons 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 24 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 I
 

Jurisdiction Name State 2000 Population
Larimer County      CO 251,494
Littleton      CO 40,340
Longmont      CO 71,093
Louisville      CO 18,937
Loveland      CO 50,608
Northglenn      CO 31,575
Parker      CO 23,558
Thornton      CO 82,384
Vail      CO 4,531
Westminster      CO 100,940
Wheat Ridge      CO 32,913
Hartford      CT 121,578
Manchester      CT 54,740
New London      CT 25,671
Vernon      CT 28,063
West Hartford      CT 63,589
Wethersfield      CT 26,271
Dover      DE 32,135
Newark      DE 28,547
Altamonte Springs      FL 41,200
Boca Raton      FL 74,764
Bradenton      FL 49,504
Broward County      FL 1,623,018
Cape Coral      FL 102,286
Collier County      FL 251,377
Cooper City      FL 27,939
Coral Springs      FL 117,549
Deerfield Beach      FL 64,583
Delray Beach      FL 60,020
Fort Lauderdale      FL 152,397
Jacksonville      FL 735,617
Kissimmee      FL 47,814
Lee County      FL 454,918
Miami      FL 362,470
Miami-Dade County      FL 2,253,362
Ocoee      FL 24,391
Orange County      FL 896,344
Orlando      FL 185,951
Palm Bay FL 79,413
Palm Beach County      FL 1,131,184
Palm Coast      FL 32,732
Pinellas County      FL 921,482
Pinellas Park      FL 45,658
Port Orange      FL 45,823
Port St. Lucie      FL 88,769
St. Petersburg      FL 248,232
Tallahassee      FL 150,624
Titusville FL 42,715
Walton County      FL 40,601



 

 Report of Normative Comparisons 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 25 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 I
 

Jurisdiction Name State 2000 Population
Atlanta      GA 416,474
Cartersville      GA 15,925
Columbus      GA 185,781
Douglas County      GA 92,174
Macon      GA 97,255
Milledgeville      GA 18,757
Savannah      GA 131,510
Adams County      IA 4,482
Ames      IA 50,731
Ankeny      IA 27,117
Cedar Rapids      IA 120,758
Clarke County      IA 9,133
Des Moines County      IA 42,351
Fort Dodge      IA 25,136
Fort Madison      IA 10,715
Indianola      IA 12,998
Iowa County      IA 15,671
Louisa County      IA 12,183
Marion      IA 7,144
Newton      IA 15,579
Polk County      IA 374,601
West Des Moines      IA 46,403
Lewiston      ID 30,904
Moscow      ID 21,291
Twin Falls      ID 34,469
Addison Village      IL 35,914
Decatur      IL 81,860
Downers Grove      IL 48,724
Elmhurst      IL 42,762
Evanston      IL 74,239
Highland Park      IL 31,365
Homewood      IL 19,543
Park Ridge      IL 37,775
Peoria      IL 112,936
Skokie      IL 63,348
St. Charles      IL 27,896
Streamwood      IL 36,407
Urbana      IL 36,395
Village of Oak Park      IL 52,524
Wilmette      IL 27,651
Fort Wayne      IN 205,727
Gary      IN 102,746
Marion County      IN 860,454
Lawrence      KS 80,098
Overland Park      KS 149,080
Shawnee      KS 47,996
Wichita      KS 344,284
Ashland      KY 21,981
Bowling Green      KY 49,296



 

 Report of Normative Comparisons 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 26 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 I
 

Jurisdiction Name State 2000 Population
Lexington      KY 260,512
Jefferson Parish      LA 455,466
Orleans Parish      LA 484,674
Andover      MA 31,247
Barnstable      MA 47,821
Boston      MA 589,141
Brookline      MA 57,107
Worcester      MA 172,648
Greenbelt      MD 21,456
Rockville      MD 47,388
Ann Arbor      MI 114,024
Battle Creek      MI 53,364
Delhi Township      MI 22,569
Detroit      MI 951,270
East Lansing      MI 46,525
Grand Rapids      MI 197,800
Kentwood      MI 45,255
Meridian Charter Township      MI 38,987
Muskegon      MI 40,105
Novi      MI 47,386
Port Huron      MI 32,338
Rochester Hills      MI 68,825
Blaine      MN 44,942
Dakota County      MN 355,904
Duluth      MN 86,918
Eagan      MN 63,557
Golden Valley      MN 20,281
Grand Forks      MN 231
Mankato      MN 32,427
Maplewood      MN 34,947
Minnetonka      MN 51,301
Plymouth      MN 65,894
Polk County      MN 31,369
Richfield      MN 34,439
Roseville      MN 33,690
Scott County      MN 89,498
St. Clair Shores      MN 827
St. Paul      MN 287,151
Ballwin      MO 31,283
Columbia      MO 84,531
Ellisville      MO 9,104
Kansas City      MO 441,545
Kirkwood      MO 27,324
Platte County      MO 73,791
Saint Joseph      MO 73,990
Saint Peters      MO 51,381
Springfield      MO 151,580
Biloxi      MS 50,644
Pascagoula      MS 26,200



 

 Report of Normative Comparisons 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 27 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 I
 

Jurisdiction Name State 2000 Population
Great Falls      MT 56,690
Yellowstone County      MT 129,352
Cary      NC 94,536
Charlotte      NC 540,828
Durham      NC 187,038
Greensboro      NC 223,891
Hickory      NC 37,222
Hudson      NC 3,078
Rocky Mount      NC 55,893
Wilmington      NC 90,400
Wilson      NC 44,405
Fargo      ND 90,599
Grand Forks      ND 49,321
Kearney      NE 27,431
Dover      NH 26,884
Merrimack      NH 25,119
Salem      NH 28,112
Hackensack      NJ 42,677
Medford      NJ 22,253
Willingboro Township      NJ 33,008
Albuquerque      NM 448,607
Los Alamos County      NM 18,343
Rio Rancho      NM 51,765
Taos      NM 4,700
Henderson      NV 175,381
North Las Vegas      NV 115,488
Reno      NV 180,480
Sparks      NV 66,346
Genesee County      NY 60,370
New York City      NY 8,008,278
Ontario County      NY 100,224
Rochester      NY 219,773
Rye      NY 14,955
Watertown      NY 26,705
Akron      OH 217,074
Cincinnati      OH 331,285
Columbus      OH 711,470
Dayton      OH 166,179
Dublin      OH 31,392
Fairborn      OH 32,052
Huber Heights      OH 38,212
Kettering OH 57,502
Shaker Heights      OH 29,405
Springfield      OH 65,358
Westerville      OH 35,318
Oklahoma City      OK 506,132
Albany      OR 40,852
Ashland      OR 19,522
Corvallis      OR 49,322



 

 Report of Normative Comparisons 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 28 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 I
 

Jurisdiction Name State 2000 Population
Eugene      OR 137,893
Gresham      OR 90,205
Jackson County      OR 181,269
Lake Oswego      OR 35,278
Multnomah County      OR 660,486
Portland      OR 529,121
Springfield      OR 52,864
Lower Merion Township      PA 59,850
Manheim      PA 4,784
Philadelphia      PA 1,517,550
State College      PA 38,420
Upper Merion Township      PA 28,863
Newport      RI 26,475
Columbia      SC 116,278
Mauldin      SC 15,224
Myrtle Beach      SC 22,759
Pickens County      SC 110,757
Rock Hill      SC 49,765
York County      SC 164,614
Aberdeen      SD 24,658
Cookville      TN 23,923
Franklin      TN 41,842
Knoxville      TN 173,890
Memphis      TN 650,100
Oak Ridge      TN 27,387
Arlington      TX 332,969
Austin      TX 656,562
Bedford      TX 47,152
Carrollton      TX 109,576
College Station      TX 67,890
Corpus Christi      TX 277,454
Dallas      TX 1,188,580
Denton      TX 80,537
DeSoto      TX 37,646
Fort Worth      TX 534,694
Garland      TX 215,768
Grand Prairie      TX 127,427
Lewisville      TX 77,737
Lubbock      TX 199,564
Lufkin      TX 32,709
McAllen      TX 106,414
McKinney      TX 54,369
Missouri City      TX 52,913
Mount Pleasant      TX 13,935
Nacogdoches      TX 29,914
Pasadena      TX 141,674
Plano      TX 222,030
Round Rock      TX 61,136
Sugar Land      TX 63,328



 

 Report of Normative Comparisons 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 29 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 I
 

Jurisdiction Name State 2000 Population
Temple      TX 54,514
Victoria      TX 60,603
Bountiful      UT 41,301
Ogden      UT 77,226
West Valley City      UT 108,896
Albemarle County      VA 79,236
Bedford County      VA 60,371
Blacksburg      VA 39,357
Chesapeake      VA 199,184
Chesterfield County      VA 259,903
Hampton      VA 146,437
Hopewell      VA 22,354
James City County      VA 48,102
Lynchburg      VA 65,269
Norfolk      VA 234,403
Northampton County      VA 13,093
Prince William County      VA 280,813
Richmond      VA 197,790
Roanoke County      VA 85,778
Stafford County      VA 92,446
Virginia Beach      VA 425,257
Williamsburg      VA 11,998
Bellevue      WA 109,569
Bothell      WA 30,150
Kent      WA 79,524
Kitsap County      WA 231,969
Lynnwood      WA 33,847
Marysville      WA 12,268
Olympia      WA 42,514
Redmond      WA 45,256
Renton      WA 50,052
Richland      WA 38,708
Seattle      WA 563,374
University Place      WA 29,933
Vancouver      WA 143,560
Walla Walla      WA 29,686
Appleton      WI 70,087
Eau Claire      WI 61,704
Janesville      WI 59,498
Kenosha      WI 90,352
Madison      WI 208,054
Marquette County      WI 15,832
Milton      WI 5,132
Superior      WI 27,368
Village of Brown Deer      WI 12,170
Wausau      WI 38,426
Winnebago County      WI 156,763
Laramie      WY 27,204

 



 

 Report of Normative Comparisons 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 30 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 I
I 

 

APPENDIX II: FREQUENTLY ASKED 
QUESTIONS ABOUT THE CITIZEN 
SURVEY DATABASE 
 
 
Q: What is in the citizen survey database? 
A: National Research Center’s database includes the results from citizen 
surveys conducted in over 300 jurisdictions in the United States.  These are 
public opinion polls answered by more than 250,000 residents around the 
country.  We have recorded, analyzed and stored responses to over 6,000 
survey questions dealing with resident perceptions about the quality of 
community life and public trust and residents’ report of their use of public 
facilities.  Respondents to these surveys are intended to represent over 40 
million Americans. 
 
Q: What kinds of questions are included? 
A: Residents’ ratings of the quality of virtually every kind of local government 
service are included – from police, fire and trash haul to animal control, planning 
and cemeteries.  Many dimensions of quality of life are included such as feeling 
of safety and opportunities for dining, recreation and shopping as well as ratings 
of the overall quality of community life and community as a place to raise children 
and retire. 
 
Q: What is so unique about National Research 
Center’s Citizen Survey database? 
A: It is the only database of its size that contains the people’s perceptions about 
government service delivery and quality of life.  For example, others use 
government statistics about crime to deduce the quality of police services or 
speed of pot hole repair to draw conclusions about the quality of street 
maintenance.  Only National Research Center’s database adds the opinion of 
service recipients themselves to the service quality equation.  We believe that 
conclusions about service or community quality are made prematurely if opinions 
of the community’s residents themselves are missing. 
 
Q: What is the database used for? 
A: Benchmarking.  Our clients use the comparative information in the database 
to help interpret their own citizen survey results, to create or revise community 
plans, to evaluate the success of policy or budget decisions, to measure local 
government performance.  We don’t know what is small or tall without comparing.  
Taking the pulse of the community has little meaning without knowing what pulse 
rate is too high and what is too low.  So many surveys of service satisfaction turn 
up at least “good” citizen evaluations that we need to know how others rate their 
services to understand if “good” is good enough.  Furthermore, in the absence of 
national or peer community comparisons, a jurisdiction is left with comparing its 
fire protection rating to its street maintenance rating.  That comparison is unfair.  
Streets always lose to fire.  We need to ask more important and harder 
questions.  We need to know how our residents’ ratings of fire service compare 
to opinions about fire service in other communities. 



 

 Report of Normative Comparisons 
The National CITIZEN SURVEYTM  
 31 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 I
I 

 
Q: So what if we find that our public opinions are 
better or – for that matter – worse than opinions in 
other communities?  What does it mean? 
A: A police department that provides the fastest and most efficient service—one 
that closes most of its cases, solves most of its crimes and keeps the crime rate 
low—still has a problem to fix if its clients believe services are not very good 
compared to ratings received by objectively “worse” departments.   
 
National Research Center’s database can help that police department – or any 
city department – to understand how well citizens think it is doing.  Without the 
comparative data from National Research Center’s database, it would be like 
bowling in a tournament without knowing what the other teams are scoring.  We 
recommend that citizen opinion be used in conjunction with other sources of data 
to help managers know how to respond to comparative results. 
 
Q: Aren’t comparisons of questions from different 
surveys like comparing apples and oranges? 
A: It is true that you can’t simply take a given result from one survey and 
compare it to the result from a different survey.  National Research Center, Inc. 
principals have pioneered and reported their methods for converting all survey 
responses to the same scale.  Because scales responses will differ among types 
of survey questions, National Research Center, Inc. statisticians have developed 
statistical algorithms, which adjust question results based on many 
characteristics of the question, its scale and the survey methods.  All results are 
then converted to the PTM (percent to maximum) scale with a minimum score of 
0 (equaling the lowest possible rating) to a maximum score of 100 (equaling the 
highest possible rating).  We then can provide a norm that not only controls for 
question differences, but also controls for differences in types of survey methods.  
This way we put all questions on the same scale and a norm can be offered for 
communities of given sizes or in various regions. 
 
Q: How can managers trust the comparability of 
results? 
A: Principals of National Research Center, Inc. have submitted their work to 
peer reviewed scholarly journals where its publication fully describes the rigor of 
our methods and the quality of our findings.  We have published articles in Public 
Administration Review, Journal of Policy Analysis and Management and 
Governing, and we wrote a book, Citizen Surveys: How to do them, how to use 
them, what they mean, that describes in detail how survey responses can be 
adjusted to provide fair comparisons for ratings among many jurisdictions.  Our 
work on calculating national norms for resident opinions about service delivery 
and quality of life won the Samuel C. May award for research excellence from the 
Western Governmental Research Association. 
 



mccombca
Text Box
J-05







morrellca
Text Box
J-06











morrellca
Text Box
J-07







April 8, 2004 
 
 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Letter of Transmittal; Proposed Fiscal Year 2005/06 Annual Budget 
 
 
The proposed fiscal year 2005/06 budget is being submitted for your review; it will be handed 
out to you at Monday night’s meeting.  The first 25 pages of this document provide a concise 
summary of the entire budget.  Based on your direction to me at our January 17, 2005 study 
session, as well as my instructions to staff, this budget advances the following: 
 
1) The City’s millage rate remains at 9.45 mils for the fourth consecutive year. 
 
2) The total City budget of $140.2 million decreased by $ .4 million or .3% from the 

previous year. 
 
3) A transfer of .25 mills from the Debt Service Fund to the General Fund is included in this 

budget.  This results in a large decrease in the reliance on Fund Balance reserves when 
compared with last year ($3.1 million versus $1.3 million). 

 
 The undesignated General Fund reserves are anticipated to equal at least 15.3% of the 

recommended budget.  In addition, $100,000 will be transferred to the Budget 
Stabilization Fund.   

 
4) Capital projects funds are contained on pages 216-267 of the proposed budget and I’ll 

once again be providing a condensed listing of proposed projects greater than $50,000  
 
5) We have reduced the full-time workforce by three positions to a lean 485.  Our full-time 

work force equates to 5.65 employees for every 1,000 Troy residents, and with an 
estimated citywide workforce of 102,571, this equates to about 4.73 full-time City of Troy 
employees per 1,000 people who work here.   

 
The three positions were reduced through attrition and include one in the Building Department, 
and two in Public Works.  Of course, we’ll endeavor to maintain the same level of service by  
redistributing tasks amongst current employees and through the addition of part-time  
employees.   
 
Thank you for your direction which assisted greatly in developing this document.   
 
John Lamerato, Brian Murphy, and I stand ready to respond to any comments you may have.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
JS/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2005\04.18.05 - Budget Transmittal 

morrellca
Text Box
J-08



morrellca
Text Box
K-01






	AGENDA: April 18, 2005
	GOALS:
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations

	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1102 Boyd
	C-2 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1998 Kirkton
	C-3 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 6771 Westaway

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 Best Value Process Award – Audit Services – In a related

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):
	Recording for the Blind and Dyslexic Week – April 25-30, 200
	Law Day – May 1, 2005

	E-4  Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Aw�
	b\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  O�
	c\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  A�
	d\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  A�
	e\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  B�
	f\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  A�
	g\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10:  �

	E-5  Request for Approval of Relocation Claim, Barbara A. St
	E-6  Request for Acceptance of a Regrading and Temporary Con
	E-7  Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Wate
	E-8  Private Agreement for San Marino Social Club
	E-9  Maria Hunciag v. City of Troy
	E-10 Request for Acceptance of Private Road Agreement, Priva

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  Brownfield Redevelopment Authority; b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens, Boar
	F-2 Approval of Contract with MDOT for Right-of-Way Acquisit
	F-3 Approval of Contract with MDOT for Right-of-Way Acquisit
	F-4 Bid Waiver – Purchase of Encoding Hardware and Hard Disk
	F-5 Proposed Amendment to Chapter 20 – Water and Sewer Rates
	F-6 Council Rules of Procedure Amendment to Accommodate SEMC
	F-7 FOIA (Freedom of Information Act) / Enhanced Access Poli
	F-8 Approval of Subdivision Entrance Sign / Agreement – Ceda
	F-9 Planning Consultant Services Contract
	F-10 Wireless Oakland Pilot Community
	F-11 City Manager Employment Contract
	F-12 City Attorney Employment Contract
	F-13 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Oak Forest South 
	F-14 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Oak Forest Site C
	F-15 Limited Public Forum – Selection Process

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	G-2 Green Memorandums:
	City Manager’s Letter to Ed Barlow Regarding the Proposal fo
	Charter Revisions – 2005 Proposed Charter Committee Referral
	Minutes from the Special/Joint Meeting of the City Council a


	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Election Commission/Final – February 23, 2005
	Troy Youth Council/Final – February 23, 2005
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – Mar
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – Mar
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – March 2, 2005
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – March
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – March 22, 2005
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – March 22, 2005
	Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – March 22, 2005
	Troy Youth Council/Draft – March 23, 2005
	Election Commission/Draft – April 12, 2005

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Mayor Louise Schilling’s Travel Expense Report for the NLC A
	Councilmember Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report for t
	Councilmember Dave Lambert’s Travel Expense Report for the N
	Councilmember Dave Lambert’s Travel Expense Report for the M
	Permits Issued During the Month of March 2005
	2005 First Quarter Litigation Report
	March 31, 2005 Quarterly Financial Report
	ICMA Survey

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  None Submitted.
	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Realignment of Coolidge Road/Wattles Intersection Under
	J-7  Letter from Doeren Mayhew Regarding Audit Services
	J-8  Letter of Transmittal; Proposed Fiscal Year 2005/06 Ann

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 Study Item – (Time Permitting) Update on Premature Concr

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session

	RECESSED
	RECONVENED
	ADJOURNMENT
	SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS:
	Monday, April 25, 2005: 6:30 PM Special/Study/Budget City Co
	Monday, April 25, 2005 Regular City Council
	Monday, May 02, 2005: 6:30 PM Special/Study/Budget City Coun
	Saturday, May 7, 2005: 9:00 AM Special/Study/Budget City Cou
	Monday, May 9, 2005 Regular City Council
	Tuesday, May 10, 2005: 7:30 PM Special/Study City Council
	Monday, May 16, 2005 Regular City Council
	Monday, May 23, 2005 Regular City Council
	Monday, June 6, 2005 Regular City Council
	Monday, June 20, 2005 Regular City Council


	05.04.18                   Attachments.pdf
	05.04.18 - D-01 Best Value Process Award - Audit Services - Ltr.pdf
	RECOMMENDATION
	Adobe - Audit Services - Revised - Exex Sum RFP-COT 04-60.pdf
	EVALUATION PROCESS:
	FINAL SCORING:

	Adobe - Best Value SR8 - RFP - Audit Services - StandardDeviationAuditServices02-05.pdf
	Sheet1

	Adobe - Best Value SR8 - RFP - Audit Services - FailedMinRequire -  Virchow RFP-COT 04-60.pdf
	115 S. 84th Street, Suite 400

	Agenda 04.18.05 Agenda Letter - JML.pdf
	PROCESS
	HISTORY OF AUDIT SELECTION – CITY OF TROY
	SUMMARY


	05.04.18                   E Items.pdf
	MINUTES: April 4, 2005
	Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Member Howrylak

	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations

	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Rezoning Application - Northeast Corner of Livernois and
	C-2 Street Vacation Application (SV-182) – A Section of Alle

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 No Postponed Items

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation:
	a\) Cultural Diversity Month – April 9, �

	E-8  SBC Dedicated Internet Service
	E-9  Acceptance of a Permanent Water Main Easement and a Reg
	E-10  Final Street Vacation Application (SV-173) – A Portion
	E-11 Application for New SDD and SDM Liquor Licenses for Red
	E-12  Application to Transfer Ownership of a B-Hotel Liquor 
	E-13  Application to Transfer Ownership of a Class C Liquor 
	E-14  Acceptance of Two (2) Temporary Construction Permits f
	E-15  Application to Transfer Class C Liquor License to Bank
	E-16  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder 
	E-17  Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest A
	E-18  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders
	E-19  Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Option to Renew – Au
	E-20 Street Vacation Application (SV-182) – A Section of All
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-4  Act 51 Mileage Certification for 2004
	E-5  Resolution Authorizing Request for Reimbursement:  Oakl
	E-6  Traffic Committee Recommendations – February 16, 2005
	E-7 Traffic Committee Recommendations – March 16, 2005

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  Economic Development Corporation; b) City Council Appointments: Historic District Commission; Library Board
	F-2 Blood Draw Procedure – Beaumont Hospital and Alliance Mo
	F-3 2005 Magic of Fall - Troy Daze Festival Schedule - Fees
	F-4 Designation of Limited Public Forums

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1998 Kirkton – April 18, 2005
	Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1102 Boyd – April 18, 2005
	Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 6771 Westaway – April 18, 2005

	G-2 Green Memorandums:
	Islamic Association of Michigan


	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1  Mayor Schilling’s Request for List of Churches in Troy 

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	MOTION CARRIED
	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Troy Historic Commission/Final – October 26, 2004
	Troy Historic Study Committee/Final – November 4, 2004
	Troy Historic Study Committee/Final – November 30, 2004
	Troy Historic District Study Committee/Final – January 4, 20
	Troy Historic Commission/Final – January 25, 2005
	Troy Historic Study Committee/Final – February 1, 2005
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – February 14, 2005
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – February 15, 2005
	Troy Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – February 15, 2005
	Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting/Draft – March 1, 2
	Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting/Final – March 1, 2
	Troy Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – March 1, 2005
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – March 2, 2005
	Planning Commission Regular Meeting/Draft – March 8, 2005
	Planning Commission Regular Meeting/Final – March 8, 2005
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – March 14, 2005
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – March 15, 2005

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Council Member Dave Lambert’s Report on the National League 
	Councilmember Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report for N
	Annual Library Survey of Users
	First Quarter 2005 Development Report
	Permits Issued During the Month of February 2005
	Noted and Filed

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter to Cindy Stewart from Mary Beth Halushka of the Troy 
	Letter Thanking Police Officer Milt Stansbury for a Recent R
	Letter Thanking Police Officer Patrick Dyjewski for Providin
	Letter Thanking Police Officer LaForest for Assisting in App
	Letter Thanking Police Officer Craig Fitzpatrick and Police 
	Letter From Brad Byarski Thanking Jennifer Lawson for Offeri

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	Resolution from the Oakland County Board of Commissioners in

	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Options/Ramifications for Proposed I-75/Crooks/Long Lak
	J-7  Golf, Inc. Article
	J-8  Report on Liquor Compliance Inspections
	J-9  Load Restrictions Report and Communication
	J-10  Report Regarding Feasibility of a Minor League Basebal
	J-11  State of Michigan Ash Tree Removal Contract
	J-12  DPW Recycling Center Closure
	J-13  Letter from Julie A. Wendt, Director, Licensing Divisi
	J-14 Law Day 2005

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1  No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session

	05.04.18 - E-02 City Council-Special-Joint-Draft - March 28, 2005.pdf
	MINUTES: March 28, 2005 - Special/Joint Meeting
	1. Options for Regulating Attached Garages and Accessory Str
	2. Options for Regulating Commercial Vehicles

	PUBLIC COMMENT

	05.04.18 - E-04a SPR1 - Roof Replacement Fire Station #4.pdf
	Agenda 04.18.05 - Std Rsl 1 Roof Replacement FS#4 Memo.pdf
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND
	BUDGET


	05.04.18 - E-04e SPR2 - Printing of Troy Today.pdf
	Agenda 04.18.05 - StdRsl 2 TroyToday-ITB-COT 05-05.pdf
	ITB-COT 05-05 Printing of TROY TODAY.pdf
	Sheet 1



	05.04.18 - E-06 Troy Court Water Main Project #01.502.5 - Section 34.pdf
	Troy Court Water Main 04-07-05.pdf
	TROY COURT WATER MAIN
	Sidwell #88-20-34-152-023


	05.04.18 - E-07 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Watermain - Republic of San Marino Inc.pdf
	Republic of San Marino, Incoporated Watermain Easement Acceptance  4-11-05.pdf
	Sidwell #88-20-23-401-033



	05.04.18 - D-01 Best Value Process Award - Audit Services - Ltr.pdf
	RECOMMENDATION
	Adobe - Audit Services - Revised - Exex Sum RFP-COT 04-60.pdf
	EVALUATION PROCESS:
	FINAL SCORING:

	Adobe - Best Value SR8 - RFP - Audit Services - StandardDeviationAuditServices02-05.pdf
	Sheet1

	Adobe - Best Value SR8 - RFP - Audit Services - FailedMinRequire -  Virchow RFP-COT 04-60.pdf
	115 S. 84th Street, Suite 400

	Agenda 04.18.05 Agenda Letter - JML.pdf
	PROCESS
	HISTORY OF AUDIT SELECTION – CITY OF TROY
	SUMMARY

	Adobe - Audit Services - Revised - Exex Sum RFP-COT 04-60.pdf
	EVALUATION PROCESS:
	FINAL SCORING:


	05.04.18                   F Items.pdf
	05.04.18 - F-06 Council Rules of Procedure Amendment to Accommodate SEMCOG & SOCRRA Member Appointments.pdf
	15.1 APPOINTMENT OF CITY OF TROY REPRESENTATION TO SEMCOG AN

	05.04.18 - F-07 FOIA - Enhanced Access Policy Proposed Revision.pdf
	Draft Policy 05.04.07.pdf
	PROCEDURES AND GUIDELINES REGARDING FREEDOM OF INFORMATION A
	A.  DESIGNATED FOIA COORDINATOR
	B.  REQUESTER RESPONSIBILITIES UNDER FOIA/ ENCHANCED ACCESS
	C.  CITY RESPONSIBILITIES UNDER FOIA/ENHANCED ACCESS
	D.  COSTS FOR RESPONDING TO FOIA REQUESTS
	E.  COSTS FOR RESPONDING TO ENHANCED ACCESS REQUESTS
	F.  APPEALS

	A
	D
	F
	G
	H
	J



	05.04.18                   G Items.pdf
	05.04.18 - G-02b Charter Revisions - 2005 Proposed Charter Committee Referrals.pdf
	Section 3.4 – Elective Officers and Terms of Office:
	Section  3.4.1 – Elective Officers Term Limitations
	Section 3.4.2 – Staggering Terms of Office:
	Section 7.3 - Election Date:
	Section 7.6 - Special Election:


	05.04.18                   J Items.pdf
	ROLL CALL:
	Minutes: Regular Meeting of January 26, 2005
	Approval of Relocating All School District Precincts in the 
	Approval of Consolidation of All Applicable Relocated School
	Adjournment:
	05.04.18 - J-01k Election Commission-Draft - April 12, 2005.pdf
	ROLL CALL:
	Minutes: Regular Meeting of February 23, 2005
	Approval of Precinct Inspector
	Adjournment:

	05.04.18 - J-02e Permits Issued for the Month of March 2005.pdf
	03 Monthly Report.pdf
	March

	03 Tabulation.pdf
	Tabulation

	03 Bar Chart.pdf
	Bar Chart







